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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Dalmia Power Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dalmia Power Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), cash flow statement and the statement changes in equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2020, its loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date
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of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued
thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
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it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the cash
flows statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2020. Hence, provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company and has not commented upon; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

& awade Wl —

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No. 087294

Place: New Delhi

Date: June 04, 2020
UDIN : 20087294AAAADLA4087
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Dalmia Power Limited dated June 04,

2020

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
as referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year, the frequency of
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, provision of clause 3(iii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are
applicable. Hence, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Rules framed there under.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act for the Company’s activities. Hence, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing its undisputed
statutory dues including Employees’ Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise duty, Cess,
Goods and Service Tax and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities during the year and there are no such undisputed amounts payable
which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.
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We are informed that there are no dues in respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Goods and Service Tax and Service Tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by
us, the Company has not taken loans from financial institutions, banks and Government. The Company
does not have any debentures. Accordingly, clauses 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer and term loans hence, reporting
under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud
by the Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable and
hence not commented upon.

The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of
audit, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Act where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the books
of account, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred in
section 192 of the Act.

=
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XVi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

TS ey A

/ Sunil Wahal

-

* Partner
Membership No. 087294

Place: New Delhi

Date: June 04, 2020
UDIN : 20087294AAAADLA087
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Dalmia Power Limited dated June 04,
2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dalmia Power Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

n “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
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Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No. 087294

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 04, 2020
UDIN : 20087294AAAADLA087
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Daimia Power Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

AR amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Lakhs excent wherever stated otherwise _Rs.
o Notes As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2018
ABSETS
Non-current assets
Preperty, plant and squipment 21 15 i 1118
Capial work-in-grograss 2.2 - 32.41
Financial assets:
{0} Investment 2.3 B 28.84
Other non sumrent assets 2.4 e 613.58
11.13 $485.78
Current Assets
Financial assets:
(i} Investments 2.5 76,778,589 1,00,084 48
(i} Cash and caah equivalents 2.6 10.67 8.87
{iii} Gther financial assets a7 - 1.02
Other current assets 2.8 74,83 74.83
Assets held for sale 29 32.41 s=
76,896.50 1,08,169.78
Total assets B 76,907.63 1,006,854 85
EQUATY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2.0 50,00 50.60
Other equity 2,41 B 48,202.75 69.091.36
: 46,252 .75 69,141.36
Liabilitles
MNon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabifitios {nei} 242 0.00 34238
8.00 342.39
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitias
{ij Borrowings 243 27,634.19 2811119
i) Trade payables 294
- tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - -
smial enterprises
- tolal putstanding dues of crediters other than 087 0.87
micre anyg smatl enterprisess . 1
) Other financial kabilities 2.48 258210 2,724 .08
Cther current liabilities 2.16 264,50 256,82
Current tax liabifities (net) o 173z 278,24
_____ 30,654.88 e ]
e o 76,807.63 1,00,854.85
Significant avcounting policies 18
The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even daie For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Dalmia Power Limited
For 8.5. Kothari Mahia & Company

Ohartsred Accountanis

Firm Reg;&m No. DO0756N
LAARST AN
W

Fartner

Mempership No, 087204
Place New Delr

Date: June 04, 2020

Director Director

Ashwini KumarTaimia Bharat Bhushan Mehia

DIN No. 07040702 DIN Ne 00008800



Dalmwia Power Limitea
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year snded March 34 . 2028

All ameunts ecnftaminbe b contuhereerstutedotborwize Rs.
' Notes Year endad Year ande

G o —— a e Miarg b 31, 2018
INCOuE

Othar income 247
Total income &}
EXPENSES

Finance costs 2,18

Other expenses 2.8

Total expenses (i

{Loss] before tax 163 - fiiyy

Tax expanses:
Current tax

Oeferrad tax (cragit) “ {2.04}
Gurrent fax adiustmants for sarlier yaars {118,683

Total tax expense

{Loss) atiar tax

Other comprehensive income
ftams trat will not be reclassifiad to profit of fogs:

- Net {loss) gain on #quity nstruments through other camprehensive income {22,114.79) 2,856 86
- Incoms tax eredit relating fo above tem e = 34238 1.766.47
Other prof i for the year, nel of tax

Total comprehensive incons for the year

Earings per share
Basic and Dilutes Earrings Par Share (in Rupees) 220 (223.24; 278423
[Nominat Valug of Shars Rs 14 {Rs. 10} pach]

Significant #tcounting policies 18

e

As per our report of even dats

For .5, Kothari Mehts & Company For and on behalf of Board of Birectors of
Charlerad Accountants Daimia Power Limited

Firm Re }f-’atrw Mo SO0756N ‘ﬂ% \
Ashwini K mia  Bharat Bhushan Mehta

| Waksl
Parine: Sirector Eirecior
Membership No. D87202 DIN Mo, 07340707 DN Ne D00CER90

Place: New Dol
Date: Juns 04, 2020




Dalmia Power Limiteq

Cash Flow Statersent for the year ended March 31, 2020
Adl s alat

i In Re. are in Rs. Lakhs sxcept wherever stated otherwlise

A Cash fiow from epersting activities
Hhoss) befors wax

Adjustments:

Aszet written off

Prufit an sale of nor-curran: invesimants

Raversal of fair valuation gain on Invesiment (FVTPL;
Finance costs

interest {incoms)

Share in profit of Srmited fability partnershin investrant
ividend {income)

Do

ting {loss) before working capital changes
Adiustments foy working capltai changes:
Decrease In othar non currest assedy

Qiher financial assets

!}ﬁcreaw'{mcraasej in otter curreni assels
ingrease i other surrent Habilities

Cash generated from cparations

Income tax paid (et
Het cash flow from operating activities

B. Caszh flow from mvesting activities
Prozesds on refund of capital advance
Share In profit of Bmited liability parinership investren
Profit on sals of invesiments {ney)
Progeeds from saie of ror-current investments
Frovesds from sale of cuprsnt Investments
irleros received
Dévidens racgived
Net cash flow from invasting activities

C. Cashflow from financing activities
(Repayment) of shor term borrowings
Procesds from shar term borawings
Interest paid
Het cash flow (used in} #inancing activities

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

Het Increase / () Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Balence al the end of the vear
Balance at the Deginning of the year
Met changes in cash ang cash equivalents

Motes:

Tre cash flow slalement hat bean prepared under ihe ingirect

Figws

st

Year ended
. .March 31, 2029

{1.231.54
- 101,06
3.50) {6.07)
412 4.12)
2844 47 288767
(1.62) (2.05)
(563,28} {591.03)
— \T5O08 86723
............................ 122051
{2.33}

€13.38
88388 581.03
5 1019
2822 {4123

1,191 .08

{732.00) -
255.00 B5.74
L - . f2812.08

T o 13,263.45)

method as set oul i Indian Accounting Standard {ind ASH T, Statemert of Cash

The ateampanying noles form an integral part of the Branciat

As per sur report of aven date

For 8.5, Kotharl Mehts & Cumpany
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Rogistration Na. OBGYSEN

C

unit Wahaj
Parner
Membershin No. 087294
Place: Néw Delh
Date. June 04, 2025

Statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Daimia Power Limites

Ashwini Kumay Dalimiyg

Direstor
DIN No. 07040702

Dirmotor

Bharat Bhushan Mehta

Din No.j0008880



Eratria Power Limited
Statoment of changss In eqidty for the yoar ended Sarch 31, 2020
Al praounts stted in R, sre In Ra, Lakhs exsopl wherever stuind otherwlze

#. Eatity share eapital
Equity 5

Aa gt Aprll 4, 2048
issue of shore capits
Az at March 31, 2015
tseue of share copital
As 5 Mareh 31, 2020

B. Other pauity

1820588 {637,35) 65564 .01
. (1,397.08} 2 {1,357 an;
oftani S i 4f83ay | 46734y
the yaar : 1,587,098} 483543 3,22838

....... i (03643
As ul Mgy, 2048 18.202.36 {2,434 44) f821.94 £3.081.28
Lossifor the yoar - fhesg.21) - {1.116.21)
Giner cermpraensive ingome fnet of k) R i o i T2 e L TR AD,
Total comprehensive incama for the yegr - {51627 {31, 772.44} {E2,888.8%
Tranaler to retainad SRENDE OF Se o Bty Patruments thraugh -
o . :

For csserintion of the purpases of #0d: reseree within saulty. reter note .11 of financial slatameeis

&5 par our report of evan date

For 8.5, Homar Mata & Comgany For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
{ehartessd Accourtants Dafinls Power Limitag
i Rogs it Ha. 00T

Auhwint Kumar Daimis  Bhurst Bhushan Mebiy

Director Diractor
DIN Ne g7 040707 D3 Ne oGonsaan

Pgrgge
Hernborghin No, IR7284
Place: Naw Sajhi

D dune 04, 2p28
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Dalmia Power Limiteg
Notes to the financial statements

(i)
(2}

Note 4

Corporate Information

Dalmia Power Limited (DPL} is a public camparny domiclled in India ang incerporated under the provisions
of the erstwhile Companies Act. 1956 The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dabnia Bharat Limited
{formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited).

The Company is primarily engaged in power/energy business and investment/acquisition of power / snergy
asgats.

The financial stelements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were authorised for issued in accordance with
a resclution of the Board of Directors on June 04, 2020,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The fnancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards ({ind AS) netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time 1o time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11t o the Companies Act, 2013,
{ind AS compliant Schedule i),

The financial statemenis have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention,
except for following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Cerain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value {refer accounting pelicy regarding financial
instruments).

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of
previous year,

The financiai statements are presented in Indian Rupee {Rs.) and all the values are rounded of to the
nearest Lakhs, excepl nusmber of shares, face value of share, earning/ {luss) per share or wherever
otherwise indicated,

Summary of significant Accounting Pulicies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and ligbiliies in the balance shest based on curent! non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when # is;

- Expected o be reslised or intended to be soid or consumed in nosmal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purposs of trading

- Expecied o be realised within tweilve months after the reporting peried, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used io seftis a liabliity for at least
twesive months after ihe reporting period

Al other assels are classified as non-current.

A liability Is current when:

= Itis expected to be seftled in normal uperating cyele

= His beld primarily for the purpose of trading

- s due (o be seliled within tweive months after the reparting periog, or

- There s no unconditions! right te defer the setlement of the liabifity for at least twetve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabiliies as non-current,
Deferred tex assets and labiitios are classified as non-current assets and labiiities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of asseis for processing and their realisation In cash
and cash eguivalents. The Company has idenfified twalve months as s operating oycle.
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{b} Foreign currencies

{c}

The Company's financial statemenis are presented in Indian Rupees. which is the Company's functionat
currency.

Transactions and balances

Forsign currency ansactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functionz! currency, by applying 1o
the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the funchionat currency and the foreign
cirrency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated i foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on setlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of
profit end loss.

Eair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer & fabiiity in an orderly
ransaction bebween market participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumplion that the transaction io sell the assel or transfer the liabifity takes place sither:

B In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B inthe absence of & principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an assel or a liabllity is measured using the assumplions that market participants wouid
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market participants act in their econoraic best inderest,

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market parficipant’s ability @
generate economic benefits by using the asset i ils highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the assst in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are agpropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
datz are available to measure fir valie, maximising the use of relevant observabie inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs,

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the fnancial siatemenis are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant i the fair valus measurement as g whole:

»  Level 1-— Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lisbifitias

B Level 2 — Valuation iechniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is direcly or indirectly observable

»  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level nput that is significart to the fair value
measurament is unobservable

For asseis and labilities that are recognised in the financial sistements on a recurring basis, the Company
delermines whether fransfers have occlrred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement as a whole) at the end of
sach reporling pericd,

Al each reporing date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assete and lishlities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agresing the
infermation in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documenis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosy res, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characterisfics and nisks of the assst or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This nole summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relavant notes,

»  Financial instruments {including those carried 2t amontised cast) (note 2.273
= Comparison of carrylng value and fair value of financial instrumants (note 2.27)
¢« Quantitative disciosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 2.27)
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(d} Revenue recognition

{e)

Revenue is recognised o the extent that it s probable that the economic beneafits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue js
measurad gt the fair valus of the consideration received or recalvable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payrment and excluding taxes or duties colfected on behaif of the government.

The specific recognition criteria describad below must also be met before revenue is recognises:

interest income

For all debt instruments measured al amorlised cost, interest income s recerded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the esfimated futurs cash receipts over the sxpected life of
the financial instrument or & shorter period, where appropriate, to the gress carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of 2 financial Hability. Interest income is included in "other income” in the
staternant of profit and loss,

Dividends .
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which iz
generally when sharehoiders approve the dividend,

Share in profit of Limited Liability Partnership ( LLP)

The Company's share in profits from LLP, where the Company is & partner, is recognised as income as and
when the right o recsive its profit share is established by the Company in accordance with the terms of
contract betwaen the Comipany and the partnership entity.

income taxes

Current income tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1981 enacted In india. The tax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount are
those that are enasted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to ilems recognised oulside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax itemns are
fecognised in comrelation to the underlying transaction sither in OCI or dirgctly in equity, Managemant
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax relums with respect o situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriste.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using temporary differences between the lax base of assels and liabilities and Hheir
Cairying amounis for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or flabiity in a
transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affecis neither the
accounting profit nar taxable profit or loss

= I respect of laxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of e temporary differences o@n be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary diffarences will not reverse in the foresasable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for ai deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credils and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assels are recognised o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

= When the deferred tax asset refating o the deductible lemporary difference arises from the initial
recegnition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the fime of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabie profit or loss

= Inrespect of deductible lemporary differences associated with invesimants in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint veniures, deferred tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avaliabie
against which the temporary differences can be ulilised

The carnrving amount of deferrad tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable protit will be available to aliow ail ar part of the deferred
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tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-agsessed at sach reporting date and are
recognised io the exient that it has become probabie that future taxable profits wil allow the deferred tax
agset to be recovered,

Deferred fox assels and liabiiites are measured at the tax rates that are expected {0 apply in the year when
the assetl is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and lax laws) that have been enactad or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statemeant of profit or loss is recognised outside siatement
of profit or loss (sither in other comprehensive income of in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
comrelation io the underlying transaction either in GClor directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilittes are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
B assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes ralate io the same taxable entity and the
same taxation suthority,

Neon-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are measured st the lowsr of their carying amount and the fak value less
costs fo sell/ dislribuie. Assels and Hliabiiitles classified as held for sale/ distribution are presented separately
in the balance sheest. Assels snce classified as held for sale are not dapreciated or amorlised.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company's property, plant and equipment (PPE) include freehoid land only. The Company had
measured freehold fand at fair value as on the fransition dale je. April 1, 2015 which has become iis
deemed cost.

PPE are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, including non-
refundable purchase taxes and any altributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
inlended use.

Subsequent expenditure ralated to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if # increases the fulure benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance,

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, including borrowing costs incurred for financing the asset. Al
costs related 1o specific assets incurred during the perind are carried under this heading. These are
transferred to specific assets when they are available for use,

Depreciation expense
Deprecialion on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis based on the estimated
useful fves of an asset prascribed under Schedule Il o the Companies Act, 2013,

Freshold land is not depraciated,
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributabie to the acquisition, construciion or production of an asset that
necessariy takes a substantial pericd of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capilalised as part
of the cost of the asset. Al sther borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they soeur, Botrowing
cests consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leages

Policy applicable with effect from Apreil 1, 2012

The Company assesses at contract inceplion whether a contract i5, or cordains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for & period of tme n exchange for
sonsideration.

Company as a lesses

The Company applies a single recognition and messurement approach for all leases, axcept for shortderm
lmases and leases of iow-value assets. The ompany recognises lease labilities to make lease paymenis
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Policy relating to leases il March 31, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains} & lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, 2 lease ¥ fulfilment of the
amangement is dependent on the use of & specific asset or assets and the arrangemernt conveys a right to
usa the asset or assets, ever Iif that right is not explicily specified in an arrangement,

Where the Com pany is lessee

A lease is classified ot the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially afl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership o the Company is classified as o finance
lease,

leased properiy or, i lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments,

A leased asset is deprecialed over the usefut life of the asset, Howaever, ¥if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of tha lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated usefu life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating toase bayments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on 5 slraight.
line basis over the feass term, unless the payment io lessor is structured fo increase in fine with expected
general inflation and compensate for the lessor's expected inflation cost increase.

(3 fImpairment of nen-financiai assets

{kj

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. ¥ any indication exists. or when annuai impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generaling unit's (CGUY fair value less costs of disposal and s value in use, The recoverable amoint
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largeiy
indepsndent of those from ofher assets or graups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
aexceeds Hs recoverable amount, the asset is considerad #npaired and is written down 1o #s recoverable
amaount,

i : g

tax discount rate that refiacts current marke! assessments of the time value of monay and the risks specific
to the assel |n determining fair value loss costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. if no such fransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

Impairment losses are ieaognised in the statement of profit and foss.

An sssessment is made al each reporting date o determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised mpalment losses ne longer exist or have decreased. if such indication exists, the Company
estimales the assel's or CGU's recoverabie amount. A previpusly recognised impairment loss is revarsed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the fast impairment loss Was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrving amount of the asset
doss not exceed s recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrving amount that would have been
Getermined, net of depraciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such
feversal is recognised in the statement of profit or lose.

Provigions and contingent liabilities
Frovisions are receghised when the Company has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

& past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo
seltle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense

refating 10 a provision s presented in the statement of profit and loss.

if the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are discounted USing & current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in
the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Habilities
A contingant liability Is & possible obligation that arises from past svents whose existence wiil be confirmed
by the oecurrence o non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or & present obligation that is not recogrised because it s noi probable thal an outfiow of
fesources will be required to setfle the obligation. The Company does not recognise a contingent Hability but
discloses is existence in the financial statements.
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Earnings per Share
Basic sarnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dusing the financial year,

Difuted eamings psr share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic 8arnings per share io take
inte account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the waighted average number of additional equity shares that would have heen
autstanding Busuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to » financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability
or equity Instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initiai recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amo riised cost, fair vaiue
through other comprehensive income {OC1), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of fingncial assets at initial recagnition depends on the financial assel’s contractuai cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. All financial assets are
recegnised infially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 2t fair vaiue through prosit
or lass, transaction costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sajes of
fnancial assels that require delivery of assets within a tme frame established by regulation or convention in
the marke! place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, is., the dale that the Company
comimils to purchass or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subseguent Mmeasurement, financial assels are ¢lassified in below mentioned categories:

~ Financial assets at amorlised cost (debt instruments)
- Financial assets designated at fair vaiye through OC! with no recyciing of cumuiative gains and losses
upon derecognition {equity instruments)

»  Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPRL)

Financial assets af amortised cost {debt inssrumants}

A financial assel' is measured at the amortised cost if both the feliowing conditinns are met:

&) The asset is held within a business mode; whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows. and

b} Confractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of
Drincipal and interest (BPP on the orincipat amount cutstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Afier initial measurement, such financial assels arg
subsequently measureq at amortised cosi using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised gost is
Caicuiated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition snd fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR, The Eir amorlisation is included in other income in the statement of profit or e,
The losses arising fram impairment are fecognised in the statement of profit or joss. This category generally
applies to other recesvables.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI {equity instrumaents)

On initial recognition of an 8QUity Instrument that is nol heid for frading, the Company van elect 1o classify
irrevocably its equity investments as eqQUity instruments designated a1 fair value through OOl The
ciassification is determined on an in@%rumem-by—instwmem basis. Equity instruments which are hield for
trading are classified as at FVTPL

Subseq%nﬁy, these financial assels are measured 4 falr value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. Gains and Josses on these financial assete are
néver recycled from ether Lwomprehensive income 1o profit or loss, even on sale of investment, However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity,

Dividends on these investmants are recognised as ‘other income’ in the staternant of profit and oss when
the right of payment has been astablizhed, axcepl when the Company benefits from such proceeds as
recovery of part of the cost of the financial assel, in which cass, such gains are recorded in OC, Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are 1ot subject to impairment assessment.
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The Company elected o classify irravocabiy s fisted equily investment and unquoted invesiment under
this category,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss (FVYTPL)
Financial assets at FVTPL are caried in the balance sheet at %air value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Desht nstrumant, which does not mest the sriteria for calegorisation as at amertised cast or as FVTOQL i
ciassified as at FyTpL.

In addition, the Comparny may slect to desighate a debl instrument, which otherwise meets amoriiSed cost
or FVTOC! eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such elestion is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or récognition incensistency {referred 1o as ‘accounting mismalch'). The Company has
Gesignated investment in mutual funds as at BvTDL

Derecognition
A financial asset js primarily derecognised when:

*  The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

B The Company hag transferred its ghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materia| delay to a thirg parly under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred sibstantially all the riske and rewards of ihe
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially ai the risks and rowsrds of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ing AS 108, the Cornpany applies sxpecled credit loss {ECL) model for mEasurement
and recognition of impainment loss on (he foliowing financial assets:

aj Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured 2} amortised cost e.g., bark balance and
other receivabies.

been a significan: increase in the credi risk since initist recognition. The credit fisk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used 1o provide for impairment foss, However, if credit risk of customer has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. if, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no fonger a significant increase in cregit figk since initial recognition, then ihe
entity raveris io mrognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment fogs ailowance {or reversal} recogrised during the period is recognised as income!
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
statement of profit and loss, The batance sheet presentation for vatious financial instruments is described
balow:

»  Financial assels measured as af amorlised cost and contractual revenue receivables: EQL s
presented as an allowance, e, 28 an integral part of the measurement of those asseds in the balance
sheet, The allowance reduces the net samying amount. Until the asse! meels write-off criteria, the Company
does not reduce impairmant allowance from the YI08s carrying amount,

Financial Habilities

initial recognition and measurement
Financial fiabilities are classified, at initial fecognition, as financial lizbilities at fair value ihrough profit or
less, loans andg borrowings, payables,

All financial Sabilitias ér& recognised initially at fair vajye 8nd, 1 the case of lpans and borrowings ang
Payables, net of gi recly attribigdabie iransacton costy.

The Company's financial fiabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subseguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabiities dapends on thelr classification. as described beiow:

Loans and borrowings
This .?s_ the category most felevant (o the Company. After inifiai recognition, interesi-bearing loans ang
al amortised gost using the EIR methog. BGains and iosses are

recognised in statement of profit or loss when the Hiabilites are derecognised as welf as through the EIR
amortisation process,
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Amoriised cost is Calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The Fir amortisation is included ax finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss,

This category generally applies to borrowings,

De-racognition

A financial liability is derscognised when the obligation under the Habifity is discharged or cancelled of
expires. When an existing financial liahility is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different tarms, or the terms of an existing fiabliity are Substantially modified, such an exchangs or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the fecognition of a new fiability. The
difference in the respective camyving amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or ioss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet i
there is a currently enforceabie legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and setile the liabilities simuitaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Lash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand,

Several other amerdments and interpretations apply for the first #me in March 20189, but do not have an
impact on the fnancial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or
amendments that have heen issued but are not vet sffective/ notified.

Amendment to existing issued Ind A%

i} Amendment to ind AS 12, Income Taxes
i} Amendment te ind AS 23, Borrowing costs
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2.1 Property, plant and equipment

r--—m..__,_ — v et ‘w;
f Particuiars fand J Total

'ﬁaemed cost *
|As at April 1, 2018 11.13 |
Additions - -
Disposais - -
As at March 31, 2019 1113 11.13
Additions - -
Disposails - -
As at March 31, 2020 11.13 11.13

Depreciation
As at April 01, 2018 - -
Charge for the year - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2019 - -
Charge for the vear - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2020 - | -
Netblock A S s

As at March 31, 2020 ) 11.13 11.1:L
Lﬁs at March 31, 2019 11.13 11.43
"Refer note B (i) g).

2.2 Capital work-in-progress

Movement of ¢ Capital work in progress - Rs.
5 Particulars As at March 31,[ As at March 3?,?
2020 2019

Opening balance 32.41 133.46
|Additions during the year ' - -

(Capitalised during the year . |
Deletions during the year * - {101.08)

{Transfer to ﬁg_@{%}d for sale . T (32.41) -

(Closing balance ] e 3241

H
H

* Company had written of Rs. 101.08 lakhs during the previous year

AMEHT

\eHT,
\3\\"%' ""‘"‘-i_’j ,-1\\
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2.3 Non-current investmant

Investment at fair vafue through protit or loss
Uusted bonds
Nit {March 31, 2018 S RA72) B.50% NHAL tax free bongs

Aggragate book viile of quoted mvesiment - 28.84
Agarecale markel vaie o tuoled investmen . 28.84

L4 Dther non-gurrenst assels fUnsacurpy, sonsidersd good)

Capita! advances

2.

ko

Current invesiments

Investmenis st fair velue through ether cotiprihensive income
8} Quoted Equity shares ffully paid up)
20,003,381 Maree 31,2018, 30.328.630} shares of Bs. 14 sacn in indian Enargy Exchange Limiteg 38,349.30 50,042 24

by Ivestrent in otisers {unguoted)
nvestimant is firmited HDilty parinosship {LLFYy

TVE Shriram Growih Fupg 181 p {Corribution 100.00% March 24, 2045 - §7.95%)) - e 38,38828 5004222
= 78,778.58 B0 DES 46
Aggregate book vaus of Auetsd invesiments 38,388 30 50,042 24
Aggregate fuirked vakie of quoted invesiments 38,388,356 50,042.24
Aggregats value of uniioled investmanls 38.389.2% 5004227

" Budng B Brancial vear snced March 31, 2020, Tvs Shriram Growss Fund TRTYS Fund), whio was fralding 32 05% of tota: capita
GO I TVE Shriram Groweh Fung 18 L1p VB LLP sold it sfitice contribution In Tvs LILE. As resul of exit of TVE Tund from the LLP
e Group hokis holde 00% interest In Tvs e

2E Gashoang cash eguivalents

Batances with Banks:
- On Currént aceounis

2T Other financial #55018 (Unsepursd, considered goou;

flerws! rocoivable

2.8 Other curren assels {Unsocured, considered gosd)
Advances o Sunpiisrs

Bafances with govemment depariments and Ui authorities
Prapaymonts

2.8 Assets held far saky

Assals Chagnified as held for safe

Cartain piant ang SEfmens classified as hald for sale Surng the reporing periad was measired 1 he ower of itg CRTYIRG amdunt ang fai
value lasy costs 1o sell the sime of the reclassification,

M'ﬁ e
s
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All smounts stated in Ry, are in Rs. Lakhs except wherever stated otherwise

2.10 Share capifal;

Authorissd:
3,008,006 (Mareh 31,208 3,080,000 Bauity shares of Ry, 104 wach

issued, subseribad aivel febly paid up:

SO0,000 (Mareh 31, 2010 - 500,000} equity shares of Rs. 104 sach ——., 3080 Lseen
50.68 50,64

4} Reconciliation of equily shares cutstanding st the beginning and at the and of the yesr

Al e beginsing of the yeEr 5000
Issumd during the Year

Al the end of the yesEr

50.80

B) Yerms/ rights attached to squity shares
The Company has oy sne class of aguity ghares Baving a fase valua of Rs.16 per share, Each equily shareholder is sntisisd o YNE vDta
Per share, in ihe evers of Evidend proposed by the Board of Directors, i shay be subfect to the approval of sharehaiders In the ensuing
Annuat Geraral Mesting,

in the oveni of wirdingup of ike Company, the ety shureholders shall bo entitied to be repai remaining assets of he Campany after
digtritrution of s ereterential smounty in the ratio of the amount of Gopital paid up on guh ity shares,

{6} Equity shares helg by holding company

Daimia Bharat Lindted
Hrarmmerly known &5 Odisha Cemeny Lamiteds

) Datalis of shayeholders Bolding more than 5% shares Iy the Company

o BaHMarch 31,2020  aew March 31, zo1g
o, of % . of %
......... haldin c ShATES  holdin
Bralimie Bharat LUnviing Hormenty known 28 Gdisha Cament Limiteg) 100.00% 5.00.600 100.000,

) During the sl five ¥ean, the Company has ot issued BNV Donus shotes nor any shares beught back and issued far considenation other than
cash

2.4 Other Equity
Capital reserve

Opening balance #% per fast nancig! statemants
Llosing batanee

Retained wariings
Opening balance ag par st fngncial slalemenis {2,004 43; 637,35
{Less) for the veer 111621 11.387.08)

Add: Transfer 1o felained sarmings on sale of equlty instrumenis hrough QCH

Closing batancs o A#,834.45)
Otfier compretionsive income, net of tax

Opening halanor as Bef last financial siatements 52,929 84 48 268 51
Add: Chanoes during the vear {24 772,403 4873 42

Less: franster to relained SUMEIGE On sabe of LUl Inglruments thestigh O]
Closing balance

%Mmmwmah&§m

(2) Capital resarve. This mserve Fepresents the excess of net B5E41S taken, over the costaf Consideration paid at the tme of amalkamation
gone in earlier years, Yhie Tesarve s not svaliable for e mstrivution 1o the shaeholders.

8} Retaineg #Batings. Retained BEIHNGS ars the profits that Company has samey B date. Retainey RAMINGSL Is & e resprve aviatiable 1o ihg

Compary,
€1 Equity instruments through Othes Comprehensive Income- The Company has sectey tor  the fair valug of
invesiments in BUlY INsBuments in other omprathiensive income. These chanaes are desumuiated irsfrumeng #

Other Comprabengive bstomme' withis aguity, The Company transfers A0UNES from: this reserve 1o retdinad earmings when the relevant souity
seCuriios are derecognised




Dalmla Power Limited
Hotes to the finanicel statements

All smpunis siated In Rs, are in Rs. Lakhs except wherever stated otherwise R,
242 income Tax
{1} The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 34, 2020 and March 31, 2018 are:
Year gnded Year endod
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit or loss seetion:
Current incormes tax
Current inoome tax charge - 000
Adpsstments in respect of cument income tax of eardier years 115.83) -
Dederred tax
Reiation {2 origination of tempurary differences & - [2.04}
Income fax expense reporfed in the statement of profit and loss {115.63} {2.04)
OCi section
Deferred iax tad tor iterns gnised in OC! during the year
reabsed (gain} oss on FYTDO! equity instrumsnts 342.38 1.7686.47
Deferred tax lexpense)l credit charged to 00 242,38 1.786.47

{# Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit multipiied by india’s domsstic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
Year endod Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Accounting {oss} belore tax {1.231.88) (1,299.12)
Al lndia's stalitory income tax rate of 22.00% (March 31, 2018: 26.00%;) {27%.01) {363,773
Adpustrmands I respact of current income tex of previous years (11563 -
Income axempt from income tax {311.07; {328.75)
Expenses disaliowed 5878 667.60
Others 0.28 22.89
Income tax expense reporied in the statemant of profit and loss {115.63) {2.04)
{8} Deforred tax
Deferred tax retates to the following: N Balance sheet S of profit and Toss
As 8¢ Barch  As at March Year ended Year ended
31, 2020 3%, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2049
Revalation of FYTOCE mvestments to fair vaies #5008 {34238 “ (2.04]
Befercod tax {orediy A ——— RN 7
Het deforred lax (Habilities} {0.00] (342,39
Reconciiation of deferred tax Habilities {net}:
Op=ring balince as at Aprit 1 34240 215081
Tax expenss recognised in proflt or loss - {2.04;
Tau sxpense recognised n OO (342.39) {1.766.47
Closing bolance as at #hapesy  ” 6,00 342,40
243 Borrowings
Unsecured
Fram a related parly (refer nots 2,30 2783418 28,111.19
_27.834.19 2811118

Lwan frorn 4 velaled parly are renavable on cemand znd carry interest @ 8.00 % p.a,

244 Trade payables

‘et outstanding dues of micro prterprises and smal enterprises {refar nole 2,27}
aiatlitslanding dues of craditors clher than micr enterprisss and smal entarprises

i

235 Uther financis liabiiitios

Interest mowrues but not dise on Borrowings
- Related sarty (refer nate 2,50

2,16 Dther current flabilities

Oher Babilbos
- Statulory tiues
Others

!

RY,

\

_____ 2,582.10 2,724.08
2,882.90 2,724.08

264.5¢ 256.82

284.50 25652




Dalmia Power Limited
Notos to the finanical siatements

Al stated In Rs. are in Rs. Lakhs excapt whersver stated siherwise Rs.
Datmiz Power Limited
Notes 1o the finanical statemants
All amounts stateds in Bs, are in Rs, Lakhs except wherever siated sthensise Rs.
Year ended Year ended
B March 31,2020 Rdarch 31, 2019
AT Diber income!
Dividend income on eguity Investments measured at FVTOCH 750,08 667.23
Interest from baric and others .82 2.68
Profit on saie of non-urrent investment 3.50 8.07
Far vaksation of non.curent investmen| measuresd at FYTEL {4.12} 412
Share in profit of imited Sabilly parnership Investmant {post tax) S .. S ¢ 1
141496 1.270.50
2.8 Finance vosts
interast o joan and others 2,644.47 286757
284847 TR EET.ET
219 Other gxpenses
Professional charges 1.88 8.28
Azsel wiitlen off - 10106
Auditors remunsraiion
Audit feas 058 0.50
For gupenges - Gos
Filing foes .05 0.03
Demat charmes - 08.02
Miscelisnsous Exparses 0.01 C.00
233 161,95
2,20 Barnings per share;
Net {loss) after tax for caloulation of basic and diluted EPS Rs.} {1,118.213 {1.387.08)
Weighted average numbser of souily shares outstanding 5,006,000 5,00,000
Basic snd Diluted EPS [Rupous) {22324 {278.42)




Dalmla Power Limited
HMotes to the finanical statements
All amounts stated In Ra. are in Rs. Lakhs except wherever stated otherwise

2.2% Disclosure as per Ssction 22 of "The Miero, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act. 2008,

HE 18 [ TAs at March 31,0 As at March 31,
S i : 2620 2019
LA S o . ) s e : :

133 The principal sivount and tha interest dus thersor temaining unpaid to any supplier
1 |Principal Amoun i | =
Irestsst tereon i - s i
The amouni of inlerest paid by the buyer in terms of Saction 16, of the MSMED At 008 slong with H

11 amounts of the payment made o ihe supplior bevond the appointed day w -
{li) [The smount of iterest due and payabic for the period {where the principal has been paid but interast
under the MSMED Act, 2008 nol pald) o=
(v} [The amount of interest sconied and remaining unpals -
o)

-

The amount of lurther intersst due &l payable even in the tucceeding yeur, until such dale when the |
interest dues as #bove are Rclually paid o the small anjerpriza. for the purpose of disaliowance as a
deductible expenditurs under section 23 of the MEMED Ac, 2006 R

| % ) szl
| Tetnd £

i i e I

£.22 Thore 2ee 06 present oblgations requinng provision in accordance with the guiting prnciples as enuncialed m ind AS 37, as itis not probatla that
2 outfiow of resources embodying econgmic benefits will ba regiTed.

223 In ihe opinion of the Hoard of Direclors and to B Best of their knowledge and befiel, the valuation on reafisation of fnancial assels and othar
assets in the ordinary course of business wouid 52t be lsss than the amount & which they st stated in the Fnancial statemenis.

2.4 Toe Company doss not have mors than one reportable segment in accordance with he princinies cutined In ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the
diggiosurs requirements of ihe Slandard are not applicabls.

2.25 Since thess are no employees in the Company, requirermenis of Ind AR 13, Employes Bensfils is nol applcabie.

2.26 Estimated amount of contracts ramaining e bo exeouted on cadital accolnt and not srovided for {rnot of advances) as at Marck 51, 20801 s, Nt
(Marem 31, 2013 . Rs. Nil).

2,27 Fair value meastrement

The managemen! assessed that cash snd cash squlvalents, olher current fnancis! assels. lrade payables and other cutrent financiai isbiities
sppraxinate their carrying amousnts lergely due to the shorl-dam: maturities of thess instruments,

The fair valus oF 1he finsncial sesels and Tablities is inchuded 2t the amount &t which the instrument could be exchanged in 2 cumen? rarmaction
sebtween willing parties, olnen han in a2 fread or liguidation sale The foflowing methods and sssumptions were used o estimate the fai vakies -

111 Thee is an active market for 118 Company's auoled saully shares,

2] The fan walue of Companve unquoted investment i determined using fair value of froited liability parnershis based on the latest available
finanuisl slstemants.

{3} The far values of the Company's nterestbagring borowings are doiormined by using Discousted Cash Flow {DCF} metnod using discount
rate thal reflects the 1ssuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporing pericd. The swn non-performance risk as o8 Mareh 31, 2090 was
assessed W be insigniticant.

The Company uses the feliowing higrarchy for datermining and disclosing the falr value of financial instrurments by vahsation lechmiqus,

Lewvai 1 - gunted (unadjvsted) prces in active markess for wentical ossels or abiities,
| evel 2 . other tachniques for which ol inpaits whish have a significant efects on the recorced far value are observable, slther directly or indivecty,

Level 3 - techeiques wiich e inpuis thet have & wgnificant effects on ihe recorded fair valus that ars nol based on abservabls el dala,

The fellowing tables provides classification of Aosncial nstruiments and the fair value hisrarchy of the Lompany's assets and Habilitiss,

{a} UDisclosure for the year ended March 31, 2020

) Poirvaluehleraechy
i1 Financisl assets Larrying value Falr vajue Levei i Laved 2 Levet 3
Firmnelal assets 8t amerised cost
Ceshand cash squivalentsy 16.67 10,67 — e B iy 10.67
1187 1167 « - 10.87
Finanoisi 2¢sets af fair vaiue
through other comprehaensive
newms
irvsetment I sty shares 38.388.3C 34,385.40 3838930 - %
Ivesiment in Snted dabilty R E8G PO 3% 280 o9 - 33,388 29
sids ol . -
TETIGE 38 36630 3838055 Y

1167 H.790.26

38,388.29 10.87

A



Fair valus hi shy

{2} Financie! Habiiities Carrying valus Falr value Lewel i Level 2 Loval 3
Financial Gabiiites at amortisad cost
Borrowings# 27 634,19 27,634.19 - 2783419 -
Trade payables# 087 0.87 - - 0.87
Citbver fnanchal fabiitiess 288210 2,582 .50 - « 2,582 .10
_____ 30,2138 21748 - 271,634.19 . 2,582,857
o) Disclosure for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
Fair value hisrarchy
1} Fisanclsl assets Catrying valus Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financisl assels st amortised cost
Cash and cash ecuivelents# BE/ B.ET = = B.37
Gther financial assetsd 1.03 1.03 - - 1.03
§.50 9.90 - - 9.90
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or foss
investrmuont in bonds z8.84 28.84 28.84 2 B
28,84 28.84 28.84 - )
Financial ansets at fair value
through other comprehensive
incoms
investment b eguity shares 5304224 50,042.24 B4z 24 # &
Investment i Ymised Bability 50042 28 50,042.22 - Hin4z.22 -
parinarship
100,084 48 1,00,084.46 H042.24 5004222 -
e 100,123 20 10610820 50.071.08 50,642.22 N 880
Fair vaiue hierarchy
{2) Finarcial Habilities Larrying value Falr vaiye Lawvel 4 Level 2 Lavel 3
Financial Habilities ot amortised cost
Borrowings# #8148 28 11118 - 281118 A
frado payoabless G.87 0.87 » - G87
Othar financisl Isditio ——_mTRaEE 272408 - . iTE4GR
3 836,14 30.838.14 . 28 41118 2.724.95
# &t wmorissd cost
{e} Description of significsnt unobservable inputs to valuation:
Financial Liabilities Valuation Technique Significant unabservable input
Barrowings GOF Methog Gffective Interest Rate
228 Fb Frisk g t ohjective and policles:

Tre Uompany's princpsl fnencial fabifies womprise borrowings from B holdin
investment in equily shates, 30d cash and bank balancas that derive directy i
The Company is axposed to market isk, cradlt dsk and quiddy 1
and execute g Dusineus stategise, The Company's financial sk management poficy s set by the Managing Board. It is
“o trading in denvalives for speculative purposes

these sk, wiich are summerised belw,

{at Harket Risk

fdarket risk i the risk that the
comptises three types of Hak

@i

intorest rate risk

0 be uncertaken. The Board

4 company. The Compeny's prinsipal financial assets inckuie
o i operations.
% The Company's financial risy management is an integral pant of bow o pian
the Company's policy thai

of Directors reviews and fnaiises policies for managing sach of

Thare e no ong term aekt obligation of the Company as on Mareh 31, 2020

Forelgn currency risk

Fuoraigh curresay fisk is the risk that the Fair valus o fukae cash flowes ot
rates. The Company ¢ not exposed in any foreign cunrency risk as thers i

required under this ssotion,

b} Credit Risk

Crpdi risk is e risk that a counter party will no! mest
T Company i exposed o credit 3k from its o

ie) Liguidity Risk

wash flows.

funding as well as settlerrent m
maragenent, Management moniors the Company’s ne

y rink e defired as the nox tha Company wit st bo abile io seltle o mes! Hs oblinas
Ireasiiny departmet s responsibie for hauigity,
ATE SVeTseRn Dy Senor

its ebligabans under & fnancial Instrumen: or customer cantra
porating activities incleding franclal instuments.

7 value of future cash Bows of & financial instrumans wit festuate because of changss in markot pricss. Markst risk
erest rale risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity prce st and commaodity rsk.

art exposure will flucluste because of changes in foreign exchange
1o ransactions o forsign currency. Hence, mo further dischswire |s

ot ading 1o & financial loss.

on o tme or gl @ ressonable ptice, The Sorpany's
anagement In sdubion, protesses and poicies raited to such risk
L liguicity position through roling ‘orecast on e hasis of expactes



i8] Disclosure of rensactions with Relsted pavties

: (Rs.)
Ref. to Note (&) above 201920 2018-19
Maturs of transactions
fterent sxpense
Eialmia Bharst Limited i 2.811.47 247295
Cialmia Cament (Bharat) Limitad (3] 32.98 8472
Refund of loan given
Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited {1} - 1.707.45
Refund ¥ winn
aimin {Bharat) Limited {0 248500 -
Daimia Cemant (Bharat] Limited [ 28.00 255532
Botrowings taken
Dalmia Bharst Lmited i 265.00 330.00
Datmia Cement {Bharat) Limited (iny B 1,443,189
Berrowings repald
Dalmia Bharal Limited { 732.00
Balance outstanding
interest receivable
Dalmiz Cemnerd (Bhatall Limiiad i " .
- {Rs.i
2018.20 2018419
Accrued Interes! on Borrowings
Dialous Bhgra! Lanited i 2465148 283683
Dairnia Coment {Bharat) Limited i} B804 8526
Barrowlng outs
[rimia Bhare {i 2734170 2781870
Daimia Cement (Bhast) Limited {if) a2 dn 282,48

2.3% in ihe opinon of the management, there is no redustion in the value of any zssats, hence no provision is required in terms of Ind AS 35
“mpirment of assets®,

2.3Z Subsequent events;
Ive adjusting o significant non-adjusting evients heve cooured betwoen ihe reporling date and the date of authorisation of these Bnancial
sialpmenis,

Ag per our repont of even date

For 5.8, Kothari Mehta & Company
Charterad Acoourntants

Firm Q&No 000756
A

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Dalmiz Power Limited

Astewing Mumar Dabnis Bharal Bhushan Mahia
Pariner Drecinr Ihrscioy
Memborshin No, (87284 [N Bo, 07040702 EXhd Na (DO0SES0

Piate: New Delhi
Bale. June 04, 30520




S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP S.8. Kothari Mehtg & Company

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
4th Floor, Worldmark 2, Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Phage I,
IGI Airport Hospitality District New Delhi - 110029

Aerocity, New Delhi 110037

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financig] Statements

Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

(a) We draw attention to Note 4A(b) to the accompanying standalong Ind AS financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020 which describes that the Company had recognized goodwill arisen on giving impact
of such Schemes from the appointed dates, which is being amortized over for a period of 4 to 10 years in

ovisions of respective Schemes from the reéspective appointed date, approved by the
ompany Law Tribunal, Chennaj Bench. As a result of above amortization of goodwill,
year ended March 31, 2020 is lower by Rs. 402 crore. Our Opinion is not qualified
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addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financia] statements as g whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a Separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,

E{Ty audit matters - |Tiow our audit addressed the key audit matters
Impairment Assessment of Carrvi Goodwill (as described in note § 76 of the standaione Ing

A4S financial statements) |
(a) The Company is carrying goodwill Rs, 96677 We have evaluated that the assumptions used by the [
crore (net of amortization) arisen on giving Mmanagement are in line with the present trend and |
impact of scheme of arrangement apg information available, |
amalgamations relating to slump exchange of | We obtained and read the valuation report used by |
undertaking of Odisha Cement Limited on { the management for determining the fair valye of the |
L going concern basis; of the cash generating unit,

Page 2 of 19
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| Key audit matters

(b} The Company is also carrying Goodwill arisen
on Amalgamation of Adhunik Cement Limited
and Adhunik MSP Cement (Assam) Limited.
As per the scheme of Arrangement, excess of
cost of investment made over the net assets
taken in transferor companies aggregating to
Rs. 21 crore has been recorded as Goodwill.

For petforming the

| Company has used discounted cash flows method
to determine the recoverable amount, these
discounted cash flow calculations yse five-year |
projection those are based on annuai forecasts and
present trends,
As required under Ind AS 36 goodwill arising on
such Schemes of Arrengement and Amalgamation
is required to be tested for impairment on annual
basis,

The estimated recoverable amount of the goodwill

is calculated as the higher of the value -in-use or
fair value less costs to dispose, which involve
significant estimates, assumptions and judgements
on future growth rates, discount rates etc,

Considering the significance of the matter and
various judgement involved, we have identified
this as a Key Audit Matter,

During the previous year, the Company has made
investment of Rs. 150 crore in one of the company
(acquired under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (IBC) under a competitive bidding process).
The Company has advanced Rs, 53 crore as loan to
the aforesaid subsidiary company and carrying
investment in unsecured optionally convertible
debentures (OCDs) of subsidiary amounting to Rs,

31 crore. |
The net worth of the subsidiary company as on the

balance sheet date is negative Rs, 8 crore afier | ©

inclusion of the Equity Share Capital, however, the
management is confident of the profitability based
on the projections prepared by it.

Considering the amount involved end various
judgements and projections based on which
business plan has been prepared, this matter has
been considered significant for audit and identified
as key audit matter.

How our audit addressed theTey_audit matters
® We have assessed the valuation r maodology used

impairment testing, the | e

Tn\gtmﬂt in a Subsidiary Company (Dalmia DSP Limited) ) (as described in nateT?(iEof the standalone
Ind 45 financial statements)

(e _WeTa\avaluated the business plan

by the valuer and its
expertise,

Made inquiries with management to understand
drivers of the cash flow forecasts like discount rates,
capitalization rates, expected growth rates and
terminal growth rates used,

Performed a sensitivity analysis on  certain
assumptions like discount rates and capitalization
rates.

We have assessed the disclosures included in Note
57(i) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

professional competence and

of aforesaid
subsidiary company including various assumptions
used by it indicating future profitability and its
synergy in the business of the Company considering
the business and market in which the Company
operates.

Made inquiries with management to understand
drivers of the cash flow forecasts like discount rates,
capitalization rates, expected growth rates and
terminal growth rates used.

Performed a sensitivity analysis on certain
assumptions like discount rates and capitalisation
rates,

We have evaluated the disclosures included in Note
57(ii) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

)
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with respect to Tax

Losses asarry Forward and

Key audit matters o - Tﬁow our;lﬁaddressed tﬁk@ audit matters
Amount of Recoverable Deferred Tax Assets wi ‘I
Unabsorbed Depreciation and Accumulation of

L standalone Ind AS financial statements)

assets amounting to Rs. 640 crore with respect to
tax losses on carry forward and unabsorbed
depreciation and MAT credit entitlement
aggregating to Rs, 323 crore as at March 31, 2020.
MAT credit entitlement has a limited period for
utilization i.e. 15 years from the date such amount
is available.

The Company’s ability to recognize these deferred
tax assets with respect to tax losses as carry forward

The Company is carrying recoverable deferred tax |

and unabsorbed depreciation and MAT credit | ®

assets is assessed by the management at the end of
each reporting period, taking into account forecasts
of future taxable profits and the law and
Jurisdiction of the present Income Tax Laws and
Regulation in force. The

sales and EBITDA on these projections are
determined by the management,

assumptions of growth in |

L]
Given the degree of judgment involved in making |

a forecast of the profitability of the Company and
the materiality of the amounts invoived, we have
determined this to be a key audit matter.

The Compeny is having a litigation with one of the |

minority shareholders (the party) of Calcom, where
the party has levelled charges against the Company
for Oppression and Mismanagement of Caicom.

The Company has invested significant amount in
equity shares of the subsidiary company including
investment in another company for the acquisition
of the equity shares in Calcom in the form of zero
coupon  optionally redeemable
debentures aggregating to Rs. 319 crore,

The Company has also advanced unsecured loans
of Rs 482 crore and secured loans aggregating to
Rs. 355 crore to Calcom,

Calcom has accumuylated losses as at balance sheet
J date on consolidated leve]

crore. However, profitability of subsidiary
Company has improved significantly in last three
financial vears, _The Company is _confident

aggregating to Rs, 235 |

convertibie |
®

of

MAT Credit Entitlement, (as described in note 16 of the |

out testing of the design and
implementation as well ag operating effectiveness of
controls related to the calculation and recognition of
such deferred tax assets with respect to tax losses as
carry forward and unabsorbed depreciation and
MAT credit assets. :

We have assessed the methodology applied by the
Company with current accounting standards and
applicable taxation laws along with the future
business forecast of taxable profits,

We have assessed the likelihood of the Company to
utilize the available deferred tax assets with respect
to tax losses as carry forward and unabsorbed
depreciation and MAT credit entitlement in the
future with underlying projections and assumptions
relating to future estimated profits, future
capitalization and depreciation allowance thereon
and future estimates of taxable income,

We have evaluated the ageing of the carry forward
deferred tax assets with respect to tax losses as carry
forward and unabsorbed depreciation and MAT
credit entitlement of the Company.

We have evaluated the disclosures included in Note‘(

We have c?ma

16 to the standalone Ind AS

We have been provided with g consolidated business 4
plan of the subsidiary company, based on which, we |
have made inquiries with management to understand
drivers of the cash flow forecasts like discount rates,
capitalization rates, expected growth rates and
terminal growth rates used.
Performed a sensitivity analysis on certain [
assumptions like discount rates and capitalization
rates.

We have read the legal opinion. The matter is under |
Arbitration with Arbitral Tribunal.

We have made inquiries with the management for
any updates in respect of the hearings in Tribunal,

We have evaluated the disclosures included in Note
34B and 45 to the standalone Ind AS financia] |
statements,

Page 4 of 19



'FKey audit matters

“How our audit addressed the key au_diaatters |

achieving the consolidated business plan of the
subsidiary company.

The Company believes that based on the legal
advice and de facto control over the subsidiary, it
would be able to protect its interest in the
subsidiary company which will not be impacting
adversely the carrying value of investment as wel]
as loans, including interest thereon,

Considering the above facts and amount involved
in the above matter, this has been considered a
significant matter for audit and considered as key
I_audit matter,

(@) Trade receivables and advances given

| The Company has trade recejvables and advances
given. The Company has taken necessary steps
including iegal action, whenever applicable, for the
recovery of these balances,

There are balances with slow recovery rate for
which expected credit loss assessment has been
done which involve judgement as to the
recoverability and discounting of those receivables,

Based on the past experience of realization and
steps taken by the Company, it is confident of the
recovery of these balances in due course,
Considering the amount involved of such
receivables, this matter has been considered
significant for audit.

(b) Subsidies/Incentives receivables  from

government

The Company has subsidies receivables against
various schemes of the state / central govemnment.
The Company has recognized such subsidies
receivables as per the various provisions of the
schemes.

The amount of such subsidies are re-verified at the
various levels by the government authorities and
funds are released according to the availability of
the overall funds for disposal with these authorities,

® We have evaluated the various correspondence

Trade Receivables and Advances given and Subsidies / Incentives Receivables from Government (as
described in note 5 7(iii) of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

made with the parties and other follow up actions
taken by the Company, including but not limited to
legal process, meetings, notices etc.

We have read and evaluated the legal advice/
opinions obtained by the Company in respect of
recoverability of amounts, whenever applicable.

We have evaluated the underlying documents
against which these amounts are paid/ accrued as per
eligibility criteria, '

Made inquiries with management to understand
assumptions of the expected loss assessment like
time period and recoverability assessment.

We have obtained the representation from the
management. .

We have assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
included in Note 57(iii) to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

We assessed that the subsidies / incentives are
recognized by the Company and checked the
compliance with the eligibility criteria,

We have evaluated the process of estimation of
time period of realization by the management.

We have tested the documentation on sample basis
regarding the procedural delays in realizing the
said incentives / subsidies.

We have assessed the methodology applied by the
Company to comply with the requirements of Ind
AS-20 and Ind AS-39.
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| How our audit addressed the key audit matters |

| Key audit matters

Therefore, the above process requires a period of | o We have evaluated the design and tested the
time for which management uses assumptions in operating effectiveness of controls around the
respect of discount rate and estimated time for measurement of the said incentives / subsidies, We
receipt of funds from government as specified in have tested arithmetical accuracy by performing
Note 29 of the standalone Ind AS financial recalculation procedure of the said incentives /
statement. subsidies where applicable.

The  Company  has accounted  such | ¢ We have assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
incentives/subsidies receivables at fair valye based included in Note 57(iii) to the standalone Ind AS
on the expected period of realization using adjusted financial statements,

incremental borrowings rate.

Such expected period has been estimated |
considering the past trend of the realization.

| Considering, the nature and amount of receivables

| and estimating the expected time period of
realization of receivables, which requires
application of significant judgement to record them
at fair value, we consider this as a significant key
audit matter from the perspective of our audit.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report under “the management report and chairman’s statement™ but
does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsi bility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audjt or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia] misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also inciudes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
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In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintein professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Evaluate the overai] presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
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we identify during our audit,

From the matters communicated with those charged with Bovernance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements fop the financial year ended March

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Centraj
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1
4 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.,
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of oyr audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesajd standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For 8.8, Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm Registration No.: 000756N

per Anil Gupta per Sunil Waha]

Partner Partner

Membership No.: 087921 Membership No.: 087294 :
UDIN: 20087921 AAAABN2943 UDIN: 20087294AAAADD9600
New Delhi New Delhi

June 12, 2020

Jurne_12, 2020
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S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP S.S. Kothari Mehta & Company

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
4th Floor, Worldmark 2, Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Phase ITI,
IGI Airport Hospitality District New Delhi — 110020

Aerocity, New Delhi -110037

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date

Re: Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited (‘the Company’)

0] (ﬁ) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(i)

(iif)

(b)

(c)

(@

(b)

(c)

and situation of property, plant and equipment.

All item of property plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management during
the year but there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No Material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company except for
immovable properties of freehold land aggregating to Rs. 13 crore which are not registered in the name
of the Company and the title deeds of certain portion of immovable properties, transferred on
amalgamation of erstwhile Adhunik Cement Limited and Adhunik MSP Cement (Assam) Limited and
power undertakings of erstwhile DCB Power Ventures Limited and Undertakings of Odisha Cement
Limited (transfer through slump sale) are in the process of being transferred in the name of the Company
(Refer Note 2A(i) and 2A(iv) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements).

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at year-end and no
material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to information and explanations given to us:

The Company has granted loans (including brought forward balances of loan as on April 01, 2019) to
one party covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the loans are not prejudicial
to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loans re-payable on demand as agreed, to one party covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. We are informed that the Company has not demanded
repayment of any such loan during the year and thus there has been no default on the part of the party
to whom the money has been lent. The payment of interest, wherever applicable has been regular.

There are no amount of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act which are overdue for more than ninety days.
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(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, an
complied with by the Company. According to the information and explanati
loans, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of

applicable and hence not commented upon.

)

According to information and exp

the public during the year.

(vi)

According to information and explanations given to us we have broadl
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made b
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, related to

provisions of 186 of the Act
d securities given have been
ons given to us, there are no
Section 185 of the Act are

lanations given to us the Company has not accepted any deposits from

y reviewed the books of account
Y the Central Government for the maintenance of
the manufacture of cement, clinker and power and

are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We

have not, however, made a detailed examination of the s

(vii) According to information and explanations given to us:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,

service tax, duty of custom, du
material statutory dues have
there has been a slight delay
There are no undisputed amounts payable in res
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty,
tax and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at th
months from the date they became payable.
According to the records of the Company,
customs duty, excise duty,

®

©

are as follows:

ame.

excise duty,

ty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
in a few cases.

pect of provident fund, employees® state insurance,
value added tax, cess, goods and service
e year end, for a period of more than six

the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,

value added tax cess and goods and service tax on account of any dispute,

Amount Rs,

| Period to which

1

Name of the statute Nature of dues the amount Forl.u!: when.e dispute
(crore) relates is pending
= . Custom Excise and
Customs Act, 1962 E;rc::;?tous refimd of 0.22 ﬁ;ghzgggsto Service Tax Appellate
| P Tribunal, Chennai
Denial of Commissioner Appeal
Customs Act, 1962 concessional rate of 0.87 2012-2013 Cust;'l‘n:‘Koﬁat:p as
il | Custom Duty ’ -
Denial of VAT Andhra Pradesh Sales
Andhra Pradesh Value . June 2008 to : .
credit and Penalty 0.20 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
_Added Tax Act, 2005 thereon August 2010 Hyderabad
Andhra Pradesh Value | Denial of VAT 0.09 May 2007 to May | Commercial Tax
Added Tax Act, 2005 credit ' 2008 Officer, Hyderabad
Joint Commissioner of
Bihar Sales Tax Act Sales Tax Demand 0.81 2013-14, 2014-15 | Commercial Tax
(Appeal) Patna |
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Peﬂd?which

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Rs. the amount Fonu!: wher? dispute
(crore) 18 pending
relates
. April 2013 to Joint Commissioner
Bihar Sales Tax Act Sales Tax Demand 0.58 March 2016 Patna
| Denial of Cenvat -
credit on cement and
Central Excise Act, steel used in the September 2004 .
1944 construction of civil M | 4o February 2006 | SuPreme Court, Delhi
structure, foundation
etc. | | 8 |
Denial of refund of
. excise duty on
Central Excise Act, packing charges on 0.08 May 1980 to July High Court, Chennai
1944 . 1989
the ground of unjust
enrichment | =
Denial of Cenvyat December 2012 to
Central Excise Act, credit of service tax August, 2013 . ..
1944 paid on GTA 7% | October 201410 | High Court, Vijayawada
B services_ _‘_ March 2015 N —
. . Custom Excise &
s poustimae | gy | Qwbeami |Combans
Tribunal, Hyderabad
Central Excise Act, Excise Duty and R 2205 __ECFS-OWO 20_16-_._CFtorﬁxcE&_ =\
1944 Service tax Demand 17 Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal
b E\Eon of SEG_L [ _‘l Custom;cise & o
Central Excise Act, tax in course of 0.08 July 2012 to Service Tax Appellate
1944 construction of the December 2014 Tribunal' Kolkata
! Railway Siding | !
Central Excise Act, Denial of CAS-4 0.25 | 2015-16 and Commissioner
1944 method of valuation 2016-17 (Appeals)
Bhubaneshwar (Odisha)
Centra! Excise Act, Denial of Cenvat- | 053 2012-13 t0 2016- | Custom Excise &
1944 credit on part of silo 17 Service Tax Appellate
feeding arrangement Tribunal, Kolkata
o SR N ]
Central Excise Act, Denial of Cenvat 17.83 —1701 4-15t0 2016- | The Commissioner of
1944 credit of service tax 17 Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Kolkata |
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Period to which

(

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Rs, the amount Formg wherg dispute
(crore) relates 18 pending
Central Excise Act, | Denial of Cenvat 0.14 2016-17 Commissioner
1944 credit of service tax (Appeals), Bhubaneswar
(Odisha)
‘Central Excise H Service Tax 019 2010-11 The Commissioner of
1944 Demand Excise & Service Tax,
Kolkata
Central Excise Act, Service Tax | 017 | 2016-17t02017- | Commissioner |
1944 Demand 18 (Appeals), Bhubaneswar
(Odisha)
| Central Excise Act, Admissibility of 0.10 1990 High Court, Orrisa
1944 Modvat
Central Sales Tax Act, | Demand raised 123 12015-16t02017- | Addl. CCT (Appeal), |
1956 towards non- 18 Rourkela
submission of
Declaration Forms
’ﬂ _ |oEr | o e
April 2008 to
Central Sales Tax Act, | Non-Submission of 57.56 March 2009 Commercial Tax
1956 C Forms ’ | April 2013 to Officer, Lalgudi
| o o L ﬂarchZOlS_ -
' April 2006 to
Central Sales Tax Act, | Non-submission of 0.13 March 2008 Deputy Commissioner
1956 declaration forms ’ April 2009 to (Appeal), Trichy
| March 2011
S =f _— _L - | J ——— = =
The West Bengal tax on .
goods into local Areas Entry Tax 3.94 April 2012 10 High Court, Kolkata
March 2017
Act, 2012
West Bengal Value Entry Tax ] 1.78 [ 2016-17 Joint Commissioner of
Added Tax Act, 2003 Commercial Tax,
Kolkata
| West Bengal Value Non-Submissionof |  0.03 | 2016.17 — i Additional
Added Tax Act, 2003 Declaragion Commissioner of
Commercial Tax,
L | 1 [ Kolkata o
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e [ - | Period to which . '
Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Rs, the amount Form!: wherc's dispute
(crore) relates is pending
Demand for T
incorrect turnover April 2008 to Assistant
Kerala Value Added reported (Stock 1.20 March 2010 Commissioner,
Tax Act, 2003 Transfer) as per : April 2013 to Commercial Tax,
return, omissions September 2013 | Ernakulum
| and refill shorrages = | - =
Kerala Value Added Increase in turnover April 2011 to Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 2003 and disaliowance of 0.70 March 2012 (Appeal)-1, Commercial
’ Input Tax Credit Tax
Orissa Sales Tax Act | Entry Tax and Sales 0.47 2005-06, 2010-11 | Commissioner of Sales
Tax Demand to 2012-13 Tax, Odisha
L .. __ |
Orissa Sales Tax Act Entry Tax and Sales 2.02 [ 1995-1996 (OST), High Court, Odisha
Tax Demand 2010-11 .
2012-13 to June
| 2017
Orissa Sales Tax Act | Entry Tax and Sales | 2.95 '2005-06E)ﬂTﬁ Sales Tax Tribunal,
Tax Demand 2006-07 (ET) Odisha
Orissa Sales Tax Act ‘Entry Tax and Sales 0.45 2010-11,2013-14 | High Court, Orissa
Tax Demand to September
2016
Orissa Sales Tax Act | Entry Tax Demand | 0.09 | 2005-06 and Joint Commissioner of
2013-14to0 Commercial Tax,
September 2015 | Odisha
Orissa Sales Tax Act | Entry Tax Demand 093 | 2013-14t0 | Additional
September 2015 Commissioner of
Commercial Tax
(Appeals), Odisha
Orissa Sales Tax Act | Sales Tax Demand 025 | October 2015t | Additonal
June 2017 Commissioner of
| Commercial Tax
(Appeals), Rourkela
. Demand for sales .
Tamil Nadu General . April 1975 to _
Sales Tax Act, 1959 | ;xar ogr:3 sli:»ackmg 0.29 March 1977 Supreme Court
i o = SN —ltl o
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I o | Period to which | _ o
Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Rs. the amount Fo"“? wher? dispute
(crore) relates is pending
N Denial of [ i
. ional rate .
Tamil Nadu Genera| | SORcéssional rat April 1989 to . :
benefit on certain 0.02 ) High Court, Chennai
Sales Tax Act, 1959 items purchased March 1990
| through Form XvII | - -
Denial of
Tamil Nadu General | eoncotsional rato 001 | April190t | Sales Tax Appollate
Sales Tax Act, 1959 items purchased March 1993 Tribunal, Medurai
through Form XvIl g S | ]
Demand for sales :
tax on packing '
charges - April 1977 to
Tamil Nadu General Denial of 0.15 | March 1978 Commercial Tax
Sales Tax Act, 1959 concessional rate ’ April 1997 to Officer, Laigudi
benefit on certain March 2000
items purchased |
___ | through Form XVII — | o -
Tamil Nadu Value ITC reversal on 0.24 April 2010 to Commercial Tax
| Added Tax Act, 2006 mismatches in TIN ’ | March 2011 Officer, Lalgudi
- = MCreversalonsale | | — ______l
Tamil Nadu Value gzl‘;';':icsme“t 005 | APril2014t0 | Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax Act, 2006 made to RC ' March 2015 (Appeal), Trichy
—— cancelleddealers | — S
The Tamil Nadu Tax on Entry tax on bags April 2005 to
Entry of Goods into purchased from 0.09 M?irch 2006 Supreme Court, Delhi
Local Areas Act, 2001 other states
Appellate &
es Tax Deman . - evision, oard,
|| X:e;stﬁengaISalesTax Sales Tax Demand 0.04 |2014 15 Revisionary Board
_l West Bengal
ot Bongal Sales Tax | o e Demand / 8.51 } 2015-16 } High Court, Kolkata
West Bengal Value Contravention of | | April 2013 to .
Added Tax Act, 2003 | West Bengal VAT l 0.32 || March 2014 West Bengal, Tribunal |
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= { Period to which | ==
Name of the statute Natuare of dues AT::;:)]“ ' the amount oru Wh:? dispute

Wrong AvailmenTof
Central Excise Act, CENVAT Credit of
| 1944 Service Tax Paid on

| Sales Commission.

Additional
Commissioner CGST &
Central Excise, Ranchi

April 2013 to
March 2016

| Jharkhand Value 3 Deputy. Commissioner
,{.h;‘ih;“%z‘"e Added | ) ided Tax Act, 0.12 ﬁ;;‘:hzg;;’sw of Commercial Tax,
i 2005 Bokaro
e e Aor 205 o
Central Excise . September 2015 Commissioner (A),
Service Tax and 0.71 . .
Act, 1944 . April 2016 to Guwahati
Wrong Availment of March 2018
———— | CENVAT Credit S WS
Denial of CENVAT
Credit on quantity
used in ..
Central Excise | manufacturing of 8.24 April 2013 to ;};E:EF;?H:;;;Z:I
Act, 1944 | :;gzlgproduct by March 2016 | with CESTAT, Koikata
moisture/invisible
L loss ! e
Demand of interest AY 2011-2012 Assistant Commissioner
Income Tax Act, 1961 u/s 220 shown on 0.28 2012-2013 ’ of Income Tax, New
- | Income Tax portal N N

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, financial institution or debenture holders or Government
and repayment in the nature of loan from Government are in the nature of sales tax loan/ dyes to SIPCOT
(State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nady Limited).

(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised

(x) Based upon the aydit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fajr view of the

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Mmanagerial remuneration has

(xii) In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhj Company, Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to ys and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or fuily or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
Section 192 of the Act. '

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For 8.8. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003 E/E300005 ICAI Firm Registration No.: 000756_N

Bip Lfje P o

per Anil Gn

Partner Partner -
Membership No.; 087921 Membership No.: 087294 L
UDIN: 20087921 AAAABN2948 UDIN: 20087294AAAADDY600
New Delhi New Delhi

June 12, 2020 June 12, 2020
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S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP S.8. Kothari Mehta & Company

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
4tk Floor, Worldmark 2, Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Phase 101,
IGI Airport Hospitality District New Delhi - 110020

Aerocity, New Delhi -110037

Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Dalmia
Cement (Bharat) Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to €xpress an opinion on the Company's internal financia) controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financia] statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia] Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies

orting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was
ch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
ing with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an’
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS

assessing the risk that a materia] weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Standalone
Financial Statements

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financiai statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financia| controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were Operating
effectively as at March 3 1, 2020, based on the interna] control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over F inancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP For 8.S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm Registration No.: 000756N

per Anil Gupta /;:gﬂl Wahal (

Partner Partner ah,
Membership No.: 087921 Membership No.: 087294 —
UDIN: 20087921 AAAABN2948 UDIN: 20087294AAAADD960i"
New Delhi New Delhi

June 12, 2020 June 12, 2020
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Dalmia Cement (Bharet) Limited

Balance Shest as at Mareh 31, 2020

Al smennx Cilatndd In fis. ave In Re. Crare SRE2 i whbravnr atarm olharwing
Notes

ABSETS
Non-current aesats
Property, plant end aqulpment
Caphtal work-in-progress
Investment propartias
Goodwil

Other intangible agsats
Right of use assats
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Blological sseats othar than bearer plants

Financial asests

(I} Invastmants

(1) Loang

(M) Other financia) sasets
Ciher ran-current assats

Current assety
nvantorias
Financial asasta
{1} Investments
(i) Trade racelvables
(Nl Cash and casn squivalents

(iv) Bank balances oiher then {M) mbave

(v} Loann

(Vi) Other financial nesets
Other current assets
Asseta hald for sale
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EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
Equity

Equlty shers capital
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Total aquity

LiabiNitise
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(1} Barrowings
(U} Lonsa liabikties
(i) Ciher financial fabites
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) B
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Provisions
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Tha_aewn_lpuana notes form an Inbagral part of thess atandakne financial eiataments,
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Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limited
Statarnant of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated in Rs. - 8rg In Rs, Crore except wheraver stated otherwiss Rs.
Notes Year onded Yoar ended
- March 31, 2020 March 341, 2018
Income
Revenue from operatians 21 8,349 8,312
Other income 2 § — 217 - - a7
Total Income 8.568 8,580
Expenaes
Cost of rew materlala consumad 25 1,438 1,580
Purchase of stock in trade 28 117
Change in inventorise of finishad goods, work-In-progress and stock 24 29 (147)
in frade
Employee bansftt expenses 25 524 515
Finance costs:
- Interast cost 26(n) 354 458
~ Other finance cost (inciuding foreign currency 26(b) 51 a8
fluctuation)
Foreign curmency fluctuation on bormowings ete, (nat) 24 ()]
Depreclation and amortisation expsnsg 2A(v1) 1,332 1,226
Power and fuel ‘ 49 1,464 1,570
Frelght chargea: = -
- on finlshed goods 1,500 1,470
- on Internal clinker tranefer 163 187
Other expensas 27 — 14 458
Total expanses o 8,331 8.491
Proflt before tax 235 7]
Tax expense (refer note 16)
Currant tax 75 56
Deferred tax charge/ (cradit) 42 (48)
Tax adjustments for earlier yeara 21 10
Total tax expense - 138 18
Profit after tax 97 81
Other comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclasslified to profit or losa:
- Re-measurament galns/ (lose) on defined benefit plan (@) {15)
- Net (loes) on equlty Instruments through other comprehenalve Income (0) -

- Income tax credit relating to above ltem 2 5
Othar comprehensive income for the year, nat of tax (4} 16
Total comprehenalve income for the vear -~ #3
Eamings per Shars 28
Basie and Dihsted Earnings Per Share (In Rupaes) 3.08 2.564
[Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 (Re.10) each]

Significant accounting policlea 1B
The accompanying notes form an Integrat part of thess standalone financial staterments. e
As per our report of even date
For 8.R. Batllbol & Co, Lp For 8.8, Kotharl Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors of
Charlered Accountants Chartered Accountants Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Flrm Registration No. 301003E/ Firm Reglstration No. 000758N

W /}-—f (-‘ WS W
par Anll Gupta - _,-’E;;nll Wahal {Mahendra Singhi) (Gautam Dalmia)
Partner - Partner Managing Director & CEQ Director

Membership No.: 087021 Membership No.: 087264 1IN : Oomﬂﬂt‘/" DIN : 5000875

Place : New Dslhl Place : New Delhi | fhéﬁﬁhohl ansal)

Date : June 12, 2020 Date : June 12, 2020 hIBf_JpamEI%fnoer C ny Secretary
|

Membership No. A23818
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Daimis Cemnent (Bharat) Limited
Caah Flow Btatament for the year snded March 31, 2020 _
All amouns stated n Rs. are In Ra. Crore sxcei wharsvar stated atherwiss (s,

A. Caaht flow from opsrating aotivities

Profit before tax 238 ]
Adjustments:
Depraciaton and amartieation 2A[vl} 1,832 1228
Impairment sliowsnoca (nat) v 18 1
Bud debte/ advancas written off Fod 2 3
Exchangs dilfararcs (nat) 73 -]
Intarest axperse (inziuding civer bormowing coste) % as7 485
Govemment grant 21 - {12)
Infereet {inooma) 22 i) (213}
Dlvidend (fncome) 22 . {2
Share-based paymrent suparas 25 1 3
Changa of falr value of vestments mosaured at FVTPL ag (€] 108
(Pmﬁtjnnllhul'numlmm (net} - {17) (166)
{Profit) on aale of property, plant and aguiamen: (rat) 22 [ & § i
Operating profitt bafora working capital chanpes 1,802 1,840
Waorking caplinl adjustinents:
{incraase) decrasss In nvento-ias 61 (167}
{Inoraase)’ decrense In trade recalvablan 115 (a7}
Decrease in financlal and other assats 81 430
{Decrassa) In trade and other payables (25) (40)
[{»; a) ny Inp. and grants 14} &t
Cash generatsd from operations 2,020 1,727
Inooms tax refund/ {pald) (net) 34) 7
Net cash flow from operating sciivites —_— 1888 1784
B, Cash flow from irvasting ectivities
Purchase of property, plant and squipment and Intanglbiss {1.281) {814)
P from sale of prop rty, plant and equlpment 1 ]
Furchase of inveatment In suosiiaries 4] (287
Bale of Investment In sssoclaiy - a
{Purchase) off proosads from sale of current irveetments (mi) (818) 1,22¢
(Imvaxtreant ') maturity of bank dapoakts (having originel maturity 11 (170}
of mare than thres monthe)
Loan and depoalt given for aoquishtion of a body corporete - (49)
Rafund of amount fom a body corperate - a2
Loans given & subsidlaries {1,032) (888)
Loans rapeid by subsidiaries B0 374
Loans repald - otham 3
Dividend raceived - 2
Intarast reoeived 2% 148
Nat cash flow (used In) Investing activities {1,714 (121)
C. Cesh flow from financing sctivities
Proassds frarm long tem barrowings 9a2 258
(Repaymant) of long term barrewings {1,114) (1,215)
Avalimen of ghort tarm Toreign currency loan 564 ]
(Repaymeat) of shor: tarm forelgn cumeancy ksan (488) {547)
Proceeda from other short tarm borrowinge {net) 242 12
Payment of princioal pertion of isane |labitiss 38) -
Interest padd (448) (46}
Dividerds peld {including dividend diatribution ()] 13 (93) {40)
Net assh fiow (used In} financing stivities {401} .m1)
Nat (decrevsa) In cash and cash squiveienta (A+B+C) 1119) (B3)
Cesh and cash aquivalents at the bapinning of the yaar = 212 280
Cash end cash squivalents st the end ef the year Nim [1] a2
Notes:
(m) The above Cash Flow Ststement has baen prepared under the 'Indirect Mathod" 80 wet aut in the Indlen Acoounting Standard (Ind AS 7) ‘Statement of Cash Fiow.
(B) Ouintanding loan givan to subal ¥ eggregating to Ra, uammnmrmmmmlnopumwmnmdmﬂ. during the vaar
(refer note B{1}(e)).
{0 Chaliger In labllow arfei') from inaroby acthviios: — § —_— .
Particulars As gt Aprit 1, Cash New Falr vulug Forsign axohangs As af March 31,
o B 2019 flows lodsss  chawrr  movement 220
Lense Bablities {rafer note 32) 88 (38) 2 - - 78
Non curent bemowings 4,780 (132} - {21) 58 4,865
Gurrant socrswimge jrefer nots 181 800 304 k-] 1.230
Partiouisrs As at Apeft 1, Gash Falr valus Farslgn exchangs  As at March 3,
. s 2018 flows changes movement o [
Nan current borrowings 5,716 {958) L] ] 4.780
Curment borowkrz= retarncte tayy, 1038  item. . gy &0
AR per our report of even date
For 8.R. Batilbol & Co, LLP For 8.8. Kethart Maftta & Compeny For and on beiwif of Board of Diractors of
Chertarea Actountants Chariared Acoountants Dajmis Camant (Sharat) Lindted
Firm Registration No. 301003E/ Firm Registration No. 000756N
E3001

per Anll Qupta nil Wahal (Mahendra Binghl} {Geutam Dalmia)
Partner rinar Mansging Direator & Director
Mambarship No.,: 087921 Mambarship No.: 087284 i : 00243836 DIN : DOOCSTEB llL‘

Place : New Dl Place : Naw Daln|
irk hi
t Finana| 3 ni¥ay Secnetary
nrakip No. A23818

Date : June 12, 2020 Dets : June 12, 2020




Dalmla Coment (Bharat) Limited
Statement of changes In aquity for the year endad March 31, 2020
AN amounts stated In Ra. ars In Ra, Croras except wherever stated otherwise

8. Equlty shore capltal

Equity shares of Rs. 10 ench . subscribed and fully pald No. of Shares Rs.
An st March 31, 2018 23,42,81,187 234
Issua of ghare caphal * 7.87.94.080 80
As at March 31, 2079 31,40,45,287 34
issus of ehara capltal = -
As at March 31, 2020 3140 45,267 314

* During the previous year, Company had alloted 78,784,080 equity shares of Re. 10/- aach fully pald up ta Dalmia Bharat Limited {formerly known aa Odisha Cament Limitsd),

pursiant to Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation approved oy NCLT, Chennal Bench,
b, Share capital suspense

Share enpital sispensa Rs.

Aa at Apri] 1, 2018 8,200
Chenge during the year (8,200)
As st March 34, 2010 =
Change during the year e —
As at March 31, 2020 -

* Represented 79,794,080 number of equlty sharsa of Rs, 10/- each filly pald up at a pramium of Rs. 787/~ per ahare, pending fo be allottad to Dalmla Bharat Limited

{formarly known as Odlsha Camant Limited), pursuant o the Scheme of Arrangemant and Amaigamation

by NCLT, Chenhnal Banch, Thess sharea ware allotted

during the financlal year 2018-18 and &n amount of Ra. 80 waa transfamad to equity share caplial and Rs. 8,120 to Securities pramium account.
G Otherequiy — B ___Rs.
| I Rssarve and surplus Other 1
| compiehensive
Incoma |
Sacuritfes |  Debenture Sharebased |  Retalned Equity Total other
| Particulars premium radamption peyment | sarnings Instrumants aquity
Teasrva rasarve through OCI |
" Aa at Aprii 1, 2018 ! “ T 13 1,958 1 g
Profit for the year - - - B1 - | a1
_ Other compirzhenalva Income {nat of tax - - - i10i - (101
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - . | 7 - T
Allotment cof shares purauant to Scheme of 6,120 - - - - 6,120
| Amangement and Amaigamatlon
Transfer ta debenture redemption reserve - 27 - 27 - -
| Debenturs radsmption resarve releassd during the ' (82) - 82 - -
yesr
Dividend pald {Including dividend distribution tax) - - | (40) {40}
{refer nota 13)
Emiloiiie stock aolion siz=nse irefer nots 31 . - 3 - + 3l
i As at March 31, 2019 8563 | 250 18 2.022 - 5,881
| As at April 4, 2019 8,583 50 18 2,022 - 8,881
Profit for the year - - - 14 - 87
QOther comprehensive Incotne (net of tixs — - - - | 4 ol 144!
Total comprehenaiva Incom for the year - - - 2 ] ]
| Tranafer to dabenture redemption reserve - | - - - - -
Datsniure redemption reserva reisassd during the - {195) - | 185 - -
yaar
Trarsfer to retainsd earnings on dispoaal of equity - {0) 0 -
| instruments through OC| |
Dividenas pald (including dividend distribution tax) . ‘ E (63) (93)
(refer note 13) |
}_ Emulriy== stock opfion supensa (refer nots 31 | - - 3 | - - 3
Aa ot March 31, 2020 = — &l s W s Y I T Y

For demcription of the purpcess of each ragerve within aquliy, refer note 13 of standalona financial slatements,

As per our repart of evan date

For 8.R, Batlibol & Co. LLP

For 8.8. Kothatl Mshta & Company
Chartersd Accountants

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglsiration Ng, 301003Ef E300005 Flir Regiatration No. 0007, N

per Anll Gupia r Sunil Wahgl (Mahendra Singhl)

Partner Partner Managing Director & CEO
Membership No.: 087021 Memberahip No.: 087284 DIN : 00243836 '
Piace : New Dalhl Placa : New Delhf

Date : Jure 12, 2620

Date : June 12, 2020

For and cn bahal of the Board of Dlrectors of
Daimia Cament {Bharat) LI

{Gautam Dalmin)
Dirsctor
DIN : 00008758

al,

M
1any Sacretery
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Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwlise

Note 1

A. Corporate Information

Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited ('DCBL' or 'the Company') Is a public company domiclied In Indla and
Incorporated under the provisions of the Companles Act applicable in Indla (erstwhile Companies Act,
1958). lts debt securities are listed on one stock exchange in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Dalmiapuram, Distt Tiruchirappalil, Tamil Nadu- 621651,

The Company ls shgaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of cement and lIts related products
and refractory products.

The financial statemants for the year ended March 51, 2020 were authoriged for issue In accordance with a
fesolution of the Board of Directors on June 12, 2020,

B. Significant Accounting Policles
{I) Baslu of preparation

The financlal statements of the Company have besn prepared In accordance with indlan Accounting
Standards (Ind AS}) notified under the Companiles (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Divislon 1| of Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule ).

The financial statements have been Prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention,
sxcept for the following assets and Jiablilties which have been measured at falr value:

= Derivative financial instruments [refer aceounting policy 1B({ii)v)];

- Investment in bonds and mutual funds measured at fair value [refer accounting poiicy 1B{il){u)
regarding financlal Instruments];

Investment in equity shares, other than investment in joint venture and subsldiaries;

Defined banefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value [refer accounting policy 1B{lI)(r));

Share based payments [refer accounting pollcy 1B(ll)(s)]; and

Property, piant and equipment, referred in accounting policy 1B()(j), at fair value as on the transition
date L.e. April 1, 2015.

The financlal stataments are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) and all the values are rounded off to the
nearest Crores, except number of shares, face value of share, eaming per share or wherever otherwise
Indlcated, Wherever the amaunt represented Rs. '0' (zero) construes value [ass than Rupees fifty iakhs.

{Il) Summary of significant Accounting Policles

a. Business combinations and goodwilil

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provislons related to first time adaption, the Company had elected to apply
Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectivaly from the date of transition to Ind AS j.a. April 1,
2015. As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date,
Including goodwil, have been carrled forward to Ind AS financial statements on the transition date. Business
combinatlon post April 1, 2015 had besn accounted for as per the provisions of the Schame of Arrangement
and Amalgamation approved by Hon'ble Natlonal Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Including the accounting
for amortising the value of resulting goodwill.

b. Current versus non-cuirent classtication

The Company presenis assets and llabliities in the balance shest based on current/ nan-current
classlfication. An asset is treated asg current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal opereting cycle

= Held primarily for tha purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equlvalent unjass restricted from being exchanged or used to ssftle a llabilty for at ieast
twelve months after the reporting perlod

All other assets are classified as non-~current.




Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs, are In Rs, Crore except wherever stated otherwise

A liabllity is current when:

Itis expected to be settied In normal operating cycle
Itis hald primarlly for the purpose of trading
It Is dus to be settied wlthlr! twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

The Company classifies all other liabliitles as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are classifisd as non-current assets and liabilities,

An operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has Identifled twelve months as its operaling cycle.

¢. Investment In joint ventures and subs!diarles

investments rapresenting equity interest In Joint ventures and subsidiaries are carried &t cost In accordance
with Ind AS 27.

of an arangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

The conslderations made in determining whether signlficant Influence or Joint contre! are simfar to those
necessary to determine control over the subsidlaries,

Any Impairment loss fequired to be recognlsed In statament of profit and loss is in accordance with ind AS
108.

On disposal of such investments, difference betwesn the nat disposal proceeds and camylng amount is
racognlsed In the statement of profit and Josa.

d. Forelgn currencles

The Company's financial statements are presenteq in indlan Rupees, which s the Company's functional
currency.

Transactlons and bailances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on Initial racognition In the functionaj currency, by applying to
the forsign Currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional Gurrency and the forelgn
currency at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the functional currency
spot rates of axchange at the reporting date.

Exchangs differences arising on settlemant or translation of Mmonetary ltems are racagnised In statement of
profit and Joss, Exchange differences on forelgn cufrency boirowings, settlement galn/ loss and fair value
gain/ loss on derivative contracts relating to borrowings are accounted for and disciosed under ‘finance

Non-monstary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are transiated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initlal transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value In a
forelgn currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value ig determined. The
gain or loss arising on trans!ation of i i

recognition of the galn or loss on the changs In fair value of the item (l.e., translation differences on items
whoss fair value galn or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss are alsp recognised In statemsnt
of profit and loss).




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Nofes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs, are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwlse

— ——— e e

In accordance with Ind AS 101 ‘First-time adoption of Indlan Accounting Standards’, the Company had
continued the policy of capitalisation of exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign
currency monetary ftems in the Indlan GAAP financlal statements for the perlod ending Immediately before
the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period i.e. March 31, 2018. Accordingly, exchange
differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary Items relatad to acquisition of a depraciable
asset are capitalised/ de-capitallsed and depreclated aver the remaining useful life of the assat,

e. Fair value measurement

Fair value s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llabllity in an ordetly
transaction betwsen market participants at the Mmeasurement date. The falr value Mmeasurement is based on
the presumption that the transactlon to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» Inthe principal merkst for the asset or llabllity, or
P inthe absence of g principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Company.

The falr value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market parficipants would
use whan pricing the asset or liabiilty, assuming that market participants act In thelr aconomic best interest.

A falr value measurement of non-financlal asset takes Into account a market participant's abillty to
generate economic banefits by using the esset in its highest and best use or by salling it to another markst
participant that would use the assst in ts highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriste in the clrcumatances and for which sufficient
data ars available to measure fair value, maximising the.use of relovant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and {labliitles for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financlal statements ars
categorised within the falr value hlerarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest lsvel input that Is
significant ta the fair value measurement as a whole:

> Leval 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) markst prices in active markets for identlcal assets or liabillties

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directy or indlrectly obsarvabie

> level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the iowsst level input that is significant to the falr value
measuremsnt Is unobservablg

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfars have occurred between levels In the hlerarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowsst lavel Input that Is significant to the fair valye Mmoasurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting perlad,

The Company's management dstermines the policies and procedures for recurring falr value measuremant,
8such as derivativa instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

Extemnal valuers are Involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, The management selacts
external valuer on varous criterla such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained by valuer, The management decides, after discusslons with the
Company's external veluers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each cage,

At sach reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed gs per the Company's accounting policles. For thig
enalysis, the Mmanagement verifles the major Inputs applied in the iatest valuation by agreeing the
Information In the vajuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
velue of aach asset and labllity with relevant external sources to determine whether the change Is
reasonable.

The management and the Company’s external valuers present the vaiuation resuts to the Audit Committes.
This Includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the veluations.

For the purpase of fair vajue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabillties on
the basls of the Nature, characteristics and rsks of the asset or llablity and the isvel of the falr value
hierarchy as explained above,




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standaione financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
Ali amounts stated In Rs, are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other falr value related disclosures are glven In the
relevant notes,

Property, plant and equipment {note 2A)

intangible assets (note 4A and 4B)

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 29)
Financlal Instruments (Including thosa carried at amortlsed cost) (note 37)
Comparison of carrying value and fair vaive of financial instruments {note 37}
Quantitative disclosures of fair valus measurement hlerarchy (note 38)

f. Revenus recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is racognlsed when control of the goods or services are transfared
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expacts to be entitled in
sxchange for those goods and 8ervices. The Compeny has generailly concluded that It is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, because It typloally controla the goods or services before transferring them to the
customaer.

Revenus is measured at the falr value of the consideration receivad or recelvable, taking into account
contractuslly defined terms of payment and excluding taxes.

Taxes collected on behalf of the government are excluded from revenue. Revenue Is recognhised to the
extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the revenus and costs, if
applicable, can be measured rellably.

Sale of goods (Including sale of scrap Included under other operating revenus)

Revenus from saie of goods is recognised at the peint In fime when control of the goods Is transfarred to
the customer, generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods. Amounts disclosed as revanue are net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts, cash discounts and volume rebates,

The Company considers the effects of varable consideration, non-cash Incentives and consideration
payable to the customer (if any). No elsment of financing is desmed present as the sajss are made with
cradit terms Jargely ranging betwean 0 to 90 days.

Varlable consideration

if the consideration in a contract includes a variahle amaunt, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration 1o which it will be entitied in exchangs for transferring the goods to the customer. The varlable
conslderation Is estimated at contract inception and constrained unti] It is highly probable that & significant
fevanue reversal In the amount of cumulative revenus recognised will not occur when the assoclated
uncertainty with the varlabls consideration is subsequently resolved. Where the sale of goods provide
customers with dlscounts, volume rebates atc., such discounts, volume rebates etc. give rige to variable
conslderation.

Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customaer.

The Company follows the ‘most expected value' method in estimating the amount of verlable consideration.
The Company estimates the varlable consideration based on an analysis of accumulated historical
experience.

Non-cash Incentives

The Company provides non-cash incentives at fair value to customers. These benefits ars passed on fo

customers on satisfaction of varlous conditions of varlous sales schemes. Conslderation recslved is
en the prod i

Revenue from management services and business auxillary services are recognised at the point in time i.e.
@8 and when services are rendered.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
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| amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise
—————2 21ated In Rs. are In ————= "7-0Bt wherever stated

interest Income

Dividend
Dividend Income Ig recognised when the Company’s right to recelve dividend |s esfablished, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Export incentives
Export entitiements in the form of Merchandige Export from Indla Scheme (MEIS) are racoghised in the
statement of profit and less when the right {o receive credit ag per the terms of the schame is eatablished In
raspect of exports made and when there i i i i

Insurance and other clalms

insurance and other clalms are accountsd for to the extent the Company Is reasonably certain of thelr
ultimate collection.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are recognised where thers |s reasonsble assurance that the grant/
subsidy will be recelved and all ettached conditions will be complied with, When the grant/ subsidy relates
1o an expense itam, It ig recognised as Income on a systematic basfs over the periods that the reiated costs,
for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed,

Where the grant/ subsidy relates to an asset, It is recognised as deferred Income which Is recognised as
income on a systematic and rational basls over the ussful life of the related asget,

such benefit Is fecognised on a systematic basis over the petiod of the loan during which 'tha Company
recognises Interest expanse corresponding to such oan, Income arising from below-merket rate of intsregt
loans/ interest free loans, are included under ‘other Income’,

Customs duty saved on property, piant and equipment imported under Export Promotion Capltal Goods
(EPCG) scheme ig a government grant. Such government grant is recognised as ‘defarred government
grant’, which Is released in statement of profit and loss on the basis of actual exports made by the
Company.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

h.

income taxes
Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax )

Current Income-tax Is measured at the amount expected to be pald to the tax authoritlas In accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in Indla, The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporiing date and Includes any adjustment to tax
payable in respact of previous years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive incoms or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction elther In OCI or directly In equity. Manageament periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations In which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Daferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the lisbility method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and llabilities and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax llabilitles are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, excapt:

= When the deferred tax labllity arises from the Initlal recognition of goodwilll or an asset or liability In a
transaction that I8 not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nelther the
accounting profit nor taxable profit of loss.

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries, assaciate and
Interests in joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it Is probable that the temporary differsnces will not reverse in the foreseeabils future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for afl deductible temporary differances, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax loases. Deferred tax assets are racognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be avallabie against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tex credits and unused tax losses can be utllised, except:

= When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the Intial
recoghition of an asset or liabllity in a transactlon that is not a business combination and, at the fime of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or logs

The carrylng amount of deferred tax assels s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that It is no ionger probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utllised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
facognised to the extent that it has bacome probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabllitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset Is reslised or the ligbility is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relsting to Hems recoghised outside statement of profit and loss Is recognised outside
statement of profit and loss (sither In other comprahensive income or in equity). Deferred tax ltems are
recogniged in correlation to the underlying trangaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabliities are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets agalnst cument tax liabllites and the dsferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authorlty.
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recognition of deferred tax asssts to the extent It is probable that sufficient future taxable Income will be
avallable against which such defarred tax assets can be realised. For recognition of deferred taxas, the
temporary differances which orlginate first are consldered to reverse first,

Deferred tax assets Include Minimum Altemnate Tax (‘MAT') pald in accordance with the tax lews, which
gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to futura Income tex llabillty and is consldered as
an asset If It Is probable that future taxable profit will be avallablg against which these tax crgdlt can bs

l. Non-current assas held for saje

Non-current assets are classifled as held for sale If thefr carrylng amounts will be recoverad principaliy
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable,
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and llabilitias clagsified as held for sale are presented separately from other
items in the balance sheet. Assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

j» Property, plant and squlpment

The Company had measured property, plant and equipment (PPE) except |leasehold land, vehicles,
fumiture and fixtures, office equipment and mines development at fair valus as on tha transition date |.e,
April 1, 2015 which has become ita deemed cost. In respect of vehicles, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment and mines development, the Company had applied applicable Ind AS from a retrospective basls
and arrived at the carrying value as per Ind AS as at transition date.

PPE are steted at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, If any, Capital
work in progress are stated at cost, net of impeairment loss, if any. Cost comptises the purchasa price,

Subsequent expenditure relsted to an item of property, plant and equipment Is addad fo Its book value only
if it incresses the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. When slgnificant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depracletes them Separately based on their spachic useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection s performad, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as &
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised In
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissloning of an asast after its use is Included In the
cost of the respactive asset if the recognition criteria for & provislon are met. Refer to significant accounting
ludgements, estimates and assumptions {note 28) and provisions {note 41) for further Information about the
recorded decommissioning provision.

ltems of stores and spares that mest the definitlon of PPE ara capitalised at cost. Otherwise, such ltems are
classified as Inventories.

Capital work-In-prograss (CWIP)

Asseats In the course of construction are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point when
&n asset is capable of operating In the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is
transferred io the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs (net of income) assoclated
with the commiseloning of the asset, including the expenditure Incurred on trial rune (net of trial run receipts,
if any), are capitalised up to the date asset is ready for its intended use,

Despreclation charge

Depreciation on property, plant end equipment Is provided on a straight-line basis, except for assets of
manufacturing facllity situated at Lumshnong Meghalaya whereln depreciation is provided on a writtan
down valus method with sffect from July 1, 2019, based on the respective estimate of useful lives as diven
below. Estimated useful llves of assets are determined based on technical parameters/ assessments.
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The management belleves that useful lives currently used, which are as prescribed under Scheduls || of the
Cornpanies Act, 2013, fairly reflact lts estimate of the useful lives and residuai values of property, plant and
aquipment, though theae lives in certain cases are different from lives prescribed undsr Schedule il

Type of Asset Useful life

{In years)
Bulidings
Factory buildings 30 years
Nan-factory bulidings * 30 to B0 years
Roads 5to 10 years
Piant and equipments
Continuous process plant 25 years
Other plant and equipment * 5to 15 years
Plent fnd equipment related to Captive Power 25 years
I\Pnﬁ:ts related assets * 4 to B years
Certaln Diesel Generator Sets and workshop S years
appliances *
Furniture and Fixturss 10 years
Office equipment
End user devices such as computers 3 years
Servers and networks € years
Vahiclas
Motor cycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 years
Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars other than § years

those used in a business of running them on hire

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreclates these items of Property, plant and equipment over estimeted useful lives which are dlifferant
from the useful life prescribed In Scheglule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that

Land bearing mineral reserves and Mines development cost are depreciated over their estimatad
commerclal llfe based on the unit of production method. Freehold non-mining land is not depraciated.

The Company has separately assessed the useful life of major components of plant and equipment ranging
from 5 to 25 years. .

bapltallsed Spares are depreclated over thelr own estimated useful Iife or the remaining estimated useful
life of the related asset, whichaver Is lower.

On an Hem of property, plant and equipment discarded during the year, accalerated depreciation is
provided upto the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment Is discarded.

An ltem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part Initially recognised s derscognised upon
disposal or when no future ecanomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-racognition of the asset (calculated as the differsnce between the net disposal proceaeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is Included In the statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognised.

The resldual vaiuss, useful Ives and methods of depreclation of property, plant and squipment are
raviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospactively, If appropriate.

k. Investment properties

The Company had elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment properties as
recognised In its Indian GAAP financial statements as dsemed cost at the transiion date.

investment property comprises freehold land that are held for capital appreclation and recognised at cost,
less impalrment loss, if any.
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Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benafit Is expected from thsir disposel. The
difference betwaen the net disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset I recognised In profit or
loss in the period of derecognition.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurerﬁent, the fair value of
Investment property ls disclosed In notes, Fair value are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accradited extsrnal independant valuer.

l. Intangible assets
{1} Goadwill as per Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation {Scheme) approved by NCLTs.

&) Goodwill arose on amalgamation of Adwetha Cement HoldIngs Limited ('ACHL") has been récognised In
accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Sald goodwill is Initially measured, being the excess of cost
of investment In ACHL cancslled over net identifiable assets acquired and llability assumed. Said goodwill
Is being amortised In accordance with Scheme over a perlod of 4 yaars.

b) Goodwill arose on amaigamation of Adhunik Cement Limited ('ACL") has been recognised in accordance
with Scheme approved by NCLT, Sakd goodwlll ie Initlally measured, being the excess of cost of invastment
In ACL cancelled over net Identifiable assets {Including fair velue of mining rights) acquired and liabfity
assumed,

The subsequent measurement Is at desmed cost less any accumulated impaiment losses. The sald
goodwilll is not amortised and is tested for Impairment annually.

¢) Goodwill and goodwill having underlylng Intangible assets, acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings
of Odisha Cement Limited {'ODCL’) to the Company by way of slump exchange has been recoghised In
accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Sald goodwill and goodwill having underlying intanglble
assets have been amortised in accordance with approved scheme aver a period of 5 vears and 10 years
respectively.

(i) Mining rights

a) The Company has carried cut falr valuation of mining rights of the mines of ACL (amaigamated with the
Company from appointed date January 1, 2015 in accordance with Schems approved by NCLT). Said
mining rights are amortised over their estimated commaerclel life based on the unit of production method.

b) Mining rights acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings of ODCL to the Company by way of slump
exchange has been recognised at fair value in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Sald mining
rights are amariised over their estimated commerclal life based on the unit of production method.

Net carrying value of above mentioned mining rights as on transition date to Ind AS |.e, April 1, 2015 has
been considered as deemed cost,

c} Mining rights Include amounts paid for securing mining rights and ars amortised over thelr estimated
commerclal life based on the unit of production method.

Expenses Incurred relating to project during the project developmant stage prior to fte intended use, are
considetad as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital work In progress or intangible assets
under development, as the case may be.

(i) Brands and Raw materials procurement rights (other than imestone)

Brands and Raw materlais pracurement rights acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings of ODCL to the
Company by way of siump exchange have been recognised at falr value In accordance with scheme
approved by NCLT. Said intangible assets have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment osses,
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Amortisation Is provided on a straight-line basis, based on the respective estimate of usaful lives as glven
below:

[ Type of intangible Asset | Usetul Iife
| (In years)

Brancs 20 and 27 years |
Rew Materlals procurement rights (other than | 3.25 and 26.50 years
| limestone)

!

Net carrying value of brands and raw materials procurement rights as on transition date to Ind AS i.e. April
1, 2015 have been consldered as deemed cost,

(iv) Other intanglbie assets

The Company had measured intanglble assets at carrying value as recognlised in the financlal statements
as on transition date |.e, April 1, 2015, which became its deamed cost.

Intanglble assets acquired eeparately are measured on Initlal recognition et cost. Following inltla!
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost lese accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loseas, If any.

Galns or losses ariging from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference bstwesn
the net disposal procasds and the carrylng amount of the asset and are racognised in the statement of
prefit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful life of computer software s estimatsd as 3 years to 6 years and accordingly amortised on a
straight line basls over Its useful life.

Research and lopment

Research costs ars expensad as Incurred. Development expenditures on an individua! project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate technical and commercial feasibility
of making the asset available for use or sale.

Following tnitlal recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset Is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is avallable for usse. It Is amortised over the perlod of expected
future benefit.

m. Berrowing costs

Ganeral and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for lts Intended use or sale
arg capitallsed as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs ars expensed in the period In which
they oceur.

Borrowing costs conslst of interest (calculated using the effective interest rate method), hadge related cost
Incurred in connection with forelgn currency borrowings and other costs that an entity Incurred In connection

Expenses Incurred on the lssue of debt securlties are amortised over the term of the related eecuritles and
included within borrowing costs. Premium payable on early redemption of debt securitles, In lisu of future
finance costs, is written off as borrowing costs as and when paid.
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n. Leases
Policy applicable with effect from April 1, 2019

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a confract s, or contains, a lease, That Is, If the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assst for a period of time In exchange for
consideration,

Company as a lesses

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases (refar note 1(B)(ii){n){lii} below). The Company recognises leasa llabllittes to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

) Right-of-use agsets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlylng asset is avallable for use), Right-of-use assets are Mmeasured at cost, less any accumulated
depreclation and impaiment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease llablities. The cost of
right-of-use sssets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, Initial direct costs Incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease Incentives recsived. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on g straight-line basls from the commencement date over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated usafyl lives of the assets.

If ewnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the iease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase optlon, depreclation Is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

Leasshold land is amortised over a perlod of lease,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impalrment. Refer to the accounting policles In section (3]
Impairment of non-financial assefs,

I) Lease liabllities

exercising the optlon to terminats, Variable lease Payments that do not depend on an Index or a rate are

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses ks incrementai borrowing rate at the
laase commencement date bacause the Intarest rate impllcit In the lease Is not raadily detarminable. Aftar
the commencemant date, the amount of lease liabliities is Increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the leage Payments mads. in addition, the cammying amount of leasa llabilities |s re-measured if
there Is a modification, a change !n the lease term, a changa In the lease Payments (e.g., changes to futurs
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate ysed to determine such lease payments} or a change
In the asseasment of an option to purchase the underlying asaet,

Lease liabillties and Right-of-use assets have been presented ag a separate line In the balance sheet,

Lease payments have been classifled as cash used in financing activities.

H)} Short-term Isases

The Company has elacted not to recognise right-of-use assets and leage liabilities for short term Ieases of
all assets that have a loase term of 12 months or less, except in case of leases with related party. The
Company racognisas the lsass Payments assoclated with thase leagses as an axpense on a stralght-line
basis over the leage,

Pollcy relating to leases tifl March 31, 2019

Where the Company is lesses

The lease was classified at the incaption date as a finance lease or an operating lease. The laase that
transfers Substantially all the rigks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company was classified 25 a
flnance lease.

Finance loases wers capitaiised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair valus of the
Isased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments ware

f—
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apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease llabliity so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest oh the remaining balance of the llablity. Finance charges were recognised in finance costs In the
statement of profit and loss, unlass they wera directly attributable to quallfylng aesets, In which case they
were capitalised In accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs, Contingent
rentals were recognised as axpenses in the periods in which they were Incurred.

The leased asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. In case thers was no reasonabls
certainty that the Company would obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreclated
over the sharter of the estimated useful life of the esset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments were recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the ieass term, unless the payment to lessor was structured to increass in line with axpected
general inflation and compensate for the iesgor's expected Inflation cost Increases.

inventorles

inventorles are valuad at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materlals and other ltems held for
u=2 |n the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products In which they
wili be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred In bringing each product o its present location and condttion are accounted for as follows:

»  Finlshed goods and work In progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a praportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrawing costs. Cost Is
determinad on weighted average basis.

P Stock in trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs Incured in bringing the inventories to
their present locatlon and condition. Cost is determined on weighted averaga basls.

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated coats of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an [ndication that previously recognised Impalrment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
Indicatlon exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's ragoverable amount. A previously
recognised impaiment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying valua may be impelrad,

Impairment is determined for goodwiil by assessing the recoverable amount of sach CGU (or group of
CGU's) to which the goodwlll relates. When the racoverable amount of the CGU s less than its carying
amount, an Impalrment loss is recognised. Impalrment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed In future
periods.

Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives are tested for impaiment annually 28 at March 31 at the CGuU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be Impalred,

q. Provisions and contingent llabllitles

If the effect of the time value of money Is materlal, provislons are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the llabllity. When discounting is used, the increass in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent llabities

A contingent liabillty is a possible obligation that erises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrance of ohe or more uncertaln future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obiigation that Is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resaurces wili be required to setile the obligation. A contingant liabllity also arises in extremsly rare cases
whare there is g llabllity that cannot be recognised because It cannot be measured reliably, The Company
does not recognise a contingent labillty but discloses Its existance in the financial statements,

r. Retirement and other employas benefits

asls of actuarial valuation at each year-end, Separate actuarial valuation Is carrisd oyt
for each plan using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of re-measurement
gains and losses, the effact of the assst ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
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> Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and lossas on curtallments
and nen-routine settlements; and
»  Netinterest expense or Income

Accumulated leave, which s expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employes benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences ag the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitliernent that hag accumulated at the reporting date. The
Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carred forward beyond twalve months, as long-term
employes benefit for Mmeasurement purposes, Such long-tarm compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end, Re measunement
gains/iceses are Immediataly taken to the statement of profit end loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the entire laave as g current llablllty in the balance sheet, since It does not have an unconditiona
right to defer its setiemant for 12 months after the reporting date,

8. Share-basad payments

Certain employeas (Senior Exacutives) of the Company recelve remuneration in the form of share-based
bayments (share options of the holding Company l.e. Dalmia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha
Cement Limited)), Wwhereby employees render Services as consideration for equity Instruments {equity-
settled transactions),

Equlty-gettled transactions
Share options of the holding company are accounted for ag aquity settled as the Company has no
obligation to saitle the share-based Payment transaction and also the shares are of helding company.

The cost Is recognised, together with a corrasponding increase In equity, over the period In which the
performance and/or service conditions ars fulfllled In employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settied trensactlons at each reporting date untl the vesting date reflacts the extent o
which the vasting perlod hag explred and the Company best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will uttimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represants the
movement in cumulative expense racognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised
In employee benefits axpense.

Basic sarings per share Is calculated by dividing the profit afttributable to owners of the Company by the
welghted average number of equity ehares outstanding during the financia! yaar,

Diluted eamnings per share adjusts the figuras used In the determination of basic 83MINgs per share fo take
into account the after income tax effact of interest and other financing costs assoclated with dilutive
potentlal equity shares and the weighted average humber of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of afl dilutive potentjal equlty shares.
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u. Financla! instruments

A financlal instrument Is any contract thet gives riss to a financial asset of one entity and a financial llabliity
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets

Inftlal recognition and measuremant
Financial assets are classified, at Initial recognition, as subsequently measurad at amortised cost, falr vajue
through other comprehensive Incoms (OCH), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classlfication of financial assets at Initial recognition depends an ths financial asset's contraciual cash
flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. All financlal assets are

assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way frades)
ara recognised on the trade date, lLe., the date that the Company commiits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsaquent measurement, financiel assets are classified in below mentioned catagories:

- Financial essets at amortiged cost (debt inatruments)
- Financlal assets at fair valye through other comprehensiva income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Financlal assets designated at fair vajue through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecoghition {equity instruments)

- Financial asssts at fajr value through profit or loas (FVTPL)

Financlal assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financlal asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following condltions are met:

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and Inferest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This catagory is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financlal asgets are
subsequently measured at mortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost Is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
Integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation Is included In other income in the statement of profit end loss,
The losses arising from Impalrment are recognised In the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade recelvables, loans and other recelvables.

Financial asgots at FVTOC| (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset' Is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

8) The objactive of tha business model s achleved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financlal sssets, and
b} The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPP).

Debt Instruments included within the FVTOQCI category are measured Initfally as weil as at sach reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements ars recognleed In the other comprehenslve income (ochn.
Howevar, the Company recognises Interest Income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss In the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI Is reclassifled from the equity to statement of profit and loss,

The Company has not designated any financial agset (debt Instruments) as at FVTOCL

Financlal assets designated at fair value through OC! {equity inatruments)

On initlal recognition of an equity instrument that ls not held for trading, the Company can slect to classlfy
Irrevocably Its equity investments ag equlty instruments designated at falr value through OCI. The
ciasslfication Is determined on an Instrument-by-instrument basis. EquHy inatruments which are held for
trading ars classified as at FVTPL
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Subsequently, these financlal assets are measured &t falr value with gains and losses arlsing from changes
in fair velue recognised in other comprahensive Income. Galns and losses on these financial asssts are
hever recycled from othar comprehensive income to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. Howaver, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Dividends on these investments are recognised as ‘other income' In the statement of profit and loss when
the right of payment has basn established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a
racovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which casge, such gains are racorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at falr valus through QCI are not subject to Impairment asseasment.

The Company elected to classffy Imevocably fs non-listed equity Investments under this category,

Flnancial assets at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at FVTPL are carrled in the balance sheet at fair vaiue with net changes In fair valus
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt Instrument, which doas not meset the criteria for categorigation as at amortised cost oras FVTOCI, Is
classifisd as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVTOCI criterla, as af FVTPL, However, such slection Is allowed only if dolng so reduces or eliminates g
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has
deslgnated Investment in mutual funds, bonds and derlvative Instruments as at FVTPL.

Derecognition
A financlal asset Is primarily deracognised whan:
» The rights to racelve cash flows from the asset have explred, or

impairment of financlal assets
in accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credlt loas (ECL) model for measurernent
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are Mmeasured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securlties, deposlts and bank balance.

b} Trade receivables or any contractual right to recelve cash or another financial assat that result from
transactions that are within the acope of Ind AS 115,

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of Impeirment loss allowance on;
» Trade recalvables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to frack changes In credit risk, Rathar,
it recognises Impaiment loss ellowance based on Iifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from Its Initial
racognition.

For recognition of impeirment loss on other financial asaets and risk exposure, the Company datermines
that whether there has baen a signticant Increase In the credit fisk sinca Inttlal recognition. The credlt risk
hes not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if cradit risk
of customer has Increased significantly, Ifetime ECL Is ysed. If, In a subsequent periad, credi quallty of the
instrument Improves such that there is no ionger a slgnificent increase In credit risk since Inltial recognition,
hen the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit lossas resuiting from all possibie defayit events over the expected life
of a financlal Ingtrument. Tha 12-month ECL Is a portion of the lifstime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the diffsrence betwesn all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to recelve (1.s.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at.
the criginal EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company conslders:

> Al contractual ferms of the financlal instrument (including prepaymant, extension, cali and similar
options} over the expected lifa of the financial Instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of
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the financial instrument cannot be estimated rellably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument,

P Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other cradit enhancements that ara Integral to the
contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provislon matrix o determine impalrment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade recelivables. The provisfon matrix Is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivabiles and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed defaut rates gre updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

ECL impalment ioss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount Is reflacted under the head 'Other expenses’ In the
statement of profit and loss,

Initlal recognition and measurement
Financlal labliitles are classlfied, at inltial recognition, as financlal Fabliitles at falr vaiue through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables or as derlvatives, as appropriate,

Al financial llablitles are recognised initially at falr value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financlal llabilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of inancial liabilttles depands on thelr ¢lassification, as described below:

Financlal llabilitles at fair value through profit or loss

Firancial llabliitles at falr valus through profit or loss {FVTPL) Include financlai llabllities held for trading and
financlal liabilitles designated upon Initla[ recognition as at FVTPL, Financlal liabliities are classtfied as held
for trading if they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term. This category alao Includes
derivative financlal Instruments entered Into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
Instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 'Financlal instruments’.

Gains or losses on liabilities heid for trading are recognised In the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This ig the category most relevant to the Company. After Initial recognition, interest-bearing ioans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised In statement of profit and loss when the llabllities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amorlisation process.

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acqulsltion and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included as finance costs in the statemant
of profit and loss.

This category generally appllas to borrowings. For more information refer note 14(1}

Financlal guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts Issued by the Company ars those contracts that require a payment to be
Mmade to relmburse the holder for a loss it Incurs because the spacified subsidiary fails to make a payment
when due In accordance with the terme of a debt instrument. Financial guarantese contracts are recognised
initlally as a llabliity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequentty, the liabllity s measursd at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumuiative
amortisation.
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De-recognition )
A financial liability is derecognised whan the obiigation under the liabiitty |s discharged or cancelled or
explres. When an existing fnancial liabillty is replaced by another from the same lender on substantfaily

diffsrence In the respective cammying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financlal Instruments

Financial assets and financle| ligbillties are offset and the net amount Is reported in the balance sheet If
there Is a currently enforceabls legal right to offast the recognlsed amounts and thers Is an Intentlon to
settle on a net basls, to realise the assets and settle the fiabilities simultansously.

v. Dsrivative financlal Instruments

initlal racognition and Subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange option confract, foreign
exchange forward contract and Interest rate swap contract, to hedge Its forelgn currency risks and Intersst
rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are Inltially recognieed at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carrled as financlal assets when the fair value [s posltive and as financlal liabllitiss whaen the fair value Is
negeative.

Any gains or losses arlsing from changes in the fair value of derlvetives are taken directly to statement of
profit and loss.

w. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash aquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of thres months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of ths statement of cash flows, cash and cash aquivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

X. Segment reporting

Identification of segments

The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategle business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. The analysls of geographical segments is based on the
areas in which major operating divislons of the Company operats,

Inter-segment transfers

Inter-segment revenue has been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to betwean segments
which is based on current market prices.

Allocation of common costs
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according fo the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated Items

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabliities which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocabie to
Ssgments on reasonable basls have been included under ‘unallocated revenue ! expenses / gesets /
liabiltties’,

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment Information In conformity with the acoounting policles adopted for
preparing and presenting financlal statements of the Company as a whole.

y. Cash dividend distribution te equlty holders of the Company

'cl';he Company recognises a llabllity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the
om

I8 authorised when it Is aépproved by the
nt Is recognised directly in other equity. Intedm dividends are
ny's Board of directors.
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C. Recent accounting pronouncements
() New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 118 Leases for the first time. The nature and effact of the changes as a result
of adoption of these naw accounting standard is described balow.

Several other amendments and interpratations apply for the first tme in March 2018, but do not have an
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or
amendments that have been Issued but are not yet effactive/ notifled,

(8) Ind AS 1186 Leases

ind AS 118 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases Including Its appendices {Appendix C of ind AS 17
Determining whether an Arrangement contains s Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Opersting Leasas-
Incentives and Appendix B of ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving the Legal
Form of a Leass). The standard sefs out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of ieases and requires lessess to recognise most leases on the balance sheet,

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 118 Is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue

to classify leases as alther operating or finance leases using simllar principles as in Ind AS 17.
Therefore, Ind AS 118 doss not have an impact for leases whers the Cormpany is the lessor.

Company elected to use the fransition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract ls or
containg a lease at Apdl 1, 2019, Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts that
were previously identfiied as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17 at the date of
initial application.

Accordingly, the comparatives have not besn restated and hence not comparable with previous year
figuras.

Loases previously accounted for ag operating leases
The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease llabiilties for those leases previously classified
as operaling leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The right-of-use

The Company also applled the avallable practical expedients whereln |t:
*  Used asingle discount rate to a portfollo of leasss with reasonably similar characteristics

® Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lsase term that ends within 12
months of the date of initla] application

¢ Exciuded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initlai application

*  Used hindsight in determining the lease term whare the contract containad options to extend
or terminate the lease.

Baged on the above, as at Aprl 1, 2019:

*  Right-of -use assets of Rs, 118 were racognised and_ presented separately In the balance

*  Additlonal lease llabliities of Rs. 85 were recognised.

*  Obligations under finance lease of Rs. 1 have been reclassified to laase liabilitios.
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On application of Ind AS 118, in the statement of profit and ioss for the cutrent year, operating lease
expenses has changed from rent {included under ‘Empioyee benefiis éxpanses’ and 'Othar expenses')
to depreciation cost for the right-of-use assats angd finance cost for interest accrued on leass liabillty.

Consequent to above, there Is a reduction in rent expsnse by Rs. 44, increase in interest expense by
Rs. 8 and increase in depraciation charge by Rs. 39,

The adoption of Ind AS 118 did not have any signlficant impact on the profit and earnings per share of
the current year.

The Company has lease contracis for various items of buildings {godowns, office and rasidentlal
premises), vehlcies and other equipment. Before the adoption of Ind AS 118, the Company classifisd
each of its leases (a8 lessee) at the Inception date as efther a finance lease or an operating lease.
Refer to note 1B(ii)(n) Leasas for the accounting pelicy prior to April 1 , 2018.

Upon adoption of ind AS 118, the Company applled a single recognition and Measurement approach
for all isases oxcept for short-term leases. Refer to note 1B(l)(n) Leases for the accounting pollgy
beginning Aprll 1, 2019, The standard provides 8pecific transition requirements and practical
expedients, which have been applied by the Company,

The lsase llabliittes as at Aptil 1, 2010 can be raconclled fo the operating iease commitmanis as of
March 31, 2019, as follows:

Aasats

Operating lease commitments as at March 31,2019 (Rs.) 7
Weighted average Incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2018 10.00%
Discounted operating lease commitmenis as at April 1, 2019 (Rs.) 5
Loss:

Commitments relating to short-term leases {(Rs.) -
Commitments relating to leases of low-value asseis (Rs.) -
Add;

Commitments relating to ieases previously claasified ag finance leases (Rs.) 1
Lease payments relating to renewal pericds not included in operating lease commitments 80
as at March 31, 2019 {Rs.) S
Lease Habllitles ag at April 1, 2019 (Rs.} 86

(b) Amendment to exlsting issued Ind AS
1) Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxas - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
i) Amendments to Ind AS 18, Employee Benefits - Pian Amendment, Curtaliment or Settlement
i) Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
Iv) Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing costs

v} Amendments to |nd AS 109, Financial instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

vl} Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investment In Associates end Joint Ventures: Long-term interests
in agsoclates and iolnt ventures

vii) Ind AS 103, Business Combinationg
vill) Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

The effect on adoption of above mentloned amendments were Insignificant on the financlai
statements of the Company.
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2A, Proparty, plant and squipment = Rs,
Frashold Leasehold Bulidings| Piantand | Furniure and | Vehicles| Offigs Mines Tutll_I
land land Fqulpmant fixtures squipment | develosmant
[Gicemeri Cost *7 Coat = |
As &t it 7, 2018 25 983 7,808 18 20 a7 T
Addlfona 42 1 21 253 2 2 i1 [] 338
{ Dispr:tala {8l - (1] [RFT) (T i0; i - (128
Excharge differsnce - - - 3 5 - - - 3
ustmant - 11 - - - - - - 11
As ot March 31, 2019 968 37 1.004 7,715 18 2 [13 53 9,881
Addliona 58 - 18 238 2 3 12 10 337
Dimosals - - {1 ™ ] f1i 1] - 174
Exchainii= diference - - - 2 - - - - F1
Adjustment - - (11 4 - [ (13 - -
Raclassifind on eccount of adoption of Ind (a7) - n - - - - (37)
ASB 116 [refer rote 32/ - . .
As at March 31, 3020 1.021 - 1,020 7.888 _a 22 57 83| 10,089
[Dacr=ciation
As at Apnl 1, 2018 16 1 163 1415 4 8 18 24 1,660
|Charge for the yoar 8 - 64 592 2 2 7 4 870
Claposais = - ] 124) 10} 0} 10 - (124,
Al |ustrment - 3 - - - * - 3
As st March 31, 2019 28 [} 217 1,883 8 10 28 1] 2,198
Chi for the war 10 - 84 671 2 3 1 760
|Digposala . - {1 jd) {0y [1H (&1} - {713
ustment - - (0 2 10y 12) {01 - -
Raciassified on account of edoption of Ind . [21] - - - - - - (4)
AS 118 {refar note 32}
ot March 31, 2020 as - 280 2488 [] 10 ET] Pl 2,884
Nst block !
As at March 31, 2020 [1T] - 740 5.388 12 12 2 34 7,205 |
As at March 31, 2019 040 33 787 5,832 12 12 27 25 7 682

“Refer ncte 1(BXT).

Notes:

(). Registration of treshold land amounting to Rs. 13 (March 31,2018 : Rs. 13) Is pending to be regiatered In the neme of the Company.

(). The Compary has piedged ceriain assats agalnst borowings which haa besn disclosed In note 14()).

{lif}. Rafer to note 33 for disciesure of contractyal commitments for the acqulaltion of property, plant and equipment.

{Iv). In tarms of Schemes of Amangement and Amaigamation, the tils desda of cerialn portion of Immovable properties of arsiwhile Adhunik Cament Limited, arstwhils Adhunlk
MSP Camant (Aamar) Limitsd (transferred through amaigamation), Power Undertakinge of erstwhile DCB Power Ventures Limitad and Undertakings of Odisha Cement Limited
{tranaferred through slump sale) are In the process of belng tranaferrad In the name of the Company,

{v). Dispoaals fram (1) Plant and aquipment having 9roas black of Rs. B {(March 31, 2018: Rs. 7) end accumulated depreciation of Rs, 4 {March 31, 2018: Ra, 6) and (i) Vehicies
having grosa biock of Re. NiI (March 31, 2018; Ra, 0} and accumulated depreclation of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019; Re. 0) and transforrad to ‘Asgsts held for sale',

(v1). Raconcillation of depreciation and amorfleation EXpanse;

Depraciation and amartisation EXpanss on;
Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
I

Loas: Cost aliocated to capltal woricn- @ (1
progress (refer nate 44,
As per statemnent of profit and loss
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(vil). Adjustment in 'Leasshold land' during the previous year represented mines reclamation cost
fransferred from 'Other intanglble assets'.

2B. Capital work-in-progress {CWIP)

Movement of capltal wark-ln-pmross Rs.
Particulars As at March 31,] As at March 31,

2020 2019
Opening balance 478 150
Additions during the year 1,343 521
Capltallsed during the year (227) (192)
Transfer to Intangible assets under - {1)
development
Closing balance * 1,594 478
" Refer note 54,
Notes :

{1). Details of expenses capltalised and carmied forward as a part of capital work In progress are disclosed
fn note 44.
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3. Investment properties

Land
{Freehold)

Total

Deemed Cost *

As at April 1, 2018

Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

TePraelatlon

As at April 1, 2018

Charge for the year

Disposals

As at March 31, 2019

Charge for the year

Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

Net block

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

]oa

“Refer note 1(B)(ii)(k).

Notes:

). The Company's Investmant

(i
restrictions on the realisabil

develop investment propertles or fo

of the same.

properties consist of freehold lan
investment property and no
r repalrs, malntenance and enhancements.

ds for capital appreciation. The C
contractual

ompany has no
obligations fo purchase, construct or

(iif). Investment proparties are mortgaged against the secured borrowings of the Company as disciosed in note

no. 14{i.

(iv). As at March 31, 2020, the falr value of the
investment properties comprising lands are ba
(villags) by the authorities of respaective State Go

properties is Rs. 3 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 3). The fair valuation of
on the benchmark value of land as fixed for different mouzas
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Al amounts atstad In Re_are In R Crom Erevar slated sifarwine
— - ——————o e e in Re Crom mxceg whare ! ar =

4. Intenglble assets

Re.
Note 4A Nots 4B
Other Intanglbie aggats
Goodwil * Rew materiais
' Brands § Mining progursmant Computer Total
rights » Hitite # agftwara
Desmed Cost*/ Cost
3.087 1973 1174 278 12 3.438
2 : [ - F) .
- - 11 - - 11
3,087 1873 1,163 27 14 3,420
- - 8 - 7 15
- - - - {0y L]
1087 1,073 117 e 21 3,444
1378 230 129 83 7 429
420 78 45 ] 3 137
- o |__3J_ - - [3
1458 308 178 T2 10 883
Az TE ] ] 3 t32
- : : P A 2]}
2 100 982 219 81 13 895 |
[T14 1,581 952 190 | 8 2749
1,169 1,887 288 207 | 4 2458

“Raler rote 1{BXT)).

Net block R
As at Mareh 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Goodwill 987 1,389
Other Intangibla assats 2749 2608
3,738 4348
Nota:

Adjustment In ‘Mining rights' during the previous year reprassnted mires raclamation ooat fransfermed to "Property, plant and equipmaent'.

*Goodwil scquired pursusnt to Bchams of Arrangsment snd Amaigasmation

(a) Impairment testing of goodwliil

The carrying amount of Goodwil of Ra, 887 {March 31, 2018: Rs, 1,388) acquired pursuant to Schems of Arrangemant and Amaigemation has besn sliocated io Cament
Cash Ganarating Unit {CGU) for impelrment tasting.

The Company parforms annual impairment test for carrying valus of goodwill, Tha Company considars the relationship batwesn Ity market capitafsation based on cther
Comparable compeniea and lts book valua, among other factors, when reviewling for Indicators of Impaimant,

The recoversble amaunt has bsan conskdsred basad on the falr value lnas coat of disposal or valus In use, whichaver ls higher as raguired %o ba esseased under Ind-AS

The recoverable amaunt of the Cement Businags Linit (CGU) has besn determined based ©n & value In use calculation uaing cash fiow projections fram finanaial
projactions approved by senior menagement of the Company, which are part of overall busineas plen cavering a five-yaar pariod. The pre-tax discount mta appliad o
cash flow projectiona for Impalrment taating during the cuirrent year s 16.35% (March 31, 2010: 18.94%) and cash flows beyond the five-year perlod are

using a 4.00% growth rats {March 31, 201g; 4.00%) which s conalstent wih the Industry forecasts. As & reault of the analysls, management did not Identfty any
Impaiment for ths CGL and accordingly, thers |s no Imgalrmart for goodwill amount.

The management beflaves that any reasonably possible changs in the key mesumptions on which recovarable smount la based would not caitss the cartying amount ko
excead the recoverabie amount of the cash gensrating unit

Koy sssumptions usad for valua In use calculstions
The caleulation of valus In use for the CGU Ia most sensttive to the following sssumnptiona:

EBITDA margins
EBITDA margina ars eatimated bened on the frend of gctual EBITDA of cement esgrnaent for past 1 year Praceding the beginning of tha budget parod.

Sensltivity to changes In Esaumptions
The impilcationa of the key sasumptions for the recoverabla amourk are discussad below:

Growth rate assumptions — A rsduction to 0% (n the long-term growth rate would resut in vakis In uge being lower than cammying amount of tha assats,
Discount rates - A rizg In pra-tax discount rats to 20.50% would resch In val
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(b) Arnortisation of recognised geodwil

The Company had accounted for {I) amalgamation of Adwethe Cament Holdings Limitad In accordance with requirement of Accounting Stendarg (AS)- 14 “Accounting
for Amaigamations® and {il} slumnp axchange of alf the asssta and labifities forming part of Undertakings of Odlsha Cament Limitad ('ODCL'} {renamed to Dalmia Bharat
Limited) to the Company on a going concer besls based on allocation report Prepared In accardanca with AS- 10, natifled under Section 133 of the Companles Act,
2013, a8 re’srred to In varicus Schema of Amrangement and Amalgamation sanctianed by Hon'bla National Company Lew Tribunai(s).

Goodwill arisen on amaigamation alangwith goosiwill acquired on elump sale ls being amortieed over g period of 4 to 10 years from the appointed dats, as per the
provislons of reapectiva Schemes, Ag # rasult of amortiaation of such goadwil, profit bafore tax for the Year ended March 31, 2020 Is lower by Rs. 40247 (March 31,
2019: Rs. 42n),

M ingludes Rs. 32 (March 31, 201%: Ra, B) on account of aocelerated amortiaation of a Particular goodwill amaount from aariier policy of amortieing over a pariod of 5
yoars to 4 with effect from Janvary 1, 2018,

§ Brands:
Pursuant 1o Scheme of Amangement and Amelgamation, Compeny had recorded velue of Brands acquired from ODCL based on the falr veluation carrisd out by
indepandent veluer, as at the appoiniag date January 1, 2015 at an aggregate value of Rs. 1,691,

A Mining rights Include;
(a) Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, Company had carrled out falr valyation of mining rights of the mines at ACL (emalgamated with the Company from appointed
date January 1, 2018). A 3um of Rs. 184 was sagignad to thess mining rights,

(b} Purauant to Scheme of Arrangement ang Amalgamation, mining Hghts of the minss forming part of Undertalinga of OBCL 1o the Company by way of slump
exchange from the appointed date January 1, 2015, A sum of Re. 989 was asslgned to these mining rights,
# Raw materials Procurement rights:

Pursuant to Scheme of Amangement and Amalgamation, Company had recorded velua of Raw matarial Procursmant rights from ODCL based on the the falr valuation
Garried out by Independent valuer as at the appointed date January 1, 2015 gt an aggregate value of Ra. 284,
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5. Blological assets other than bearer plants

Livestock

Cost

As at April 1, 2018

Additions

Disposais

As at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

Depreciation

|As at April 1, 2018

[Charge for the year

Disposals

As at March 31, 2019

Charge for the year

Dlsposals

As at March 31, 2020

Net block

As at March 31 , 2020

As at March 31, 2019

(=2 -]

Note:

The livestock comprises of milc
Mmeasured at cost as the fair val

h cattles and the produce is utili
ue cannot be measured rellably

sed for weifare of the employees, it is



Daim!a Coment (Bharat) Limlted
Notes to standalona financlal ststements for the yasr ended March 3, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. ara in Ru. Crore excapt wheraver sinted otherwies

6.  Financlal asssts
{1l investments

A. lnvestment In equity shares - at cost
Subsldlary companles
Ungquotad

272,877,726 (March 31, 2019: 272,877,725) Shares of Ra. 10/ each fully paid

up In Calcom Cement Indla Limited

150,000,000 {March 31, 2018: 150,000,000) Sharsa of Ra, 10/- aach fully pald

up in Dalmfa DSP Limkad

100,000 (March 34, 2019; 100,000) Shares of USD 1/- sach fulty pald up in

OCL Global Limlted
695,500 (March 31, 2018: 895,500) Shares of Rs. 10/- aach fully pald up in
Dalmia Minerais & Propertles Limited

18,817,500 (March 31, 2018: 18,817,500) Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up

In Alsthom Industries Limited

840,000 (March 31, 201¢8: 840,000) Shares of Rs, 10/ each fully pald up in

Golden Hills Resart Private Limited

50,000 (March 31, 2019; §0,000) 8harea of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up In fehita

Properties Limitad

1,390,000 (March 31, 2019 1,380,000) Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up In

D.i. Properties Limited
281,000 (March 31, 2018: 281,000} Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in
Gootes Estatas Limlited

1,021,000 (March 31, 201g; 1.021,000) Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up In

Hemshiia Propartiag Limited

454,500 (March 31, 2018: 454,500) Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paki up In
Jayevliay Agro Farms Privats Limited

10,000 (March 31, 2018: 10,000) Sharea of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up In
Rajputana Properties Private Limited

1,304,000 (March 31, 2018: 1,304,000) Shares of R, 10/- each fully paid up In

8hr Rangsm Properties Limited
70,000 (Merch 31, 2018: 50,000) Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up In
Dalmia Bharat Refractorias Limited (refer note (a) below)

258,400 (March 34, 2018: 259,400) Shares of Rs, 10/ each fully paid up In 3n

Madhusudana Mines & Properties Limited

725,000 (March 31, 201: 725,000) Shares of Rs. 10/ each fully peld up In S

Shanmughs Mines & Minerels Limhted

188,000 (March 31, 2019: 1 89,000) Shares of Re. 10/- sach fully pald up In Sri

Subramanya Mines & Minerale Limitad

305,700 (March 31, 2019; 305,700) Shares of Re, 10/ each fully pald up In §ri

Swaminatha Mineg & Minerals Limited

288,500 (March 31, 2018: 285,500} Shares of Re. 10/- each fully peid up In S

Trvikrama Mines & Properiies Limited

98,800 (March 31, 201¢: 98,600) Bhares of Re. 10/- each tully pald up In
Bangaru Kamakshlamman Agro Farms Private Limited

48,100 (March 31, 2019: 48,100) Shares of Re. 10/- each fully pald up in
Chendrasekara Agro Farme Private Limitad

10,000 (March 31, 2019: 10,000} Shares of Rs, 10/- each fully pald up In Hopeo

Industries Limited

Joint venturss - unquoted

1,836,500 (March 3, 2018: 1,838,500) Sharea of Ra, 10/- 8ach fully pald up in

Khappa Cogl Company Private Limlted (refer note (b) below}
Leas : Impairment aliowance

7,348,000 (March 31, 2019: 7,348,000) Shares of Rs.10/- sach fully pald up In

Radhikapur (West) Conl Mining Private Limitad {refer nota (¢} below)
Less : Impaiment aliowance

Sub-total (A)

AsatMarch31, Apat March 31,
2020 2018

260 260

150 150

3 3

52 52

19 18

5 5

1 1

3 3

8 6

8 6

B 5

0 0

0 8

2 0

8 8

8 8

5 5

3 3

7 7

6 8

3 3

0 0
-
2 2

@ @

7 7
e . R )}
4 2
B R——




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limiad
Notss to standelone financlal statsments for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts statad In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wharaver siated otherwise

B. Investment in equity shares - at fair value through OC|
Others - unquoted
NIl (Marck 31, 2010: 448) Shares of Rs,10/- each fully paid up In Smarterheatth
Techserva Private LimHed
Nil (Merch 31, 2018: 374) Sharss of Rs.10/- aach fully peld up In Pumpcharge
intarnet Private Limited
NIl (March 31, 2018; 448) Shares of Re.10/- sach fuliy pald up In Exchangs 4
Solar Privats Limited
NI {Merch 31, 2019; 145) Sheres of Rs.10/- esch fully peid up In Khetify
Soluions Privats Limbed

Sub-tatal {B)

C. Investment in debentures (unquoted) - at coat

5,900 (March 31, 201g: 5,900) zero coupon optionelly redesmable convertibls
debentures of R, 1,00,000/- sach in Sarof Sunriee Private Limitsd {refer nota
(d) below)

12 (Merch 31, 2019: 12) 8% non convertible sscurad debentures of Ra, 100/-
sach fully peid up in Indlan Chambar of Commerce

2 (Mereh 31, 2019: 2) 8% non convertible sacured debentures of Rs, 25/~ each
partly paid up in Indian Chember of Commaerce

Sub-total (C)

D. investment In debantures (unquoted) - at falr valus through profit or
ioss (refar note (e) below)
Bubsidlary companles
44,90,070 (March 31, 201s: Nif) 1% unsecured optionally convertible
debentures of Re. 100/- sach in Dalmla DSP Limited
14,00,000 (March 31, 2019: NI} 1% unsecured optionally convertible
debentures of Rs. 100/~ sach in Alsthom Industries Limitad

Sub-iotal (D)

E. Others (unquotad) - at cost
50 (March a1, 201p: 60) units of Rs.100/- each fully pald up in Co-oparative
Soclety

Property Rights in Hollday Reaort
Sub-total (E)

Total {A+B+CH+D+E)

Aggregate amount of unquoted invesiments
Aggregats amount of Impalrmeant In value of invastments

Notes:

a) During the yesr, Company has further investad Ra. 2 (March 31, 2018: R, Nil) In equity sharee of Rs,
Limited {formarly known as &ri Dhandeuthapanl Minas and Minerals Limlted), a subeldiary company.

Rs.
As at March 31, Anltlllmhﬂ,
2020 2019
. 0
0
. 0
. 4}
oo ——
50 59
[+ o
0 1)
% m
3
10
I -
0 [+
— ) [}
R e - —— 0O
899 636
-1 ] B58
5 5

10 sach Issuad by Dalmla Bherat Refractorias

&) In respect of licanse grented for captive mining black at Radhikapur mines, a Jolnt venturs company viz. Radhlkapur {Weat) Coal Mining Private Limtted

was Incorporated on March 28, 201G In which the Company's Interest Jointly with

Rs. 7 (March 341, 2019: Rs.T) In equity sheres of It jolnt vanture which includeg

transfarrad to OISL after the racsipt of approval from the Ministry of Coal, Govemmen
decision of the Hon'ble Suprema Court of Indla canceiling the allocatlon of Coal block,
provision of Re. 3 (March 31, 2010: Rs. 3) was made in eariier Yyears in the financial statemnents,

OCL Jron & Steel Lim

£ of Indla and other Jol
or dated September 24, 2014, as & matter of prudence, a

d) The Investment in zero Coupan optionally redesmabla convartible debentures of Saro] Sunrigs Privats Limlted are In the nature of equity investment

{also nefer nate 45()).

8) During the year, Company hes Investad In unascured optioneally convertible debentures
and Dalmla DSP Limitsd, subsidiary companies, aggrageting to Rs. 14 and Rs. 45 respectively,
depoalts given ts thegs subsldlery companies from tme to time. These OCDs carny fntsrest @ 1% p

through profit and logs as per ind AS 1089,

} of Re. 100 each Issued by Alsthom Industries Limitad
nst the extingulshment of unsecured Inter corporate
-8, These Invastmants have besn carmied at falr vaiue



Dalmia Cament {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financial statemants for the vear ended Mareh 3, 2020

All ameunts stated In Rs. gre In Rs, Crore except wherever stated otharwlse Rs.
- o As ot March 31,  As at March 31,
R - o o 2020 2019
{) Loans (Unsacured, uniess otherwise stated and considered good)
Loens and advances to amplayees 1 8
Loans to a related party - Sscured (refer note 35) % 336 401
Sacurity deposits . 38 32
383 441

No loane or advances ars due by dirsciors or other officers of tha Company or any of them elther severaliy or jolntly with eny ather person. Further, no

loans or advancss are due by firma or privata companies in which any director is g Pariner, a director or @ membaer,

“* Terms of security;

(a) Rs. 302 (March 31, 2019: Ra. 384) s sacured by way of first pari-passu cherge on entire {!) proparty, plant and equipment {Immovable and moveabie)
and () Intanglble agsats (both pregent and future) of Calcom having priarity over existing charge holders except assets charged exchusively for specific

purpose,

Further, sscured by second pari-pessu charge on entire currant asasts of Cakom, both present and future, provided ranking prior to the axisting lenders on

the cash flows of Calcom towards repayiment. Also, ascured by way of pladge of shares of Calcom held by other shareholdar l.e. Bewrl
stake after entry of Dalmlg Cemant),

{b) Re. 53 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 58) Is to be Bacurad by way of first parli-pasau charge on entire () property, piant and equipment (Immovabie and movable

Group (15.82%

aagets), {ll) intanglble assets, and (lil) cash flows towerds fapayments (both present and future) of Calcom, Further, to ba sscured by sscond pari-passu

charge on entire current assaty of Caleom, both present and future.

(IN)  Other financial assets (Unsecured, conslderad good uniess otherwise stated)

Subslidies recaivabla 1 221
Incantives recelvable 18 16
Adivance agalnst share application money 4 4
(Censldered doubtful Rs_ 4 {March 31, 2019: Re. 4))
Advance for warrants (refer note 45i1i)) 0 1]
Deposit with banks having remaining matutity of mare then twekve months * 13 11
Interest recaivable ] 0
Dertvative Instruments at fair value through profit and logs
Foraign currency option contracts — s _ 48
4 300
Less: Impairment aliowance (allowance for doubtfy] advances) 4 4]
— 37 296
* Includea Ra. 12 (March 31, 2019 : Rg. 11}, deposits kept with banks against bank guerantees given / are pledged with various authorities as margin
meney,
Loarns to employass 11 8
Loans - relatad perty 336 401
Securlty deposlts 38 32
Subsidies recefvabla 1 22
Incentive recalvable 18 16
Advancs for warrants 0 0
Depaosit with banks having remalning maturity of more than twelve maonthe 13 11
Interast raceivabie o R
= 4“5 _ 88
=l A R I‘I,I REYLN Carren 1% i o - I wis " L
Investmant In optionally convertible debentures L -
Forelgn currency aption conlracts o 5 ___ 48
S " Y
Mﬂmﬂunmm_gwm
Invesiment in aquity ahares - 0




Daimla Cement {Bharat) Limited

Notes to standaions finan
All amounts stated In Rg.

7.

cle! atatements for the

ars In Ra, Crore exce

year ended March 31, 2020
pt wharever stated othorwiss

Other non-current assets {Unsecurad and considersa geod, unlass otharwise statad)

Capital advances
- Secured, conal
- Unsecured, co
= Doubtful

Idered good *
nsiderad good

Advancas other than capltal advances

Prepayments

Depcsits with govemment deparimeants and other autharities

(Coneldered doubiful Re, 1 (March 31, 2019: Rs, NI}

Less: Impairment allowancs (allowanca for doubtful advances)

* sacured ageins: bank guareniess hald.

Invantorien (st iowsr of cast and net realisabls vaiue)

Raw materials

= On hand

- In transit
Wortk-In-progreas
Finlshed gocds
Stock in trade

Packing materials

- 0n hand

- In transit
Fusia

= On hand

- In transit
Stores, spares atg,

= On hand

= In transit

Invantories are hypothecated agalnst the secured borrowings of the Company as diacloesd In note 18(1).
Amount of Rs, 8 {March 31, 2019; 19) was recognised as an axpanss for Inventories camlad at

Financlal assets
Currant Investmen

Investment measured at amortissd cost

Commercial papers

Investment moesured at

(unguoted)

Corporate bonds (quoted)

Unlts of debt achem

@8 of varlous mutual fund

Altamative Investment fund (unquoted)
Certificate of deposits {quotad)

Aggregate book valug of Quotad Investmants
Aggregate amount of unqueted inveatments

* Refer note 52

felr value through profit and loas

8 (unquoted) *

net realisable valya,

Rs.

AsatMarch 31,  As at March 37,
2020 2019

18 80

143 197

1 1

14 ]

4q 4

220 340

(2 (1)

218 339

180 204

4 10

88 7

178 136

1 82

3 24

- 0

222 213

13 15

124 127

- 0 1
&3 892

— 13
s 138

704 484

852 360

10 22

- 4 -
S T S )
1640 " gaq

778 484

862 620



Daimla Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statemants for the year endad March 91, 2020

{n

(fn

{v)

All amounis stated In Rs. ars In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise Re.
I As atMarch31,  As at March 31,
2020 2019
Trada recelvabies
Trade receivablas 322 458
Recslvabies from ralated parties (refer note 35) 23 24
o 5 483
Break-up for sscurity detalls :
Trade recelvables
Securad, conaldered goed (refar note (a) balow) 175 202
Unsecured, considerad good 408 452
Trade receivablas - credit Impaired 46 28
a2e [ F]
Less: Accrual for rebates / discounts {228) (162)
Leea: Acorual for free supplias (10) (8)
Loss: Impairment allowancs (allowancs for doubtfyl receivables):
Trade recelvables - cradit impaired 48} (28)
(284) {199}
= M5 483
Notas;

(®) Sacured by way of security dapostis coliactsd from customers or bank guarantess or letter of cradit hald agelnet them,
(b) Trada receivebles are nettad off with bllls dfecountsd of Rg, 2 {March 31, 2018; Rs, B).

(¢) No trade or other raceivablss ara dus from directors or ofher officars of the Compary sither gaverally or jointly with any othar Pparson, Trads racaiveblas
efs non-interast bearing and ers generally on iarms of 0 to 80 deya credit period,

(d} Trade raceivables ara hypothacated againet the secured borrowings of the Company as disclosed In note 18(1).
(8) For Information on financial riek managsmant objectives and policles, refer note 39.

Cash and cash aquivaiants
Balancas with banka:
- On current sccounts * B4 87
- On cash eredit accounta 7 [
= On deposit accounts with original maturity of less than thrae monthg * 0 80
Cheques on hang 2 28
Cash on hamd o 0
== 23 212
* Balances with cument accounts include Ra. 0 (March 31, 2019; Rs, 0) lying In currsnt account with & netionalised bark, to be operated jointly by the
authorised signatories of ane of the unit of the Company and QCL Iron and &tesl Limited in respsct of coa block operations aa refared In nats 8(N(e)
abave
** Includes Rs, ¢ (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 0} kapt with banks against bank guarantee given/ are pladged with varlous authorities for margin money,
For tha purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash squivalents comprise the following:
Balancas with banks:
- On current accounts B4 87
= On cash credit accounts 7 8
- On deposit accounts with original maturity of Isss than thras monthe 0 80
Cheques on hand 2 28
Cash on hand 0 0
893 212
Bank balances other than {lil) above
Depasits with remalning meturity of leas than 12 months * 68 180
68 180

Short-tarm deposits are made for varying perlods of batween one day and twelve montha, depending an the cash requiramants of the Company, and earn
Interest at the reepective short-term dapoalt rates ranging from 5.00% p.=. - 7.75% p.a. {March 31, 2019 : 5.75% p.a.-8.00% p.a.).

At March 31, 2020, Company had avalleble R, 455 (March 31, 2019 : Rs, 5BT) of undrawn committed bomowing facllities,
* includes Re. 2 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 28) kept with banks againat bank Quarantsa given/ are pledged with various authoritles for margin money.




Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financial stataments for the year anded March 31, 2020

]

(v

All amounts stated In Rs. arg In Rs. Croru axcept wherever stated otherwise Rs.
S s _—_A-—ntlllr:hﬂ._hlt—mmhﬂ.
S S 2020 = 2019
Loana (Unsecured, unlesgs otherwlisa statad and consldered good)
Loans and advencas o employsag 7 8
Loans to rejated parties (refer note a5)
- Secured * 19 41
- Unsacured 837 428
Loans to othara 3 3
Sacurity deposits — 23 19
S 889 = des
* aiso refer note 6(1l) above
Cther financial assets (Unsecursd, considersd good unless otherwise stated)
Subeldles racelvable 432 320
intereat racalvabla
~Related partlas (refar nots 35) 8 82
- Others {Conaldersd doubiful Ra, 0 (March 31, 2019; Ra. o+ 36 34
Loass rent recelvable 1 1
Clalms recalvable 0 1
(Consldered doubtful Rs. 0 {March 31, 2018: Ra. )]
Other recelvable
- Related party {rafar note 35} 1 2
= Others -] -]
Duerivative instruments at fair value through profit and logs
Foreign cumency forward / optian contracts 80 14
537 489
Lese: Impalment allowancs (allowance for doubtfy) advances) = (0} 10}
537 469

* Includes Interset recaivabla of Re. 32 (March 31, 2019; Ra, 28) an comorate bonds, cerificate of deposits and commerclal pa
investments under note a(l).

Derlvative instruments at falr value through profit or lags reflect the positive changs In falr value of those forelgn currency option contracts that are not
deslgnated Ih hadga relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to redyce the ievel of forelgn currency Hek for payments of funds borrowed,

mm’-ﬂmﬂluuh_mgwm
invastmets- commercia; papars - 138

i
a8
g
g
g

Trads receivebles s 483
Cash and cash equivalents 83 212
Other bank bajances 88 180
Loan to smployses 7 8
Loan ta reiated partiss 868 487
Loan - others ] 3
Securlly deposity 23 19
Subsldies recelvable 432 320
Interest recelvable - relateq parties -] 82
Interest racalvable - otherg 38 34
Lease rent recatvable 1 1
Cialms recelvabla 1] 1
Gther recslvable " 10 T
Total financlal asests carried at amortisad cost — tes2 __1.984
Investment in corporate bends 704 484
Investments n mutual fundg 852 359
Investment In alternative Invastment fung 10 22
Investment in certificats of deposits 74 -
Forsign currency forward / option contracts &0 14

Total financial nesets carried at fair valus through prefit or ioas 1600 859




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limhad

Notas to standsiona financlal statemants for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Ras, are In Ra. Crore except wherever stated otherwles Rs.
. —— o As st March 31, As at March 31,

2020 2010
—_— . —_— e N | | | N

10. Othsr current assats (Unsscurad and considared good, unjess otherwiss siatad)

Advances other than capltal advances
Advances to suppliers

- Sscured, congidarad good (refer note beiow) 25 25
- Unsecurad, conslderad good 118 171
- Doubtful 7 7
Prepaymants 18 8
Deposita and balahces with govemmaent departments and other authorittes
= Unsacured, considered goocd 223 72
- DoubHul 0 1
Qther receivable
- Related party (refer note 35) - 43
- Others — 0 _ 0
389 327
Leea: Impairment allowance (allowance for doubtfyl advances) {7 {4}
— . %m2 320
Note:

11. Asssts held for sals
Asgets ciassifled ae heid for sale




Dalmla Cement (Sharat) Limited
Notes to standalons financla) statomanta for the year endad March 31, 2020

All amounta stated in R, are in Re. Crore except wheraver stated otherwiss Rs,
=S T . AsatMarch 31,  As at March 31,
—_— - —= 2020 2018
12. Share caplital
Autharised :
365,350,000 (Merch 31, 2018: 385,350,000) Equity Shares of Ra. 10/- aach 385 385
30,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 30,000,000) Preferance Shares of Rs. 100/- each 300 300

723,000,000 (March 31, 2010: 723,000,000) Unciasaiisd Sheres of Rs. 10/- sach

Issued, subscribed and fuliy pald up ;
314,045,287 (March 31, 2019; 814,045,267) aquity shares of Ra, 10/- sach — 314

a. Reconcillation of aquity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the and of the year
As at March 31; 20 As at March 31, 2019

No. of sharas Rs. No, of shares Rs.
At the beglnnlng of the yaar 31,40,45,287 314 23,42,61,187 234
Issued during the ysar * . - _ 78784080 = g
At the and of the year 31,40,45,207 314 31,40,45,207 314

* During the previcus yoar, Company had alloted 78,794,080 aqulty ahares of Re.10/- each fully paid Up to Daimla Bharat Limited {formerly known as
Qdisha Cement Limtted), pursuant to Schema of Arangement and Amalgamation approved by NCLT, Chennal Bench,

k. Tenms/ rights sttached to equity shares
The Company has only one clase of equlty shares heving a face valus of Re.10 per share. Each equlty sharehoider Is anttied to one vote per share.

The Company daclares and paya dividends In indian rupaes. In the avent of dividend Propossd by the Board of Directors, it shall be sublect to the approva|
of sharehoiders In the ensuing Annual General Meating, except In case of intarim dividend which (g pald as and when deglared by the Board of Directors,

In the event of l'qu'dation of the Company, the holders of aquity shares will be entltiad to recalvs ramaining assats of the Cornpany, afier distribution of all
preferantial amounts. Tha distribution wil! ba in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢. Equity shares held by hotding company

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 o
No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs,
Dalmia Bharat Limited {including Itz nominess) (formerly known as Odisha 31,40,45,2867 314 31,40,48,267 314
Cement Limitad)
d. Detalls of shareholdera helding more than 5% shares In the Company
“NoanAtMarch31 2020 AsatMarchar2oe —
No. of shares % hoiding No. of shares % holding
Daimla Bharat Limlted (including its neminees) (formerly known as Odisha 31,40,45,287 100.00% 31,40,45,267 100.00%

Cement Limkted)

AS per records of the Company, Including Its register of sharsholdera/members and other declarations recaived from shareholders regarding beneflcial
Interest, tha above sharshokiing reprasents both legai end beneficlal ownerships of shares.

. Aggregate numbar of sheres lssusd for conslderation othsr than cash
As at March 31, As at March M,
2020 2019

No.of shares  No. of ahares

Eqully shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up lesued during the year 2018-19 to 7.97,84,080 7,97,84,080
Daimla Bharat Limlted (formerty known as Odisha Cemant Limlted), pursuant
to Scheme of Arrangement and Amaigamation

f. Shares reservad for Issue under optiona
Information relsted to DAL ESOP Scheme 2018, Including details of optlons Issued, exercised and lapsed during the financlal year and options cutstanding
&t the and of the reporting pariod, Is ast out in nots 31




Daimia Cement (Bharat) Limited

All

Notes to standaiong financial statements for the year andad March 31, 2020
am

ounts stated In Rs. are in Rs, Crore except wherever stated otherwise Rs,
L ————————T\.mm.—.ﬁﬁmrur
- — - @20 2019
13. Other equlity
Sacurities premium
Opening baiance ag per last financial statamants 6,583 443
Add: Premium on gilotment of equity ahares pursuant to Schema of - 8,120
Arrangement and Amalgamation - o =
Clasing balance = 8583 ase3
Debentura redsmption resarve
Opening balance ag per last financial statements 250 285
Add: Craated during the year - 27
Lesa: Reieasad during the year —— 195, g
Closing balance o 88 250
Ghare based Paymant raserve
Cpening balance 88 per last financial statements 18 13
Add: Created during the year 3
Closing balance - 1w o
Retained samings
Opening balance ag per last financlal statemants 2,022 1,866
Add: Amount reisasad from debanturs redemption rezarve 186 62
Profit for the year 87 81
Hemne of other comprehensive income recognisad directiy In retained samings
Re-meesuremant (loas) an defined benefit plan (net of tax) (4} (10}
Add: Transter to ratained 8&rnings on sale of equity inatruments thraugh OcI {0} -
Less: Appropriationg
Transfer to debenturs redsmption ressrve - {27)
Final and Interim dividang 7 (33)
Tax on dividends (16) {7
Total appropriations B3] 87
Closing balancs o 2217 2,022
Othar comprehenaive incoma
Opening baianca as per last financlal stalements - -
Add: Changes during the year {0) -
Lass: Transfor to retained eamings on sale of aquity Instrumants through OC| o a -
Closing balance = - = =
Total other equity == 8854 . ues
Dividand distribution mads and praposed
Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid ;
Finsl dividend for the year ended March 31, 201p and Interim dividend for the v a3
Yoar snded March 31, 2020: Rs. 1.220 each per share (March 31, 2018; Ra,
1.044 par share)
DOT on final and Interim dividend 18 7
= 23 a0
Propased divideng on equity shares: o
Finaf cash dividend for the yaar endad on March 31, 2020: R, NIl par share - 39
{Merch 31, 2018: Rs. 1220 per share)
DDT on proposad dividend = - _ 8
47

Proposed dividend an equlty shares ig subject to approval at the annua! gerera} meeting and is not recognisad ag a liabliity (Including DDT thereon) as at
March 31, 2019,

On February g, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company declarad an Intsrim dividend of Ra, 38 for the financlal year 2016-20, which hasg been paid
during the year 204 8-20.




Dalmia Cament {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statemanta for the year onded March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In R, ara In Rs, Cronp oxcapt whersvar atafed otherwise

" AsatMarch 31,

2020
- 4b20

" As at March 31,
2019

(a) Securities Premium - The ameunt received in excess of face value of the aquity shares is facognised In Securities Pramium. The reserve I utillsed in

accardance witn the spacHfic provision of the Companles Act, 2013,

(b) Debenture redemption ressrve (DRR)- The Company has lssued redeemnable non-corvertible debentures, Accordingly, the Compariles (Share capiial
and Debantures) Rules, 214 {85 amendad), require the Company ta create DRR out of profits of the Company availabls for Payment of dividend. DRR lg
required to be created for an &mount which Is equal to 10% of the valus of debentures Isgusd by the Company.,

(c) Retsined eamings- Retalnad eaminge ars the profits that the Company has eamed fil! dats, leas any franefers to deberiture redemption reasrve,
dividands or ather distibutions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings is a fres regerve avallabie 10 the Company.

{d) S8hare based payment reserve- The Company measures and recognises the expense associated

employees based on estimated fair values obtalned by the holding company. Refar note 31 for further detalls.
(s} Equity instruments through other comprahensive Income- Ths Company has siacted to recognize changes In the fair valye of lnvestments In adjulty
Ins

truments In OCI, Thege changaes are accumulatad within the 'Equity instruments thro

fagerve to retaineg eamings when the reigvant equity securities are derecogniged.

14, Financial ltabilities
()] Borrowings

Securad
A.  Redsemabie non-convertible debentures (Refer sub nats 1 below)
Lees: Shown In currant maturities of lang term bomrowings

B. Tem koans
a. From banks (refer sub note 2 below):
I. Forsign currency loan
Il Indian rupes laan
Lese: Shown in cumant maturities of lang term borrowings

b. From others (Refer sub nots 3 beiow)
Lesa: Shown in currant maturitias of long term borrowings

C. Deferred Payment liabilites (rafer sub note 4 balow)
Leaa: Shown In currant maturities of iang term borrowings

D. Present vaiue of lang leasa abligation (refer sub hota 5 balow)
Leas: Shown In currant Mmaturities of iong termn borrowings
Total (n
Unsecured

E. Foraign currsncy loans from banks {refer sub nots g below)
Less: Shown in current maturitias of long tarm borrowings

F. Loanfrom a related party
Lase: Shown in currant maturitias of long tarm borrowings
Total (I
Total long term borrowings [{S])]
Current maturities of long term borrowings - Sacured

Current maturities of long term borrowings - Unsecured
Total current maturities of long tarm borrowings disclosed In note 18(11))

L™

with ghare-bagad payment awards made to

ugh QCF within aqulty. The Coinpany transfers amounts from this




Daimia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standaione financlal statements for the yser ended March 31, 2020
Alla

mounts stated In Re. are In Rs. Crore axcept whersver stated otherwiss Rs.
= o — ~ AsatMarch 3y, As at Mareh 31,
2020 2019
— — — —_— — 2019

1) Debentures referred te in A sbove to the axtent of:
1)9.81% Series B Ra. Ni| (Marah 31, 2019: Ra, 188) were radeemabls In January 2020.The debantures ars fully repaid during the year,

1) 9.81% Serles C Rs. 182 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 208) are radesmabie In January 2021, The debentures are partielly early radesmed during the year.

In respect of (i) and (i} above, debanturas ane aecured by first pari-pagsu charge on mevable and Immaovabie property, plant and equipment (both present
and future) of cament unitg sltuated at Raigangpur Cemsnt Worke (Odisha), Kapilas Cemant Manufacturing Works {Cutiack and Jejptr) and OGL Bangai
Cemeant Works {Midnapore, Wast Bengal),

1) 10.75% Barles 14, Rs. Nif (March 31, 2019: Rs. 34) were secured by first parl-passu chargs on (a) land, building, asgats, piant & equlpment of
Daimiapuram unk and (b) piot at Gu)arat and redesmable In three yaarly instalments in the ratlo of 33:33:34 commencing from January 2018. The
debentures are fully repald during the year.

vi) 8.70% Rs. 20 (March: 31, 2010: Re, 20) are secured by first parl-peasu charge over spactfied maovable and immovabie property, plant end equipment of
Daimlapuram, Kadappa and Arlyalur units of the Company and radsemable In October 2021,

vil) 9,80% Rs. 399 (March 31, 2019: Rg, 590) ara sacured by way of first barl-passu charge on ali movable and immavable Praparty, plant and equipment
{both prasent and future) of the cement units stuated at Rajgangpur Cament Works (Odishaj, Kaplias Cement Manufacturing Works (Cuttack & Jalpur)
and OCL Bengel Cement Works {Midnepore, West Bangal) and redeemabie In three yearly Instalments commencing from March 30, 2020.

2} Term loans from banks referrad to In B (s) abova to the extent of :

1) Rs. 376 (March 31, 2018: Ra. 384) are securad by first pari-pasey charga including moartgege on Immavable ang Movable fixsd azeeis of cament unlts et
Kadappa and Arlyalur (excluding Vertical Roliar Milis et Kadappa and Arlyalur), at 1 year MCLR Plus 0.30% p.a. (prasant 8.20% p.a). ItIs repayable In
unequal quarterly instalmentg sterting from June 2015 th March 2030,

il Rs, 462 (March 31, 2019: Rs, 464) are 2ecured by first pari-passu cherge on entire Property, plant and equipment (movabla and immovable) of cament
unit located at Belgaum, Kamatakg both present & future (except apacific equipment financed by ECA) at 1 year MCLR plus 0.30% p.a, {presant 8.20%
p-a). It Is repayebia In unequal quartsriy Instaimerts starting from March 2017 till March 2031,

i) Re. 338 (March 31, 2019: Ra, 345) are sacured by way of firat par-pagau charge over Movable and Immovabla property, plant and equipmant pertalning
to cement units at Kadappa and Arlyalur (exciuding Vertical Rojlar Mille at Kadappa and Ariyalur) at 3 monthg MCLR piue 0_20% P.a. (pressnt 8.20% p.a). it
I8 repayable |n unequal quarterly Instaimerta starting from March 2019 it March 2030,

Iv) Rs. 288 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 288) carrying Interest rate at 1 Year MCLR plug 0.40% p.a. (preaent 8.30% p.a) ara sacured by way of firgt parl-passu
charga on Preperty, plant and equipment (movable & Immovabie) of the eement plant iocated st Baigaum, Kamakata both prasent and futyre (excapt
epecific squipment financed by ECA lendars). It Ia fepayable in unaqusl quarterly instalments starting from March 20417 1 Decamber 2031,

v) Ra. 192 (March 31, 2019: Ra. 184) camying Interest rats at 8 months MCLR Plus 0,46% p.a. (presant 8.25% p.a} are ascyurad by way of firet parkpassy
charge on praperty, plant and 8qulpment (movable & {mmoavable) of the cement plant located at Belgaum, Kamakats both Ppresent and future {excapt
spacific equipment financed by ECA lenders). It Is rapayabls In unequal quarterly Instalments starting from March 2017 till Decambar 2031,

vi) Rs, 455 (March 31, 2019: Ry, 423) carrying Interast at 6 months EURIBOR plus 2.50% p.a. secured by wey of first Parl-passu charge on hypothecation
over and movable fixed assets of power plant assaty located gt Daimlapuram, Ariyalur and Baigaum. The loan was avalied In foreign cumancy and Is
repayable after 38 months from date of firat disbursement |.a, May 31, 2017,

vil} Rs. 24 (March 31, 2018: Ra, 31) carrying Interest at § fnanths LIBOR plus 2.05% p.a (prasent 3,899 p.a) are secured by way of exclusive charge on
Roller Preas acyuired through this loan for projects et Belgaum, The loan wae avaliad |n Torelgn currency end s fepayable in 16 half yearly Instalments of
UsD 63z, 110 each starting fram Octobar 2014 y) May 2025,

vill) Re. 113 (March 31, 2018: Ra. 130) canrying intsrest at 1 year MCLR plus 0.30% p.@ (presant 8.85% p.a) are sacured by mortgage and firet chargs on
&ll the maovable and immovabie fixed agsaty (both property, plant angd equipment and Intangible 2asels) of the cement unit located ar Meghalays (both
present and futurs) and sacond cherge on all other assets of the unit. Al the above charges rank par- pagsu Inter-gs amongat various lendara, Repayabis
In 32 structured quarterly instalmants starting from June 30, 2015 to March 31, 2023,

way of marigage and hypothecation over aj) immeveable properties end movable fixed assats of the cement unite situgted at Rajgangpur Cement Works
(Odisha), Kapilas Cement Manufacturing Works (Cuttack), oL Bangal Cement Works (Midnapors, West 8angal) (both presant and future). The loan Is
Tepayable In 48 siructured quarterly Instalmantg commencing from March 2018,




Daimila Coment (Bharat) Limitad
Notes to atandalong financlal statements for the ysar anded March 31, 2020
Alla

Mmounts stated In Rs. are In Ra, Crora except whergvar stated otherwige Rs.
o - AsatMarch 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
———— - - -_— e _

%) Rs. Nil {March 31, 2018: Re. 0) carried interest rate of 10.00% P8 was secured by way of firat and exciuslve charge on the vehicles purchase therefrom,
The loan wag repayabla in 80 manthly Instaiments of Rs. o each commencing from Fabruary 2015,

xi) Re. 08 (March 31, 2010: Rs. 119} canrying Inarest rate at & monthe LIBOR Piug 1.84% p.a, are secured by first~ parl passu charge bywayofmongngs
and hypothacation over al) immovable properties ang movable fixed agsets of the cament units situated at Rajgangpur Cament Works (Odlsha), Kapliag
Cement Manufacturing Worka (Cuttack and dajpur), GCL Bengal Gement Works (Midnapare, Wegt Bengsl} (both present and future). The ioan Is
repayable In 8 half yearly instalment of USD 2,142,857.10 each starting from December 15, 2010 and one Instaiment on USD 2,285,714,80 on Decamber
15, 2022,

xll) Re. 210 (March 21, 201g; Rs. 217) eanying Interast at 1 year MCLR plus 0,259, p-a. (pragent 9.00% P.a.) Bre secured by firat par - passy charge on ali
movable and immovable fixeq assats (both present and future) of tha cerment unlt located at Jharkhand Cement Works, Bokaro. The ioan I8 repayabia In
unequal 54 etructured Quarterly instaiments of commencing from Novsmber 2018,

xli) Ra. 584 (March 31, 2019 Rs. Nil) carrying interest at 1 year MCLR plus 0.75% {present 8.80% p.a.) are secured

and Immovable Property, plant and equipment {both present and future) of cement wnite sltuated at Rajgangpur Cement Worics {Odlsha), Kapliae Cemart
Mantfacturing Worka {Cuttack & Jajpur), OCL Bengal Cement Works (Midnapore, West Bengal) and Viilage Chak Serupan (Valshall, Blhar). The loan Is
rapayable in 52 unequal quartsriy instaimentg cormmencing from Fabruary 2022,

3) Term loans from others referred to in 5 (b) above to the extent of:

1) Term loan In form of government grant of R, 163 (March 31, 2019: R, 163} carrying interest @ 0.10% p.z., are sacurag by way of first par-passu
charge on movabls and immovable properties of cement unit at Dalmiapuram and ts rapaysble In five unequal Instaimesnts sterting from April 2019 #j| Apri!
2023, The eforesaid loan wag existing at the date of transltien to Ind AS L.e, April 1, 2015 and thus carried at historical cost by applying the examption of Ind
AS 101,

4) Defsrred payment Mabliltles referred to in ¢ abeve to the extant of:
I} Ra, 8 {March 31, 201¢: Rg,
Kamataka from

) Rs, 3 (March 31, 201g; Rs. 2) interast fres ican In respact of 14.50% p.a of VAT Pald within Kamatake on the sale of goods produced at Beigaum plant
located at Karnatake from Januery 2017 to June 2017, The loan ls secured by wey of a bank guarantes lsauad by the Company and Is repaynbls In 12
yeerly aqual instaimente stariing from March 17, 2031, Loan recalved post transition to Ind AS are recagnised at falr value with a difference betwsen the
groas proceeds and falr vajue of the loan being recognised as govemment grant (refsr nota 17¢m).

§) Land ease obligation referred to In D above were included |n barrowings until March 31, 2018, but were raclasaified to jeass liablittes on April 1, 2019 n
the procees of adopting the new leasing standard, Such obligation Is repayable during lsass period of 80 to 90 ysars, This s 8scured against leasad asgats
and carry intergst @ 10.00% p.a.

6) Foreign currancy loans referrad to In E above to the extent of:
I} Re. NIt {(March 3, 2018: Rs. 173) carrled Interagt at 3 monthe LIBOR plus 1.90% P-a. and wes repayable at the ond of 16 monthe from dats of
disbursement L.e, February 26, 2018, The loan Ig fully repald during the year.

Il} Rs. NIl (March 31, 2018: Ry, 69) carrled Intereat at 3 monthe LIBOR plus 2,50% P.a. and was repayable et the end of 3 years from date of disbursament
l.e. Fabruary 15, 2018, The ioan is fully repeid during the year.

1) Rs, Nil (March 31, 2019: Rg. 104) carrled Interest at 3 mantha LIBOR plus 2.15% P.a. and was repayabie at the end of 445 days from the date of
disbursement e, July 2, 2018, The loan [g fully repaid during the year.

v} Re. 159 (March 31, 2019: Re. NI} camrying Interest at 3 months LIBOR plus 2.40% P.a. and Ie repayable at the end of 15 months from the data of
disburssment 1.g, February 24, 2029,

v) Rs, 200 (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil) carrylng interast at B monthg EURIBOR plus 2.50% P.8. and is repayabia at the end of 4 years from date of
disbursement .a, March 15, 2020,




Cament {Bharat) Limited

Notes to standaione financial statomants for the ysar ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. ara In Rs. Crore excapt wheraver stated otherwlse Rs
= T T Whemverstated. —

{m

15.

16.

T As atMarch 31,  As at March31,

Other financlal llablitisg

Sacurtty deposlt recalved - 1

InMersst rate awap contract - 2 .
=_ _ 7 1

Mﬂhﬂlﬂhﬂmummml

Borrowings 3,479 3,841

Non-current Isasa liabillies (refer nots 32) 44} -

Sscurtty deposit recelved - 1

3,523 3,842
| if I |

Interest rate swap contract 2 =
2 ===

Provialona

For mines recfemation Ifebillty (refer nats 41) 51 41

For gratuity (refar note 30} 40 49

For eontingencles (refar note 41) — - 3
———s—a L 83

Income tax

{i) The major componants of incoma tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

Profit or loss section:

Current Incoma tax

Curvent Income tax chargs 75 56

Adlustmert of tax relating to eariler years (9) 2

Defarrad tax :

Relation te crigination of temporary differences 117

MAT credit antitlement (75) (66)

Adlustmen of tax releting to earllar years (neat) == 30 ___ B

Income tax expense Faported In the statement of profit and loss ___138 18

Other Comprehenasive Income (OCH section:

Deferrad tax related 1o ltams racagnisad In oC| during the year

Net logs on re-measurement of defined benefit plan 2 ___ B
Income tax cradit changed to OCI 2 8




Daimla Comant (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standaione fihancial statsments for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Rs. ars In Rs. Crore oxcapt wherever stated otherwine Rs.
I — T ___AlltMarehM. As ot March 31,
= 2020 2010
—_— s VL —— — &0 0 2010
() Raconciflation of ta expanse and the sccounting prefit multiplied by indla"s domastic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:;
Accounting profit befors tex 235 88
Applicable tax rete . Meaay 34.944%
Computed tax expanse B2 3
Adjustment of tax reiating 1o earller years 21 10
Dividand Income sxempt from Income tax . {0)
Effect of allowances on expandiiure during tax holiday petiod 4 8
Amortisation of goodwill In books considared as 1ot deductible In provision for 25 18
tax
Recogniltion of deferred tax credlt on account of application of indexation (2) (45)
benaft on "Land’
Reallsation of brought forward long term capital logs not recognised in the (1) (11}
books due to prudenca
Ctherg - 8 - -4
Income tax raporiad In the statement of profit and logs 18 18

On 20th September, 2019, vida the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2018, the Governmant of indla ingertad Saction 116BAA In the Incoma Tax
Act, 1881 which pravides domestic companies with an option fo opt for lower tax rates effective 1st April, 2019 subjact to cerialn conditions, The Company
la currently In the Process of evaluating this opllon and has considered the rats existing prior to the Ordinanca for the Purpase of thasa financlal
slalements,




Delmla Cament (Bharat) Limied .
Notas to standaione financlal statementy for the year andad March 31, 2020

All amounts stated in R, are In Rs. Crore sxcept wherever stated otherwise Rae.
o S AsstMarch 31, As at March3i,
2020 2019
— . —_— . ———— f0 = 2019
(1) Deforred tax
Deferrad tax raiatss to tha following: —______Balancs sheat _______Statemant of profit and loas
As at March As at March Year ended Year endad
31, 2020 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Deferrad tax llabliitles
Property, plant and equipment (including goodwil! and other intanglble assets) 2,30 2,571 (231) (54)
Others — = W
Total defarrad tax llabifities 257 143 (58]
Dsfarred tax asseta
Expend!turé debited |n statement of profit and (ozs but allowsable for tax 32 32 1] (5)
pburpases In subsequent years
Impalrment allowance {for doubtful debtg and advances) 17 11 {5) 0
Cermry forwara of unabaorbad depraciation 840 801 281 96
Others [4)] 30 3| (15)
Total defarved tax aasets T 974 2a7 T
Deferrad tax expenes e 145 17
Defarred tax Nabliitles (net) 1,742 1,597
MAT credit entitemant (afer adjusting income tax provislon for earilar years}* 323 __ 243
Deferrad tax {labiiitieg {net) 1,419 1,354
Reconcllistion of defarred tux Nabifities (nat):
Opening balance as at April 1 1,354 1,344
Tax expanza during the year racogniaed in profit or loas 147 22
Tax axpenge during the ysar racoghised In OC! {2) (5)
MAT credit entilement == 80} 7
Closing balancs as at March 31 — 1819 0 yam

The Company offsets tax asests and liabilities if and only if It hag a legaily enforcaabig right to set off current tax &83eis and current tax liabllitieg and the
deferred tax assels and deferred tax Nabliities ralate to Income taxes levied by the sama tax authority.

The Compeny has unabsorbed dspreclation of Rs. 1,830 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 2,580) that are available for affsetting for indefinits Nfe agalnat future taxable
profits of the Campany. MAT cnedif wiil axplre between March 2028 1o Mareh 2035,




Dalmia Cament {Bharat) Limited
Notes {0 standaione financlal etatements for the year snded March 3, 2020

All amounts stated Iny Rs. are In Rs. Crorg axcept wheravar stated otharwise

17.

U]

U]

{m)

Rs.
B e T Asat March 31, As atMarch3q,
S T — 2020 2019
—_— . —— — —==_ 201
Government grants
Daterrud éxport promotlon capital goods (refer sub hote (a) belew)
At the baginning of the year - 12
Accrual during the year . -
Reisased o the statemaent of profit and laas = (12)
Auh-ondofth-ynr —_— . e
Deferred government grant (refor sub note (b} below}
At the beginning of the year 2 2
Relaased 1o the staternen: of profit and loas o 16y 1]
2 2
— £ . 2
Daferred govarmment grant (Refer sub note (o) below)
Al tha bag'nning of the year 58 47
Accrugl during the yaar 30 16
Relessed to the statemant of profit and loas o _18) {5)
At the end of the year _ 82 @ 58
Totai (H1+11) s 80
Non curmrent 7 &
Current T -]
Notes:

18.
0]

ta) Based on the fulfilment of export obligetiona [, export of goods 1o cuatomers whhin spacifiad perlod, Company during the previous ysar, had

Facognised government grant (to the axtant of custom duty saved on Import of plant and equipment's ang defarred untll the achlevement of apscifisd
conditlons) of Rs. 12 In the statemnent of profit and foes,

(b) The Compeny has recasived grant towards capital Investment under ‘State Investment Promotion Schem:
incurred or for the PuUrpoas of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no
and ioas on a systematic basla over the useful |ifa of the agsets,

@' s compensation for expenses already
future related costs, The grant ia recognisad in statement of profit

Financial labifities

Borrowings
Secured
{a} Cash credit from banks 10 49
i) Warking capital loan from banks 178 .
(e} Foreign currency loan from banks:
- Buyar's cradit 360 278
- Supplier's cradit - 18
- Packing credit forelgn currency 7 3
— B3 g
Unsacured
{d) From a related party {refer note 35) 5 .
{8} Commerclaj papers B44 544
(f} Buyer's crad) o 28 =
S | A T




Daim!a Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the ysar snded Margh 31 » 2020

All amounts steted In Rs. are inRse, Crore except wheraver stated otherwise Rs.
'________—______ - ___Am_um-r._uTmraaT
= o e S R 219

1) Cash credit from banks referred to in (e) above are 9ecured by hypothecation of Inventeries and trade receivables by way of first perl passu charge with
all other banks In the consortium and carry Interest rate n the range of 7.60% P-a. to 8.37% p.a. (March 31, 2019: 8.50% p.a. to 10.35% p.a.).

2) Working capltal loan from bania referred to in {b) mbova to the extent of-
Rs. 176 (March 31, 2019: Rs. NIl) were secursd by way of first part Passu charge over all current asaeta of the Company and carying Interest rate in the
fange of 7.60% p.a. to 8.90% p.a.

3) Foralgn currency ioan from banks referred to in (¢) abova to the extent of:

{#) Re. 388 (March 31, 2010: Rs. 276) are sacured by consortium bankers on the security of hypsthecation of inventories and trade recelvabies in thefr
favour ranking pari- pasu on Inter se basls repayable in (ags than one year and carry Interest raiw at 6 months/ 12 maonths LIBOR pius 0.30% p.a. 10 0.48%
p.a. (presently 1.09% p.a. to 2.55% p.a.) (March 31,2010: 2.82% p.a, to 3.92% pa.)

(b) Re. 7 (Maroh 31, 2019: Rs. 3} are secured by hypothecation of Inventorles and trade receivables by way of first parl pagsu charge with all ather banks in
the conaortium repayable in less than one year. Thase Ppacking credit foreign curmency loans carry the Interest rate of 2.00% p.a. to 2.84% p.a, {March 31,
2018; 2.00% p.a. to 4.74% p.a.), .

5) Commerclal refsrred to In {e) above are payabla In thres monthe and carry intereat rele In the range of 5.65% p.a. to 5.90% p.&. (March 31,
2018; 7.40% p.a. to 7.70% pa.). ’

8) Buyer's credit from & Bank refsrred to in {f) above is repayabile in lass than one year and cary Intereat rate at 12 months LIBOR plus 0.37% p.a.
(prasently 2.35% pa.l).




Dalmia Cement (Bharat} Limited
Notes to standalone flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore axcept wheraver stated otherwise Rs.
As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2020 2019
() Trade paymbles
Total outstanding dues of micro snterprises and small enterprises (refer note 43) 12 6
Total outstanding duss of creditors other than micro entarprises and small entsrprises * o 661 743
= 873 749
" Trade payabies Include dus to related parties Rs. 18 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 63) {refer note 35)
For maturity profile of trade payables and other financlal llabllities, refer note 39,
(i)  Other financlal liabllities
Currant maturitles of iong term borrowings (refer note 14(1)) 1,186 918
Current maturities of finance leass ohligations (refer note 14(i}) 0
Interest accrued but not due on bomowings
- Related parties (refer riote 35) 1 1
- Others 23 38
Security deposits recelved 439 364
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment (including payable to 134 116
reiated! party Rs 4 (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil)) (refer note 3B #
Accrued employee llebliiles (including payable 1o related parties Re. 1 (March 22 21
31, 2018: Re. Nil)) {refer note 35) '
Forelgn cumency option contracts/ Intersst rate Bwap contract 3
Directors' commission payable (refer note 36) 1 1
Purchase conslderation payable {refer sub note below)
- Relatad" party {refer note 35)* - 4]
» Otharg *f w 30 41
Other payable o 5 =
1,839 1.504_

# Including dues of mlcre enterprises and small entarprises of Rs. 1 (March 31, 201%: Rs. Nil} {refer note 43)

Purchase considerstion payable include:

* Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 0) towards conelderation payable by tha Company to Dalmia Bharat Limited (shareholders of erstwhile Adwetha Cement
Holdings Limited (ACHL")) pursuant fo amalgamation of AGHL In the Company effective on November 17, 2017 as per the Scheme of Arangement and

Amalgamation,

** Conalderation of Re. 30 payable upon fulfiment of certain project conditions as part of Sharsholder's Agreement. In the event, projact conditions are not

fulfilied, Bawrl Group (BG),

other sharshalder of Calcom, ls obligated to refund Re. 32 out of tranche 1 payment made by the Campany to BG. As the

project condlticns were nat fulfillad, the llabliity to pay Rs. 30 has been disputed by the Company and claim of Rs. 32 has been mads. The matier is

cumently under arbliration. Refer nate 45¢1} for terms and conditions.
“* Rs. Nil (March 31, 2018: Rs. 11} towards purchase conslderation payable against sarlier years.

Elnznclal Uiabliities caried at gmortised cost,

Borrowlings

Lease llabilittes (refer note 32}

Trade payables

Current maturities of long term borrowings
Current maturiles of finance lease obligations
Interest accrued but not dus on bormowings
Security deposits recelved

Payables for purchase of properly, plant and equipment
Accrued employee liabliities

Directors' commisslon payable

Purchase consideration payable

Other payable

In 1 [il rris: ue U [T}
Foreign currency option contracts/ Interest rate swap contract

1,230

1,188




Daimia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notas to standalone financlal statamants for the year endsd March 31, 2020

All smounts stated In Rs. are In Re, crqn except wherever steted ctharwiss

Rs.
As ot March 31,  As at March 31,
o 2020 2019
18,  Othor current llabliities
Liabllity towards desler Incentiva * 122 77
Advanca from customers 115 105
Other labllittes
- Statuiory duss 147 240
= Others 38 35
R
* Liablitty towards deaier Incentive relates to In-kind discount granted to the customers as part of sales transaction and has bean sstimated with refsrenca
to the ralative standaione selling price of the products for which they could be radesmed.
20, Provisions
For minas reclamaticn liablity (refar note 41) 3 3
For gratulty (refer note 30) 23 1
For leave encashment 19 32
For other employes banaflts 1] 0
Fer contingencles (refer note 41}




21. Revenue from operations

Dalmia Cernent {Bharat} Limited
Notes to standalone financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Re. are In Ra. Crors axcept wherever stated otherwise

" Year ended

Revanue from contracts with customers

- Sale of finlshed gocds 8,125
- Sale of traded goods 125
- Sala of services o 23
Tatal sale of products and services 8,273
Subskdies on sale of finlshed goods 40
Governmant grant -
Other operating revenues — 36
— _.'m.
Notas:
a. Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on nature of products or services:
Sale of products
Finished goods
- Coment and !is related products 7,771
- Refractories 352
- Power 2
8,125
Traded gaods . 125
Total sale of products 8,250
Saie of services
Management service charges 13
Marketing services 10
Business auxlilary services . . -
Total sale of services = 23
Total ravenue from contracts with customers . 8273
Reconclliation of revanue as per contract price and as recognlsed In statemant of profit and loss:
Revenue as per contract price 8,338
Lese: Discounts and Incantives o 11065
Revenue from contracts with customers = 8,273
Sat out below Is the revenue from contracis with customers and reconclitation to statemant of profit and loss:
Total revanue from contracte with customere 8,273
Add: Hems not Included In disaggregated revenue:
Subsidies on sale of finlshed goods 40
Govemnment grant -
Other operating revenues o 36
Revenue as per the statement of profit and loss 8.349
b. Contract balances
The fallowing table provides Informetion about recelvables and contract liabllities from contracts with customers;
An at March 31,
2020
Trade raceivabies 345

Contract liabllitles:

Advanca from customers (refer nate 18) 115

Rs.
" Year onded

__ March31,2020 March 31,2019

8,103
2
29

8,158

103
12
39

8,312

7,708

380

B .14
8,103

28

8,874

(8186}

— 8138

8,158

103
12
38

8312

As at March 31,
2019
483

106



Daimla Cemant {Bharat) Limlted
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the yeer ended March M, 2020

All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise Rs.
Yeoar ended Year anded
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
22. OtherIncome
Interest income 1851 162
Interest Income from other financlal assets al amortised cost 31 42
Unwinding of Interest incame on financlal Instruments 8 9
Dividend Income from cument Investments measured at fair value through - 2
profit
Gaine/ (losses) on financlal Instruments measursd at falr valus through
profit or loss (nef):
= Profit on sale of current Investments {net) 17 166
= On change of falr value of Investments measured at FYTPL 7 (108}
Financlal guarantee amortisation - 2
Liabllites no longer required written back 1 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) 1 1
Miscallanequs recaipts o 0 _ 2
27 218
23. Cost of raw materials consumed
Cpening stock 214 142
Add: Purchasee (refer note 49) * 1,388 1852
1,602 1,704
Less: Closing stock 184 214
Cost of raw materials consumed o 1,438 1,580
24.  Change In Inventories of finishad goods, work-In-progress and stock In trade
Finished goods
= Cloaing stock 178 138
- Opening stock 138 _1od
A e
Work-in-progress
" - Cloaing stock a8 70
- Opening stock - 70 21
(28} {19}
Stock in trade
- Cloaing stock 1 82
- Opening stock 22 -
S | B )
o 21 (147)
Add: Trial run production transfarred to capital work-In-progress (refer note 44) 8
Net (increase)/ ducrease In inventories — 29 1147]
23. Employee henefit axpenses
Salarles, wages and bonus 467 451
Contribution to provident and other funds 27 26
Gratulty expense {refer note 30) 7 14
Employee stock cption scheme (refer note 31) 1 3
Workmen and staff walfare expenses 2 21
524 513
28. Flnance costs
(a) interest cost:
- On term loans and debentures 347 408
- On short term bomowings (net of subsldy of Rs. 0 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 0)) 45 56
- On defined bansfit cbligation (net) 6 2
« On others {Including Interest on Income tax of Rs. 0 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 2) * 22 (M)
- On unwinding of Interest 8 7
= On lease [iabllities 8
438 468
Less: Capltalisation of interest cost 82 (10)
354 458

* net of revarsal of Interest liability of Ra. 2 (March 31, 2019; Rs. 38) provided for In earller years.




Dalmia Camant (Bharat) Limited
Notas to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts statad In Re. are in Rs. Crore except wherever statad otherwise Rs.
Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2020  March 31, 2019
{b) Other finance cost
- Other borrowing cost 3 ]
- Exchange differencas to the extent consldered as an adjustment to 48 - 28
bormowing coat
—— L] 38
2T1. Other sxpensss
Packing expenses o7 335
Consumption of stores and spare perts 28 42
Repairs and maintenance :
- Plant and machinery (refer note 49) 218 192
= Bulldings " 14
- Others 18 21
Rent 17 48
Rates and taxes 12 8
Insurance (net of subslay Rs.0 (March 31, 2018: Rs.0)} 5 5
Management servica charges . 112 144
Depot expenses (refer note 48) 129 119
Professionel charges . 88 75
Advertisement and eafes promotion 1982 217
Travelling and convayance 46 §0
Bad debts/ advances written off {net) 2 3
Impairment allowance (net of reversal Rs. § (March 31, 2018; Rs. 2) 18 1
Corporate scclal responsibliity expenses (refer note 48) 4 B
Directors sitting fees (refer note 35) 0 0
‘ Miscelianeoys expenses {refer nota 49) * o 248 229
143 1508
* Also refer note 42 for remuneration of auditors
28. Eamings Par Share
Net profit after tax for calculation of basic and diluted EPS {Rs.) 97 a1
Waelghted average number of equity shares outstanding 31,40,45,267 23,42,51,187
Equity shares allotted during the yeer pursuant to Scheme of Arrengement and - 7,97,94,080
Amalgamation {refer note 12) )
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the and of the year in calcuiating 31,40,45,267 31,40,45,267
baslc and diluted EPS o
Basic and Diluted EPS (Rupess) 3.09 2.54




Daimila Gement (Bharat) Limitad
Notas to standalona financial statements for the year ended March 3, 2020
All amounts stated In Re. are In Rs. Crore sxcept whersver stated otharwlse

29. Disclosurs of aignificant accounting judgsmants, setimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Cormpany's financlal statements raquires management to maka Judgaments, estimates and aseumptione that affect the reported
amounts of ravenuas, axpsnses, assels and liabililes, and the accompanying disclosures, gnd the disclosurs of contingent Rablktias. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimatas could result In outcomes that rsquirs a matarial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or llablilties affecled In future
petiods,

assumptions about future developments, howevar, may change due to market changes or clrcumetancas arising that are beyond the control of tha
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when thay oceur.

Significant judgements, satimates and assumptions a9 as spacified bulow:-

lifs of the share option, volatility, risk frea rate, expscied dividend ylekd, market prica and exarciss price and making assumptions about them. For aquity-
settled share-based payment transactions, the liability nesds to be disclosed &t the carrying amount et end of each reporting period up fo the date of
setfement. The assumptions and models uged for estimating falr valua for share-beesd payment traneactions are dlsclosed In nota 31. Change in
assumptlons for estimating falir value of share-based payment transactions ia expecied to have insignificant impact on income statement.

Daferrad tax agsets ara recognisad for unused tax losses ta the extant that It is probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the losaes can be
utlised. Significant Mmanagement Judgement Is requlred to deiermins the amount of deferrad tax sassts that can be racagnised, basad upon the llkaly timing
and the level of future taxabls profits together with future tax planning atrategies,

To determine the future texable profits, reference ls meds to the latest avallable profit forecasts. The Company is having unabsorbed dapraclation that may
be used to offsst taxable income,

MAT credlt entitlament is racognised to the extent it s probable that taxable profit will be available againet which the MAT credit can be utilisad. Slignificant
manegsrnent Judgement s required to determine the amount of MAT credit that can be fecognised, based upon the likely timing end ths level of future
taxable profiis together with future tax planning strategles.

The Company Is carrying MAT credlt sntitlemant of Ra. 323 as &t March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019; Ra. 243). The Company can utilise the MAT credit fora
berlod of 6 to 15 yaera,

Further detalls on taxes are discioged In note 16,

Changa In astimates
Defetred tax includes credit of Rs. NIl (March 31, 2019: Rs. 45) on account of changa In assumptions pertaining to 'Land' as par the provislons of ind-AS 12
‘Income Taxes'.

Defined beneflt piana (gratuity and provident fund)

The cost of the definad benefit plans and the prasant value of the defined bensfit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial
valuation [nvolvas making variaus assumptions that may difter from actual developments In tha futurs. These Inciude the determination of the discount rata,
expactad rete of refum on assets, future salary Increnses and mortailty rates. Dus to the complexities involved In the veluation and its long-term nature, a
defined banefit obligation Is highly sanaltive to changes In these aasumptions. All assurmptions are reviewed at sach reporting date.

The perameter most subject to change Is the dlscount tate. in detemining the appropriate discount rats for plans aperated In Indla, the management
considers the Interest rates of govemment bonds In currencies conslgtent with the currencies of the post-smploymant benefit obligetion,

The mortaMy rats fs based on mortalily rates from Indlan Aseures Lives Mortaltty 2012-14. Those mortally tables tend to changs oniy at interval In response
to dermcgraphic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increeses are bassd on expeciad future inflation rates.

Further details about gratulty and provident fund chligations are given in note 30.

Feir value measursment of firanclal Instruments
When the fair values of fingncial eesets and financial llabillies recordad In the balance shest cannot be measured baesd on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair vaiue is meagured using valustion tachniques Including the DGF medal, The Inputs to theae models are taken from obsearvable markets whare
possible, but whers this ls not feasible, & degree of Judgement la required in establishing falr values. Judgemants Include conslderations of Inputs such as

hi

liquidity risk, credk risk and volatility, Changes in agsumplions about these factors could affect the reportsd fair value of financlal instruments. Sea note 37
and 38 for further disclosurss,

Change In eatimates

During the year, Company has reviewed the assumptions used In detarmining the fair value of Provisions, and accordingly raviged the astimate for provision
for mines reclamation resulting in increase In provision by Rs. 7.




Dalmia Cemant (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March M, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. ars In Rs, Crors except wherever stated otharwlse

Proparty, plant and squipmant

The Company uses its tachnical expertisa along with historical and industry tranda for detsmining tha aconomic lifs of an asset/ component of an assat.
The useful lives are reviewed by managarnant periodically and revised, ¥ appropriaie. In case of & revision, the unamortised depreciable amount Is charged
over tha remaining useful Iife of the assets.

Change In estimatas

(a) During the yaar, Company completed tha re-avalustion of the pattern of economic bensfits derived from proparty, plant and squipment ('PPE") of the
manufacturing facliity sltuated at Lumshnong, Maghalaya. Based on such evaluation, management decided to change the method of providing depraciation
on ita PPE sltuated at Lumshnong, Meghaiaya from straight line method to written down value method w.e.f. 1st July, 2019,

(b) During the year, the resldual value of PPE ig reviewsd and ro-assesasad by the Company &o that the revissd resldual value properly reflect the values
which the Company expects to resilss on compietlon of useful Itfe of the respective asget.

Consequent to (a) and (b) gbove, depreciation charge for tha year ended March 31, 2020 s higher by Rs. 123,

{c) During the pravious year, Gompany had reviewed its avallable mining reserves and accordingly revissd the estimats for avallatle mining reserves.
Accordingly, amortisation expense for the previous year was lower by Rs, 2,

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impalrment exlets when the carrying valus of an asset or cagh gensrating unkt exceeds its recoverable amount, which |s the higher of its fair valus [ass
costa of dispasel and Ita valus in uss, The fair value Iess costs of disposal calculation Ie based on avallable data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm's length, for similar assets or chservable market prices |ess incremental coats for dispoaing of the asset. The value In use calculation is basad on a
DCF. The cash flows are derived based on remalning useful Ife of the respective assats. The recoverable amaunt le asnsitive 1o the discount rate used for
the DCF as wall ag the sxpecied future cash-infiows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

There are no impairment losses recagnlsed for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,

8ubsldies recalvabls

The Compary is enttlad to various subsidles from Government in the form of government grant and recognise amount recaivable from govemment as
subsldy recsivable when tha Company is entllad to racelve It fo match them with expenses Incurred for which they are Intanded to compensata. The
Company records subsldy recelvabie by discaunting It to lta present value, The Company uses assumptiona In respect of discount rate and estimated time
for recelpt of funds from government. The Company reviews its asslimptiona periodicelly, Including at each fnancial year end,

Impairmeant of financlal assats
The impsirment provislons for financial aseets disclossd In note G and & ars baged on assumptione about risk of default and axpactad loae ratas, The

Determining the lagse tarm of contracts with renewal and termination options - Gompany ds lesses
The Company delermines the leags tarm as the non-cancellabls tarm of the leass, together with any perlods coversd by an aption to extend the lsasa if It is

The Company has seversl leass contracts that Include extension and termination optiens. The Company applies judgement In evaluating whather It Is
feasonably certain whether or not to exarclas the option to rensw or termingte the lsage. That Is, it considers all relavant factors that creats an economic
incentive for it o axercisa either the renawal or terminetion. After the commencament dats, the Company reassossas the leasea term H thers Is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within fts control and affacts Its ablfity to exerciss or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (s.g.,
construction of signiicant leasehaid Improvements or significant customisation 1o the leased asest),

Refer to nate 38 for Information on potential future rental payments relating to perlods following the exerclss date of extsnsion and termination options that
&re not included in the lease term,




vamma Gement (Bharat) Limited
Notes fo standaione finanolsl statemants for the ysar endsed March 31, 2020
All smounts stated In Rs. ara Inmcmnoxuptwlmnrlhhdmmh-

30. Mlndmhrmlmmmmm

Oratulty

Tha Company has & dafined banefit gratuky pian. The gratuity le governed by the Payment of Gratulty Agt, 1872, Under the Act, amplayes who has completed flve yaars of ssrvica s
enttied to gratully on degarture at 15 days salary (last drewn salary) for anch complated yeour of ssrvice, The Schame is fundad through Gratulty Fund Trust with an insurance company
in the form of a quallfying Insurance pelicy, excapt In case of smployees of cament units stuated at Meghalaya and Bokaro. The Trust 1% responalble for the adminletration of the plan
assais and for the determination of Invastmant sirategy. The Company makes provision of such gralutty esast! liabikty In the books of account on tha banis of actuarial valuation camed
out by an Independent actumry.

The Company contributes provident fund Rabillity to Dalmia Cement Provident Fund Trust, except in case of certaln employses of tha Company. As per the applicabls accounting
slandard, provident funds set up by the amployers, which require imterast shortfall to be met by the employer, neads ¥ be treated as deflned benefk pian. The actuarial valuation of
Frovident Furd was camed out In accordance with the puidance nots lasued by Actuarial Saclety of Indla for messurement of provident fund llablikies and & provielon has baen
recognised In respect of future anticlpated shortfall with regard to Interest rate cbiigation as t the balancs sheet dais.

Statement of profit and loss
ccnm‘nnlnh of defined henefit conts Rs,
Particulars Gratulty PF
) 201920 201819 201920 201818
Current servica cost * 8 14 10 11
Net interast cost™ 4 1 2 1
_Not banafit sxpenas 12 15 12 12
* Includes Ra, 1 {Marcn 31, 2019: Re. 0) towards caphtalisation of gratuty expanes & Rs 2 (March 31,2019; Re 0) towards capltallaation of Provident fund
Expensas.
** includes Rs. 1 (March 31, 2019; Re. 0} towarde capitallaation of inturest sxpansa.
Change in the defined benefit obfigation and fair value of plan asseis as at March 31, 2020: Rs.
Gratulty PF
Dafined Falr valys Defined Falr value
benefit of plan Net henafit of plan Net
obligation assots obligtion assels
A [L]] {A-B) 2] (L] (A-B)
April 1, 2019 (1) 87 38 L] 1688 152 3
Servica cast (2) -] 8 10 10
Net intaraxt expanas (3) . ] 2 4 16 13 2
Sub-totsl Inciuded In profit or loas {2+3)=id) 14 2 12 i 13 12
Re-moasursmenta
Return on plan asests (excluding ameunts ncluded In net intereat sxparnas) (5) []] [+] 0 2 (2}
(Galn)iosa from changes In damogmphic assumptions (@) o .0 [+] [+] -
Exparience (gains) losses {7 3 3 2 1] 2
Changs in financlal assumptions (8) 2 - 3 -
Sub-total (§+8+7+8)m(e) [ 0] [} : 2 ),
Expenss/ (ncome) included In OC) out of (8) mhove ] 0 ] - - -
Contributions by empioyar (10} . [ 10 {10)
Contribution by pisn partieipation/ smployeas {(11) - - 7 27 -
{Settlemants) Traraferin {12y . - a5 35
Acqulsition adjuaiment (13) {0) {0) - C -
Other adjustment (14} - - {2) {2)
Benefits paid (15} {9) 4} {5) (12) (12)
lub-h_t.l {10+1 1+1l+1l+14-|-18H'|'3} )] 1] (-] 45 L] iy
March 21, 2020 (1+4+0+16} 88 36 82 230 228 .
Change In the defined benafit obligation snd falr value of Pian sassts as st March 31, 2019: Rs,
Gratulty PF
Deafined Falr vahsa Defined Falr vahua
benefit of plan Net bansfit of plan Net
obligation assate obligation asasls
(A 8} {A-B) L] (B} (A)

Aprit 1, 2018 (1) E L] 3 21 108 105 1
Bervice coat (2) 14 14 11 - 11
Net inferewt expsense (3} 2 1 1 13 # 4
Sub-fotal Molusded In Pprofit or loss {2+3pmi4) 18 1 15 24 9 18
Re-measursmenta
Retum an pian aceets (excluding amounts Includad In net intursst axpensa) (5) 2 {2) 3 {3)
(Gain} lees fram changes In demographic sssumptions (6) (o) {0) -
Experience igaina)/ loeses (7} 13 13 1 1
_Changs in financial assumption (8) 3 - 3
Sub-total (5+8+T+8)m(9) 18 2 14 1 3 2
Expsnse/ (lncoma) Includsd In OCI out of (9) above 18 2 14 . - .
Confributions by employer {10 ' - 1 {1) 11 {11
Contribution by plan particlpation’ amployses {11) - 23 23 -
(Settoments) Transfor In {12) ] ] 8 [}
Actjulsition adjustmant {13) (] - [(+)] - -
Benefits pald (14) (4) [ )] {5} {5} :
Sub-total (10+11+1 2+13+14)m(15) {4y {3 1), 24 35 111}
Marah 31, 2018 {1+4+9+13) a7 ] L] 185 182 1

The Company sxpects to contribute Rs, 70 (March 31, 2018; Ra, 68) fo gmtully [n 2020-21, The Company expacts to contributs R, 11 (March 31, 2019; Ra. 12) to PF in 2020-21.

The major categories of plan asaats of the falr valus of the total plan asasts of Aratuity and PF are as follows:- s,
Gratulty PF
March 31, March M, March31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Invesiment pattem In plan assets:
insurance Campany proucts 14 15 -
Central Gavemnment securiliss 1 1 28 18
Stats Govemment securites 18 16 85 57
Spaclal Depoalt schama 2 2 4 &
Bonda/Securities of Public Financial Instiutions 2 2 95 84
Caah and cash equivalsnts [4 1 2 1
Mutual funds - Unguctad - 1
Equity shares of lixted companisa - 13 T
Other investmant 1 -
Total H1] 3 228 182




Unimia Gament (Bharet) Limited
Notoa fo standalons Inancial sistsmants for the yaar ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs, are In Re. Crore axcept wharever stated ctherwise

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratulty and PF for the Company are shown below;

Gratuily PF
March 31, March 31, March31, March 3,
2026 2018 2020 2019

% L% % % .

Discourt rata . 8.40% 7.25% 6.40% 7.26%
Future salary Increasen 7.00% 7.00% -

Guarartesd Interest rate - 8.50% 8.85%

IALM IALM IALM IALM

Moriallty Table
(2012-14)  (2006-09)  (2012-14) (2008-08)

A quliﬂlhﬂvt senskivity analysis for slgnificant assumption as at March 81, 2020 and March 31, 2019 Is as shown below:

Gratukty Pian: = Re.
Assumption ‘Riscount rate Future sslary Increases
Sensiiivity Lavel 1% decreass 1% inorease 1% decrease 1% Increase
March 31,  March31, March31, March 3¢, March 31,  March 31, Maroh 1, March 2,
2620 2019 2020 2019 2020 219 2020 2018 .
Impact on defined benefit obRgation 4 3 {4} [£)] ) {3) 4 3
PF: R,
Assumpiion Discount rate Interest rate guarantee
Bonaltivity Laval 1% decrease 1% Increass 1% deoreass 1% ncrease
March31, March31, March3i, March 3, March31,  March31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Impact on defined bansfit obligation § 8§ 2 {2) (5) 8 10 L]

Tha sensitivity snalyses above have been detarmined basad on method that axtrapolates the Impact on defined benefit obilgation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuning at the end of
the raporting pariod.

The faliowing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plana in future yeara:

Ra,
Gratulty
March 31,  March 3,
2020 2019
Ra, Re.

Within the next 12 montha {next annual reporting period) 43 )
Betwaen 2 and 5 yeans 38 34
Between 6 and 10 years 25 23
Beyond 10 years 25 21
Total axpected payments 14 17

Tha weighted averags duration (based on discounted cash fows) of the defined beneftt plan nﬂl'uaﬂun for gratulty st the end of the reporting period In § yoarn (March 31, 2019; 3 yoars),

Risk Exposura .
Through lts defined benaftt plans, the Company is exposed to & number of risks, the most aignificant of which ara datuiled below;-

Anset Volatfiity
The pian linbllities are caloulated using a discount rate ast with rafarencs to bond yields, if plan assats underparfarm this yisid, this will creste a defick, The pian assst invesiments It In Insurance company
products and in govemment sacurities, The nveetmants are expacied to eam @ return I excess of the discount rate ard contribute to the plan deficit,

Asset labiiity matching risk .

Tha Company arsures ihat ths Investment positions are managed within an assat-ablity matching (ALM) framework that has bean devaloped 1o achleva long-term Investments that ara In Ine with the
obligations under the empioyee banefit plans, Within this framawark, the Company’s ALM objecive is to matoh assts io the pension obligations by investing In long-term fxed Intermst securities with maturities
that match the benaflt payments aa thay fall dus and in the appropriats cumancy.

Litpuldity Risk
The Company actively monkors how the duration and the Sxpacted yiald of invesiments are matching the expactsd cash outfiows arising from the employse bansfit obligations. The Company has not changed
the processes usad to manage Ita riske from previous periods,

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans:

Barligubars 204030 201819
Provident Fund/' Pension Fund 15 18
Supsmnnuation Fund - 1 1
National Penslon Schama 3 1




Daimla Coment (Bharat) Limited
Notss to standaione financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs, Crore except wharaver stated otherwise

a psriod of 5 years,

The fair value of the share
and conditions upon which the share optlons were
number of Instruments that will ultimately vest,
Options have bean granted with vasting period of § years on the basls of gradad vesling and are exarclsable for & period of 3 years once
vasted. There are no cash seltlement alternativas. The Company does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.

The expense recognised for employes services recelved during the year Ig shown In the following table -

options la estimated at the grant date using the Black- Scholes option pricing model, taking Into account the farms

granted. However, the above performance condition |s only considered in determining the

* Includea Rs. 2 (March

3
31, 2019: Rs. Nii} aflocated to caplfal work-In-progresa (refar note 44),

March 31, ] March 31,
2020 2019
= Rs. _Rs.
Exuense arising from Equity-seftied share-baged payment transactions * 3 3
Total expsnae arisi from share-basad mient transactions 3

Movements during the year
The following table lllustrates tha number and weighted average exercigs prices (WAEP) of, and movements In, share options during the year
March 31, March 31, March 31, [March 31
2020 2020 2019 2019
Nutnber WAEP Number WAEP
Outetanding at the beginning of the y=ar 7.32.000 176.77 4,50.000 350.27
Cancelled pursuant to Schams of Arrang=ment and Amalgamation ** - - 14.50.000) 350.27,
Granted pursuant to DBL ESOP Scheme 2018 - - 9.00.000 175.14
Exercisad during the yenr (2.20,000)" 169.08]  {168,000;" 188,01
Explred/ Lapsed during the year - - - -
Outatand_ing at the end of the vear 5,12,000 180.07, 7.32,000 176.77
Exercisable at tha end of the year - - !

AThe weighted average share price at the dats of

*Tha weighted average share price at the date

exercise of these options Is Rs. 1.214.40/-

of exercise of these optlons Is Rs. 511.10/-

The welghted avarage remalning contractual fife for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 Is 4,32 yeara (March 31,2010:4.88

The range of exerclse
Rs. 191.771),

prices for options outstand

Ing at the end of the year Is Rs. 108.62/-

The following table list the inputs to the modsls used for the plan for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:-

Grant 1 Grant 2 Grant 3
Dividend ylsld (%] 142 0.4 0.21
Volatiiity (%) 42.76 48.58 46.92
Risk—irea Interast rata %) 8.16 7.71 7.54
Average expected Iife of options {years) 4.50 4.53 4.51
Weighted averaus sharg iirlcs iRs. per share) 105.85 502.05 713.8

May 18, January 29, February 03,
Dete of grant 2012 2015 2016

Black Scholes | Black Scholes Bleck Scholas

Model used Model Mol Model

ons ('New Ogptioneg') to the eliglble empioyees of Company in lieu of

Scheme 2011 (whether vested or unvested).

to Rs. 191.77/- (March 31, 2019: Rs. 108.62/- 1o



Daimla Cement (Sharat) LimMed
Notas to stendalcne financia
All amoimts stxted in R, o

32. Lessey
(2) Company s n lesase

{0}

Tha

I statements for the yesr snded March 31, 2020

re in Rs. Crore axcept wherever statad otherwise

Company has lesse contracts for varous land, bulld)
Lenses of land have leage terma beiwesn 10 and 89
tarme batwoen 1 and 9 years

and sublasaing the laased qusets.

The Comgany sleo has carlain
recogriticn exemplions for th

l=ases of godowns and ather
66 leases,

Inga {godowna, offics and res!
years, godowns heve laass
, and vehicies and cther equipment have leass tarm:

tannlb.Muunumavelrl.
3 between 1 and 8 years, G

8ot out below ars the carrying amounts of right of uss aseaty recognised and the mevemenis during the year:

kdantial pramises), vahicles and other squipment used in its operations.
whiie office and resldantial premises have lsgoe
nersily, the Company Is reatricted from: datigning

equipment with lease tarma of 12 months of leas. The Company applies the ‘short-larm legss’

Rs.
Land Bulkdinga Vehickks |  Other e Total
40 67 19 2 118 |
3 2 ] - 35
19 [C]} i1 ]
As st March 312020 43 74 27 2 148
Accumulated depreclation i
1 30 [] 1 40
il i7] ) - [T
1 28 [] 1 38
4 0 1 108
"Opaning Belanca Includes Rs, 33 reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 118.
8at cut balow are the carrying amounts of lsase llabliities and the movements during the year:
Rs.
201
86|
32
i8]
8|
|44'§
The maturity analyala of leaga llebliities are discicaed In note 3g.
The affective intsrest rats for lease labiftiez I 10%, with maturiy betwaan 2021-2108,
The foliowing are the amounts recognised in profit or iosa;
i under ind AB 195] 01020
nee of rigfii of use aessts 40,
Interast axgcree on isase Nzbilties
Eazionige relati~y) to shori-tarm leasss iir:luded in ather exsensesi 17|
nd [n i or loas [T
Amounts recognised in statsmant of cash flows:
Year ended March 31, 2020 Ra,
Total cash outfiow for lenses (44,
Company ss & lessor
The Company had purchasad Wagona undar “own your wagon scheme” of Raillvays and lagsad it to Ralkways on rant, tha Wagons were recognisad as asssts and
carmied In the books at writien down value, the Company Is eeming renta) Incoma fram the arrangemant, hance It Guefties to be recognised am finance lagse
amengement whare Rellweys ia the lagses. Future minimum leege recslvabiog (MLR} and lia present value under finance leasas are ae follows -

—

As at March 31, 2020

Future Gross MLR | Prasant vaius

As ot March 31, 2015
Future Grogs MLR

Presant valua

—

1 1

1 1

1 1




Daimia Cemant (Bharat) Limited
Notes to atandalons financlel statements for the year anded March 31, 2020
Al amounts statad In Ra. are In Re, Crore excapt wherever atated otherwise

33. Capital and other commitments

Rs.

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

A. Estimated amount of contracta remafning to ba executed on caplial account and not provided for 459 597

inet of advances)

B. Other commitmants

(1 Comorate guarantes given by the Company 1o & bank for lssuence of bank guarentes on behalf of 12 12

subsidlary compiny namely Rajpuiina Proportlas Private Limited towards {rant of mining lease

i} Estimeted future Investrnents In Altsrative Investment Fund In terma of agraement with the fund - 4

(i) Contractual and other peyments, which does not have any baaring on the resuits for the current and 3 a

|Previous year

C. The Resolutlon Plan (RP} filad by the Company for ravival of Murll Industrles Limited (MIL) has been approved by tha Natlonal Company Lew Tribunal
{NCLT), Mumbai Bench pursuant to the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptoy Cade, 2016 (1BCY. The nhecessary actions have been Intatad to maks
the RP affactiva,

RP provides for Payment of Rs. 402 to credltors of MIL by the Company., MIL has an Integreted coment manufacturing plant with an Inatalled capacity of 3
MnT In Chandrapur District, Maharashira along with a captive thermal power plant of 50 MW. In additlon, MIL also hag paper and aolvent extraction units In
Maharashtra. The acquisttion of MIL would help the Company to further consolidate its footprint In Western reglan.




Daimla Coement (Bharat) Limited

Notes {o standalone financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Re, are In Re. Crore except wherever slated otherwlse
34. Contingent liabllities / Litigations In respact of ;

A) Not provided for -

Rs.
Partlculara March 31, March 31,
2020 2018

i} Cieima acainst the Comparny not acknowledged as debts _277 287

1) Demands raisad/ show cause notices issuad by following authorities In dispute (including cases which have

been remanded back for re-assessmant!: +
~ Exciss and Service tax 48| 53
- Customa 18] 38|
- Salea tax/ Entty tex/ Purchasa tax/ Market fos 129] 108
= income tax metters 50,

)

s

i} income tax department had carrled out 8asrch operation In the office premises of erstwhile Adhunik Cement Limited (now a unit of the Company) on
March 11, 2016 (conciuded on May 03, 2018), consequent lo which assessment orders under Seation 163(A)143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 have
besn passsd on December 30, 2018 from AY 2011-12 1o 2017-18 and there is no additional income tax llabllity, However, unabsorbed depreciation has

been raduced on account of addition of Rs, 42 made In AY 2011-12 and against the same, the Company has fliad an appeal bsfore appellate authorty,

Further, Compary has not adjustad the above amount while computing Incomé tax/defarred tax liabliity since the Company has been lsgally oplned that

above addition may not be tenable.

Basad on favourable declsiong I similar cages, lagal opinion taken by the Company, discussions with the eollcitors ete,, the Company balleves that thers |

a falr chance of favourahla dacislona In raspact of the Items lsted above and hance no provision Is considered Necessary against the sama,

B)Tha Compahy holds 76% ghares In one of ks subsidlary company Calcom Cement Indla Limited (CCIL), where Bawri Group (B@), other shareholder,
holda 21% (approx.) voting righte, During the year 2015-16, the Company, in view of the fact that BG had defaulted in completion of certaln obligations
under the Sharsholders Agreemant/ Arflcles of Association (referred as Inter-se Agresement or "I8A"), sent notice 1o BG saeking remedies under the terms of
IBA. In response thereto, BG denled the rasponsibility of completion of the said obligations and further filsd a petition before the Company Lew Board,

B0 has challenged the order of NCLT Guwahetl before the Hon'ble High Court, Guwahat| and the same is pending adjudication. The disputes batween the
parties are pending for adjudication before the Arbltral Tribunal. Pending finar disposel of the dlaputes, no adjustments are considarad necessary In the

financlal statemants.

C) The Office of the Superintendent of Taxes, Jowsl, Meghalaya has Issued notica dated 12™ March 2020 seeking [ustification of gaps found for use of coal
procured through legal sources in production of clinker / power as mentioned in the Repott of the indspendsnt Commtise conatituted by tha Nsflonal Gresn

Tribunal. In the notice, it has been mentloned that the J8p seems to ba dus to lllegally procured coal and hence the Company Is llabla io pay enhancad

royalty and electricity duty on such coal. The Company has been asked o provide its reply on the lssue and the same Is under Process as the Company Is
evaluating the affect of the report. No provision fs conaiderag nhiecasaary in the financial statements based on the legal oplnlon taken by the Company as the

demand has not yet crystallised,

preliminary stage. These proceadings wera challengad by one of the accused before High Court and the same Is pending till date. In tha opirtlon of the

Company, no adversa Impagt is axpacted to devolve on the management an conclusion of such proceedings,

E} Thers are numerous Interpretative Jssues refating io the Supreme Court (SC) Judgement dated February 28, 2018 on Provident Fund (PF) on the
ihclusion of sllowances for the purposs of PF contribution as wa) as [t applicablity of effactive data. The Company will avaluate Itg position and act, ag

clerity emerges.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limlted )
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Re. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwlise

A)

vi.

Related party transactions
List of related parties along with nature and volume of transactions is given below:

Related parties where control exists:
Holding company
Dalmia Bharat Limited {formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited)

Feilow subsldlaties
Dalmia Power Limited

Subsldlariss of the Company
Calcom Cement Indla Limited, D.I. Properties Limited, Dalmia Minerals & Properties Limited, Geetee Estates Limited, Golden Hills
Resort Private Limited, Hemshila Properties Limited, Ishita Properties Limited, JayeVilay Agro Farms Private Limited, Rajputana

Step down subsidlaries of the Company
Cosmos Cement Limited, OCL China Limited, RCL Cements Limited, SCL Cements Limited, Sutnga Mines Private Limited, Vinay
Cement Limited and Dalmia OCL Limitad (w.a.f. October 7, 2019)

Assoclate of the Company
Dalmia Renewabies Energy Limited (upto May 31, 2018)

Joint ventures
Khappa Coal Company Private Limited and Radhikapur (West) Coal Mining Private Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Management Personnel/ Directors of the Company

Shri Gautam Daimia * - Non-Exscutlve Director {w.e.f. October 30, 2018), Shrl Puneet Yadu Dalmia — Managing Director (upto Octobe
30, 2018), Shri Mahendrg Singhi ** - Managing Director & CEO {w.e.f. October 30, 2018), Mr. G.N. Bajpal — Independent Director, Mr,
N. Gopalaswamy - independent Dirsctor, Mrs. Sudha Plliaj - Indepandent Director, Mr. Thyagarajan Venkatesan- Independent Directot
Mr. Paul Helnz Hugentobler - Independent Director, Mr. Jayesh Doshl - Chief Financial Officer and Mrs. Manisha Bansal - Company
Secretary -

* Managing Director (upto October 30, 2018)
** Whole Time Director {upto October 30, 2018)

Key Management Personnel of HoldIng company
Mr. Niddodi Subrao Rajan({w.e f. August 30, 201 9)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Shrl Jal Hari Dalmia * **

Shri Yadu Hari Dalmia */ **

Mrs. Avantika Dalmia

* Non-Executive Director (upto October 30, 2018)
* Also, KMP of Holding company

Enterprises controlled by Key Management Personnel of the Company
Daimia Refractorles Limited, Dalmia Bharat Sugar and industrles Limited, Kanika Investment Limited and Dalmia Bharat Foundation

Enterprises contralted/fointly controlled by Key Management Personnel of the Holding Company
Khaltan & Co. AOR and Khaitan & Co. LLP
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Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limited

Notes to standalone financlai statements for the year sndad Merch 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs, are In Re. Crore except whersver stated otherwise

D) Transections with key management personnel

Managerial remuneration of key management personnal of the Company:-

Rs.
Mareh 34, March 31,

Particulars 2020 2019 _]
Short-term employee benefits 22 40
Termination benefits 1 3
Post employment benefits - 35
Share-based nayments 3 3
Total managerial remuneration pald to key 28 81
management personnel *

parsonnel.

* Remuneration to tha key managerial parsonnel does net include provision made for gratulty and leave henefils ag they are determined on

an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,

E) Directors’ Interest In the DBL ESOP 2018

Explry Exsrcise March 31, March 31,
Grant Date Date Price 2020 2019 ]
Number Number
outstanding * outatanding *
January 29, 2015 January 29_ 2021 108.62 72.000 1,32,000
February 03, 2018 February 03. 2022 191.77 4.40,000 €.00,000
512,000 7.32.000

* Refer note 31

F) Cormporate guarantes
Corporata guaranteg given by the Company to a b
Propertiss Private Limitsd towarda grant of mining [

The transactions with related partles have bash made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm's langth fransactions.

ank for lesuance of bank guarantse on behalf of subsidiery company namely Rajputana
ease of Re. 12 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 12).




Daimila Cement (Bharsat) Limitad
Naotea to standalons financie! statemants for the year anded March 31, 2020
Al amounts stated in Rs, are In Rs. Crora excapt wherever stated ctherwise

38. Derlvativea

Forelgn currency risk

The Company has snterad Inta foralgn exchenge forward contracts and forelgn sxchangs option contracts with the Intantlon to reduce the forelgn exchangs risk on
repayment of buyer's credit and foreign currency loan, these contracts ars not designated In hedge relationships and are measurad &l fair value through profit or
loss,




Daimia Coment {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalona financial statsments for the year anded Merch 34, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs, are In Re. Crors except wharever stated otherwisa

37. Falr valuss
Below la & compariaon by claas of the canying emaounts end falr value of the Company’s finenclal Instruments, other than those with camying amounts that sre reasonable

approximetions of falr values -
— Ao
[Particulars Carrying valie Fair valus
h 31 March 34, 2048 | Mareh 3. 2630 | March 312018
Flnancinl assate
Financla! sssets carrivd st amoriasg cost | =
Loana and advances to emak: B 1 14 1 14
Loans 1o related (e [T 668 %
Loans to othera 3| K]
Swiutily depks 50 51 51
Subsidies recaivable 433[ B4 433 541
Incantiva recalvabla 1 16 18| 1
Deposit with banks having remalning maturity of more than twalve months 13 11‘ 13 11
Lrefiar nots fifili|
investment In commercial pae 8 {rafer nots &) " 1:|E|I . 13
Fliuirscin] sased carried at falr value throoyh peo or loes |
Foraian cerrency forward / o contracts (refer note 6:1U; and B i1 55 62 [
Investment In apiizng convertihla debantures | refar rote Bl _Afl B 44]
Investment In cor= = bonde {refer nots il 704) 404| 704 454)
Investment in mutumi funds rofer note i)} 3568
investment In alfarmative Investment fund | refar note i 1 1 10] -
Investment In certl eate of de 1=is |refer note (]} 74 o 7 :
Financla! nansis carrlod at falr value theo wnh G
Investmant In eyt ahares irefar note Fii}} R Dr
Flnancisi llsbilliies |
F t
i current muiuity of 58 5 850 5 5 8i
ulte recelvad 439 385 4,
2 i 3

The managsment ssseaged that caeh end cagh equivalents, other bank balances, rade receivables, other current financlel assats (evicapt derivative financial Instruments),
frade payablas and other Current financial Kabilities (sxcap! derivative financial liablities) approximate thalr carrying emounts largely dus to the short-tetm maturities of thass
Instruments,

Tha fair valus of the financial asests and Iisbittea la ncluded gt the amount at which the Inetrument sould be exchanged In & current tranaaction between wilfing parties, other
than In e forcad or Yquidation asia, The following methods and easumptions were used to estimate the fair velues :

(8) Long-tarm fixed-rate and veriable-rate racaivablas/ deposlt sre avaluated by the Company besad on paramaters such ag Intereai rates, risk factors, individual cradit
worthiness of the customer and the risk charactertstics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, sllownncas ars taken into mceovint for the expscted cradn loassas of
las,

Description of significant unabservabls Inputs to valustiion (Lavel 3):
() Discount rats ara datermined using pravaliing bark lending rate.
(b} The falr vaives of financlel essats and Nablitlea are datarmineq Laing the discounted cagh flow analysls.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalons financial statements for the yasr snded March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In R, are In Re. Grora except Wherever stated ctherwiss

38. Falr vaius hlsrarchy

Tha folowing table provides tha fair veiue messurement hlerarchy of the Company's aseets and llabilties:
Quantitativa discloaurss falr vaiue messuremant hietarchy for nassts ag at March 31, 2020:

Ra,
Fair valua measuremant using
Quotad pricas in Signifioant u:o':':'_":.';'h
Total active markats obasrvable Inputs inpute
{Laval 1) (Lavel 2) 4
— | favuy |
1
= = &
e 43
B i
L 13| :
=08n8 {o athers . L
Liabllities for which far values sra discioasd [nate 371
Bu[rnd.-nE {inoludirey curent matuiity of inry terrn borrmirae; 5.885]
Sacur) lts ragelved . 439
Assats mansurad ot fair value
Friig currency forward / o ian contracts -
41 = i 4
74, 74| E
T04) T04
852 g _ -
10, 4 1 —|
|
2l 4 | j
—
Falr vajus nessursinent
Quotad prices In Sigrincant [ e
Total uctiva markats obesrvable Inputs Inpitts
(Laval 1) {Level 2) P
: — llavelyy
Ausurs for which falr values are disciosed [naiy a7
jLotina and advances to emut: fiers 14 ] E K]
Loans to refatad fries -] - 8
Secunry demonre 51 - o 51,
Subsldies recalvabie 641 - R 54
Incentive receivabls 1 . - 1
Detenlt with banka havins SMairry maiuriy of mors than tweive months 1 - 1
Investment in commarcial hapers 13 E £’
Loars to ethers : 3
Linblilties for which foir vajues arg diaclosad (note 37
Borroaimgs (inciud 0 cLmant miatiiiy of tarm borrowdis 565 58 4
Security dericsits recaived 385 - 68
Assets messured ot falr valug [
Fmgﬂnwrrmgx Sien { forwerd contracts 82 = -
{nvestment in corpaims bonds 484 484 - -
Inveatment In mitual funda 358 .
Inveatment in alternative Investment fund 22 -
Liabikilos measurad at falr vajup I = ]
Interest rate swap contract [ 3 E 3 A

There have heen no tranafars between Lave) 1 #nd Level 2 during the yoar ended March 31, 2019,




Daimla Cemant {Bherat) Limited
Notaes to standalons financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amourtts stated in Ry, are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwiss

39. Flnanclai rink management objectives and policias

The Board of Diractors raviews and agrees policies for managing each of theaa rigks, which &re summariged below :

Market risk

MurkatdlklathaHlkmnlﬂnf:hvdusofﬁnwumhﬂmunfaﬂmnehllmtrumammnﬂm:mabmuuufchmlnmmm. erkotmkmmprhnthmlypunf

tigk: Intareat rate risk, curreticy risk and gther price rlek, Financla! Instrumants affectsg by market risk include Imvesiments and deposlts, trade recelvables, trade payables,
lcana and borrowings and derivative firanclel inatrumeants,

The Compary menages market rlak thvough a treasury depariment, whigh evalumtes and exercioas Indapendant control over the entlre process of market rigk managesmaent,
The treasury department racommerds risk manegemant oblectiveg and poilcies, which fre approved by Senior Mshagement and the Audit Committes, The activites of thig

and
depariment Includg management of cash resources, implemerting hedging strategias for forsign swrency Sxpoaures, borowlng atrategles and ensuring compilance with
market risk limita and policie,

Interest rate risk

intsrast rats rigk |5 the mkzhanhefulrvaluaorﬂmucuhﬂmnofaﬂmnchrlnmwﬂlmmbmanfd'aruuln murlwﬂmerulram.lnnrusrinnpﬂmhtha
Peny’s position with ragerds o Imberest ncome and lntarest expanass o manags the intereat rata fisk, treseury parforms a comprahenaive corporate Intarast rate riak
managamumhybdanclmtrnpmpnﬂlonofwmaandﬁoﬂng mﬂnarnialkltrwuanhlnhbhlpnrthln.

Interast rate sengit

Tha foliowing table demonsirates the sanaitivity io a reasansbly poasibig change in interest rates on the unhedgad partion of loana and bormowinga. With all other variablea
heid corstant. the Company's profit before tax le affected through the impact on floating rate bomowings, es fokiowa:

[_ March 3, 2020

INR

) INR
UED
UsD
EURO

= —_EURO

March 31, 2040
INR




Deimis Cament {Bharat) Limited
Nodes to standalone financial statemants for tha yoar onded March 21, 2029
Al amounts statad fn Ra. are In R, Crors sxucapt wherever atated otharwias

Forsign currency risk

Foreign curency rigk Ia the risk that the fakr value or futurg cash flows of an ®poaure wil flustuate because of changas in forelgn axchange rates. The Company's exposure
to the risk of changen In foreign exchange retes ralgtes primarlly to tha Cempany's Operaling and financing aciivities and the asme are hedged in Une with established risk
management paliclas of the Company inciuding use of foralgn exchange forward cantracts, optiona and Irtarest fate swape.

When g derivative I entarad to for the pwpoanfbalm-l’ﬂdga.thecmpanymmm thahnnaufﬂmadmuvesbmmhmetum\aofmghedgadmum.nr
tranulsﬁnnl.lhudthrlﬂvu

mrﬂ\npoﬂndofexpoaumfmm the polntlhacuhﬂmofh tr.nsactbrnaralbrecauted upmmepulntofsememd
the resutting racelvable ©F payabla that Iz denominated in the farelgn clrmency.

Foralgn ctrrency senaltivity
The following tahles demonairats the aenslivity to a Teasorably possible change In USD end EURD exchange
Mmohetary sazets

Particulars Changas In forelgn
currency rate

UsD




Dalmia Camasit {Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalone finangial atataments for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amourts stated In Rs, -nlnhcm~mmmr-ﬁum-mﬁn

Finenolal Instruments and onah deposity

Cradit sk from batances with Banks and finsnots! institutions [s managed by the Campany's teagury dapartmant hmﬂ.mmhc“m Rpolfoy. Mmdmmmm“mm only with
Soproved suthoriftes, Credt Mhu'lummu-mmlwd by the management on regular casls, AN hhnmmbmmdﬂnuulalhm.hmmubrm Mrhkdmbmdmmru
ﬁaMhhcnmpqny.

Tha Company's mraxin ‘o &rad! riak for the dhnmmmnumaf,mwmat.muhmmmnmmurnmdmdnmum

Liquldity risk

Th:cmpmymmmndmmmwmm Ihdahtlnuunmmnﬂhbahw.

The table balow Summerissa ‘he muturity profiie of the Company's Tancigl NabiNtins based on oontr il (ecluding tra oost an b iga),
Ra.
Laga than Total Camying Vahua
T Year
2 & L)
[T B

[T
4l My
1,815 1 L) [3 ==

74 1 7 i




Daitmla Cemant (Bharat) Limited

Notes to standaiona

All amounts statad |

financial statements
n Rs. are In Rs, Crors

for the yaar endad March 31, 2020

axcapt wherevar

atated otherwise

40, Capitel manzgesment

thie cverall objective, the Company's capltal ma
bormowings that define capltal atructurs requiramants,

Warch 37, 2090 T Maren 312045
3475 3641
230 880
11 91
212
1 964
a2 28
130
168 [
13,35% 11,581
ratio 51.06%] 32,68%

No changes wers mada in the objectives, pollcles or procasaes for managing capital during the
41. Movement of Provislon during the yaar;

years ended March 31, 2020 and Mareh 31, 2019,

=]

PATY records a provislon for mine reclamation cost untl the closure of mi|

na.Mlmmohmaﬂnnm-mpmvmdatﬂhpm-mwunfwmhhmh
ation using estimatad cash flows,

obly

Contingencles

provigl

during the current yoar ag wall as previous yesr,

42. Remuneration paid to statutory auditors (Incluced In Misceilansous sxpenass):
Particulara

As an audilor
|| Statutery audit foe
1! Tex audit faga

i) Limited raview Tee

In other
f) Certfication fas {Including certification of fing

merger acheme during provlous yzar)
1 Texation matiers

rclal etatemants arlsing oLz of




Dalmia Coment (Bharat) Limited
Notas to standaions financlal statements for the year anded iarch 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Ra, ars in Re. Grora except whersver atated otharwies

43. Detalls of dues to Micro and 8mall Emterpriase as par MSMED Act, 2006

|P_|rllculln

March 34,

The princlpal amount and the Interest dua theraon remaining unpaid io Any suppller as at the end of each
Accounti year

Theammmluﬁnhrulpqld by the bisyer in terma of Saction 16 of the MSMEDAmmglnmmmma
amaunts of the payrmant mads to tne suppifer bayond the appsintad day during each aceounting year

Tha ameunt of Interest dus and
but bayond the appointed day
MSMED Act 2098

payuhhrurhparlcdnfdabyhmaklmpameﬂt(whlehhnvobunpald
during the year) but without adding the Interest spacified under tha

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting ysar; ang

The amount of further Interest remalning due and payable even In the succeading vears, unil Blch date
when tha Interest duss gg above are actualy pakd o the smaj entarpriaa for the purpose of disslowance
88 & deductible expandiure under Saction 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

During tha year, Compeny hae Incureq dirscty attributabls expandiiute raleted to construction of proparty,
Caplta work in Progress, Detalie of the expanses caplteliaed and carriad forward aa capltal work (n prograss

—

piant and equipment and
are glven below:

March 31,

Fﬂmn |

Btought forward o last yous

March 31,
2113

Exponditure Incurred during the yaar

Cont of raw va jeriels consumed

Ployne benatit expengas

a; Salaries Wik and bonys
b| Contribution to providert and other funds
| Gretuity «:ponge

Empiayue stock lian schamea
®) Workman and ataff s ezpangea
Intarest cout **
rlnllﬂonlndumort o TRpange

: ot fune]
Fralyht o res on Intermal mar fransfer
Othar eipannen
8] Consumg on of stores and apare firts
b; Renaks and maintenance - Plent and machin:
¢) Rent

Rates and laxes
8] Insurance
f|_Professlonal charmgs
i1 Traveling and co nce
hi Miacellensous mizenses
Total expand tiire during the ye:
Lnl:TﬁlJrun:muuctbnhnabmdfmm Invenhsry
Leas : Reverue from oo rations during tria) um
Less : Capitalsed g the ‘eear

1 arwerd iy port of Capitnl Workdnimgress
Earried forward su pa it of Intanglble Asset under develspment

() in 201112 the Company had Inltieky sequired 14.59% staka In Caleom
by sntering into definttive 8gresments with Caleom, 8aru) Burvisa Private Limled {'S8PLY {a company
During the yaar 2012-13, reviaed agreementa were anterad o Increanse the Company's nominal stake
nomina! stake of 88,709 {and voting stake of 76.00%) of the Equlty 8hare Capita of
stake of 18.24%) of the Equity Share Capltal of Caloom In escrow, with beneficlal
dilons. The Company Invested g tota amount of Rs. 280 (March 3,
Calcom and Optionally Redeamablg Convartible Dabanturse {'OCDa") of BSPL.

Cemert Indla Limited {Caicom),

up
Calcom ~ Inciuding

2019: Rs. 260) and Rs,

, the Company has granted loane to Caleom (inoluding ite aubaldlaries) to
{March 31, 2018: Re. 784 {exchuding Interest accrued and trade receivables of Rg, 94)) to
Provide requires supports o ity subsidiariea,
Calcom haa.mcomnlduhd basle, earnad prufit of Ra.
Rs. 235 an ot Merch 31, 2020 { March 31, 2018; Ra. 26§
has been comldared for carrylng coat of Investments
fequirad aupport to Calcom and its aubsidiarisa,

() During the sarfier yeers, the Company had &dvarced Re. 0 Crore (Rupssa One
dated Jarvary 18, 2012 betwean the Company and B, the shara warrants, in cas
aqelty ahares thet post convarsion, the shars holding of the Company In Caleom
of project conatiog, The dishutes betwsen the partiss amm panding edjudication

B0 during the year ended

). Kasping
and loana/

B of
before the

Cwhershp baing with the Company,
31, 2019; Ra.

lac) to Calcom ag applization money towa
of praject conditiona by
bacomes 9g9,. Company vide Istter daeg
Arbitra) Tribuna (aiss refer note

ulimately extandabie to 50% of the
ouwned by Bawr! Group (B3},
{0 66.28% (and voting stake

keeping shereg réprassntl
, 1o be reloased gt

&8 (March

the axtant of Ra,
fund Its operational

ﬂ-nr-fmmunhdfurhumm

- {March 31, 201g: 8.13%

Equity Shars Capital of Calcom
harsholder of Calcom) and BG,
Up 1o 76.63%; Litimately extandable to
ng nominal stake of 14.23% {end voting
a future date upon satiafaction of

§8) respactively in the equity sheres of

837 (excluding trade racaivables of Rs. 6) =a at
ard capltal expand'ture, Calcom continues to

rda share warrante. In terma of the agreamant
BG, would ba convarted
May 15, 2015 gave notice
4B,

Into such number of
to BG for non-fufiment



Daimla Cement {Bharat} Umited

Notes to standalons financla! statements for the yaar ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Ra, are in Ra. Crors oxcept wherever stated otherwlse

48. Detalis of joans gnd advances in nature of loang to aLbaidiaries,

88 required by Ragulation 34(3) of SEB) {Listing Obligaticns and Diaciosure Requiremanta) Regulations, 2015:.

, firma/ companies In whigh directors are Inereated and Investments by the loanes in the sharas of Company

Re

Particuiars Outstanding Maximum amount Medmum amount
&mount &s at and of outstanding during outstanding during
finencial year the yasr the Year
Loans 1o subsidiaries —
Calcorn Cament Indle Limfiad 837
Rajpuana Progierlies Private Limitad g‘
Iahtta P Limited 3

Alsthom Indusiries Limiteg

Chandrasskara Agro Farma Private Limited

Shrl Rangen Profers: Limiing

Hemshlla Progeries Limitad

&1l Madhusudana Mines & Propieriaes Umibed

Srl Shanmuyha Mines & Minaraia Limitad

Sri Bubramanys Mines & Minsrals Limitad

Sl Swarninatha Minss & Mineraig Limitad

b lealen

D.1. Progeries Umited

aru Kamakshlamman Agro Farme Private Limitead

Goldan Hills Resort Privats LimMed

| ro Farme Private Limited

Dakm'a Mihersig & I'rozertig Limited

e palal, |0,

Fil | B | s

Qastes Estetsa Limitad

Sri Trivikrama Minga & Proporhes Limited

Daimla DSP Uimfted

Daimia Bharst Refractories Limited (farmearly known s S Dhandauthapan

Minas and Minarais Limitsd)

IH!.’.QH 10 8o down subsisiaries
Ving, Cament Limitad

RCL Cernerta Limited

Coamos Cament Limitad
e LAmend Limiled

[1li) Loan %o fellow wubsldaries
LDsimra Power Limitad

Note: Inveatment iy subaldlarias, rssociate ard loint ventures
The loanees havenoimudeanylnvsaﬂnm I the shares of

are diaclased In nots B{IMA),

the Company.







Dalmlia Comant (Bharat) Limited
Notes ta standalons financial statements for the year andsd March 31, 2020
All amounts statad 1n Rs. are In Rs. Crore axcept wherever stated otharwise

48. Disclosure In respect of Corporate Soclal Responsibillty expenditure:

Partlcuiars

Ra._
March 31, 2019

ower generation efc. to cost of rew materials consumed, powar ard fusl and other expansss

March 31, 2020
Gross amount 1sjulred to bs snient during the y=ar 3 4
Amount spent dusing the year:
- Construction‘a=rjuialticn of ary aseet .
- On purpoiss other than abova 4 8
40. The Company has dabited direct expenses ralating to imestone mining, captive p
aa under:
|Particulars March 31, March 34,
2020 Fiiy U}
|Gast of raw materials consumad 330/
Power and fuel expense 82
Other IEaR!
Reqanirg and mafntenancs - Plani and machinery 104| 74
Miscalansous expinses El 5
I 830/ “w
These axpenses If reciassified on 'neture of axpanse’ basls will be a3 follows :
Rs.
Parllculars Warch 31,

Empiksigsts: benefit ukianses

Powsr and fusl BXENES

]
~

Other sxpensas:

Consumt:tion of stores and arare pors

ey

ira and malrtenance - Plant and machinory

Irs nd maintenance - Bulldigs

Hegohire and melntenance - Othera

~|-=| 8

Rent

Retas & taxea jincluding ruyeity on fimestone

Profeaslonal chergas

o8l

Misoefansous =xparese

Criher opsrating revenus:

| 8

=

|LHher operating rever
1Smd11 aajes / htome

[




Dalmla Cament (Bharat) Limited
Notes to standalona financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts steted In Rs. ars In Rs. Crores except wherever stated otherwise

80. Segment Information

Operating sagment

The Company haa identifled below segmants as per Ind AS 108, ‘Oparating Segments":

(a) Cement divislon which produces various grades of cement and lis related products;
(b} Others inciude Refractary division, Invesiment division and Management Services.

No other operating segments have been eggregeted to form the above reportabls operating segments,

Reventia and expensas direclly atiributable 1o ssgments are reported under each repartable segment. Expenass which are not diractly identifiabie to sach
reporting segment have been aliocated on the begis of assaclaled revanue of the segment and manpowsr efforts. All other expenses which are not
atiributable or aliocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenssa.

Assets and liabllities that are directly atirlbutable or ailocable to ssgments are disclosed under each reporiable segmant, All other eeseta and llabilties are
disclosed as unallocable.

{Rs.}
[Particulars Cement Others Total
2018-20 201819 2019-20 201819 2019-20 2018419
Revanue
External revenus (Including other oparating 7,849 7,880 500 432 8,349 8,312
revenua)
Inter asgiment revanus 8 8 7 9 15 17
7,857 7.888 807 441 8,364 8,320
Less: Ellmination 18 8 (7)) 181 1181 {14
Total ravenus 7.84% 7080 500 432 8.349 8,312
[Results
Segment results 440 284 () 26 437 309
Lass: Finance costs {405) (454)
Add: Other Unallocable Income Net off Unallocabla 203
|Expenditure
235 %
14,802 14,681 445 754 165,247 15,436
3.358 2742
18,503 18177
1,825 1,763 8BS 85 1,910 1,838
7.525 7.174
9.438 9,012 |
1,480 903 10 18 1,480 821
Daypraciation and amortisation 1,321 1218 11 8 1332 1.226 |

Informetion about geographical arsas
Sale outside India |s balow the raporiable threshold limit, thus geographical segment Information Is not glven.

Information about major customers

There are no reventies from transactions with a single external customer amounting o 10 per cent or more of en entity's ravenues during the cumant and
previous year.




Daimia Cament (Bharat) Limited
Notas to standalons financial stataments for the yasr ended March 31, 2020
All amounta statad In Ra. are In Rs. Crore except wharever stated otherwiss

51. Dlsclosurs pursuant o Ind AS 27 - Saparate Financlal Statamante
Investmenta in the following subsidiary companies, assosiate and oint ventures ars accountsd st coat.

Nams of the Company Country of % of ownership hald as at
Incorpargian —
areh 31, Z02HF Mzrch 31, 2013
2 Subsidiaries =
Calcom Csment India Limifted India 76.00% 76.00%
D.l. Progiiriies Limite India 100.00% 100.00%
Alsthom Indusiries Limited indla 90.96% 89.05% |
Chanciasekare. hgro Farms Private Limited india 00.00% 100.00%
ishtta iles Limited Inca ,00% 100.00%,
ipulzna Properties Private Limitad India 00.00% 100,004
Calmla Minarals & Progcries Limited Indle 100.00% 100.00%
|Sti Ranaam: Properties Limitad India 100.00% 100.00%
St Shanmuyha Mines & Minerale Limhad Indla 10000 00.00%
8rl Trivikrama Mines & Pro=irtias Umited India 100.00% 00.00%
Goetee Estates Limkad Indla 100.00% 100.0C%
“indla 100.00% 100.00%
indla 100 06, 100.00%
Indla 100.00% 100.00%
Indla 100.00% 100504
indla 100.50°% 100.00%
_India 100.00%, 100 /il
Limited (formerly kriown as Sr Dhandauthapani Indla 100.00% 100.00%
Incily 100.00% 100.00%
Indla 100.00% 100.00%
Indla 100.00% 100.00%
Mauritius 100,60 100.00%
b Jolnt Visnlires
E Coal Compiny Private Limtied Indla 398,734, 98.73%,
Redhikasr {\eui) Coal Minig Private Limiied Indfa 14.70% 14.70%




Dalmis Coment (Bharat} Limhed
Notes to stancalons financial statements for tha year andad March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever statad otharwiss

52, During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, certain mutuel fund units ('saeurmél') appearing &8 current investments velued at Rs. 374 as on March 31, 2020 were

lisgahy and fraudulently transferred by ane of the Deposhory Participant ("DP"), from demat accounts of the Company. Based on the complaint fllad by the Compary and sfter
conducting praliminary snguiry, the Econcmic Offerices Wing, Dalhl (EOW) directsd the Clearing Agent of DP (IS5L) not to desl with the Securiles and also freszad all such
Sscurities till further ordera,

BEB| after complait by the Company also directed the DP, Ite promolers/diractars, ita related assoclates and cther noticaes mentioned In the order, not to disposa of,
aflanate or encumber any assats, except with the prior permisalon of SEBI / National Stock Exchanga (NSE).

No final crder has yet been pessad by SEBI In the complalnt ledged by the Company againet DP and others In respact of fraudulent transfer of Sacurities from lis demat
BEGOUtY,

prejudica to the rights and contartions of the parties and subject to the final outcome and diractions which wouid be paasad In the mettar. The matter la stl panding before
Suprems Court. The mattsr |s surmently under inveatigation by Company through an indspendent firm of Chartsrad Accountants.

Further, EOW hag flled charge sheet againat the aakd DP, Its promotar, ISEL and Its business head for committing various offances under |ndian Peral Code. The charge
eheet |8 accusing them of forging the Dellvery Inatruction Slins to effect fraudulent transfar of Securities fram the demat scoounts of the Cormpany. After fiing of charge aheat,
the Company has fied an application bafore the durisdictional Court for relase of mutus! fund units and the 8ams {8 cumently pending.

Consequent to this, the Company, during the year, hen valued these Seoiritiea at the falr market valua exdating on tha reparting date and an emount of Rs. 30 has been

cradited 1 the statsment of profit and losa under the head Other Income. The Company s fully confident of recovering ta Securities based on the Jegel opinion cbiained In the
mattsr. Hance, no provision Is consldered necessary In these financlal siaternents.

The detalls of revenus/capial expenditure incurred by R&D cantrs during the year are as foliows:-

fa
Particuiars. March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 |
Revenus sepsndiure 8d to statement of profit and joss
Saiary and other benefits

- Rew materiaia & etores
= Others

Capital extiendliure shown undar fixed asaats schedie

g Iiipo)—a]pe

MNARAR

The Company [ setting tip new cement plants In Odisha aleng with new grinding capacty In eastern part of Indla with iotal capaclty of 8 MnTPA. The clinker manufacturing
piant of 3 MnTPA haa besn commissioned and I under frial run, The cament grinding plante are under construction and part of the capachy ls lkely to be complsted by 31at
Dacembar, 2020.

Tha expanditure Incurred on commiesloning of the project, Inciuding the expanditure Incurmed on trial runs (net of trial run racaipta), which ia under progress of Rs. 1,437 as &t
March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2018; Re. 328} s Inciuded under capltal work-in-progreas,

The Board of Directors of the Company, its subsidiary company namely Dalmie Bharat Rafractorles Limtted (DBRL) {formerty known as Srl Dhandavthapan| Mines and
Minerals Limitad) and step-dewn subsidlary compary namely Daimia OGL Lirnited {Daimia OCL) (formerly known es Aacanelon Cammerclal Privats Limited) in thalr
respectiva meatings heid on November 14, 2018, approved the following:

{) Schame of Arrangement amangst the Company and DBRL and thelr respective sharsholders and craditors I terma of Sactiona 230 10 232 and aN ther applicabls
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {Schama 1) for transfer and vesting of rafractory undertaking of the Company to DBRL, by way of slump sxchange on a going concam
basls. The proposad appolnted date of the sdld Schame Ia 18t Aprll, 2018,

() Schems of Amalgamation and Amangement amongst Dalmla Refractoriea Limited (DRL) and Its subsidlary GSB Refraciorias Indla Privata Limited (GSB India}, DBRL anc
Dalknla OCL and thair raspactive sharehoiders and crediiors In terms of Sactions 230 to 232 and all other applicable provistons of the Companies Act, 2013 (Schamsa 2). It
imolves (I) amalgamation of DRL with DERL; (¥) amalgamation of GSB indla with DBRL: and (B} transfer and vesting of refractory undertaking of DBRL fo Daimia OCL by
wey of alump exchange on a gaing concern basle. The propossd appointed dats of the gald Schame Iy Apnil 1, 2020,

The Board of Directore of DRL also kn their meeting held on 14th Novembar, 2019 approved Scheme 2 as statad above, Pending necessery regulatory approvals and other
compliancas, no effect of the above mentioned schames haa been conakiered In these finenclal statements,

Tha Company le having long term clinker sale egrasment with M/e Jalprakash Assoclates Limitad {JAL) for mupply of clinker upto July 2041. Tlil March 2018, there ware
Irreguiar and short supply of clinker end from April 1, 2018, there was no supply of elinker. Thereafter, JAL unliataralty end illegaty lerminated the cinker sals sgreermnent. Tha
Company has challenged the tarminstion In arbliration procaadings and has sought spacific performanca of the chinker gale agresment. The Company haa alternatively sought
damages alongwith lnterest. The Company has alao sought lquidated demages and refund of the advance smount paid fo JAL.

ThecompanyhnmtaeenumrorthaufnruﬂuchinnlmmInﬂwhmkldaumunhsutMarchM.M.

{1} The Company has performed annusl Impairmeni teating for carrying value of goodwill of Ra, BB7 (March 31. 2048: Re. 1,388) acquired pursuant to Schema of Arrangement
and Ameigamaticn, The reccverabla amourt has beer: conaldered based on tha falr value leas coat of disposal or velus In uae, whichave: Is higher as reguired to be
asseased under ind-AS 38. Tha managemant of the Compary did not ldertify ey Impairment for goodwill amount (refer note 4A[a)).

{Il} During the pravioua year, Company had scgulred Kalyanpur Cemants Limited {KCL) purauant to the provialona of [BC and Invasted Ra, 150 aa frash equity In KCL, KCL
becams the wholly cwned aubsidlary of the Company w.s.f. July 10, 2016 and retamed ag Dalmia DSP Limitad. The Company has advancsd loan of Ra, 53 and carvied
Investment in ursecured Optionally Corweitibla Daberturaa of Ra, 31 &6 at year and.

Ksaping In viaw of Its neture of long term sirategic Investment and financial projections of safd subaldiary, no Impairment hes been considered for carrying coet of Investmants
and ioans given to Dalmia DSP Limited (refer nota B()).




Dalm!a Cemant (Sharat) Limitad
Notas to standalone financisl statements for the year anded March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Re. are In Rs. Crora except wherever statad otherwiss

(illy The Company reviews trade recsivablss, advances and subsidiss receivablea on reguier Intervals and takes nacessary steps (Inciuding legal

action wherever raquired) for

the recovery thess balances. Tha Company is confident to realles the valua stated good In the financlal statements. The Company follows the expected credit loss model In

respect of any such altuationa a3 stated In note 1B{l(u), It bellaves that such amount le sufficlant to covar for any possibis loss,

56. The Compeny's operations wers Impactad In the month of March 2020, due to tamporary shutdown of all plante following nationwide lookdown by the Government of Indla In

view of COVID-18, a pandemic caused by the novel Coronavirus,

The Company haa made detallad assessmant of its liquidity poaition for the next year and the recoverabllity and camying value of Its asssts comprising property, plant shd
equipment, inlangible asseta, fight of usa asdets, Inveatmants, inventaries and trads racelvabies. Basad on ourent Indicators of future economic conditions, the Company
expacts to recover the carrying amaunt of these aeasis. The Company wil continus to claaaly monitor any material changes arlsing of future aconomic candittons and impact

on ita business.

Operations have resumed In m phased manner taking inte aceount directives from tha Government during Aprll 2020,

. The Company, aa par the Securites and Exchangs Board of Ingia (SEBI) Clrcutar SEBVHO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 26th Navember, 2018, Is a Lange Carporate and

hancs le raquired o disclose the following information about its bormowings:

1j Initiai disclosurs fllsd for the Financlal Year 2019-20

Particulars Detally

Name of the Compary DB-hTr:L Ltnlhdcmm!
UB5181TN1898PLCO

CIN 36083

Qutstanding bo of Cameary as on 318t March_2018,Rs, Crore |Rs. 4760 Crore * |
AA+ Stable from

Highest credk ating during the previous financial yesr 2018-18 along with the indie Rating and

neme of tha credlt rating agency Ressarch P Ltd,

Nama of the Stock Exchange n which the fine shall be pald, In cass of shortfal] In NEMIQ . Bl:"‘
the required borrowing under the framewark ng

Limited
“ Lang term barrowinga with original maturtty of mora than ane year,

[liinitial disclosure filed for the Financlal Year 2020-21

Particulers Dutalle |

Name of the Company 1Brur!:|'- lella?m

CIN UBE191TN1808PLCO
35063

Outatandirin bor i of Compatiy 88 an 31st March. 7011 Re, Croral Rs. 46685 Crore *
AAs{ Stabla from

Highest credit rating during the previous finenclal yeer 2016-20 abng with thel| - Ret
name of the credit reting sgancy ng  an

Ressarch P Lid.

Name of the Stock Exchariga In which the fine shall be pald, In cags of shortfall 1t m of e
ilhe requirad borrowing undar the framework Umited

* Long term homowings with ariginal maturity of more than ona year,

i) Annual diaclosure

Name of the Company Daimla Cement {(Bharat) Limited
CIN UB5191TN18686PLCO3ES83
Rsport filad for FY 2018-20

Dutalla of the borrowings {all ligurss In Rs, Crore):

Partlculars == Datalle

Incremantal bormowing done In FY 2018-2020 Rs. 562 Crore*

Mandatory bomewing to ba done through Iasuance of dabt sacurities (b) = (25%

of a Ra. 238 Crora

Actual b ing= dons through debt securities In FY 2019-2020 Nil

Shortfall In the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, If any (d) m (b) - {e) |Rs. 238 Crore

Incremental borowing|
wes In the form o
Reasons for short fall, If any, In mendetory borrowinga through dabt sscurities Project Lasn  forf
longer fenura  an

other low cost funding

*Excluding Impact uTF_nrelun exchange fluctuation from date of avaliment of loan to March 31, 2020.




Daimia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Nates io standalons financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounta stated in Ra. are In Rs. Crors except wheraver atated otherwiss

80. Previous year figures have been recastad/restated wherever neceesery to conform to the currsnt yoar's presentation.
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SS KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited (“the
Company” or “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries {the Company and its
subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its joint venture company,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries including step
down subsidiaries and information provided by the management for its joint venture company referred to in the
other matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, its consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group and its joint venture company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

a. We draw attention to Note 4(a){(ii) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2020 which describes that the Group had recognised goodwill arisen on giving impact of such
Schemes from the appointed dates which is being amortised over a period of 4 to 10 years in accordance
with the provisions of respective Schemes from the respective appointed dates, approved by the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench. As a result of above amortisation of goodwill, profit before
tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 is lower by Rs. 402 crore. Our Opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

b. We draw attention to Note 48 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, as noticed by the

Company during the year ended March 31, 2019, certain mutual fund units (“Securities”) appearing as
current investments, valued at Rs. 374 crore as on March 31, 2020 were illegally and fraudulently transferred
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by one of the Depository Participants (“DPs”), from demat accounts of the Company. Based on the complaint
filed by the Company and after conducting preliminary enquiry, the Economic Offences Wing, Delhi (EOW)
directed the Clearing Agent of DP {i.e. ISSL) not to deal with the Securities and froze such Securities till further
orders. Likewise, SEBI also directed the DP, its promoters/directors, its related associates and other noticees
mentioned in the order, not to dispose of, alienate or encumber any assets, except with the prior permission
of SEBI / National Stock Exchange (NSE). Further, EOW has filed charge sheet against the said DP, its
promoter, ISSL and its business head accusing them of forging the Delivery Instruction Slips to effect
fraudulent transfer of Securities. After filing of charge sheet, the Company has filed an application before the
Jurisdictional Court for release of mutual fund units and the same is currently pending. Consequent to this,
the Company, during the current year, has valued these Securities at the fair market value existing as at
March 31, 2020 and an amount of Rs. 30 crore has been credited in the statement of profit and loss under
the head ‘Other income’. The matter is sub-judice and as detailed in note referred above to the consolidated
financial statement, is pending for further order/directives from Hon’ble Supreme Court and order of SEBI is
also awaited. The matter is also currently under investigation by Company through an independent firm of
Chartered Accountants. The Company is fully confident of recovering its Securities based on the legal opinion
obtained in the matter to the effect that there is a strong chance of getting its Securities returned, hence no
provision is required to be made in the books of accounts. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

c. We draw attention to Note 34(C) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements regarding the
dispute between the minority shareholder and one of the subsidiary company “Calcom Cement India
Limited”. The matter, which is more fully described in the said note, was referred for arbitration by the
National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), Guwahati Bench (earlier Company Law Board, Kolkata) via Order
dated January 05, 2017. The issues between the parties are pending adjudication before the Arbitral Tribunal.
Pending final resolution of the matter, no adjustments are considered necessary in these consolidated
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters: -

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and in the judgment of the component
auditors, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters
identified by us and the component auditors {as stated in their respective audit reports) refer Annexure 1 attached
herewith to this report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including
Annexures to Director’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of the Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint venture company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its joint venture company are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and its joint venture company are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its joint venture company to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and its joint venture company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture company are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its joint venture company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies including step
down subsidiaries and its joint venture company which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluatethe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertavinty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint venture company to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and it’s joint venture
company to cease to continue as a going concern.’

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its joint venture company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the standalone/
consolidated financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards..

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

i We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of twenty-six (26) subsidiaries/step down
subsidiaries whose financial statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 2,322 crore as at
March 31, 2020; as well as the total revenue of Rs. 1,430 crore for the year ended March 31, 2020, total profit
after tax of Rs. 112 crore, total comprehensive income of Rs. 124 crore and net cash flow amounting to Rs. 0
crore for the year ended March 31, 2020, as considered in these consolidated financial statements, These
financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose audit
reports for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143
of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

il The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of profit including other comprehensive
income of Rs. O crore for the year ended March 31, 2020 in respect of a joint venture company, whose
financial statements have been considered on the basis of the management certified accounts in these
consolidated financial statement. Our report on the consolidated financial statements, to the extent it
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concerns this joint venture company, for the year ended March 31, 2020 is based solely on the management
certified financial statements. This joint venture company is not considered material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on the Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement below, is not modified in respect of above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and
the reports of the other auditors and information provided in relation to management certified financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considerations of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries and management
certified financial statements for its joint venture company as referred to in the Other Matters paragraph above we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies/step down subsidiaries and
management certified financial statements of its joint venture company incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group and its joint venture company is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s
reports of the Group and its joint venture Company incorporated in India.

Our reporting on the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is not
applicable in respect of one subsidiary and one step down subsidiary incorporated outside India.

g) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid / provided
by the Holding Company to their directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The consolidated financial statement discloses the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2020 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint venture company -Refer Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements;
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ii. The Group and its joint venture company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts; and

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies including step down subsidiaries and a joint
venture company incorporated in India.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm ‘s Registration No. 000756N

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No. 87294

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 12, 2020
UDIN : 20087294AAAAEA7369
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Annexure — 1 of the Auditors’ Report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 dated June

12, 2020

S. Component f Key_audit matters - How our audit addressed the _key audit

No. matters

1. | Holding a Impairment Assessment of Carrying Value of Goodwill (as described in note 4(a) of the consolidated
Company financial statements)

(a) The Holding Company is carrying goodwill Rs. | ¢ We have evaluated that the assumptions
966 crore (net of amortization) arisen on giving used by the management are in line with
impact of Scheme of Arrangement and the present trend and information
Amalgamations relating to slump exchange of available.
undertaking of Odisha Cement Limited on going | e We obtained and read the valuation report
concern basis; used by the management for determining

{(b) The Holding Company is also carrying Goodwill the fair value of the of the cash generating
arisen on Amalgamation of Adhunik Cement unit.

Limited and Adhunik MSP Cement (Assam) | ® We have assessed the valuation
Limited. As per the Scheme of Arrangement, methodology used by the valuer and its
excess of cost of investment made over the net professional competence and expertise.
assets taken in transferor companies | ® Made inquiries with management to
aggregating to Rs. 21 crore has been recorded as understand drivers of the cash flow
goodwill. forecasts like discount rates, capitalization

For performing the impairment testing, the Holding rates, expected growth rates and terminal

Company has used discounted cash flows method to growth rates usecll._ . . .

e Performed a sensitivity analysis on certain

determine the recoverable amount, these assumptions like discount rates and

discounted cash flow calculations use five-year capitalization rates.

projection those are based on annual forecasts and | ¢ \We have assessed the disclosures included

present trends. in Note 4(a)(i) to the consolidated financial

As required under Ind AS 36, goodwill arising on such statements.

Schemes of Arrangement and Amalgamation is

required to be tested for impairment on annual

basis.

The estimated recoverable amount of the goodwill

is calculated as the higher of the value -in-use or fair

value less costs to dispose, which involve significant

estimates, assumptions and judgements on future

growth rates, discount rates etc.

Considering the significance of the matter and

various judgement involved, we have identified this

as a Key Audit Matter.

2, The Company | Amount of Recoverable Deferred Tax Asset with respect to Tax Losses as carry forward and
and Its | unabsorbed depreciation and accumulation of MAT Credit Entitlement (refer note 16 of the
subsidiary consolidated financial statement)
5ompany The Company and its subsidiary company CCIL are | ¢ We and statutory auditors of CCIL have
Calcom _ | carrying recoverable deferred tax assets aggregating carried out testing of the design and
Cement India to Rs. 721 crore with respect to tax losses on car.ry implementation as well as operating
Limited"(“CCIL") forward and unabsorbed depreciation and MAT effectiveness of key controls refated to the

credit entitlement aggregating to Rs. 360 crore as at calculation and recognition of such MAT
March 31, 2020. MAT credit entitlement has a credit.
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] Component Key audit matters How our audit addressed the ka audit
No. matters
limited period for utilization i.e. 15 years fromthe |  We and statutory auditors of CCIL have
date such amount is available. assessed the methodology applied by the
Both the above-mentioned companies has ability to Company . with  current  accounting
recognize these deferred tax assets with respect to standards and applicable taxation laws
tax losses as carry forward and unabsorbed along with the future business forecast of
depreciation and MAT credit assets as assessed by taxable profits.
the management at the end of each reporting | ® We and statutory auditors of CCIL have
period, taking into account forecasts of future assessed the likelihood of the companies
taxable profits and the law and jurisdiction of the to utilize the available MAT credit
present Income Tax Laws and Regulation in force. entitiement in the future with underlying
The assumptions of growth in sales and EBITDA on projections and assumptions relating to
these projections are determined by the future  estimated  profits,  future
management. capitalization and depreciation allowance
thereon and future estimates of taxable
profits.
Given the degree of judgment involved in making a2 | o e and statutory auditors of CCIL have
forecast of the profitability of the companies and the evaluated the ageing of the carry forward
materiality of the amounts involved, we have MAT credit entitlement of the Company.
determined this to be a key audit matter. e We and statutory auditors of CCIL have
evaluated the disclosures included in Note
16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Trade Receivables and Advances given and Subsidies / Incentives Receivables from Government (as
described in note 47 to the consolidated Financial Statements)
The Holding a. Trade receivables and advances given T e We have evaluated the vario;s
Company correspondence made with the

The Company has trade receivables and advances
given. DCBL has taken necessary steps including
legal action, whenever applicable, for the recovery
of these balances.

There are balances with slow recovery rate for which
expected credit loss assessment has been done
which involve judgement ‘as to the recoverability
and discounting of those receivables.

Based on the past experience of realization and
steps taken by the DCBL, it is confident of the
recovery of these balances in due course.
Considering the amount involved of such
receivables, this matter has been considered
significant for audit.

parties and other follow up actions
taken by the Company, including but
not limited to legal process,
meetings, notices etc.

¢  We haveread and evaluated the legal
advice/ opinions obtained by the
Company in respect of recoverability
of amounts, whenever applicable.

e We have evaluated the underlying
documents against which these
amounts are paid/ accrued as per
eligibility criteria.

e Made inquiries with management to
understand assumptions of the
expected loss assessment like time
period and recoverability
assessment.

e We have obtained the representation
from the management.

® We have assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures included in Note 47 to
the consolidated financial
statements.
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S. Component ' Key audit matters
No.
The Company | Subsidies/Incentives receivables from
and their | government
subsidiary The Company and CCIL alongwith its
company subsidiaries have subsidies receivables
“Calcom

against various schemes of the state /
central government. The Company and
CCIL alongwith its subsidiaries has
recognized such subsidies receivables as
per the various provisions of the schemes.

The amount of such subsidies are re-
verified at the various levels by the
government authorities and funds are
released according to the availability of the
overall funds for disposal with these
authorities.

Therefore, the above process requires a
period of time for which management uses
assumptions in respect of discount rate
and estimated time for receipt of funds
from government as specified in Note 29
(ix) of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statement.

Both the above mention companies has
accounted  such  incentives/subsidies
receivables at fair value based on the
expected period of realization using
adjusted incremental borrowings rate.

Such expected period has been estimated
considering the past trend of the
realization.

Considering, the nature and amount of
receivables and estimating the expected time
period of realization of receivables, which
requires application of significant judgement to
record them at fair value, we consider this as a
significant key audit matter from the
perspective of our audit.

| How our audit addressed the key audit
| matters
1

* We and respective statutory auditors
assessed that the subsidies /
incentives are recognized by the
Company and checked the
compliance with the eligibility
criteria.

¢ We and respective statutory auditors
have evaluated the process of
estimation of time period of
realisation by the management.

e We and respective statutory auditors
have tested the documentation on
sample  basis  regarding the
procedural delays in realizing the said
incentives / subsidies.

e We and respective statutory auditors
have assessed the methodology
applied by the Company and CCIL
along with its subsidiary to comply
with the requirements of Ind AS-20
and Ind AS-39.

e We and respective statutory auditors
have evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of
controls around the measurement of
the said incentives / subsidies. We
have tested arithmetical accuracy by
performing recalculation procedure
of the said incentives / subsidies
where applicable.

®  We and respective statutory auditors
have assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures included in Note 47 to the
consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited dated June 12,
2020 on its Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2{f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

Our reporting on the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is not applicable
in respect of one subsidiary and one step down subsidiary incorporated outside India

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of Dalmia
Cement (Bharat) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries/step
down subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its joint venture
company all incorporated in India, for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries and its joint venture
company which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries and its joint venture company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ( ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective companies policies, the safeguarding of its
-assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group and its joint venture company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, and, both issued by the
Institute of ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in term
of their report referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its joint venture company incorporated in India have maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group and its joint venture company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

a.  Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements
insofar as it relates to twenty four subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.

b.  Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls over financial reporting does not cover in so far as it relates to one joint venture company,
which is company, incorporated in India, as the financial statements of this joint venture company is
management certified. This joint venture company is not material to the Group.
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Our audit report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
is not modified in respect of above matters.

For S. S. Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm ‘s Registration No. 000756N

Sunil Wahal
Partner
Membership No. 87294

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 12, 2020
UDIN : 20087294AAAAEA7369
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Dalmla Cement {Bharat) Limited
Consolidated Balance Shest as at March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are In Rs. Crare except wherever stated otherwise

Rs.
As at March 31, Ag at March 31,
) - B Notes 2020 B 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2A 8,349 9,614
Capital work-in-progress 2B 1,707 502
Investment properties 3 1] 9
Goodwill 4{a) 1,344 1,746
Other Intangible assets 4(b) 2,750 2,857
Right-of-use assets 32 148 -
intangible assets under development 36 14
Biological assets sther than bearer plants 4fc) [ 0
Investments 5 64 64
Financial assets
(i} investments &() 23 14
(ii) Loans (1) 68 82
{iii) Other financial assets &(iii) 132 396
Income tax assets 12 38
Other nan-gurrent assets 7 o 254 374
— 14,887 15,001
Current assets
Inventories 8 974 1,032
Financial assets
(i) Investments (i) 1,676 936
{it) Trade recelvables 8(in 398 545
{ili} Cash and cash equivalents 9(im 152 268
{iv) Bank balances other than jii) above 9fiv) 120 185
(v) Loans 8(v) 38 31
{vi) Other financial assets 9(vi) 897 618
Income tax assets - 0
Other current assets 10 408 380
Assets held for saie 1 . 2 1
4463 4,047
Total assets o 19,350 18,138
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capita} 12 314 314
Other equity 13 9032 8,939
Equity attributabie to Owners of the Parent Company 9,346 9,253
Non-centrolling interest — 25 1
Total equity 83N 9,284
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
14(j) 3,606 4,014
32 45 -
{lll) Trade payables 14{lf)
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises - -
- total cutstarding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 3 -
erterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 14(lii) 3 6
Other nen currert liabilities 14A 94 17
Provisions 15 118 148
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 1,290 1,279
Government grants 17 122 119
5181 5,683
Current llabilitias
Financial iabilit;
(i) Barrewings 18(1) 1,246 208
(li) Lease liabilities 32 335 -
(iif) Trade payables 18(ii)
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smal! enterprises 13 6
- total autstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small 828 914
enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilites 1,988 1,674
Govemment grants 17 18 10
Other current liabilifies 19 542 550
Current tax liabilities 76 49
Provisions 20 52 80
4,798 4,191
Total Habilities 9979 9,874
Total equity and liabllitles = 19,350 18,138
Significant accounting policies 1B{ili)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these idated financial
As per our report of aven date
For S.8. Kotharl Mehta & Company o —— For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dalmla Geme

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000756N
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Dalmia Coment (Bharat) Limited
Statement of Consclidated Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated in Rs. are In Rs. Crors excapt wherever stated otherwise - Rs.
Notes Year ended Year ended
— = March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income
Reverue fram operations 21 5,661 9,454
Other income 2 - 163 o 206
Total income {I) 9,824 - 9,660
Expenses
Cost of raw materials censumed 23 1,654 1,794
Purchase of stock in trade €7 138
Change in inventories cf finished goads, work in progress and stock in trade 24 25 (147)
Employee benrefits expenses 25 598 569
Finance costs:
- Interest cost 26(a) 357 514
- Other finance cost {including exchange differences) 26(b) 54 47
Fareign currency fluctuation on borrowings etc, (net) 23 95
Depreciation ang amortisation expense 2A{vi) 1,520 1,292
Power and fusl 1,738 1,756
Freight charges
- on finished goods 1,681 1,598
- on internal ¢linker transfar 214 231
Other expenses 27 1,694 1,620
Total expenses ([l — 9,525 9403
Profit before tax (I-1l) 299 257
Tax expense
Current tax 95 84
Deferred tax {credit) (13) (123)
Tax adjustments for earlier years 24 10
Total tax expense 108 i (29}
Profit after tax before share of profit In joint ventures 193 286
Add: Share of profit in joint ventures o ] — [
Praofit for the year (ill) 193 286
Profit for the year attributable to:
Nan-controlling interest 14 41
Owners of the Parent Company 179 245

Other comprehensive income (OCH)
A. ltems that will not ba reclassified to profit ar less

- Re-measuremant (loss) on defined benefit plans {9} (15)

- Change in fair value of financial instruments through other comprehensive income 7 -

- Income tax relating to iterns that will rot be raclassified to profit or loss 1 5
B. llems that will be reclassified lc profit or loss

- Exchi difference on ion of foreign i 7 1

- Income tax reiating to items that will be reclassified ta profit or loss - -
Gther comprehensive incomel (loss) for the year (IV} 6 9
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year attributable to:
Nen-controlling interest {0} 0)
Owners of the Parent Company 6 {8}
Total comprehensive income for the year (lll+IV) 189 - 277
Total comprehensive incoma for the year attributable to:-
Non-contrating interest 14 41
Qwners of the Parent Company 185 238
Eamnings per share 28
Baslc and Diiuted Eamnings Per Share {In Rupees) 5.69 7.79

[Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 (Rs.10) sach]

Significant accounting policles 1B(iil)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these censolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For $.8. Kothari Mehia & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Chartsred Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N
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Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Consolidated Statement of change in equlty for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise
a. Equlty share capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Rs.
1,2018 234251187 234

As at Aprit

Issue of share capital * 7.97,94,080 80
As at March 31, 2019 31,40,45,267 34
Issue of share capital - -
As at March 31, 2020 31,40,45,267 314

* During the previcus year, Parent Company had alioted 79,794,080 equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up to Dalmia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited), pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement and
Amaigamation approved by NCLT, Chennai Bench.

b. Share capital suspense

Share capital suspense Rs.
As at April 1, 2018 " 6200
Change during the year (6,200)

As at March 31, 2019 -
Issue of share capital -
As at March 31, 2020 -

* Represented 79,794,080 number of equily shares of Rs. 10/- ach fully paid up at a premium of Rs. 767/- per share, pending fo be allotted to Daimia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited), pursuant to the
Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation approved by NCLT, Chennai Bench. These sharss were allotted during the financial year 2018-1¢ and an ameunt of Rs. 80 was transferred to equity share capital and Rs. 6,120 to
Securities premium account.

¢. Other equity: Rs.
Attributable to Owners of the Parent Company
Reserve and Surp Other comprehensive income | Total other
Exchange equity Attributable Total
Partlculars Dabenture Share based | difference on Equity attributable to| to Non- other
5::;?::3 r‘::::?: 2:::" redemption ::::I:m: of | inst of the| controlling | equity
® u o resarve 9 reserve foreign through OCt Parent interest
operations Company
As at April 1, 2018 443 2 1 285 1,874 14 0 - 2,619 (30} 2,589
Profit for the year - - - - 245 - - - 245 41 286
Other comprehensive income {net of tax):
Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit plan - - - - {10} - - - (10) {0} {10)
Exch difference on translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 1 - i 0 1]
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 235 - 1 - 236 41 277
Al of shares 1o Sch of Arrangement and 8,120 - - - - - - - 8,120 - 6,120
Amalaamation
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - - 27 27) - - - - - -
Reserve released during the year - (0) - (62) 62 - - - (0} - {0)
Transfer to general reserve - - 0 - {0} - - - - - -
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (note 13) - - - - {46) - - - {49) - {49)
Employee stock option (refer note 31 - - - - - 4 - - 4 - 4
As at March 31, 2019 6,563 2 1 250 2,104 18 1 - 8,939 1 8,950
As at April 1, 2019 6,563 2 1 250 2,104 18 1 - 8,939 1" 8,950
Profit for the year - - - - 179 . - - 179 44 193
Other comprehensive income (net of tax):
Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit plan - - - - (3] - - - {8) 0 (6)
Change in fair value of financial instruments through OCI - - - - - - - 5 5 - 5
| Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 7 - 7 (0] 7
Total comprehenslive incoms for the year - - - - 173 - 7 S 185 14 199
Reserve released during the year - (0} - (195} 185 - - - (0) - {0)
Transfer to generai reserve - . 1 - (1) - - > - - -
Share issue expenses m - - - - - - + (1) - (1)
Transfer to retained samings on disposal of equity instruments
through OCI : - - (0) - - 0 - - -
Dividends paid (including dividend distribution: tax) (nota 13) - - - (93} - - - (93) - {93)
Employes stock option expense (refer note 31) - - - - = 2 - - 2 - 2
As at March 31, 2020 6,562 2 2 58 2,378 20 8 5 9.032 25 9,057
For description of the purposes of sach reserve within equity, refer note 13 of consoli financial stat 1t
As per our report of even date
For S.8. Kotharl Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Chartered Accountants
i No. AT A
Fim Reglstration No. 000756N ) o, "
|I f .. \ _)-' i
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{o3| wewDEL T §
Sunil Wahal \ \ /f ! Mahendra Singhi Gautam Dalmia
Partner \ s P / Managing Director and CEQ Director
Membarship No.: 087294 ¥ e = DIN : 06243835 DIN : 00009758
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Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore pt wherever stated otherwise

Rs.
Notes Year ended Year onded
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. Cash flow from operating activitles
Profit before tax 299 257
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 2A(vi) 1,520 1,282
Impairment allowance (net) 27 20 2
Bad debts/ advances written off 27 2 3
Liabilities no longer required written back 22 (26) -
Expenses on employees stock options scheme 25 1 4
Dividend (income) 22 - 2)
Exchange difference (net) 73 32
Interest expense (including other borrowing costs) 26 360 561
Interest Income 22 (94) (145)
{Prefit) on sale of investments (net) 22 7 (167)
Gain/(loss) on change of fair value of investments measured at FVTPL 22 (25) 108
(Profit)/ loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22 (1) 3
Share of profit of a joint venture 0 4]
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,112 1,948
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 58 (243)
Decrease in trade receivables 123 14
Decrease in financial and other assets 196 391
{Decrease) in trade and other payables (17) (148)
{Decrease) in provisions and government grants (60) {27)
Cash generated from operations 2412 1,935
Income tax refund /(paid) (net) (49) 21
Net cash flow from operating activities 2,363 1,956
. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets (net) {1,365) (912)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 5 0
(Purchase)/ sale of current investments (net) (648) 1,260
(Purchase)/ sale of non current investments (net) (2) (14)
Fixed deposits (placed)/ matured (having original maturity of more than three months) 65 (149)
Interest received 48 147
Dividend recsived 22 - 2
Net cash flow from/ (used} in investing activities (1,897) 334
. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,071 256
{Repayment) of long term borrowings (net) (1,365) (1,783)
Availment of short term foreign currency loan 564 369
(Repayment) of short term foreign clirrency loan (498) (547)
Proceeds from other short term borrowings (net) 241 6
Repayment of lease liabilities 32 (39) -
Interest paid (463) (597)
Dividends paid {Including dividend distribution tax) 13 (93) (40)
Net cash flow {used in) financing activities (582) (2,336)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C ) (116} (46}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 268 312
Add: Cash and cash equivaients acquired on acquisition of subsidiary company - 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9(il) 152 268
Notes:
(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) 'Statement of Cash Flow'.
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: Rs.
Particulars As at April 1, Cash Fair value Foreign Others As at March 31,
2019 flows changes exchange 2020
movement
Non current borrowings 4,969 (294) (18) LD 4,704
Current borrowings (refer note 181(i)) 908 307 - - 1,246

For lease liabilities, refer note 32.




Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

Rs.

Particulars As at April 1, Cash Fair value Foreign Others * As at March 31,

2018 flows changes exchange 2019

movement
Non current borrowings 6,400 (1,527) 4 9 N 4,969
Current borrowings (refer note 18(i}) 1,048 {172) - 23 9 908
* Others includes on account of acquisition of Daimia DSP Limited, subsidiary of the Group, on the acquisition date.
As per our report of even date
For 8.8, Kothari Mehta & Company == For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Firm Registration No. 060756N P P
Chartered Accountants So¥s ;‘JWM/’
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Sunil Wahal ; % ko i Mahendra Singhi Gautam Dalmfa
Partner : - Managing Director and CEQ Director
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Date : June 12, 2020
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Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

(M

(i)

Note 1
Corporate Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited (‘the
Company’ or ‘Parent Company'), its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) and joint ventures for the year ended
March 31, 2020. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act applicable in India {erstwhile Companies Act, 1956). Its debt securities are listed on one
stock exchange in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Dalmiapuram, Distt Tiruchirappalli,
Tamil Nadu- 621651.

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of cement and its related products and
refractory products. Information on the Group’s structure is provided in note 55.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on June 12, 2020.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Iindian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule Il).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Derivative financial instruments [refer accounting policy 1B(iii)(u)];

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value [refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments];

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value [refer accounting policy 1B(iii)(r)];
- Share based payments [refer accounting policy 1B(iii)(s)]

- Property, plant and equipment, referred in accounting policy 1B(iii)(j), at fair value as on the transition date
i.e. April 1, 2015.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) and all the values are rounded off
to the nearest Crore, except number of shares, face value of share, earning per share or wherever otherwise
indicated. Wherever the amount represented Rs. '0' (zero) construes value less than Rupees fifty lakhs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and joint ventures as at March 31, 2020, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power aver an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangerments )




Dalmia Cement {(Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

- The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

- The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consalidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting
date as that of the Parent Company, i.e., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional
financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

- Combine like items of assets, liabiliies, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of
the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

- Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related
goodwill

- Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full).
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of
profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

(iii) Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Group had elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 1, 2015. As
such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including
goodwill, have been carried forward to Ind AS financial statements on the transition date. Business combination
post April 1, 2015 had been accounted for as per the provisions of the Scheme of Arrangement and
Amalgamation approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) including the accounting for
amortising the value of resulting goodwill.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed inciude contingent liabilities representing




Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embadying economic benefits is not probable. However, deferred tax asset or liability and any
liability or asset relating to employee benefit arrangements arising from a business combination are measured
and recognised in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes and Ind AS 19, Employee
Benefits, respectively.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration fransferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised
at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired
over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as
capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain
directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same throeugh OCI.

Atter initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

b. Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether joint control are similar to those necessary to determine
control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment
is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition
date.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in other comprehensive income (OCI) of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCI.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
profit and loss outside operating profit.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recoghise an
impairment loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint
venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint
venture' in the statement of profit and loss.



Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

c. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d. Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Parent
Company's functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group
uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is
reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings, settlement gain/ loss and fair value
gain/ loss on derivative contracts relating to borrowings are accounted for and disclosed under ‘finance cost'.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or
loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss are also recognised in profit or loss).

In accordance with Ind AS 101 ‘First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’, the Group had continued
the policy of capitalisation of exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency
monetary items in the Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately before the
beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period i.e. March 31, 2016. Accordingly, exchange differences
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arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a depreciable asset are
capitalised/ de-capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Foreign Operations

On consaolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupee at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to
transiate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on transiation for consolidation are recognised in OCL. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in profit and loss.

e. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects external
valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after discussions with the Group’s exteral
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation fo contracts and other relevant documents.
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The management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value
of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The management and the Group’s external valuers present the valuation results to the Audit Committee. This
includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

- Property, plant and equipment (note 2A)

- Intangible assets {note 4(a) and 4(b))

- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 29)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 37)

- Comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments (note 37)
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 38)

f. Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods and services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes.

Taxes collected on behalf of the government are excluded from revenue. Revenue is recognised to the extent
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably.

Sale of goods (including sale of scrap included under other operating revenue)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts, cash discounts and volume rebates.

The Group considers the effects of variable consideration, non-cash incentives and consideration payable to
the customer (if any). No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms
largely ranging between 0 days to 90 days.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Where the sale of goods provide customers with discounts,
volume rebates etc., such discounts, volume rebates etc. give rise to variable consideration.

Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.

The Group follows the ‘most expected value’ method in estimating the amount of variable consideration. The
Group estimates the variable consideration based on an analysis of accumulated historical experience.

Non-cash incentives

The Group provides non-cash incentives at fair value to customers. These benefits are passed on to customers
on satisfaction of various conditions of various sales schemes. Consideration received is allocated between
the products sold and non-cash incentives to be issued to customers. Fair value of the non-cash incentive is
determined by applying principle of Ind AS 113 i.e. at market rate. The fair value of the non-cash incentive is
deferred and recognised as revenue when the associated incentive is released.
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Revenue from services

Revenue from marketing services is recognised over the period of time i.e. as per the terms of the contract
with customers based on stage of completion when the outcome of the transactions involving rendering of
services can be estimated reliably. In case, the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered and if it is probable that
expenses were not recoverable, revenue is not recognised.

Revenue from management services are recognised at the point in time i.e. as and when services are
rendered.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments/ subsidies measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument/ subsidies or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Export incentives

Export entitlements in the form of Merchandise Export from India Scheme (MEIS) are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in
respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the uitimate collection of the
relevant export proceeds. Income arising from export incentives are included under ‘Other operating revenue’,

Insurance claim
Insurance claims and other claims are accounted for to the extent the Group is reasonably certain of their
ultimate collection.

g. Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant/ subsidy
will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant/ subsidy relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant/ subsidy relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and credited to the statement
of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset. The Group has chosen to
present grants related to an asset to be deducted in reporting the depreciation and amortisation expense.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by government or related institutions, with an interest rate below
the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant.
The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured
as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities. Income from such benefit
is recognised on a systematic basis over the period of the loan during which the Group recognises interest
expense corresponding to such loan. Income arising from below-market rate of interest loans/ interest free
loans, are included under ‘other income’.

Government grant and subsidy that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or iosses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss of the period in which it becomes receivable. Government grants
and subsidies are recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants/ subsidy are intended to compensate.
The Group has chosen to present grants related to income to be deducted in reporting the related expense.
Income from subsidies in the nature of operations are included under ‘Revenue from operations’.

Customs duty saved on property, plant and equipment imported under Export Promotion Capital Goods
(EPCG) scheme are recognised initially as deferred revenue when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then
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recognised in statement of profit and loss as other operating revenue on fulfilment of specified conditions
attached to export obligations.

h. Income taxes
Tax expense comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current Income Tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabie future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
Joint venture, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

In the situations, where one or more entities in the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognised in respect of temporary differences
which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject
to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However,
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the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. For recognition of deferred
taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability and is considered as an asset
if it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which these tax credit can be utilised.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that
future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the concerned company. MAT credit is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

i.  Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. Non-current
assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/
distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the
balance sheet. Assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

j.  Property, plant and equipment

The Group had measured property, plant and equipment (PPE) except leasehold land, vehicle, furniture and
fixtures, office equipment and mines development at fair value as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 which
has become its deemed cost. In respect of vehicle, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and mines
development, the Group had applied applicable Ind AS from a retrospective basis and arrived at the carrying
value as per Ind AS as at April 1, 2015.

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital
work in progress are stated at cost net of impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, including
import duties and non- refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Such cost inciudes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if
it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer fo significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions (note 29} and provisions (note 41) for further information about the
recorded decommissioning provision.

ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of PPE are capitalised at cost. Otherwise, such items are
classified as inventories.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point when an
asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs (net of income) associated with the
commissioning of the asset, including the expenditure incurred on frial runs (net of trial run receipts), are
capitalised up to the date asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation charge

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, except for assets of
manufacturing facilities situated at North East region wherein depreciation is provided on a written down value
method with effect from July 1, 2019, based on the respective estimate of useful lives as given below.
Estimated useful lives of assets are determined based on technical parameters/ assessments.



Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

The management believes that useful fives currently used, which are as prescribed under Schedule il of the
Companies Act, 2013, fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment, though these lives in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule I,

Useful life
Type of Asset (in years)
Buildings
Factory buildings * 25 t0 30 years

Non-factory buildings *

30 to 60 years

Roads _ 3to 10 years
Plant and equipments _
Continuous process plant | 25 years
Other plant and equipment * | 4 to 20 years
Piant and equipment related to Captive Power Plant * | 25 years
Mines related assets | 4 to B years
Certain Diesel Generator Sets and workshep appliances * | 5 years
Office equipment |
End user devices such as computers ' 3 Years
Servers and networks ' 6 years
Vehicles
Motor cycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 years
Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars other than those
used in a business of running them on hire _ 8 years
Assets of step down subsidiary namely OCL China Limited: |
House and Building _ 20 years
Machinery and mechanic equipment 10 years
Means of Transportation ? 4 years
Electronic equipment 3 years

* The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates these items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Land bearing mineral reserves and Mines development cost are amortised over their estimated commercial
life based on the unit of production method. Freehold non-mining land is not depreciated.

Capitalised spares are depreciated over their own estimated useful life or the remaining estimated useful life
of the related asset, whichever is lower.

On an item of property, plant and equipment discarded during the year, accelerated depreciation is provided
upto the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is discarded.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

k. Investment properties

The Group had elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment properties as recognised in
its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition date.

Investment property comprises freehold land that are held for capital appreciation and recognised at cost, less
impairment loss, if any.
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Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in notes. Fair value are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer.

0

(i)

Intangible assets

Goodwill as per Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation (Scheme) approved by NCLTs

a) Goodwill arisen on amalgamation of erstwhite Adwetha Cement Holdings Limited (‘ACHL’) with Parent
Company has been recognised in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Said goodwill is initially
measured, being the excess of cost of investment in ACHL cancelled over net identifiable assets acquired
and liability assumed. Said goodwill is being amortised in accordance with Scheme over a period of 4
years.

b) Goodwill arisen on amalgamation of Group's erstwhile subsidiary namely Adhunik Cement Limited
(ACL) with Parent Company has been recognised in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Said
goodwill is initially measured, being the excess of cost of investment in ACL cancelled over net identifiable
assets (including fair value of mining rights) acquired and liability assumed.

The subsequent measurement is at deemed cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The said
goodwill is not amortised and is tested for impairment annually.

¢) Goodwill and goodwill having underlying intangible assets, acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings
of Odisha Cement Limited (ODCL) {renamed to Dalmia Bharat Limited) to Parent Company by way of
slump exchange has been recognised in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Said goodwill and
goodwill having underlying intangible assets is being amortised in accordance with approved scheme over
a period of 5 years and 10 years respectively.

Mining rights

a) Parent Company has carried out fair valuation of mining rights of the mines of ACL (amalgamated with
Parent Company from appointed date January 1, 2015 in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT).
Said mining rights are amortised over their estimated commercial life based on the unit of production
method.

b) Mining rights acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings of ODCL to Parent Company by way of
slump exchange has been recognised at fair value in accordance with Scheme approved by NCLT. Said
mining rights are amortised over their estimated commercial life based on the unit of production method.

Net carrying value of above mentioned mining rights as on transition date to Ind AS i.e. April 1, 2015 has
been considered as deemed cost.

¢) Mining rights include amounts paid for securing mining rights and are amortised over their estimated
commercial life based on the unit of production method.

Expenses incurred relating to project during the project development stage prior to its intended use, are
considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital work in progress or Intangible assets
under development, as the case may be.

(iti) Brands and Raw materials procurement rights (other than limestone)

Brands and Raw materials procurement rights acquired pursuant to transfer of Undertakings of ODCL to
Parent Company by way of slump exchange have been recognised at fair value in accordance with
scheme approved by NCLT. Said intangible assets have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumuiated amortisation and impairment losses.
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Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis, based on the respective estimate of useful lives as given

below:

Type of Intangible Asset Useful life (in years)
Brands | 20 and 27 years
Raw Materials procurement rights (other than limestone}) 3.25 and 26.50 years

Net carrying value of brands and raw materials procurement rights as on transition date to Ind AS i.e. April
1, 2015 have been considered as deemed cost.

(iv) Other intangible assets

The Group has measured intangible assets at carrying value as recognised in the financial statements as
on transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 which has become its deemed cost.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amartisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embadied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful life of computer software is estimated as 3 years to 6 years and accordingly amortised on a
straight line basis over its useful life.

Research and Development Expenditure

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate technical and commercial feasibility
of making the asset available for use or sale.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit,

m. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur,

Borrowing costs consist of interest (calculated using the effective interest rate method), hedge related cost
incurred in connection with foreign currency borrowings and other costs that an entity incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Expenses incurred on the issue of debt securities are amortised over the term of the related securities and
included within borrowing costs. Premium payable on early redemption of debt securities, in lieu of future
finance costs, is written off as borrowing costs as and when paid.



Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

n. Leases

Policy applicable with effect from April 1, 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises tight-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Leasehold land is amortised over a period of lease.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (p)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occeurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities and Right-of-use assets have been presented as a separate line in the balance sheet. Lease
payments have been classified as cash used in financing activities.

i)y Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease.

Policy relating to leases till March 31, 2019

Where the Group is lessee

The lease was classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. The lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group was classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were
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apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges were recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they were directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they were
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals were
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they were incurred.

The leased asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. In case there was no reasonable certainty
that the Group would obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments were recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, unless the payment to lessor was structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation and compensate for the lessor's expected inflation cost increases.

0. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for
use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

> Raw materials, packing materials, fuels and stores and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving
weighted average basis, except in case of Limestone inventories included in Raw materials and Coal
inventories (in one of the unit) included in Stores and spares inventories, where cost is determined on annual
weighted average basis.

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

> Stock in trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

p. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections
in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment ioss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at March 31 at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

q. Provisions and contingent liabilities

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Mine reclamation liability

The Group records a provision for mines reclamation cost until the closure of mine. Mines reclamation costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows, with a
corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of each project. The cash flows are discounted at a current
pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the mine reclamation liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of mine reclamation are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated
future costs or in the discount rate applied are capitalised in property, plant and equipment and are depreciated
over the estimated commercial life of the related asset based on the unit of production method.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or
a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

r. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of contribution to Statutory Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Superannuation
Fund and National Pension Scheme are defined contribution schemes. The Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Group recognises contribution payable to these
schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction
in future payment or a cash refund.
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The Group operates two defined benefit plans for its employees, viz., gratuity and provident fund contribution
to Dalmia Cement Provident Fund Trust. The costs of providing benefits under these plans are determined on
the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for each plan using
the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the
period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss:

> Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
> Net interest expense or income

Current service cost is recognised within employee benefits expenses. Net interest expense or income is
recognised with finance costs.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group
treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Re-measurement gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave
as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement
for 12 months after the reporting date.

s. Share-based payments

Certain employees (Senior Executives) of the Parent Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments (share options of the holding Company i.e. Dalmia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha
Cement Limited)), whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settied
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
Share options of the holding company are accounted for as equity settled as the Parent Company has no
obligation to settle the share-based payment transaction and also the shares are of holding company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value (obtained by the holding company being
the administrator of the scheme) at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

Cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee stock options outstanding in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value,

t. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of ancther entity.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. All financial assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below mentioned categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments)
A ffinancial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is inciuded in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
trade receivables, loans and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Group recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.

The Group has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) as at FVTOCI.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

On initial recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at FVTPL.
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Subsequently, these financial assets are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled from other comprehensive income to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Dividends on these investments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments
designated at fair vaiue through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably unquoted investment in compulsorily convertible preference shares
and non-listed equity investments included under other non-current financial assets under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has designated
investment in listed equity instrument, mutual funds, bonds and derivative instruments as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
» Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. The credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk of customer
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Group considers:
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> All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of
the financial instrument.

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘Other expenses’ in the statement
of profit and loss.

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

» Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented
as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables or as derivatives, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 14(i).

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

u. Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange option contract, foreign exchange
forward contract and interest rate swap contract, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit
and loss.

v. Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating Segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) in order fo allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance in accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.

inter-segment transfers
The Group generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment
to the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment accounting policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

w. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of Parent
Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of Parent Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

x. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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C.

y. Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Parent Company when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in other equity. Interim dividends are recognised as a liability on the date of declaration by the Parent
Company's Board of directors.

Recent accounting pronouncements
(i) New and amended standards

The Group applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new accounting standard is described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact
on the financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards or amendments that
have been issued but are not yet effective/ notified.

{a) Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and
Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease).
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore,
Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method with the date of initial application
of April 1, 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at April 1, 2019.
Instead, the Group applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application.

Accordingly, the comparatives have not been restated and hence not comparable with previous year
figures.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as
operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets
were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and
accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
¢ Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

s  Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application

¢ Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of
initial application

¢  Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or
terminate the iease.
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Based on the above, as at April 1, 2019:

* Right-of -use assets of Rs. 160 were recognised and presented separately in the balance sheet.
This includes the lease assets recognised previously under finance leases of Rs. 71 that were
reclassified from Property, plant and equipment.

* Additional lease liabilities of Rs. 89 were recognised.
»  Obligations under finance lease of Rs. 1 have been reclassified to lease liabilities.

On application of Ind AS 116, in the statement of profit and loss for the current year, operating lease
expenses has changed from rent (included under ‘Employee benefits expenses’ and ‘Other expenses’) to
depreciation cost for the right-of-use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

Consequent to above, there is a reduction in rent expense by Rs. 48, increase in interest expense by
Rs. 9 and increase in depreciation charge by Rs. 42.

The adoption of Ind AS 116 did not have any significant impact on the profit and eamings per share of the
current year.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings (godowns, office and residential premises),
vehicles and other equipment. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Group classified each of its leases
(as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. Refer to note 1B(iii)(n)
Leases for the accounting policy prior to April 1, 2019.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Refer to note 1B(iii){n) Leases for the
accounting policy beginning April 1, 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and
practical expedients, which have been applied by the Group.

The lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of March
31, 2019, as follows:

Assets

Operating lease commitments as at March 31, 2019 (Rs.) 8
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 10.00%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at April 1, 2019 (Rs.) 5
Less:

Commitments relating to short-term leases (Rs.) -

Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets (Rs.) -

Add:
Commitments relating to leases previously classified as finance leases (Rs.) 1
Lease payments relating to renewal periods not included in operating lease commitments 84

as at March 31, 2019 (Rs.)
Lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 (Rs.) 90

(b) Amendment to existing issued Ind AS
i)  Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
i) Amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

iy Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
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All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

iv) Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrowing costs

v) Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

vi) Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures

vii) Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

viii) Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

The effect on adoption of above mentioned amendments were insignificant on the financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to lidated fi ial st for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wheraver statad otherwise

2A. Property, plant and equipment - . Rs.
Freehold Leasehold . Plantand | Furniture and . Office Mines

| - land | land Buﬂmgs equipmant fixtures | Vehictes equipment | development | Total
|Deemed Cost */ Cost

As at April 1, 2018 1,017 70 1,165 | 8,481 19 22 39 47 10,860
Additions on acnuisition 31 - 46 182 0 0 4 3 266
Additions 42 1 28 374 2 3 13 7 470
Disposals 0 - 0 130 [} 1 0| 0 131
\Exchange difference ** - (0} (0] 2 o)) (0, {0} 2 |
|Other adjustments ] - 11 - (1) (0) o/ 1 - 10 |
|As at March 31, 2019 - [ 1,090 | 82| 1,239 8,908 21 24 56 | 57 | 11,477 |
Additions 60 - 22 257 | 2 3 13 10 | 367 |
| Disposals ) - - 2 80 0 2 1 - | 85
Exchanae difference ** = - - | 1 3 - {0} | 0 - 4
Reclassified on account of adopticn of ind AS 116 (refer note - (82} = -1 - - - (31 (85]]
|Other adjustments (3 - (1} 3 {0} (2} 0}, - (3
|As at March 31, 2020 1,147 - 1,259 | 9,001 23 23 68 64 11,675
Depreciation = | |

|As at April 1, 2018 16 9 184 1,543 6| 9 19 24 1.810 |
/Additions on acquisition - - - 5 21 0 0 2 . 1 29 |
Charge for the year 8 3 €3 658 3 3 8| 5 751 |
Digposals - - 0 127 0 1 0 - 128
Reclassification - - - - {0} (0} (o)} - (0}
Exchange difference ** | - 2] - 1 (11 (0] 0 - 1
|As at March 31, 2019 ] 24 | 14 252, 2,094 9 M| 29 30 2463
| Charge for the year ) 10| - 88 840 3 3 10 1 955
Disposals - - 1 76 0 1 1 - 79 |
Reclassified on account of adoptiorn: of Ind AS 116 (refer note - (14} - - - - - (0} (14}
Other adjustments - - 0 (1) 0 2 0 - 1
[Exchange difference ** - - (0) (0) - 10} (0) - (0)
|As at March 31, 2020 34 - 339 2,857 12 15 38 N 3,326
Net block | | — i | )

As at March 31, 2020 | 1,113 | -] 920 6,234 11 8| 30 | 33 8,349
|As at March 31, 2018 | 1,066 | 68 | 987 6,814 12 ] 13 | 27 | 27 9,014 |

* Refer note 1(B)(iil}{j)
** includes foreign currency translation of foreign operations.

Notes:

(i) Freshoid land having gross block of Rs. 13 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 13} is pending to be registered In the name of the Parent Company.,

(i}  The Group has pledged certain assets against barrowings which has been disclosed in note 14 {i)

@iii) In terms of Schemses of Arrangement and Amalgamation, the titte deeds of certain portion of immovable properties of erstwhile Adhunik Cement Limited, erstwhile Adhunik MSP {Cement) Limited, Power
Undertakings of erstwhile DCB Power Ventures Limited and Undertakings of Odisha Cement Limited (transfer through slump sale) are in the process of being transferred in the name of the Parent Company.

(iv) Disposals from (i) Plant and equipment having gross block of Rs. 5 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 7) and accumulated depreciation of Rs. 4 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 6) and (il) Vehicles having gross block of Rs. Nil
{March 31, 2012: Rs. €) and accumulated depreciation of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs, 0} transferred to ‘Assets held for sale’.
(v)  Adjustment in Leasehold land during the previous year represented mines reclamation cost transferred from Other intangible assets.
(vi} Reconciliation of depreciation and amortisation expense:
Rs.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Depraciation and amortisation expense on:

Preperty, plant and equipment (PPE} * 955 751
Goodwill 402 420
Other intangible assets 132 137
Right-of-use assets 45 -
As per PPE, Intangible assets and Right-of-use 1,534 1,308
assets Schadule

Less:

Cost allocated to capital work-in-progress {note 43) {2) (14)
Adjustment against recoupment from deferred capital {12) {2)
subsidy {refer ncte 171}

As per statement of profit and loss 1.520 1,292

* Also refer note 29(vi).

2B. Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Movement of capital work In progress
Opening balance 502 183
Additions during the vear 1,442 528
Capitalised during the year (234) {208)
Transfer to Intangible assets under development - {1)
Other adjustments (3} -
Closing balance * 1.707 502
* Refer note 51.

Note:
{i}). Details of expenses capitalised and carried forward as a part of capitai work in progress are disclosed in note 43.
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3. Investment properties

4 (a). Goodwill

4 (b}. Other intangible assets

4 (c). Blological assets other than bearer plants

Rs.
L N 4 (a) Goodwill L : 4 {b) Other intangible aseets
3. == b 4 (c) Biological
Rartioutars properties Raw assats other
{Freehold Goodwill on | Goadwill ™ Total Computer Mlnlng materials Brands $ Total than bearer
land) consolidation software | rights procurement plants $§
= rights #
Deemed Cost*/ Cost | | S == ¢ i ! |
As at April 1, 2018 [ 218 3087 | 3305 14 1,174 279 1.973 3,440 0
Additions on acquisition = U 138 - 139 | | - - - - - | -
|Additions 1 - - - - 2 - - - 2 0|
\Other adjustments - - - - - (1] - - {11] -
As at March 31, 2019 | [ 357 | 3,087 3444 | | 16 1,163 279 1,873 3431 o
|Additions - i ] - 9 7 8 - =1 18 -
Disposals - - - | - Q - - =1 G -
As at March 31, 2020 i 0 357 | 3,087 3444 | 23 1471 | 279 | 1,973 | 3448 | [
Amortisation N 1
As at April 1, 2018 0 - 1,278 1278 | 8 129 63 230 430 -
Charge for the ysar - - 420 420 | 3] 45 9] 76 137 - i
Other adjustments = - -1 = | - 13} - - 13} -
As at March 31, 2019 I ] - 1698 | 1,698 11| 175 72 306 564 0
Chargs for the yrar - - 402 402 | | 3] 44 9| 78] 132 -
Disposals I | - - - ] - - - 0 -
\As at March 31, 2020 o - 2,100 2100 | 14 218 81 382 696 0
|Net block ] | I === = |
|As at March 31, 2020 = (] 357 087 134 9 952 198 1,591 2750 | [N
|As at March 31, 2018 0] 357 1389 1,746 5 988 | 207 1,667 | 2,367 0

* Refer note 1(Bj(ii)(k) & 1(B)ii

Investment properties

{i}) Group's invesiment proparties consist of a freehold lands for capital appreciation, Group has no resltrictions on the realisability of its investment property and nc contractual obligations to purchase, construct
or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(i} There is no material expenses incurred for the mail of i properties nar income derived out of the same.

(il}) Investment praperties are mortgaged against the secured borrowings of the Parent Company as disclosed in note no. 14().

(iv) As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the fair values of the praperties is Rs. 3 and Rs, 3 respectively.The falr vaiuation of investment properties comprising lands are based on the banchmark value of
land as fixed for different mouzas (village) by the ities of respeciive State

** Goadwill acqy p to Sch of A and
{i) Impairment testing of goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwili of Rs. 987 (March 31, 2019: Rs, 1,389) acquired pursuant to Scheme of and A has been all d fo Cement Cash Generating Unit (CGU) for

impairment testing.

The Group performs annual impairment test for carrying value of goodwill. The Group iders the i ip b its marke? isation based on other comparable companies and Its book value,
among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impalyment,

The recoverable amount has been considered based on the fair value less cost of disposal or value in uss, whichever is higher as required to be assessed under Ind-AS 36,

The recoverable amount of the Cement Business Unit (CGU) has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections {rom financial projections appi by senior

of the Group, which are part of overall business plan covering a five-year period, The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairmert testing during the current year is 16.35% (March 31,
2019: 16.84% )and cash flows beyond the five-ysar period are extrapolated using a 4.00% grewth rate which is consistent with the industry forecasts. As a result of the analysis, management did not identify
any impairment for this CGU and accordingly, there is no impairment for goodwill amount.

The bet that any y possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would rot cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable ameunt of the
cash generating uni,

Key assumptions used for value In use caleulations
The calculation of value in use for the CGLI is most itive {o the f;

EBITDA margins
EBITDA margins are eslimated based on the trend of actual EBITDA of cement segment for past 1 year preceding the beginning of the budget period.

Discount rate

Discount rates represent tho current market assessment of the risks specific to the CGU, taking Into consideration the time value of money and Individual risks of the underlying assels that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based or the specific circumstances of the Group and the CGU and is derived from its weightad average cost of capital (WACC). The
WACG takes Into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the Group's investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing bomowings the
Group is obliged to service. CGU specific risk is incorporated by applying Individuai beta factor. The bsta factor is evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate
are made tc factor in the spacific amount ard timing of the future tax fiows in order to reflact a pre-tax discount rate.

Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows boyond the forecast periad

The Group has considered growth rate of 4% ‘o exirapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period which is in line with the industry foracasts.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The implications of the key assumptiors for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

Growth rate assumptions — A reduction to 0% In the long-term growth rate would result in value in use being lower than carrying amount of the assets.

Discount rates - A rise in pre-tax discount rate tc 20.60% would result in value in use being Jowsr than the carrying amount of the assets.

EBITDA margins - A decreased demand can lead to a daciine in EBITDA, A decreass in EBITDA by 22% would result in vaiue in use being lower than carrying amount of the assats,

(ii) Amortisation of recognised goodwill

The Greup had accounted for (i} amalgamation of Adwstha Cement Holdings Limited In accordance with raquirement of Accounting Standard (AS)- 14 “Accounting for Amalgamations™ and (ji} slump exchange
of all the assets and liabllites forming part of Undertakings of Odisha Cement Limited ("ODCL') {renamed to Daimia Bharat Limited) ‘o the Parent Compary on @ going concemn basis based on allocation report
prepared in accordarce witn AS- 1C, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as referred to in various Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation sanctioned by Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunai(s).

arisen on 2 mation goodwill acquired on slump saie is beirg amortised over a period of 4 to 10 years from the appainted date, as per the provisions of respective Schemes. As a resuft
of amortisation of goodwill, profit before tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 is lower by Rs. 402 (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 420).

A includes Rs. 32 (March 31, 2019 Rs. 8) on account of accelerated amortisation of 2 particular goadwill amount from earlier policy of amortising over a period of 5 years to 4 with effect from January 1, 2013,



* Mining rights comprise:
(a) Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, Group had carried out fair valuation of mining rights of the mines at ACL (amalgamated with the Parent Company from appointed date January 1, 2015}. A sum of Rs.
194 was essigned to these mining rights.

{b) Pursi:ant to Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamalion, mining rights of the mines forming part of transfer of Lindertakings of ODCL to the Parent Company by way of skimp exchange from the appointed
dats January 1, 2015. A sum of Rs, 959 was assigned to these mining rights.

(c) Adjustment in "Mining rights' during the previous year representad mines reclamation cost frarsforred to ‘property, plant and equipment.
# Raw materials procuremant rights:

Pursuant to Schema of Ar and Amall ion, Group had vaius of Raw materials procurement rights from ODCL based on the the fair ion carried out by ind valuer as at the
appointed date January 1, 2015 at an aggregates vafus of Rs. 284.

$ Brands:

Pursuant to Scheme of A and Group had recorded value of Brands acquirea from ODCL based on the fair valuation carmed out by independent valuer, as at the appainied date

January 1, 2015 at an aggregats value of Rs. 1,991,

$$ Biological assets other than bearer piants represent ii k. The Ii k ises of milch catties and the produce Is utifised for welfare of the employses. It is measured at cost as the fair value cannot
be moasurad reliably.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limlited

Notes o tat for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
5. Investments
A. Equity shares
i) in joint as per equity method (unquoted)
7,348,000 (March 33, 2019: 7,348,000} Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in Radhixapur {West) Coal Mining 7 7
Private Limited {refer ncte (a) befow)
Less : Impairment allowance 3 (31
2 4
1,836,500 (March 31, 2019: 1,836,500) Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in Khappa Coal Company Private 2 2
Limited {refer nate (b} below)
Less: Impairment in the valus of investment . (2 . (2
(i} Others (unquoted)
36,000 (March 31, 2019: 36,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in G.S. Homes & Hoteis Private Limited 1 1
B. Debentures (unquoted) - at cost
5,900 (March 31, 2019: 5,800) zero coupon opti di convertible deb of Rs. 1,00,000/- sach 59 59
in Saroj Sunrige Private Limited {refer note (c) below)
12 (March 31, 2619: 12) 8% non convertible Secured debentures of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up in Irdian [ g
Chamber of Commerce
2 (March 31, 2019: 2) 8% non convertiole securad debentures of Rs, 25/- each partly paid up in.Indian Chamber 0 0
of Commerce
C. Others {unquoted) - at cost
S0 (March 31, 2019: 50) umits of Rs. 100" each fully paid up in Co-operative Socisty 0 0
Property Rights in Holiday Resort 0 0
[1] 64
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 64 B4
Aggregats amount of impairment In value of investments 5 5

Notes:

aj in respact of license granted for captive mining block at Radhikapur mines, a Jeint venture company viz, Radhikapur (West) Coal Mining Private Limited was Incarporated or: March 29, 2010 in which: the
Parent Company's interest jointly with OCL Iron & Steel Limited (OISL) is 14.70%. The Parent Company had Invested Rs. 7 {March 31, 2019: Rs.7) in equity shares of its joint venture which includes Rs. 4
{March 31, 2019: Rs. 4} being proportionate valus of shares to be transferred to OISL after the receipt of approval from the Ministry of Coal, Government of India and other Joint Venture Pariners.
Consaquent upon declsion of the Hon'ble Suprems Court of India canceliing the allocation of Coal block, vide Order dated Septembar 24, 2014, as a matter of prudence, a provision of Rs, 3 (March 31, 2019:
Rs. 3} was made ir: earlier years in the financial slatements.

b) The Parent Company, in joint venture with Sun Flag Iron & Stesl Limited, was allocated Khappa & Extension Coal Blosk (KECB}) by the Ministry of Caal, Gavernment of India vide their letler dated May 29,
2009 for devslopment of coa! mine and use of coal for captive mining. The Parent Company had invested Rs. 2 in aquity shares of Khappa Coal Company Private Limited and given advance against share
application maney of Rs. 4. Corsequent upon decision of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for canceliation of coal block vide order dated September 24, 2014, Group in earlier years has previded for its
expasure in its joint venture viz. Khappa Coal Company Private Limitad ameunting te Rs. 6 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 6),

¢) The investmant in zero coupon opti d ible deb of Saroj Sunrise Private Limited are in the nature of equity investmant (refer note 46()).

-

Financial assets

{i) Nen-current Investments
Al at fair value gh OCI
{)) Equity shares (unquoted)

Nil (March 31, 2019: 449} Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in Smarterhealth Techserve Private Limited - 0

Nil (March 31, 2019: 374) Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in Pumpcharge Internet Private Limited - b

Nil (March 31, 2019: 449) Shares of Rs.10/- sach fully paid up in Exchanga 4 Solar Private Limited - [}

Nil {(March 31, 2019: 145) Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in Khetify Soluticns Private Limited - Q

(il) Preference shares (unquoted)

62,621 {(March 31, 2019: 62,621) Series A1 C: isorily C rtible Participative F Shares of Rs. 100/ 21 14

each fully paid in Freight Commerce Solutions Private Limited {refer note below)

7,231 (March 31, 2019: Nil) Series A2 C ily Convertible Participative Pref Shares of Rs.100/-

each fully paid up in Freight Commerce Selutions Private Limited (refer note below) 2

B. at falr vajue gh profit or loss

Uniis of debt bassd schemes of various mutual funds {(urquoted) 0 _ 0
23 14

Aggregate book vaiue of unquoted investments 23 14

Aggregate amount cf | i in value of - -

Nots:

During the year, Group has further invested Rs. 2 (Marck 31, 2019: Rs. 14) in compulsorily convertible participative preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100/- each fully paid in Freight Gommerce Solutions
Private Limited. These CCPS carry non-cumulative dividend equal to zero point zero zero one percent (0.001%) per annum of the face value and are ir: the nature of equity, Investment In CCPS have beer
carried at fair value through other comprehensive incoms as per Ind AS 109, Accordingly, fair value gain of Rs. 7 is credited in other comprehensive income during the year.

{ii) Loans

{Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits

- Unsecured, considered good 585 49

- Unsecured, considered doubtiul 3 3
58 52

Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for doubtful advances) 3] (3;
55 49

Loans to smployses 13 10

Loans to a related party {refer note 36) N 3
66 62

No loans or advarces are due by directors or other officers of the Parent Company or any of them either severaliy or jointly with any other person. Further, no loars or advances are due by firms or private
companies in which any director is a partner, a directer or a member.
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Notes to lidated fii

~N

for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore sxcept wherever stated otherwise o Rs.
As at March 31, Ag at March 31,
2020 2019
(iii) Other financial assets
{Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Subsidies/ Incentives receivable
= Unsecured, considered good 110 338
- Unsecured, considered doubtfu 1] ]
110 336
Less: Impairment ali (alk for doubtful ) 10} (D)
110 338
Deposit with banks having remaining maturity of more than tweive menths * 16 12
Advance against share application morey 4 4
Less: ) i for doubtful ads )] G 4
Intarest recsivable 1 9
Derlvative instruments at fair value through profit and loss
Fareign currency cption contracts 5 48
132 396
* Includes Rs. 15 (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 12), deposits kept with banks against bank guarantees given / are pledged with various authorities as margin money.
Brsak up of financlal assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposils 55 49
Loans to employees 13 10
Loans - rejatea party . 3
Subsidies Incentives receivable 110 336
Depasit with banks having remaining maturity of more than twelve months 16 12
Interest receivatla 1 0
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost — 195 410
Break up of financial assets carrled at fair value through profit and ioss
Foreign currency cption contracts R 5 48
5 43
Braak up of financlal assets carried at fair value through OCI
in ily i cipative prefi shares 23 14
Investment in equity shares - [
23 14
Othar non current assets
{ d good, unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances
- Secured * 16 89
- Unsecured, considered good 177 233
- Unsecured, considared doubtful 2 2
185 324
Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for doubtfui advances) N 12} (21
193 322
Advances other than capltal advances
Prepayments 15 7
Deposit and balances with Govemment depariments and other authorities
- Unsecured, considered good 46 45
- Unsecured, considered doubtful 1 ]
47 45
Less: Impai it for doubtful advances}) {1} 0r
46 45
Other advances
- Unsecured, considered doubtful 0 0
Less: impai i {alk for doubtful advances) 1] 10}
I 254 374
* secured against bank guarantees held.
. Inventories (at lower of cost or net reallsable value)
Raw materials
Or: hand 175 221
In transit 7 11
Work in progress 113 a2
Finished goods 180 147
Stock in frade 2 92
Packing materials
On hand 35 27
In transit - 0
Fuel
On hand 270 274
In transit 31 19
Storas, spares etc,
On hand 150 158
In transit 1 1
S 974 - 1032

Amount of Rs. 6 {March 31, 2019: 19} was recognised as an expenss in respect of write down of inventory to niet realisable value.
Inventories are hypethecated against the secured borrowings of the Group as disclosad in note 18(3).




Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limited

Notes to for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
9, Flnanclal assets
(i) Current Investments
A.Investment measured at amortised cost
Commercial papers {unquoted} - 139
B.1 at fair value gh profit and loss
{a) Corporate bends {guoted) 704 464
(b} Units of debt based schemes of various mutual funds {unquoted) 888 361
(c) Al ive i fund (; ted] 10 22
{d) Certificate of deposits {quoted} 74 =
1,676 986
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 778 464
Aggregate market vaiue of quoted Investments 778 484
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 898 522
(ii} Trade receivables
Trade receivables 389 639
Receivabies from related parties (refer note 36} 9 [}
399 -~ 545
Broak-up for security details :
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good {refer note (a} below) 193 239
Unsecured, corsidered good 472 480
Trade receivables - creditimpaired 7 58
736 787
Less: Accruai for rebates / discounts (253) (175)
Less: Accrual for free supplies {14) {9
Less: Impairment { for d j )
Trade receivables - credit impaired tall {58}
[338) (242)
398 545
Notes:
(a) Secuired by way of securily deposits from or bank or letter of credit held against them.

(b} Trade receivables are retted off with blils discounted of Rs. 2 {March 31, 2018: Rs. 8}.
{c) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Parent Company either saverally or jeintly with any other person, Trade recaivabies are non-interest bearing and ars generally
on terms of 9 to 90 days.

(d) Trade receivables are hypothecated against the secured borrowings of the Group as disclosed in note 18(i).
(e} For information on financial risk management cbjectives and pelicies, refer note 39,

{iii} Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks :

- On current accounts * 029 137

- On cash credit 7 9

- On deposit accounts with original maturity of less thar: three months ** a4 95

Cheques on hand 2 27

Cash on hand 0 0
152 268

* Balances with currant accounts include Rs. 0 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 9) lying In currant account with a nationalised bank, to be operated jointly by the authorised signatories of ans of the unit of the Parsnt
Company and OGL Iron and Steel Limited in respect of coal block operations.
** Includes Rs. 0 (March 31, 2619 : Rs. 0), deposit kept with banks against bank guarantes given/ are pledged with various authorities for margin money.

For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equival ise the fell 3
Balances with banks :
- On current accounts 29 137
- On cash credit 7 9
- On deposit accounts with originai maturity of jess than three months 44 a5
Cheques on hand 2 27
Cash on hand 0 0
152 268
{Iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
Deposit accounts (with remaining maturity Less than 12 months) * 120 185
120 185
Short-term deposiis are made for varying peiods of between one day and twelve months, d ling on the il diate cash reg; of the Group, and eamn Interest at the respective shori-term deposit
rates ranging from 3.50% p.a. to 8.41% p.a. (March 31, 2018 : 5.75% p.a. - 9.00% p.a.}.
At March 31 2020, tha Group had availabie Rs. 461 (March 34, 2019: Rs. 587 ) of undrawn committed borrowing facillties.
* Includes Rs. 20 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 33), deposit receipts whereof have been kept with banks against bank guarartee given/ are pledged with various authorities.
(v} Leans
{Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwlse stated)
Security deposits 24 21
Loans to employess 8
Loans to a related party {refer note no 38) 3 -
Loans to others 3 3
38 k|
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All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

-
=

{vi) Other financial assets
{Unsecured, consldered good unless atherwise stated)

Subsidies receivable
- Unsecured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

- Less: Impairment aliewance (allowance for doubtful advances)

Interest receivable
- Unsecured, considered good */™
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

-Less: | i it for doubtful advances)

Other financial asselts
- Unsecured, cansidered good
- Ursecured, considered doubtful

- Less: Impalmment allowance (alfowance for doubtful advances}

Financlal assets carried at fair vajue through statement of profit or loss
Fareign ncy for plion -

*includes Rs. 1 (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 1 from a related parly (refer note 36).

** includes interest raceivable of Rs. 32 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 28) on corporate bonds, cerlificate of deposits and commercial papers insluded in current investments under rote afi).

Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
597 552
0 0
597 552
— 10} 10}
597 552
39 41
0 - )
39 41
{0) 10}
39 41
" 12
1] 0
11 12
{0} (0}
" 12
——— 50 14
897 619

*** Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss refiect the positive change in fair value of those foreign currency option contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are,

nevertheless, intended to reduce the level of foreign currercy risk for payments of funds borrowed.

Broak up of financlal assets carried at amortised cost

Investment in commercial papers
Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Otker bank balances

Loans fo employees

Loans - related party

Loans ta others

Subsidies/ Incentive recelvable
Interest receivable

Sacurity deposit

Other financial asssts

k up of financial assets carried at fair value throu rofit or loss
Investment in corporate bonds
Investment in mutual funds
Investment in certificate of deposits
Investment in alternative investment fund
Foreign currency forward / optian contracts

. Other current assets

(Unsecured and cons!dered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances other than capltal advances
Advances to suppliers

- Secured {refer note below)

- Unsecured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: impairment allowance for doubtful )

Prepayments

Daposit and baiances with govarmment departments and other autharities
- Unsecured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: impairment aliowance (allowance for doubtful advances)
Qther receivables:

- Related party {refer note 36)
- Others

Note:

Secured by way of a first ranking exclusive charge over the Hypothecated Property as prescribed in Daed of Hypothecation dated March 17, 2017,

. Assets held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale

Certain: plant and equi and vehicles classified as held for sale during the reporting
resulting 'n the recognitior: of a write down of Rs. 0 (March 31, 2019: Rs, 0} as dep!

market comparison approach.

398
152
120

25
136

(8}
181

20
225
1
226

A1y
225

2
2

139

268
185

552
M
21

1773

464
351

22

14
861

43

380

a

1

period was measured at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell at the time of the reclassification,
4 of profit and loss. The fair value of the plant and equipment was determired using the



Dalmla Csment {Bharat} Limited

Notas to for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Re. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwlse Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2018
12. Share Capltal
Authorised :
385,358,000 (March 31, 2019: 385,350,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 385 385
30,000,000 {March 31, 2019: 30,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 300 309
723,000,000 {March 31, 2019: 723,000,000} Unciassified Shares of Rs. 10/- each 723 — 723
1,408 a0
Issued, subscribad and fuily paid up :
314,045,287 (March 31, 2019: 314,045,267) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each - 314 314
314 314
a. Reconclliation of aquity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares Rs, No. of shares Rs.
Atthe beginning of the year 31,40,45,267 314 23,42,51,187 234
Issued during the year * - - 7,97,94,080 8C
Attha ena of the year 31,40,45,267 314 _31,40,45,267 314

* During the previous year, Parent Company had alloted 79,784,080 squity shares of Rs, 16/~ each fully paid up tc Dalmia Bharat Limited {formerly krown as Qdisha Cement Limited), pursuant to Scheme of
Arrangemsnt and Amalgamation approved by NCLT, Chennai Bench.

b, Terms/ rights attached te equity shares

The Parent Campany has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share, Each equity sharsholder is entitled to ane vote per share.

The Parent Ci decl and pays divid in Indian rupees. In the event of dividend proposad by the Board of Directors, it shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which is paid as and when declared by the Board of Directors.

In the evert of liquidation of the Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Parent Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The d'stribution
will be ir proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

<. Equity shares held by holding company

As al March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
Dalmia Bharat Limited (including its nominees) (formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited} 31,40,45,267 314 31,40,45,267 314
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Parent Company
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Dalmia Bharat Limited (including its neminees) (formerly knowr: as Odisha Cement Limited) 31,40,45,267 100.00% 31,4045,267 100.00%
©. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up issued during the year 2018-19 to Dalmia Bharat Limitad (formerly 7,97,84,080 7.97,94,080

known as Odisha Cement Limited), pursuant to Scheme of Arangement and Amalgamation

f. Shares reserved for Issue under options

Information related to DBL. ESOP Scheme 2018, including details of opticns issued, exercised and lapsed during the financlal year and options outstanding at the end of the reporling period, is sat out in note
3.

QOther equity

Capital reserve

Opering balance as per last financial statements 2 2
Less: Reieased during the ysar {9} )]
Closing balance 2 2

Securities pramlum
Opening balance as per last financial statements 6,563 443
Add: Premium or: aliotment of equity shares pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation -
Less: Share issue expenses [
Closing balance 6,562

Debenture redemption reserve
Opening balance as per last financial statements 250 285

Add: Created during the year - 27
Less: Released during the year 1185) S {82)
Closing balance 58 250
Share based payment reserve

Opening balance as per last financlal statements 18 14
Add: Addltion during the year 2 = 4

Closing balance 20 . | 1




Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limlted
Notes to i dfl

for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Rs. are in Rs. Crore sxcept wherever stated otherwise Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
General reserve
Opening balance as per last financial statements 1 1
Add: Transfer from surplus balarce in statement of profit and loss 1 0
Closing balance 2 = 1
Exch: diff on ing the of a foreign operations
Cpening balance as per last financial statements 1 [
Additians during the year 7 i
Closing balance k] 1
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financiaj statements 2,104 1,874
Add: Amount from deb d ion reserva 195 62
Profit for the year 179 245
Items of OCI directly in ined
- Re-measurement (loss) on definad benefit plan (net of tax) {6) {10)
Add: Transfer to ratained eamings on disposal of equily instruments through OCI {0) -
Less; Appropriations
Transferred ta deberture rademption reserve - 27
Transfer to general reserve 1 0
Dividends paid 77 a3
Tax on dividends 18 7
Total appropriations 94 67
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss = 2,378 — 2,104
Other comprehensive income
Opening balance as per last financial statements E
Add: Changes during the year 5
Less: Transfer ta retained earnings on disposal of equity instruments through OCI ] —
5 -
Total other squity ~ 9,032 o
Dividy made and proposed

1

r~

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid :

Final dividend for the year ended March 34, 2019: Rs. 1,229 per share (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1.044 per share) 39 33
DODT on final dividend 8 7
Interim dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2020: Rs. 1.229 per share (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil} 39 -
DDT on interim dividend 8 -
93 40
Proposed dividends on equity shares:
Final cash dividend far the ysar ended on March 31, 2020 : Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 1.229 per share) - 39
DT on proposed dividend - B
- 47

Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to approval at the annual genera meeting and is nat recognised as a liability (including DDT therecr) as at March 31, 2019,
On February 8, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company declared an interim dividena of Rs, 33 for the financla! year 2018-20, which has been paid during the year 2019-20,

Description of nature and purposa of each reserve

(a) Capital reserve- Capital reseive includes amount created during consolidation.

(b) Securities pramium- The amount recsived in excess of face value of the equity shares is racognised in Securiies Premium. The reserve Is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(¢} Debenture redemption resarve (DRR}- The Group has isstred red ble nor ible deb gly, the C: ies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amerded), raquire
the Group fo create DRR oz of profits available for payment of dividend. DRR is required to be created for an amount which is equal ta 10% of the vaiue of debenturos issted by the Parant Company.

{d} Shars based payment reserve- The Parent Company measures and ises the ialed with share-based payment awards made to employeas based on esti falr values

by the holding company. Refer rnote 31 for further datails,

{8) General reserve- The Group has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Grouip before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of C ies Act, 1956. Yy
transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

[f) Exch: diffe on the fi fal of a foreign are ised in other compr ive income as ibed in ing policy and accumuiated in a
separate reserve within equity. The amount is ified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

{g) Retalned eamIings- Retalned earnings are the profits that the Group has eamed tilf date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or ather distrioutions pald to shareholders. Retained eamings is
a free reserve available to the Group.

(h) Equity i gh Other C: hensive I The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of i in equity i in other p! iva income. These
charges are accumulated within the 'Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income’ within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to refained earnings when the relevant equity
securities ars derecognised.

. Flnancial liabilities

(i). Borrowings

Secured N
F tibie deb {refar sub note 1 balow) 718 1,379
Less: Bhown in current ities of long term b ngs (474) (5401
244 839
B. Term loans:
i. From banis (refer sub note 2 balow)
a. Foreign currency loan 578 573
b. Indlan rupee ican from banks 2,820 2,365
Less: Shown in current maturities of long term b ing 613} . 1106)
2,785 2,832
ii. From finanicial institution (refer sub note 3 below) - 7
Less: Shown in current maturitiss of Jong lerm borrowings - (2}
- 5
iit. From others (refor sub note 4 below) 207 275
Less: Shown in currant maturities of long term borrowings 11071 (25)
100 250
€. Defarred payment liabilitiss (refer sub rots 5 below 19 15
Less: Shown in current ities of ong term b ing! > {1 o -
18 4
D. Finance {ease obligation (refer sub note & below) - 1
Less: Shown in current maturities of long term borrowings = - _{or

Total (1) 3147 3942




Dalmla Cement (Bharat) Limited

Notes to lidated financlal stat: for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019

Unsscurad

E. Foraign currency loans from banks (rsfer sub note 7 balow) 358 348

Less: Showr: In current maturities of long term borrowings - (2771

358 89

F. Redesmable prefsrence shares (refer sub note 8 below) 1 1

Less: Shown in current maturities of fong term borrowings (1) -

G. Long term oans and depaosits from a related party - 5

Less: Shown in current maturities of long term borrowings - 15

H. Loan from cthers (refer sub note 9 below) 2 2

Less: Shown in current maturities of iong term borrowings {2 -

- 2

Total (1) 358 72

Total non current borrowings {I) +(Jl) 3,508 - 4,014

Total current maturitles of long term borrowings disclosed In note 18{lli) — 1,199 955

1)  Debentures referred to in A above to the extent of:

) 9.91% Series B Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs, 197) were redeemable in January 2020, The debentures are fully repaid during the year.

iy 9.91% Series C Rs. 182 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 296) are redeemable in January 2021, The debentures are partially early redesmed during the year,

In respect of (i) and (i) above, debenturas are secured by first pari-passu charge on movable and immovable property, plant and equipment (both present and fulure) of cement units of Parent
Company situated at Rajgangpur Cement Works (Qdiska), Kapiias Cement Manufacturing Works {Cuttack and Jajpur) and OCL Bengal Gement Works (Midnapors, Wesl Bergal),

i} 10.75% Series 1A Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 34) were secured by first pari-passu chargs on (a) land, building, assets, plant & equipment of Dalmiapuram unit of Parent Company and (b) plot at
Gujarat and red ble ir: three yearly instaiments in the ratio of 33:33:34 commencing from January 2018. The debentures are fully repaid during ths year.

Iv)  10.75% Series Il A,B,C and Series IV P,Q,R Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 70) were secured by first parl-passu charge on movable and immovable property, plant and equipment (both present and
future) of DalmiapLram unit of Parent Company in respect of Series [l A,B,C and and | ble property, piant and i {excluding plant and equipment charged on exclusive basis to
spacific lenders) (both present and future) of Kadappa and Ariyalur units in respect of Series Ill P,Q,R and redesmable in three yearly instalments commencing from August 2017, The debentures are
fully repaid during the year.

v) 8.85% Rs. 85 (March 31, 2018: Rs, 125; are secured by first pari-passu charge over ¥ and i ble property, plant and equipment of Dalmiapuram, Kadappa and Ariyaiur units of
Parant Company and redeemable in October 2019 and October 2020,

vi)  8.70% Rs. 20 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 20) are securad by first pari-passu charge over specified and i property, plant and i of Dalmi ppa and Ariyalur units of
Parent Company and redeemabis in Oclober 2021.

vii) 9.90% Rs. 399 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 599) are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on all movable and immovable property, plant and equipment (both present and future) of cament units of
Parent Company situated at Rajgangpur Cement Works (Odisha), Kapilas Cement Manufacturing Works (Cutiack & Jajpur) and OCL Bengal Cement Works (Midnapore, West Benga!) and

i in three yearly ) ing from March 30, 2020.

viii) Rs. 32 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 38} ars sacured by creating mortgage on iand at Chimur, Distt. Chandrapur, Maharashira in favour of Debenture Trustess ramely IDBI Trustsoship Services Ltd., Mumbai
besides mertgage on all other immovable properties of Daimia DSP Limited, a iary of the Group, acq under || y antt Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC} during the previous year. As per
approved Resolution Plan, the halders of NCD shall be paid an amount of Rs. 80 towards full and final settisment of all duas including any default interest or any other charges. 50% of the settlement
amount was paid within 30 days from the effective date and balance is payable in five equal annual Instaliments starting fram July 10, 2019,

2)  Term leans from banks referred to In B (i) above to the extent of :

I} Rs. 376 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 384; are secured by first pari-passu chargs i ing mortgage on and bie fixed assels of cement units of Parent Company at Kadappa and Ariyalur
{excluding Vertical Roller Mills at Kadappa and Ariyalur), at 1 year MCLR plus 0.30% p.a. (present 8.20% p.a). It is repayabls in unegual quarterly instalments starting from June 2015 till March 2030.

i} Rs. 462 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 464) ars secured by first pari-passu charge on entire property, plant and ip ble and i ble} of cement unit of Parent Company located at Belgaum,
Kamataka both present & future (except specific equipment financed by ECA) at * year MCLR plus 0.30% p.a. {present 8.20% p.a). It is repayabls in unequal quartsrly instalments starting from March
2017 il March 2031.

iii)  Rs. 338 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 345) are secured by way of first pari-passu charge over movable and immovable property, plant and equipment pertaining to cement units of Parent Company at Kadappa
and Ariyalur {axcluding Vertical Roller Mills at Kadappa and Ariyalur) at 3 months MCLR pius 0,20% p.a. (present 8.20% p.a). It is repayable in unequal quarterly instalments starting from March 2019
1l March 2030,

iv) Rs.288 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 289) carrying interest rate at 1 Year MCLR plus 0.40% p.a. {present 8.30% p.a) are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on property, plant and equipmant (mavable
& immovable) of the cement plant of Parent Comp: located at both present and future (except specific equipment financed by ECA lenders). it is repayable in unequal guarterly
instalments starting from March 2017 till December 2031,

v)  Rs. 192 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 192) carrying interest rate at 6 morths MCLR plus 0.45% p.a. (present 8.25% p.a) are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on property, plant and equipment
{mavable & immovabie) of the cement plant of Parent Company located at Belgaum, Karnakata both present and future (except specific equipment financed by ECA lenders). It is rapayatla in unequai
quarterly instalments starting frem March 207 till December 2031,

vi)  Rs. 455 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 423) camrying interest at & months EURIBOR plus 2.50% p.a. secured by way of first pari-p: charge on hyp over and movable fixed assets of power plant
assets of Parent Company located at Dalmiapuram, Ariyalur and Belgaum. The loan was availed in foreign currency and is repayable after 36 months from date of first disbursement i.e. May 31, 2017,

vi) Rs. 24 {March 31, 2018: Rs. 31) carrying interest al 6 months LIBOR pius 2.05% p.a (present 3,99% p.a) are secured by way of exclusive charge on Roller Press acquired through this loan for projects
at Belgaum of Parent Company. The loan was availed in foreign currency and is repayable in 16 haif yearly instalments of USD 637,110 each starting from October 2014 till May 2022,

viii) Rs. 113 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 130) carrying interest at 1 year MCLR plus 0.30% p.a (present 8.85% p.a) are secured by mortgage and first charge on all the movabile and Immovabie fixed assets (both
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) of the cemsnt unit of Parent Company located at Meghalaya (bath present and future) and second charge on all cther asssts of the unit. All the
above charges rank parl- passu Inter-se amongst various lenders. Repayable in 32 structured quarterly instalments starting from June 30, 2015 to Marck: 31, 2023,

i) Rs. 249 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 264) camrying interes! at & months MCLR plus 0.45% p.a (present 8.45% p.a) are secured by first - pari passu charge by way of morigage and hypothecation over all
i ble properties ai fixed assets of the cement units of Parent Company situated at Raj Cement Works {Odisha), Kapilas Gement Manufacturing Warks (Cuttack), OCL Bangal
Cement Works (Midnapare, West Bengal) {osth present and future). The loan s repayable in 48 structured g y i s ing from March 2018,

x)  Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 0) carried interest rate of 10,00% p.a was secured by way of first and exclusive charge on the vehicias purchase therefrom in Parent Company. The loan was repayabie in
60 morthly instalments of Rs. 0 each ing from February 2015,

xi} Rs. 98 (March 31, 2019: Re. 198) carrying interest rate at 6 months LIBOR plus 1.94% p.a, are secured by first - pari passu charge by way of morigage and nypothecation over all immovable
properties and movable fixed assets of the cement units of Parent Company situated at Rajgangpur Cement Works {Odisha), Kapilas Cement Manufacturing Werks (Cultack and Jajpur), OCL Bengal
Cement Warks (Midnapore, West Bergal) {both present and future). Tne loan is repayabis in 8 half yearly instalmant of USD 2,142,857.10 each starting from December 15, 2019 and ons instalment on
USD 2,285,714.83 on December 15, 2022.

i) Rs. 210 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 217) carrying interest at 1 year MCLR plus 0.25% p.a. {present 9.00% p.a.) are secured by first pari - passu charge on all movable and immovable fixed assets (both
present ang future) of the cement unit of Parent Compary located at Jharkhand Cement Works, Bekaro, The loan is repayable in unegual 54 d quarterly i of ing from
November 2016.

i) Rs. 534 (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil} carrying interest at 1 year MCLR pius 0.75% (present 8.90% p.a.} are secured by first pari. ) charge an ble and ie property, piant and equipment

ng i
{both present and future) of cement units of Parent Company situated at Rejgangpur Cement Warks (Qdiska), Kapilas Cement Manifacturing Works (Cutack & Jajpur), OCL Bengal Cement Warks
{Midnapore, West Bengal} and Village Chak Sarupan {Vaishali, Bihar). The ioan is repayable in 52 unequal quarterly instalments commencing from February 2022.




Dalmla Cement {Bharat) Limlted
Notes to L/ for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore sxcept wherever stated otherwise

xiv) Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019 : 45) was primarily secured by way of equitable motgage created on factory land and buildings and hypothecation chargs on all movable and immovable assets {both prasent
ana future), excluding iand of Alsthom Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Besides the above, loan was additionally secured by way of corporate guarantee given by hoiding company of step-
down subsidiary. The loan was in 108 monthly Instal starting from June, 2018. The loar: Is fully repaid during the year,

xv) Rs. Nit (March 31 2019: Rs. 36} carvied interest rate at 1 year MCLR plus 0.10% p.a. to 1.50% p.a., were secured by first pari passu charge on entire property, p'ant and equipment (immovable and
movable assets) and intangibie assets, both present and future of Calcom Cement India Limited (Caicom), a subsidiary of the Group and second pari-passu charge on all ather assets of Calcom.
These loans were also secured by way of pledge of equity shares of Calccm heid by its P their relatives and two idiaries of Calcom. Further, secured by personal guarantee of
ane director and two former directors of Calcom, During the year, these loans {irciuding interest acerued) are taken over by its Holding company i.¢. Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited aggregating to Rs.

34 from the bank after entering into Novation agreement with Calcom along with the bank.

3)  Term loans from financial institution referred to In B {ii) abova to the extent of:

iy Rs.Nil {March 31 2019: Rs. 7) carried interest at 1 year MCLR plus 0.10% p.a were sscured by first pari passu charge on entire property, plant and equip {r ble and § } and i i
assets except assets charged exclusively to banks/ Fls for other specific purposes of Calcom, Further secured by second pari passu charge on all other assets of Calcom. The loar: was repayable in 31
structured quarterly instalments starting from April 1, 2014 to October 1, 2021, The loan is fully repaid during the year.

4}  Term loans fram others referred to In B (iil) above to the extent of:

i} Term loan in form of government grant of Rs. 163 (March 31, 2019: Rs, 163) carrying interest @ 0.10% p.a., are secured by way of first pari-p charge on and il properties of
cement unit of Parent Company at Dalmigpuram and is repayable in five unequal instaiments sterting from April 2019 ill Aprit 2023. The aforesaid loan was existing al the date of transilion to Ind AS
i.e. April 1, 2015 and thus carried at historical cost by applying the exemption of ind AS 104.

ii)  Term loan in form of gavernment grant of Rs, 44 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 40} carrying interest @ 0.10% p.a. are secured by way of second pari-p: charge on and i properties of
cement units of Parent Company iocated at D: and Ariyalur. Repayment schedule is ye! to be finalised. Loan was received post transiion to Ind AS and accounted at fair vakue with a
difference being recognised as government grant (refer note 17(ji)).

i) Rs. Nii (March 31, 2618 Rs. 72) were secured by morigage and first pari pasu charge on all the movable and immovable properties (both tangibla and intangible) of Calcom, both present and future
and a second parl pasu charge on the entire assets of Calcom. The loan Is repayable In 31 structured instalments starling from April 2019 tll October 2021 and carried interest @ 3 months Libor plus
2.50% p.a. The loan was availed in foreign currency. During the curvent year, Group has repaid the remaining amount of loan of Rs. 66 and written back Rs, 6 as per final settlement.

5)  Deferrad payment liabilities referred to in C above to the extent of:
b} Rs. 6 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 5} interest free loan in respect of 14.50% p.a of VAT paid within Karnataka on the sale of gocds produced at Belgaum plant of Parent Company located at Kamnataka from
March: 28, 2015 to December 31, 2016. The loan is secured by way of a bank guarantee issued by Parent Company and is repayable in 12 yearly equa! instalments starting from March 17, 2030, Loan
i post ition to Ind AS are at fair valiie with a difference between the gross proceeds and fair value of the ioan belng recognised as government grant (refer note 17(jii}).

i) Rs.3(March 31, 2019: Rs. 2} interest free loan in respect of 14.50% p.a of VAT paid within Kamataka on the sale of goods produced at Belgaum plant of Parent Company located at Kamataka from
January 2017 to June 2017, The loan is sacured by way of a bank guarantee issued by Parent Company and is repayable in 12 yearly equai instalments starting from March 17, 2031, Loan recsived
post itan to Ind AS are ised at fair valus with a difference between the gross proceeds and fair value of the loan being recognised as government grant {refer note 17ii).

iii}  Rs.7 (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil) interest free loan in respect of 14% p.a of SGST paid within Kamataka on the sale of goods produced at Belgaum plant of Parent Company located at Kamataka from
July 2017 to March 2019, The loan Is secured by way of a bank guarantse Issued by Parent Company and is repayable in 12 yearly equai Instalments starting from March 5, 2033. Loan received post
transition to ind AS are recognised at fair valus with a difference between the gross proceeds and fair valus of the loan is being recognised as govemmant grant {refer note 17(iii)).

v) Rs. 3 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 7) interest free central excise loan from Government of India disbursed through IECI Limited is secured by creating mortgage on immovable properties of Dalmia DSP

Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. As per appraved Resoiution Plan by NGLT, an amount equal to 50% of total loan shall be paid within 3C days from the sffective date (i.e. July 10, 2018) and balance
S0% is payable in five equal annual installments starting from July 16, 2019,

6) Land [ease obligation referred to in D above were included in borrowings untl! March 31, 2019, but were reclassified to lease liabilities on April 1, 2019 i the process of adopting the new leasing
. Such cbligation is during lease period of 8C to 99 years. This is secured against lsased assets and carry interest @ 10,00% p.a,

7)  Forelgn currency loans referred to in E above to the extent of:

i) Rs. Nil (March 31, 2018: Rs. 173) carrying interest at 3 months LIBOR plus 1.80% p.a. and is repayable at the end of 15 months from date of disbursement i.e. February 25, 2018. The loan was fully
repaid during the year.

ii)  Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 69) carrying interest at 3 months LIBOR plus 2.56% p.a. and is repayable at the snd of 3 years from date of disbursement i.e. February 15, 2018, Thae loan was fully repaid
during the year.

iy Rs, Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 104) carrying interest at 3 months LIBOR plus 2.15% p.a, and Is repayable at the end of 445 days from the date of disbursement i.e. July 2, 2018, The loan was fully repaid
during the year.

v} Rs. 158 (March 34, 2019: Rs, Nil) carrying Interest at 3 months LISOR plus 2.40% p.a, and is repayabls al the end of 15 months from the date of disbursement .. February 24, 2020,

v)  Rs.200 (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil) carrying Interest al 6 menths EURIBOR plus 2.50% p.a, and is repayable at the end of 3 years from date of disbursement i.e. March 15, 2020.

8)  Redeemabls Preference Shares referred to In F above to the extent of:
i) 0% redeemable preference shares of Rs.10 each, issued by subsidiaries of the Group at a premium of Rs.10/- per share. The holder of redeemabla preference shares shail not be entitled for preferrad
dividend. Al 0% redeemabie preferencs shares shall be redeemed o the redemption date, being 12.5 years from the dats of their allotment i.e. Novembar 2020,

9)  Loan from others reffered to H above to the extent of:
Loan from others of Rs. 2 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 2) avalled by one of the subsidiary of the Group, Is interest free joan and repayshle as per approved Resalution Plan,

(iii}. Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 35) -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Fer maturity profile of trade payables, refer note 39.

{Iv). Other financial liabllities
Security deposits received - 2

Interest rate swap contract 2 .
Payable for purchase of property, plant and eguipment 1 4
3 6
Einanclal llabliitles carried at amorlised cost
Borrowings 3,505 4,014
Non-current leass liabilities (refer note 32) 45 -
Trade payables 3 -
Security deposits received - 2
Payable for purchass of property, plant and equipment 1 4
3,554 - 4,020

Financla] ljabliities carried at fair value through profit and loss

Interest rate swap contract

NN




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to i fi
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

for the year ended March 31, 2020

As at March 31,
2020
14A, Other non current liabilities
Statutery dues * 94
o4

Rs.
As at March 31,
2018

* Above dues are payable by the Group after two years maratorium pariod from sffective dats 1.6, July 10, 2018 in five equal annual installments subject to grant of incentive from State Govemment of Bihar

as per approvad Resolution Pian in case of subsidiary of the Group namely Dalmia DSP Limited,

. Provislons

For mings reciamation lianility (refer note 41) 53 43

For gratuity {refer note 30) 82 67

For contingencies {refer note 41) 4 o _38
119 148

Income taxes

(i) The major components of income tax expense for the years anded March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:

Profit or less section:

Current income tax :

Current income tax chargs 95 84

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (6 2

Deferred tax :

Reslation to origination of temporary differences 79 {40)

MAT credit entitlement ©@2) (83)

Adjustmant of tax refating 1o earlier years 30 .8

Income tax (credit) rep: 1 in the of praofit or loss 106 (29)

QCi section:

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Net loss on re-measuremerd of defined benefit plan 3 5

Change in fair value on financial instruments through OCI {2)

Income tax credit charged to OCI 1

(i) Recongiliation of tax expsnse and the accounting profit multiplled by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

Accounting profit before tax 239 257

Applicabie tax rate 25,00%-34.944% 25.00%-34.944%

Computed tax expense 102 90

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 24 1

Recognition of deferred tax credit on account of application of indexation benefit on ‘Land' {2) {45)

Racognition of defermed tax credit on origination and reversal of temparary differences for garlier years - {111

Unrecognised tax assets 24 13

Temporary difference reversing within tax holiday period (refer note 29tvi)) (63} 21

Amortisaticn of goodwill in books as niot ible in provision for tax 25 18

Other non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 1 ()]

Change in dsfarred tax balances due to change in incoms tax rates - 2

Realisation of brought forward long term capita! loss nof recognised in the books dus io prudence [ {11}

Others o 14 (18]

Incame tax reported In statement of profit and loss 106 [29)

On September 20, 2018, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the Govarnment of !ndia inserted Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies with an
optian to opt far lower tax rates effective 1st April, 2019 subject to certain conditions. The Group is currently in the pracess of evaluating this option and has considered the rate existing prior to the Ordinance
far the purpose of these financial statements,

(ili) Defarred tax:
Rs.
Deforred tax relates to the following: Balance sheet Statement of profit or loss
As at March 31,  As at March Year ended Year ended
2020 n, March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2019
Deferrad tax liabilities
Praperty, plant and equipment (including goodwiil and other intangibie assets) 2,372 2,887 {315} 82
Others 91 1 90 (4}
Total deferred tax flabllities 2,463 2,688 [225) - 58
Deferred tax assets
Expenditure debited in statement of profit and loss but for tax in quent k) 53 19 {15)
Carry forward of tax losses/ unabsorbed depreciation 745 1,054 309 {57
Otners 25 30 5 (23]
Total deforred tax assets = 804 1137 333 (951
Deforred tax expense/ {income) 108 (37}
Daferred tax liabllities (net) 1,659 1,551 108 @7
MAT credit entitlement 369 272
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,290 1,279
Recencliiation of deferred tax liabilities (net):
Opening kalance as at Apri; 4 1,279 1,
Tax expense during the year recogrised in profit or Joss 109 {32)
Tax expense during the ysar recognised in OC! (1} (5)
MAT credit entitiement {97} 28]
Closing balance as at March 31 1,290 1,279

The Graup offsets tax assels and liabilties if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assats and deferred ‘ax liabilites reiate to
income taxes ievied by the same tax authority.

The Group has unabsorbed deprecialion and business losses, that are availabie for offsetting against future taxable profits of the company in which the undepreciation depreciation or busines |osses arisen,
The management at the end of eash raporting psriod, asseses Group's ability to recognise deferred tax asse!s on tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation carried forward, taking into account forecasts of

future taxable profits and the law and jurisdiction of the taxable items and the assumptions an which these proj are based.The based on the futire profitability projsctions, is confident
that there would be sufficient taxable profits in the future which will enable the Group to utilise the abave MAT credit entitiement and carried forward tax losses and unabsorbed deprecialion,

The amortisation of goodwill arising pursuant fo Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation has besn treated as deductible expsnse under Section 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on the basis of judicial
proncuncements and legal opinion by the Parent C




Dalmia Comont {Bharat} Limited

Notes to for the year snded March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. ara in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise . Rs.
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
17. Government grant
(i) Deferrod capital investmant subsidy (refer sub note (a) below)
At the beginning of the year &9 77
Accrual during the year - -
Released to the statement of profit and loss (refer note 2A(vi)) {12) (2)
Adjustment on account of short approval of subsidy claim 10} 61
At the end of the year o 57 69
(i) Deferred export promotian capital gocds(Refer sub note (b) below)
Atthe beginning of the year H 18
Released to the statement of prefit and loss {1 {43}
Other adjuistment B o 4)
At the end of the year - 1
(lil) Deferred government grant{Refer sub nots (c) below}
Released to the statement of profil and joss 59 47
Accrual during the year 30 17
Released to the statemer: of profit and loss - __ |8 5)
At the end of the year 83 59
Total (Ip+(ify+{ili) ) 140 129
Nen current 122 118
Current 18 10
Notes:
(a} The Group has received grant towards capital i under ‘State | P Scheme’ as compensation fer expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial suppart to the Group with no future refated costs. The grant is recognised in staterent of profi and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets.
(b} Based or: the fulfil;ment of export abligations i.e. export of goods to customers within spacified perlod, Group has recagnised government grant (io the extent of custom duty saved or: import of plant

()

and equipments and deferred until the achievement of specified conditions) in the statement of profit and loss.

The benefil of a government loan at below current market rate of interest is treated as a govermant grant. The loan is ised and din with Ind AS 109, The benefit of the
below marke! rate of interest/ interest free loans is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the ioan determined In accardance with Ind AS 109 (at Falr Value) and the pracesds

ived, 1t grant is ised in the of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the period of the loan during which the entity recogrises as interest expense, the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate,

18. Financial liabilities

-

2)

31

4)

5)

6)

7

Borowings
Secured
{a} Cash credit from banks 10 51
{b} Working capital loan from banks 176 -
{c) Foreign currency loan from banks:
- Buyer's credit 360 276
- Supplier's credit - 18
- Packing credit forsign currency Z 3
Total (A) 553 348
Unsecured
{d) From a related party (refer note 36} 5 -
{e) From others 16 18
{f) Commercial papers 844 544
{g) Foreign currency Isan from banks:
- Buyer’s credit 28 - -
Total (B) 693 — 560
Total short term borrowings (A+B) 1,248 9208

Cash credit from Banks referred to in A above to the extent of:
(i) Rs. 10 (March 31, 2019 Rs. 49) are secured by hypothecation of Inventaries and trade receivables of Parent Company by way of first pari passu charge with ail other banks in the consortium and
cary interest rate in the range of 7.60% p.a. to 8.37% p.a. (March 31, 2019: 8.50% p.a. to 10.35% p.a.).

(if) Rs. Nil {March 31, 2019 : Rs. 2) were primarily secured by | on charge on the current assets of subsidiary, Dalmia DSP Limited, both present and future, and collaterally secured by factory
fand and buiidi al! plant & ies and other le assets of the said subsidiary, both present and futurs. This loan carried an interest rate of 0.15% above 1 year MCLR and was repayable
on demand.

Working capltal ioan from banks referred to in B above to the extent of:
Rs. 176 {March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil} are secured by way of first pari passu charge over all current asssts of the Parent Company and carrying interest rate in the range of 7.60% p.a. {6 8.30% p.a.

Farainn currency loans from banks refarred to in (¢} above to the extent of:

{i) Rs. 360 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 276} are secured by consortlum: bankers on the security of hypothecation of inventories ard trade recsivables of Parent Company, In their favour ranking pari- pasu on
inter se basis repayable in less than one year and carry interest rate at & months/ 12 months LIBOR plus 0.30% p.a. to 0.48% p.a. (presently 1.08% p.a. to 2.55% p.a.) (March 31, 2019: 2.82% p.a. to
3.92% p.a).

(it} Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 18) were secured by consortium bankers on the security of hypothecalion of inventories and trade receivables of Parent Company In their favour ranking pari- pasu on
inter s basis repayable in less than one year and carried intorest rate at 6 months LIBOR plus 0.46% p.a. {l.e. 3.05 % p.a.).

(i} Rs. 7 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 3) are secured by hypothecation of inventariss and trade receivables of Parent Company by way of first pari passu charge with ali other banks in the consorum
repayable in lsss than one yzar, These packing credit foreign currency lcans carry the interest rate of 2.00% p-a. to 2,84% p.a. {March 31, 2019: 2.00% p.a. lo 4.74% p.a.}.,

Laan from a related party referred to in {d) above carry intersst rate of 8.00% p.a and is repayable in November 2020 with renawal option,

Loan from others refarred to In () above fo the extent of:
{#) Rs. 7 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 7} from bedies corporate are repayable on demand and carry interest @ 18% p.a.

(il) Rs. 9 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 9) payable by Dalmia DSP Limited, a subsldiary of the Group, to unsscured financial creditors towards full and final ssttlemant of their claims as per Resolutlon Plan
approved by NCLT. The amount shall be paid within 30 days from the effective date subject to grant of incentive from State Governmert of Bikar to subsidiary as specified in the app: d ion
plan.

Commerclal papers referred tc in {f) above are payable In three months and carry interest rate in the range of 5.65% p.a. to 5.90% p.a. (March 31, 2019: 7.40% p.a. 'o 7.70% p.a.).

Buyer’s credit from a bank referred to In (g) above is repayable in less than one year and carry interest rate at 12 months LIBOR plus 0.37% p.a. (presently 2.35% p.a.).



Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to lidated fi

for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts stated In Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwlse Rs,
As at March 31, As at March 31,
— 2020 2018
(il). Trade payables
Tola! outstanding dues of micro and smali enterprises {refer note 35) 13 6
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprisas * 828 814
841 920
* Trade payables include due to related parties Rs. 17 (March 31, 2019; Rs. 52) (refer note 36;
For maturity profile of trade payables and other financial llabilities, refer note 39.
(iv}. Other financlal liabllities
Current maturities of long term barrowings {refer note 14(1}) 1,189 955
Current maturities of finance lease obligations {refer note 14(i)) - ]
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 24 44
Interest accrued and due on borowings 18 7
Security deposits recslved 497 403
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment {including payable to reiated parties Rs.
4 (Mareh 31, 2019: Rs. Nil}} (refer note 36) # 140 120
Accrued employee liabilities (including payable to related parties Rs. 1 (March 31, 2018: Rs. Nil)) 81 58
{refer note 36)
Fareign currency opfion contracts/ interest rate swap contract - 3
Directors' cammission payable 1 1
Purchase consideration payable * 3c 41
QOther liabilities 2¢ 32
18 57 )
Notes:
* payable Inch

19.

a} Consideratior: of Rs. 30 payabie upan fulfilment of certain project conditions as part of Shareholders Agresment, In the evant, projact conditions are not fulfilled, Bawri Group (BG), other sharsholder of

Calcom, Is obligated to refund Rs. 32 out of tranche 1 payment mads by the Parent Company to BG, As the project conditions were not
Compary and claim of Rs, 32 has been made. The matter is currently under arbitration. Refer note 45(i) for terms and conditions,

0} Rs. Nil {March 31, 2018: Rs. 11) towards purchase consideration payable agairst earlier years.

#including dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises of Rs. 4 (March 31, 2019: Rs, Nil) {refer note 35).

Financlal liabllitles carried at amortised cost

Borrowings

Leass liabilities(refer note 32)

Trade payables

Current maturities of long term borrowings
Interest acerued but not due on berrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Security deposits received

Payables for purchase of property, plart and equipment
Directors’ commission payable

Purchase consideration payable

Accrued loyee liabilities

Qther lial S

Financial liabilities carried at fair value throuah statement of profit or loss

Fareign currency option contracts! Interest rate swap contract

Other current liabilities

Liability towards dealer incentive *
Advances from customers
Other liabilities

- Statutory dues

- Others

* Liabllity towards dealer incentive relates ta in-kind discount granted *o the as part of sales tr

products for which they could be redeemed.

Provisions

For mines reclamation liability {refer note 41)

For gratulty (refer note 30)

For isave encashment

For other employee benefits

For export promotion capital goods (refer note 41)
For contingencies (refer note 41)

and has been

fulfiited, the llability to pay Rs. 30 has besn disputed by the Parent

1,246 908
35 -

841 920
1,198 955
24 44
16 17
497 403
140 120
1 1
30 41
61 58
20 32
4110 3,500

_ B S 3
- 3
133 83
153 127
13 304
43 = 36
542 - 550

with to the relative seliing price of the

3 3
26 5
22 36
Q 4
1 31

52 80_
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Notes to i for the year snded March 31, 2020
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2,

22.

23.

24,

Revenue from operations

from with
- Saje of products
- Sale of services

Subsidies on sale of finished goods
Government grant
Cther operating reverus

Notes:

a, from with ggreg: based on nature of products or services

Sale of products
- Cement and its related products
- Refractories
- Power
-Otners *
Total sale of products

Sale of services

Managemsnt service chargss

Marketing services

Buslness auxiliary services

Total sale of services

Total revenue from contracts with customers

* represent sale of i i as stock-n-trade under inventories.

Reconciliation of as per price and as ised in of Profit and Loss:

Revenue as per contract price
Less: Discount ard Incentives

from with
Set out helow Is the from with cust and
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Add: tems not In ggreg:
Subsidies on sale of finished goods
Govarnment grant

Cther operating revenuss
Revenue as per the statement of profit and loss

b. Contract balance

The g table provides inf ion about i contract assets and contract fiabilities from con‘racts with customers:

Contract assets:
Trade receivables (refer rote 9(ii})

Contract liabilities
Advances from customers (refer note 19)

Other income

Dividend incoma from current investments measured at falr value through profit and loss

Interest Income

Interest income fram other financial assets at amertised cost

Unwirding of interest income on financial instruments

Gains/ (I ) on i at fair value gh profitor loss {net):
- Profit on saie of investments (net)
- On change of fair value of investments measured at FVTPL

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipmant (net)

Liabiiities no longer required written back

Miscellaneous receipts ’

Cost of raw materlals consumed

QOpening stack
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Change in fes of fh goods, work-In-prog| and stock in trade

Finished goods
- Clesing stock
- Opening stock
Less: Transferred to self consumption

Work-in-process
- Closing stock
- Opening stock

Stock in trade
- Closing stock
- Openirg stock

Add: Trial run production transferred to capital work-in-progress (refer note 43}
Net (I ) In

Year ended
March 31, 2020

to profit and loss account

9,492
10
9,502

121

T T

8,884
513

93
9,492

Rs.
Year ended
_ March 31,2019

9,174
9,188

218

8,505
565

10,670
1,168
9,502

9,502
121

a8
9661

As at March 31,
2020

398

153

Year ended
March 31, 2020

10,053
865
9,188

9,188

218
12

36
0 9as4

As at March 1,
2019

545

127

Rs.
Year ended
March 31,2019

- 2
38 71
47 &5

9 9
17 167
25 (108}

1 -
26 .

G -
163 206
232 159

1,604 1,867
1,838 2,026
182 232
1,654 1,794
180 147
147 108
- (0}
(43) _[38)
113 82

82 53
(31) _[29)

2 92
92 .
80 — -]

9 12
25 a7
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Notes to li fi

for the year ended March 31, 2020

2

2

2

7.

All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wharever stated otherwise ~ Rs.
Year ended Year ended
~ March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
25. Employes benefits expense
Salarles, wages and bonus 532 497
Cartribution to provident fund and other funds 32 29
Gratuity expense {refer note 30) 8 15
Expenses on employees stock options schems {refer note 31) 1 4
Workmen and staff welfare expenses . 25 24
598 569
Finance costs
{a} Interest cost
- On term loans and debentures 357 465
- QOn short term borrowings (ret of subsidy of Rs. 0 (March 31, 2019: Rs, 9)} 45 56
- On defined benefit obligations (net) 7 3
- On others (including interest o income tax of Rs. {1} {(March 31, 2019: Rs. 3 14 0
- On unwinding of interest 8 7
- On lease liabllities 9 -
440 531
Less: Capitalisation of interest cost (83 117}
Total () = 357 514
(b) Other finance cost
- Other borrowing cost 3 12
- Exchange diffe to the extent i as an adj| tio ing cost 51 35
Total (1} 54 47
Total finance costs (1 + I) m 561
* net of reversal of interest liability of Rs. 2 (March 34, 2019: Rs, 39) provided in earlier years.
Other expenses
Packing experses 344 362
Cansumption of stores and spare paris 49 51
Repairs and mairtenance :
- Plant and machinery 233 202
= Buildings 1 15
- Others 22 21
Rent 18 49
Rates and taxes 3 11
Insurance (net of subsidy Rs. 0 {March 31, 2019: Rs. 0)) 6 5
Depat expenses 134 120
Professional charges 72 82
A i t and sales p: 198 220
Travelling and conveyance 51 55
Bad debts/ advances writtsn off 2 3
Impairment aliowance (net) 20 2
Comorate social responsibility expanse {refer note 59) ] 6
Directors’ sitting fees {refer note 36} [} 1
Miscellaneous expenses * 421 415
N 1594 1,620
* Aiso refer note 42 for remuneration of auditors.
Earnings per share
Net profit after tax for calculation of basic and dituted EPS (Rs.) 179 245
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 31,40,45,267 23,42,51,187
Equity shares alloted during the previous year pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement arnd Amalgamation {refer note 12) - 7.97.94.080
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the ysar In calculating basic and diluted EPS 31,40,45,267 31,4045,267
Basic and Diluted EPS (Rupees) 5.89 7.79




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated In Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

29, Disclosure of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions

The judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its judgements, assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are as specifled below:-

(i) Share-based payments

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using black-Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating
fair value for equity-based payment transactiors requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant,
This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility, risk free rate, expected
dividend yield, market price and exercise price and making assumptions about them. For equity-settled share-based payment fransactions, the liability needs to be disclosed at
the carrying amount at end of each reporting period up to the date of settlement. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in note 31. Change in assumptions for estimating fair value of share-based payment transactions is expected to have insignificant impact on income
statement,

{ii) Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. The Group is having unabsorbed depreciation, business losses and MAT
credit that may be used to offset taxable income.

MAT credit entitlement is recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the MAT credit can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of MAT credit that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed in note 16.

Change in estimate
Deferred tax credit includes Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 45) on account of change in assumptions pertaining to 'Land’ as per the provisions of Ind-AS 12 'Income Taxes'.

(iif) Defined benefit plans (gratuity and provident fund)

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invoives making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, expected rate of return on assets, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on mortality rates from Indian Assures Lives Mortality 2012-14. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity and provident fund obligations are given in note 30.

(iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See note 37 and 38 for further disclosures.

(v} Provision for mines reclamation

The Group has recognised a provision for mines reclamation based on its best estimates. In determining the fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in
relation to the expected future inflation rates, discount rate, expected cost of reclamation of mines, expected balance of reserves available in mines and the expected life of
mines.The Group calculates the provision using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) based on discount rate of 6.76% p.a. and the expected timing of those costs. Details of such
provision are disclosed in note 41.

Change in estimate
During the year, Group has reviewed the assumptions used in determining the fair value of Provisions, and accordingly revised the estimate for provision for mines reclamation
resulting in increase in provision by Rs. 8.

{vi) Property, plant and equipment

The Group uses its technical expertise along with historical and i’ndus:ry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are
reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In ‘dase of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining usefu! life of the
assels. ; . A
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30.

Change in estimates

(a) During the year, the Group completed the re-evaluation of the pattern of economic benefits derived from property, plant and equipment ('PPE'} of the manufacturing
facilities situated at North East region of the Group, Based on such evaluation, management decided to change the method of providing depreciation on its PPE from straight
line method to written down value method w.e.f. July 1, 2019.

(b} During the year, the residual vaiue of PPE is reviewed and re-assessed by the Group so that the revised residual value properly reflect the values which the Group expects
to realise on completion of useful life of the respective assets.

Consequent to (a) and (b) above, depreciation charge and deferred tax credit due to higher reversal of depreciation during tax holiday period for the year ended March 31,
2020 is higher by Rs. 220 and Rs. 56 respectively,

(c) During the previous year, Group had reviewed its available mining reserves and accordingly revised the estimate for available mining reserves. Accordingly, amortisation
expense for the previous year was lower by Rs, 2.

{vii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recaverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived based on
remaining useful fife of the respective assets. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

There are no impairment losses recognised for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,

{viii) Revenue from contracts with customers — Non-cash incentives given to customers

The Group estimates the fair value of non-cash incentives awarded by applying market rate offered by vendors to the Group. The assumption for determining fair value of non-
cash incentives is based on the market rate of such schemes. As at March 31, 2020, the estimated liability towards non-cash incentive amounted to Rs. 133 (March 31, 2019:
Rs. 83). Change in assumptions for estimating fair value of non-cash incentives does not have any significant impact on income statement.

(ix) Subsidles receivable

The Group is entitied to various subsidies from Government in the form of government grant and recognize amount receivable and it is reasonably certain that the ultimate
collection will be made from government as subsidy receivable when the Group is entitled to receive it to match them with expenses incurred for which they are intended to
compensate. The Group records subsidy receivable by discounting it to its present value. The Group uses assumptions in respect of discount rate and estimated time for
receipt of funds from government. The Group reviews Its assumptions periodically, including at each financial year end.

(x) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed in note 6 & 9 are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(xi} Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, togsther with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to
be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the leass, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or
not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased
asset).

Refer to note 39 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in
the lease term.

Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans

Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872. Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each complested year of service. The Scheme is funded through Gratuity Fund Trust with an
insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy, except in case of employees of certain cement units of the Parent Company and other subsidiaries of the
Group. The Trust is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the determination of investment strategy. The Group makes provision of such gratuity asset/
liability in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary.

Provident fund ('PF")

The Group contributes provident fund liability to Dalmia Cement Provident Fund Trust, except in case of certain employees of the Group. As per the applicable accounting
standard, provident funds set up by the employers, which require interest shortfall to be met by the employer, needs to be treated as defined benefit plan. The actuarial
valuation of Provident Fund was carried out in accordance with the guidance note issued by Actuarial Society of India for measurement of provident fund liabilities and a
provision has been recognised in respect of future anticipated shortfall with regard to interest rate obligation as at the balance sheet date.

The following tables summarize the components of defined benefit costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the
above mentioned plan,




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolldated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore pt wherever stated otherwise

Statement of profit and loss
Components of definred benefit costs

Rs.
Particulars Gratuity PF
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Current service cost * 9 15 10 1
Net interest cost™ 5 3 2 1
Net benefit expense ) 15 18 12 12
*includes Rs. 1 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 3) towards capitalisation of gratuity expense and Rs 2 (March 31,2019: Rs. 3) towards capitalisation of provident fund expense.
** includes Rs. 1 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 1) towards capitalisation of interest expense.
Change in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2020
Rs.
Gratuity PF
Defined Fair value Defined
benefit of plan obli::ttlon benefit ::'al ; ‘::::t: f Net obligation
obligation assets ohligation
(&) (B) (A-B) (A) (B) (A-B)
April 1,2019 (1) 109 37 72 153 150 3
Service cost (2) 9 - 9 10 - 10
Net interest expense/ (income) (3) 8 3 5 15 13 2
Sub-total included in profit or loss (2+3)=(4) 17 3 14 25 13 12
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (5) - - - - 2 (2)
(Gain)/loss from changes in demographic assumptions {(6) 0 - 0 - -
(Gain)/loss from changes in financial assumptions (7) 5 - 5 - - -
Experience (gains)/losses (8) 4 - 4 2 - 2
Sub-total (5+6+7+8)=(9) 9 - 9 2 2 (0)
_Expense/ (income) included in OCI out of (9) above 9 - 9 - - =
Contributions by employer (10) - - - - 10 (10)
Contribution by plan participation/ employees (11} - - - 27 27 -
Settlements/ (Transfer in) (12) - - - 35 35 -
Acquisition/ other adjustments (13) (0) - 0) - -
Benefits paid (14) {11) (4) 7 (12} {(12) -
Sub-total (10+11+12+13+14)=(15) (11) (4) (7) 50 60 (10)
March 31, 2020 (1+4+9+15) 124 36 88 230 225 5
Change in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2019
Rs.
Gratuity PF
Defined  Fair value Net Defined Fair value of
benefit of plan o benefit Net obiigation
. obligation o plan assets
obligation assets obligation
. @ (B (AB) ) (8) (A-B)
Aprit 1,2018 (1) 61 38 23 105 103 2
Service cost (2) 15 - 15 11 - 11
Net interest expense/ (income) (3) 4 1 3 13 9 4
Sub-total included in profit or loss ( 243)=(4) 19 1 18 24 9 15
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (5} - 2 (2) - 3 (3)
(Gain)/loss from changes in demographic assumptions (6) - - - - - -
(Gain)/loss from charges in financial assumptions (7) 7 - 7 - - -
Experierce (gains)flosses (8) 10 - 10 0 - 0
Sub-total (5+6+7+8)=(9) 17 2 15 0 3 (3)
Expense/ {income) included in OCI out of (9) above 16 2 15 - - -
Contributions by empioyer (10) - - - - 11 {11)
Contribution by plan participation/ employees (11) - - - 23 23 -
Settlements/ (Transfer in) (12) - - - 6 6 -
Acquisition adjustments (13) * 17 - 17 - -
Benefits paid (14) (5) (4) (1) (5) (5) -
Sub-total (10+11+12+13+14)=(15) 12 4 16 24 35 {11)
March 31, 2019 (1+4+9+15) 109 37 72 153 150 3

*Related to acquisition of subsidiary namely Dalmia DSP Limted during the previous year.
The Group expects to contribute Rs. 70 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 55) and Rs. 11 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 7) to gratuity and PF respectively in 2020-21.
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity and PF are as follows:-

Rs.
Particulars Gratuity PF
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Investment pattern in plan assets:
Insurance Company products 14 14 - .
Central Government securities 1 1 26 18
State Government securities 16 16 84 56
Special Deposit scheme 2 2 4 5
Corporate bonds 2 2 96 63
Cash and cash equivalents [+] 1 2 1
Equity shares of listed companies - - 13 7
Other investment 1 1 - -
Total 36 37 225 150
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and PF for the Company are shown below:
Particulars Gratuity PF
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
Discount rate 6.40 7.25 6.40 6.8910 7.50
Future salary increases 6.00 to 7.00 6.00 to 7.00 - -
Guaranteed interest rate - - 8.50 8.65
Years Years Years Years
Life expectation for 39.08 - 40.74 40.74
1ALM IALM
Mortaiity Table 20 1'2’§'1"':’)' (200608) 0, m") (2006-08)
duly modified duly modified
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan:
Rs.
Assumption Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Impact on defined benefit obligation 5 5 (6) (5) (8) 4) 5 4
Provident Fund:
Rs.
Assumption Discount rate Interest rate guarantee
Sensitivity Level 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Impact on defined benefit obligation 5 5 (2) (2) (5) (3) 10 5

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Between 5 and 10 years

Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

Rs.
Gratuity
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
46 43
50 46
37 33
36 33
169 155

Duration of the defined benefit plan obligation for gratuity ai the end of the reporting period is 3-14 years (March 31, 2019: 5-13 years) and for PF at the end of the reporting

period is 2-3 years (March 31, 2019: 2-6 years).
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Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:-

Asset Volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields, if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan asset
investments is in insurance company products and in government securities. The investments are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the
plan deficit.

Asset liability matching risk

The Group ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments
that are in line with the obligations under the employee berefit plans. Within this framework, the Group's ALM objective is to match assets to the pension obligations by
investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.

Liquidity Risk
The Group actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the employee benefit obligations.
The Group has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans:

Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Provident Fund/ Pension Fund 20 18
Superannuation Fund 1 1
National Pension Scheme 3 2

31.

Share - based payments

Under the DBL ESOP Scheme 2018, share options of the holding company i.e. Dalmia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited) were granted to senior
executives of the Parent Company ('DCBL") with more than 12 months of service. In all the cases, the exercise price of the share options is lower than the market price of the
underlying shares on the date of grant. The share options vest if and when the holding company achieve targeted share price and on achievement of individual performance
by eligible employees which will be vested over a period of 5 years.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using the Black- Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

Options have been granted with vesting period of 5 years on the basis of graded vesting and are exercisable for a period of 3 years once vested. There are no cash seitiement
alternatives. The Parent Company does not have a past practice of cash setflement for these share options.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Rs.
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions* 3 4
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 3 4
*includes Rs. 2 (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil) allocated to capital work-in-progress (refer note 43).
Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Numbers WAEP Numbers WAEP
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 7.32,000 176.77 4,50,000 350.27
Cancelled pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation - - (4,50,000) 350.27
Granted pursuant to DBL ESOP 2018 - - 9,00,000 175.14
Exercised during the year (2,20,000)" 169.09  (1,68,000)M 168.01
Expired/ lapsed during the year - . . &
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,12,000 180.07 7,32,000 176.77

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

“ The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options is Rupees. 511.10/-
" The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options is Rupees 1,214.40/-
The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 was 4.32 years (March 31, 2019: 4.88 years).

The range of exercise prices for options outstarding at the end of lhe vear is Rupees 108.62/- each option to Rupees 191.77/- each option (March 31, 2019: Rupees 108.62/-
each option to Rupees 191.77/- each option). . ?
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32,

The following table list the inputs to the models used for the plan for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:

Dividend yield (%)

Volatility (%)

Risk—free interest rate (%)

Average expected life of options (years)

Weighted average share price (Rupees per share)

Date of grant

Modei used

Leases

(a) Group as a lessee

Grant 1

1.42
42.76
8.16
4.50
105.95
May 18,
2012

Black Scholes
Model

Grant 2 Grant 3
0.40 0.21

49 46.92

7.71 7.54

4.53 4.51
602.05 713.80
January 29, February 03,
2015 2016

Black Scholes Black
Model Scholes
Model

The Group has lease cortracts for various land, buildings (godowns, office and residential premises), vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Leases of land have
lease terms between 10 and 99 years, godowns generally have lease terms between 1 and 6 years, while office and residential premises have lease terms between 1 and 8
years, and vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms between 1 and 8 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below.

The Group also has certain leases of godowns and other equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for

these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Land * Buidlings Vehicles
Cost
As at April 1, 2019 78 60 20
Additions 3 25 10
Disposals {0) (8) (1)
Exchange difference ** 0 - -
As at March 31, 2020 w81 79 29
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2019 - - -
Charge for the year 4 32 8
Disposals (0) (2) 0)
Exchange difference ** 0 - -
As at March 31, 2020 4 30 8
Net block - -
As at March 31, 2020 77 49 21

* Opening balance includes Rs. 71 reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116,
** includes foreign currency translation of foreign operations.

Note
Leasehold land having net block of Rs. 9 is pending to be registered in the name of one of the subsidiary company.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease llabllitles and the movements during the year:

Particulars

As at April 1, 2019
Additions

Deletion

Accretion of interest
Payments

As at March 31, 2020

Current
Non-current

Other Total

equipment *

2 160

2 191

43

1 BT

Re.
2019-20

90
35
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The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 39.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2021-2109.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: Rs.
Particulars 2019-20
Year ended March 31, 2020 (Leases under Ind AS 116)

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 45
Interest expense on lease liabilities 9
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in other expenses) 18
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 72
Year ended March 31, 2019 (Operating leases under Ind AS 17) Rs.
Particulars 2018-19
Lease expense 49
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 49
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows: Rs.
Particulars 2019-20

Year ended March 31, 2020
Total cash outflow for leases 48

(b) Group as lessor

The Parent Company had purchased wagons under "own your wagon scheme" of Railways and leased it to Railways on rent, the wagons were recognised as assets and
carried in the books at written down value, the Parent Company is earning rental income from the arrangement, hence it qualifies to be recognised as finance lease
arrangement where Rallways is the lessee.

Future minimum lease receivables {MLR) and its present value under finance leases are as follows:

Rs.
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Minimum Present Minimum Present
. lease value lease value
Particulars payments of MLP payments of MLP
Within one year - - - -
After one year but not mare than five years - - - -
More than five years - - - -
Unguaranteed residual values 1 1 1 1
Total minimum lease payments 1 1 1 1
Less: amounts representing finance charges - - - -
Present value of minimum lease payments 1 1 1 1
33. Capital and other commitments
Rs.
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
A} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 523 614
B) Other Commitments:
i} Commitment towards forestry department as per the Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980 o] 32
i) Corporate guarantee given by the Parent Company to a bark for issuance of bank guarantee towards grant of mining lease 12 12
iii) Estimated future investments in Alternative Investment Fund in terms of agreement with the fund - 4

iv) Contractual and other payments, which does not have ary bearing on the results for the current and previous year 31 3
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<)

The Resolution Plan (RP) filed by the Parent Company for revival of Murli Industries Limited (MIL) has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT),
Mumbai Bench pursuant to the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBC'). The necessary actions have been initiated to make the RP effective.

RP provides for payment of Rs. 402 to creditors of MIL by the Parent Company. MIL has an integrated cement manufacturing plant with an installed capacity of 3 MnT in
Chandrapur District, Maharashtra along with a captive thermal power plant of 50 MW. In addition, MIL also has paper and solvent extraction units in Maharashtra. The
acquisition of MIL would help the Group to further consolidate its footprint in Western region,

34. Contingent liabilities / Litigations in respect of :

A)

i)
i}

iif)

iv

—

B)

[o]

-

D

~

E)

Not provided for:
Rs.
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 282 292
Demands raised/ show cause notices issued by following authorities in dispute (including
cases which have been remanded back for re-assessment):
- Excise and Service tax 51 67
- Customs 18 39
- Sales tax/ Entry tax/ Purchase tax/ Market fee 130 110
- Income tax matters 50 42
Other monies for which Group is contingently liable - 2

Income tax department had carried out search operation in the office premises of erstwhile Adhunik Cement Limited (now a unit of the Parent Company) on March 11,
2016 (concluded on May 03, 2016), consequent to which assessment orders under Section 163(A)/143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 have been passed on December
30, 2018 from AY 2011-12 to 2017-18 and there is no additional income tax liability. However, unabsorbed depreciation has been reduced on account of addition of Rs.
42 made in AY 2011-12 and against the same, an appeal was filed before the appellate authority.

The Group has not adjusted the above amount while computing income tax/deferred tax liability since the Group has been legally opined that above addition may not be
tenable.

Based on favourable decisions in similar cases, legal opinion taken by the Group, discussions with the solicitors etc., the Group believes that there is a fair chance of
favourable decisions in respect of the items listed above and hence no provision is considered necessary against the same.

The Office of the Superintendent of Taxes, Jowali, Meghalaya has issued notice dated March 12, 2020 seeking justification of gaps found for use of coal procured through
legal sources in production of clinker / power as mentioned in the Report of the Independent Committee constituted by the National Green Tribunal. In the notice, it has
been mentioned that the gap seems to be due fo illegally procured coal and hence the Group is liable to pay enhanced royally and electricity duty on such coal. The
Group has been asked to provide its reply on the issue and the same is under process as the Group is evaluating the effect of the report. No provision is considered
necessary in the financial statements based on the legai opinion taken by the Group as the demand has not yet crystallised.

The Parent Company holds 76% shares in one of its subsidiary company Calcom Cement India Limited (Calcom), where Bawri Group (BG), other shareholder, holds 21%
(approx.) voting rights. During the year 2015-16, the Parent Company in view of the fact that BG had defaulted in completion of certain obligations under the
Shareholders Agreement/ Articles of Association (referred as Inter-se Agreement or ‘ISA"), sent notice to BG seeking remedies under the terms of ISA. In response
thereto, BG denied the responsibility of completion of the said obligations and further filed a petition before the Company Law Board, Kolkata (CLB) / NCLT under
Sections 397 and 398 of the Companies Act, 1956 alleging oppression and mismanagement by the Parent Compary. NCLT, Guwahati Branch, has concluded in
response to an application filed under Section 8 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 by the Parent Company, vide its order dated January 5, 2017, that the said
397/398 pefition is dressed up petition and therefore, disposed of the said petition and vacated all the interims orders. Further, NCLT referred both the parties to
arbitration for settlement of their disputes.

BG has challenged the order of NCLT Guwahati before the Hon'ble High Court, Guwahati and the same is pending adjudication. The disputes between the parties are
pending adjudication befare the Arbitral Tribunal. Pending firal disposal of the disputes, no adjustments are considered necessary in the financial statements.

CBI has filed a charge sheet against the Parent Company & its employees under Section 120(b) read with Section 420 of Indian Penal Code before Special Judge, CBI
Cases, Hyderabad, wherein CBI has alleged that the Parent Company had invested in the shares of Bharathi Cement Corporation Pvt. Lid. for the benefit of ane of the
accused as a quid pro quo for grant of prospecting license over certain limesione bearing land in the State of Andhra Pradesh and the shares of Bharathi Cement
Corporation Pvt. Ltd. were sold by the Parent Company at a profit.

Pursuant to above, charge sheet has been filed before Special Judge, CBI Cases, Hyderabad, on which cognizance has been taken. The case is still at the preliminary
stage. These proceedings were challenged by one of the accused before High Court and the same is pending fill date. in the opinion of the Group, no adverse impact is
expected to devolve on the management on conclusion of such praceedings.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court {SC) judgement dated February 28, 2019 on Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of allowances
for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Group will evaluate its position and act, as clarity emerges.
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35. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

36.

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due therson remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 1o

the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

March 31,

2020

14

Rs.

March 31,

2019

6

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group and the same has been relied
upon by the auditors.

Related party tr tions

A) List of related parties along with nature and volume of transactions is given below:

Reiated Parties where control exists:-

@

(i)

(i)

Holding company
Dalmia Bharat Limited (formerly known as Odisha Cement Limited)

Fellow subsidiaries
Dalmia Power Limited

Subsidiarles

. Calcom Cement India Limited,

. OCL Global Limited,

. Alsthom Industries Limited,

. Bangaru Kamakshiamman Agro Farms Private Limited,
. Chandrasekara Agro Farms Private Limited,

D.l. Properties Limited,

. Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited (formerly known as Sri Dhandauthapani Mines & Minerals Limited),
. Dalmia DSP Limited (w.e.f July 10, 2018),

. Dalmia Minerals & Properties Limited,

. Geetee Estates Limited,

. Golden Hills Resort Private Limited,

. Hemshila Properties Limited,

. Hopco Industries Limited (w.e.f. December 21, 2018),
. Ishita Properties Limited,

. JayeVijay Agro Farms Private Limited,

. Shri Rangam Properties Limited,

. 8ri Madhusudana Mines & Properties Limited,

. Sri Shanmugha Mines & Minerals Limited,

. 8ri Subramanya Mines & Minerals Limited,

. Sri Swaminatha Mines & Minerals Limited,

. Sri Trivikrama Mines & Properties Limited,

. Raiputana Properties Private Limited

Step down subsidiaries

. OCL Chira Limited,

. Vinay Cement Limited,
. RCL Cements Limited,
. SCL Cements Limited,

Cosmos Cement Limited,

. Sutnga Mines Private Limited,
. Daimia OCL Limited (formerly known as Ascension Commercio Private Limited) (w.e.f. October 7, 2019),
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Other related parties:
(i} Assoclates
1. Dalmia Renewables Energy Limited (upto May 31, 2018)

(if) Joint ventures
1. Khappa Coal Company Private Limited,
2. Radhikapur (West) Coal Mining Private Limited

=
=

Key management personnel of the Parent Company

1. Shri Gautam Dalmia * - Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. October 30, 2018),
. Shri Puneet Yadu Dalmia — Managing Director (upto October 30, 2018),

- Shri Mahendra Singhi ** - Managing Director & CEO (w.e.f. October 30, 2018),
Mr, G.N. Bajpai — Independent Director,

Mr. N. Gopalaswamy - Independent Director,

. Mrs. Sudha Pillai - Independent Director,

Mr. Thyagarajan Venkatesan- Independent Director

- Mr. Paul Heinz Hugentobler - Independent Director,

. Mr. Jayesh Doshi - Chief Financial Officer and

. Mrs. Manisha Bansal - Company Secretary

—y

* Managing Director {upto October 30, 2018)
** Whole Time Director (upto October 30, 2018)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

(i) Key Management Personnel of Holding company

-

. Mr. Niddodi Subrao Rajan(w.e.f. August 30, 2019)
(i) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
. Shri Jai Hari Dalmia */ **

. Shri Yadu Hari Dalmia */ **
. Mrs. Avantika Dalmia

wWN =

* Non-Executive Director (upto October 30, 2018)
** Also, KMP of Holding company

(iv) Enterprises controlled/ jointly controlled by the key management personnel of the Parent Company

. Dalmia Refractories Limited,

. Dalmia Bharat Sugar and Industries Limited,
. Kanika Investment Limited,

. Dalmia Bharat Foundation,

B ow k-

(v) Enterprises controlledijointly controlled by Key Management Personnel of the Holding Company

-

. Khaitan & Co. LLP
2. Khaitan & Co. AOR
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Dalmia Cement {Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

37.

D) Transactions with key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company:-

Rs.

. March 31, March 31,

Particulars 2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits 22 40
Termination benefits 1 3
Post- employment benefits - 35
Share-based payment transactions 3 3
Total compensation paid ic_) key n gement ,Qé. | * 26 81

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period relating to key management personnel.

* Remuneration to the key managerial personrel does not include provision made for gratuity and leave benefits as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Group as a
whole.

E) Directors" interests in the Employees Stock Option Scheme (DBL ESOP 2018)

Share options held by certain Directors under the employees stock option scheme to purchase equity shares have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exerclse March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Grant Date Expiry Date Price Number Number

Rs. outstanding* outstanding*
January 29, 2015 January 29, 2021 108.62 72,000 1,32,000
February 03, 2016 February 03, 2022 191.77 4,40,000 6,00,000
Total 5,12,000 7,32,000

* Refer note 31.
The transactions with related parties have been made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Fair values

Below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:

Rs.
Carrying value Fair value

. March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans to employees 21 17 21 17
Loans to related party 3 3 3 3
Loans to others 3 3 3 3
Security deposits 79 70 79 70
Subsidies/ Incentives receivable 707 888 707 888
Deposit with banks having remaining maturity of more than twelve months {refer note 6(iii)) 16 12 16 12
Investment in commercial papers (refer note 9(i)) - 139 - 139
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign currency forward / option contracts (refer note 6(jii) and 9(vi)} 55 62 55 62
Investment in mutual funds (refer note 9(i)) 888 361 888 361
Investment in certificate of deposits (refer note 9(i)) 74 - 74 -
Investment in alternative investment fund (refer note 9(i)) 10 22 10 22
Investment in corporate bonds (refer note 9(i)) 704 464 704 464
Financial assets carried at fair value through OCI
Investment in compulsorily participative convertible preference shares (refer note 6(i)) 23 14 23 14
Investment in equity shares (unquoted}) (refer nate 6(i)) - 0 - (]
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Borrowings (including current maturity of long term barrowings) 5,950 5,877 5,950 5,877
Security deposits received 497 405 497 405
Other non current financial liabilities 1 4 1 4

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign currency option contracts/ Interest rate swap contract — 3 2 3 2 3




Dalmia Gement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore pt wherever stated otherwise

38.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets (except derivative financial instruments),
trade payables and other current financial liabilities (except derviative financial liabilties) approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :

(a) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/ deposit are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual credit warthiness
of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these
receivables.

{b) The fair value of unquoted instruments, Ioans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other non-current financial liabilities are estimated by discounting future
cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

{c) The fair value of investment in equity shares and corporate bonds are based on quoted market price at the reporting date. Fair value of investment in mutual funds,
alternative investment fund and venture capital fund are based on market observable inputs i.e. Net Asset Value at the reporting date.

(d) The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are determined using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The derivatives are
entered into with the banks / counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

(e) The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer's
borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2020 was assessed to be insignificant,

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation {Level 3):
{a) Discount rate are determined using prevailing bank lending rate.
(b) The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined using the discounted cash flow analysis.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of financial assets categorised at level 3:
Rs,

Investment in compulsorily
Particulars convertible preference shares
(At FVTOCH)

As at April 1, 2018 -
Re-measurement recognised in OC! -

Purchases 14
Sales -

As at March 31, 2019 14
Re-measurement recognised in OCI 7
Purchases 2
Sales -

As at March 31, 2020 23

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques that use inptits that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are In Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2020;

Particulars

Assets for which fair values are disclosed (note 37)

Loans to employees

Loans to related party

Loans to others

Security deposits

Subsidies/ Incentives receivable

Deposit with banks having remaining maturity of more than twelve months (refer note B(iii)}

Llabliities for which fair values are disclosed (note 37)
Borrowings (including current maturity of iong term borrowings)
Security deposits received

Other non current financial liabiiities

Assets measured at fair value

Foreign currency forward / option contracts (refer note 6(ii) and 9(vi))

Investment in mutual funds (refer note 9(i))

Investment in certificate of deposits

Investment in alternative investment fund (refer note 9(i))

Investment in corporate bonds (refer note 9(i))

Investment in compulsorily participative convertible preference shares (refer note 6(j))

Liabilities measured at fair value
Foreign currency option contracts/ Interest rate swap contract

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Leve! 2 during the year ended March 31, 2020,

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2019:

Particulars

Assets for which fair values are disclosed (note 37)

Loans to employees

Loans to related party

Loans to others

Security deposits

Subsidies/ Incentives receivable

Deposit with banks having remaining maturity of more than twelve months (refer note 8iii})
Investment in commercial papers (refer note 9(i))

Liabilities for which falr values are disclosed (note 37)
Borrowings (including current maturity of long term borrowings)
Security deposits received

Other non current financial liabilities

Assets measured at fair value

Foreign currency forward / aption contracts (refer note 6(iii) and 9(vi))

Investment in equity shares (unquoted) (refer note 6(j))

Investment in mutual funds (refer note 9(i))

Investment in alternative investment fund (refer note 9(i))

Investment in corporate bonds (refer note 9(i))

Investment in compulsorily participative convertible preference shares (refer note 6(i))

Liabilities measured at fair value
Foreign currency option contracts/ interest rate swap contract

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended March 3172019,

Total

Total

17

70

888

139

5,877
405

62
381

464
14

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
observable
inputs
{Level 2)

Significant
observable
inputs
{Level 2)

Rs.

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

21
3

3
79
707

Rs.

Signlficant
unobservable
inputs
{Level 3)

17

70
888
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39. Financlal risk management objectlves and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Group’s operations and {o provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group's principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. The Group also enters into derivative transactions.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks and aiso ensure that the Group's
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's
policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and
supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes will be undertaken.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include investments and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

The Group manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent confrol over the entire process of market risk management. The
treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are appraved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this
department include management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with
market risk limits and policies.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

interest rate risik

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize the
Group's position with regards to interest income and interest expenses to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk
management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio. There is no outstanding loans at year end.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the unhedged portion of loans and borrowings. With all other variables
heid constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Rs.
Increase/
Particulars decrease in Effect on profit
before tax
basis points
March 31, 2020
INR +50 BPS (13)
INR - 50 BPS 13
usD +50 BPS (2)
UsD - 50 BPS 2
EURO + 50 BPS 2)
EURO -50 BPS 2
March 31, 2019
INR +50 BPS (14)
INR -50 BPS 14
usb +50 BPS @)
Usp -50 BPS 3
EURO +50 BPS @
EURO -50 BPS 2

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure 1o the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating and financing activities and the same are hedged in line with established risk management
policies of the Group including use of foreign exchange forward contracts, options and interest rate swaps.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. For
hedges of forecast transactions, the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settiement of
the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign currency.
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensilivity to a reasonably passible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabiiities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives.

Rs.
Change In Effect on Effect on
Particulars foreign profit before profit before
currency tax tax
rate March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
usD 5% (33) (24)
5% 27 24
EURO and Others 5% (34) @)
-5% 13 4
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits and other financiai instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Outstanding custcmer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers.

An impairment analysis is performed at each quarter end on an individual basis for major customers. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped info
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in note 9(ii). The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counter party.

Rs.
Up to 180 days  More than Total

Ageing 180 days
As at March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount (A) 340 129 469
Expected credit losses (B) - 71 71
Net carrying amount (A-B) 340 58 398
As at March 31, 2019
Gross carrying amount {A) 485 108 603
Expected credit losses (B) 3 55 58
Net carrying amount (A-B) 492 53 545
Financlal instrt ts and cash deposit:

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made oniy with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial
institutions is subject to low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Group.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is the carrying amounts of each class of
financial assets,

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk of a shartage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans, debentures and cash credit facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's finarcial liabilities based on contracted undiscounted payments (excluding transaction cost on borrowings).

Rs.

Ageing Lessthan1 1to5years Morethan5 Total Carrying value
Year years

As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings 2,064 1,869 2,129 6,062 5,950
Lease liabilites 42 42 179 263 80
Trade payables 841 3 - 844 844
Other financials liabilities 789 3 - 792 792
As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings 1,874 2,343 1,741 5,955 5877
Trade payables 920 - - 920 920

Other financials liabilities 720 6 - 726 725
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40. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, equity includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
shareholders and net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings less current investments, cash and cash equivalents and accrued interest on current investments.
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and provide adequate return

to shareholders through continuing growth.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding
requirement is met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals, long term borrowings and short term borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Rs.
N March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Long term borrowings 3,505 4,014
Short term borrowings 1,246 908
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,199 955
Less : Cash and cash equivalents (152) (268)
Less : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (120) (185)
Less : Current investments (1,676) (986)
Less : Interest accrued on current investments (32) (28)
Net debt 3,970 4,410
Equity 9,346 9,253
Capital and net debt 13,316 13,663
Gearing ratio 29.81% 32.28%
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group review the fund management at regular intervals and take necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital
structure.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes fer managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019,
41. Movement of provision during the year:

Rs.

Particulars M".‘es Export .promotlor: Contingencies
reclamation capital goods’

As at April 1, 2018 31 28 36
Additions during the year 12 3 7
Utilised during the year - - 4)
Interest on unwinding 3 - -
As at March 31, 2019 46 3 39
Additions during the year 7 - 2
Reversal of Provision - (30) (15)
Utilised during the year - - (22)
Interest on unwinding 3 - -
As at March 31, 2020 56 1 4

Mines reclamation
The Group records a provision for mine reclamation cost until the closure of mine. Mine reclamation costs are provided at the present value of expected costs tc settle the
obligation using estimated cash flows.

Export promotion capital goods (EPCG)

Based on the favourable decision from Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) during the year, ore of the subsidiary of the Group has filed redemption applications before
DGFT showing completion of export obligations and same are under process. Accordingly, provision created in earlier years of Rs. 30 is no longer required and an amount of
Rs. 7, Rs. 10 and Rs. 13 has been written back and credited in the statement of profit and loss under the head other income, finance costs and other expenses respectively.

Contingencies

The Group has made provision in respect of probable contingent liabilities. The Group has assessed that the probability of paying this amount is high. The Group has, during
the current year as well as previous year, settled most of such cases. During the year, Group has written back excess provision of Rs 15 by settling disputed liability with one of
its financial creditor and paid the agreed amounts of principal and interest.
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42. Remuneration paid to statutory auditors (included in Miscellaneous Expenses):

Particulars

As an auditor
i} Statutory audit fee
ii} Tax audit fees
i) Limited review fee

In other capacity
i) Company law matter/ Other matters
ii) Certification Fee (including certification of financial statements arising out ofmerger scheme)
fiiy Taxation matters

Reimbursement of expenses

43. During the year, the Group has incurred expenditure related to acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment and therefore accounted for the same as pre-

operative expenses under capital work-in-pragress/ intangibie assets under development.

Details of such expenses capitalised and carried forward as part of capital work in progress/ intangible assets under development are given below:

Particulars

Brought forward from last year
Expenditure incurred during the year
Cost of raw materials consumed
Employee benefit expenses
a) Salaries, wages and bonus
b) Contribution to provident and other funds
¢} Gratuity expense
d} Employee stock option scheme
e) Workmen and staff welfare expenses
Interest cost *
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Power and Fuel
Freight charges on internal clinker transfer
Other expenses
a) Cansumption of stores and spare parts
b) Repairs and maintenance - Plant and machinery
¢) Rent
d) Rates and taxes
e) Insurance
f) Professional charges
g) Travelling and conveyance
h) Miscellaneous expenses
Total expenditure during the year
Less : Trial run production transferred from inventory
Less : Revenue from operations during trial run
Net expenditure
Less : Capitalised during the year

Carried forward as part of Intangible asset under development
Carried forward as part of Capital work in progress**

* Interest comprises of:

Rs.
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
2 2
0 ¢}
1 1
- 0
] 1
0 0
0 0
Rs.
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
150 46
13 14
€9 68
2 3
1 3
2 R
1 2
83 17
2 14
29 57
3 16
2 19
2 18
1 1
1 0
0 0
55 38
3 2
20 50
289 322
9 (12)
{35) (88)
245 222
2) (118)
393 150
18 -
375 150

(i) Rs. 4 (March 31, 2019: Rs.Nil} on specific borrowings taken for new cement plant in Odisha along with new grinding capacity in eastern part of India; and
(i) Rs. 77 (March 31, 2019: Rs.10) on general borrowings for new cement plant in Odisha along with new grinding capacity in eastern part of India, using the weighted average

interest rate applicable during the year which is 8.46% p.a (March 31, 2019: 8.13% p.a.).

**includes Rs. 313 (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 113) for new cement plants in Odisha along with new grinding capacity in eastern part of India (refer note 51).
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44, The Group has debited direct expenses relating to limestone mining, captive power generation and depot expenses etc. to cost of raw material consumed, power& fuel and
other expenses as under:

Rs.
Particulars 2019-20  2018-19
Cost of materials consumed 374 340
Power and fuel 82 26
Other Expenses:
Repairs and maintenance - Plant and machinery 104 74
Miscellaneous expenses 5 5
Total 565 445
These expenses if reclassified on ‘nature of expense' basis will be as foliows:

Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018419
Employee benefit expenses 37 33
Power and fuel 27 12
Other Expenses :
Consumption of stores & spare parts 178 163
Repairs and maintenance - Plant and machinery 59 62
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 1 -
Repairs and maintenance — Others 7 ]
Rent 1 4
Rates & taxes (including royalty on limestone) 218 215
Insurance 0 -
Miscellaneous expenses 39 24
Professional charges 1 -
Other operating revenue:
Sundry sales / income (3) (67)
Total 565 445

45, Derivatives

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward coniracts (including option contracts - seagull structure) to manage some of its
transaction exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange option contracts are not designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods
consistent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transactions, generally from one to thirty six months,

Foreign currency risk
The Group has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange option contracts with the intention to reduce the foreign exchange risk on repayment of
buyer’s credit and foreign currency loan, these contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest rate swap
The swap is being used to hedge the exposure to changes in the interest rate on borrowings. The increase/ decrease in fair value of the interest rate swap has been
recognised in finance costs and offset with a similar gain / foss on the bank borrowings.

The foreign exchange farward contract, options and interest rate swap balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency payment and changes in foreign exchange

rates.
; Rs.
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Fair value of foreign currency forward Joption/ interest rate swap contracts measured at fair value through 55 5 82 3

profit or loss
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46.

47.

48,

49,

() In 2011-12, the Parent Company had initially acquired 14.59% stake in Calcom Cement India Limited (Calcom), ultimately extendable to 50% of the Equity Share Capital of
Calcom by entering into definitive agreements with Calcom, Saroj Sunrise Private Limited ('SSPL’) (a company owned by Bawri Group (BG), other shareholder of Calcom) and
BG. During the year 2012-13, revised agreements were entered to increase the Parent Company nominal stake up to 86.26% (and voting stake up to 75.63%) ultimately
exiendable to nominal stake of 66.70% (and voting stake of 76.00%) of the Equity Share Capital of Calcom — including keeping shares representing nominal staie of 14.23%
(and voting stake of 16.24%) of the Equity Share Capital of Calcom in escrow, with beneficial ownership being with the Parent Company, to be released at a future date upon
satisfaction of certain conditions. The Parent Company has invested a total amount of Rs. 260 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 260) and Rs. 59 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 59) respectively in
the Equity Shares of Calcom and Optionally Redeemable Convertible Debentures ("OCDs’) of SSPL.

The OCDs are non-interest bearing and are secured by the pledge of equity shares of Calcom held by SSPL. If certain conditions for performance by promoters of Calcom are
met, these OCDs are convertible into equity shares constituting 0.01% shareholding of SSPL, else the Parent Company has an option either to get the debentures redeemed
for an aggregate amount of Rs. 59 or convert into equity shares constituting 99.99% shareholding of SSPL.

(ii) During the earlier years, the Parent Company had advanced Rs. 0 crore (Rupees One lac) to Calcom as application money towards share warrants. In terms of the
agreement dated January 16, 2012 between the Parent Company and BG, the share warrants, in case of non-fulfilment of certain specific project conditions by BG, would be
converted into such number of equity shares that past conversion, the share holding of the Parent Company in Calcom becomes 99%. the Parent Company vide letter dated
May 15, 2015 gave natice to BG for non-fulfilment of project conditions. The disputes between the parties are pending adjudication before the Arbitral Tribunal (also refer note
34(C)).

The Group reviews trade receivables, advances and subsidies receivables on regular intervals and takes necessary steps (including legal action wherever required) for the
recovery these balances. The Group is confident to realise the value stated good in the financial statements. The Group follows the expected credit loss model in respect of
any such situations as stated in note 1B(iii){), it believes that such amount is sufficient to cover for any possible loss.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, certain mutual furd units (“Securities”) appearing as current investments, valued at Rs. 374 as on March 31, 2020, were
ilegally and fraudulently transferred by one of the Depository Participant ("DP"), from demat accounts of the Parent Company. Based on the complaint filed by the Parent
Company and after conducting preliminary enquiry, the Econemic Offences Wing, Delhi (EOW) directed the Clearing Agent of DP (i.e. ISSL) not to deal with the Securities and
also freezed all such Securities till further arders.

SEBI after complaint by the Parent Company also directed the DP, its promoters/directors, its related associates and other noticees mentioned in the order, not to dispose of,
alienate or encumber any assets, except with the prior permission of SEBI/ National Stock Exchange (NSE).

No final order has yet been passed by SEBI in the complaint lodged by the Parent Company against DP and others in respect of fraudulent transfer of Securities from its
demat accounts.

In the meantime, the clearing agent/ ISSL has also sought frorn Security Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai (“SAT"} the annulment of trade of Future & Options contract entered into
by DP. Such annulment of trades sought by clearing agent/ ISSL was directed by SAT vide its order dated July 03, 2019 to be heard by SEBI including grievance of all other
investors. SEBI challenged the said order of SAT before Hon'ble Supreme Court. The Supreme Court, vide its interim order dated August 27, 2019, directed NSE Clearing
Corporation Limited, to honour F&O segments contract which had matured on June 27, 2019. The Supreme Court also clarified that the payments so made shall be without
prejudice to the rights and contentions of the parties and subject to the final outcome and directions which would be passed in the matter. The matter is still pending before
Supreme Court. The matter is currently under investigation by the Parent Company through an independent firm of Chartered Accountants.

Further, EOW has filed charge sheet against the said DP, its promoter, ISSL and its business head for committing various offences under Indian Penal Code. The charge
sheet is accusing them of forging the Delivery Instruction Slips to effect fraudulent transfer of Securities from the demat accounts of the Parent Company. After filing of charge
sheet, the Parent Company has filed an application before the Jurisdictional Court for release of mutual fund units and the same is currently pending.

Consequent to this, the Parent Company, during the year, has valued these Securities at the fair market value existing on the reporting date and an amount of Rs. 30 has been
credited to the statement of profit and loss under the head Other income. The Parent Company is fully canfident of recovering its Securities based on the legal opinion obtained
in the matter, Hence, no provision is considered necessary in these financial statements.

The Government of India (‘GOI') on December 24, 1987 announced industrial policy for development of industries in North East region with a promise to give 100% exemption
on Excise Duty {paid in cash) by way of ‘remission’ for 10 years from the date of commencement of commercial production, and the same was continued in the second policy
issued on April, 2007,

In the year 2008, the GOI abruptly modified remission entittement vide notifications dated March 27, 2008 and June 10, 2008 restricting the remission amount to value addition
(‘notified rate’). Depariment started refunding excise remission as per notified rate but not 100 % of excise duty paid from PLA.

The Group approached Guwahati High Court for sanction of 100 % remission on principal of promissory estoppel along with other petitions and the same was allowed vide
order dated November 20, 2014. Accordingly, the Group had accrued 100 % remission income in the books. Against the order of High Court, department filed a SLP(C) before
the Hon'ble Supreme Court, for stay of the order of Guwahati High Court. The Supreme Court stayed order of High Court {'Interim Order') with a condition to refund 50% of the
disputed amount on December 07, 2015.

Finally, the Supreme Court pronounced decision on April 22, 2020 and held that amendment in notification is in continuance of earlier policy. Accordingly, the Group have,
during the current year, written off an amount of Rs. 8 which was pending for refund and has, further, during the current year made provision of Rs. 5 being amount already
refunded in lieu of Interim Order passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court both of which are over and above said rotified rate {‘disputed amount’).
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50.

51.

52.

53.

The Government of Assam in their high power committee meeting in February 2019 had granted Mega Project status to one of the subsidiary of the Group, under the Industria!
and Investment policy of Assam 2014 for the investment done for establishment of clinkerisation unit at Umrangshu ("USO") of Calcom for 15 years in the state of Assam. The
said unit would be entitled to 100% reimbursement of net SGST paid for a period of 15 years from the date of commercial production on account of which 100% remission of
SGST of Rs. 51 was recognized as income in the previous year.

The Group is setting up new cement plants in Odisha along with new grinding capacity in eastern part of India with total capacity of 8 MnTPA. The clinker manufacturing plant
of 3 MnTPA has been commissioned and is under trial run. The cement grinding plants are under construction and part of the capacity is likely to be completed by December
31, 2020,

The expenditure incurred on commissioning of the project, including the expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts), which is under progress of Rs. 1,437 as at
March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 : Rs. 328) is included under capital work-in-progress.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company, its subsidiary company namely Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited (DBRL) (formerly known as Sri Dhandauthapani Mines and
Minerals Limited) and step down subsidiary company namely Dalmia OCL Limited {Dalmia OCL) in their respective meetings held on November 14, 2019, approved the
following:

(a) Scheme of Arrangement amongst the Parent Company, DBRL, their respective shareholders and creditors in terms of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Scheme 1') for transfer and vesting of refractory undertaking of the Parent Company to DBRL, by way of slump exchange on a going
concern basis. The proposed appointed date of the said Scheme is April 1, 2019.

(b) Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement amongst Dalmia Refractories Limited (‘DRL’) and its subsidiary GSB Refractories India Private Limited (GSB India’), DBRL and
Dalmia OCL and their respeclive shareholders and creditors in terms of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Scheme 2). It
involves (i) amalgamation of DRL with DBRL; (i) amalgamation of GSB India with DBRL; and (jii) transfer and vesting of refractory undertaking of DBRL to Dalmia OCL by way
of slump exchange on a going concem basis. The proposed appointed date of the said Scheme is April 1, 2020.

The Board of Directors of DRL also in their meeting held on November 14, 2019 approved Scheme 2 as stated above. Pending necessary regulatory approvals and other
compliances, no effect of the above mentioned schemes has been considered in these financial statements.

The Group is having long term clinker sale agreement with M/s Jaiprakash Associates Limited (JAL) for supply of clinker upto July 2041. Till March 2018, there were irregular
and short supply of clinker and from April 1, 2018, there was no supply of clinker. Thereafter, JAL unilaterally and illegally terminated the clinker sale agreement. The Group
has challenged the termination in arbitration proceedings and has sought specific performance of the clinker saie agreement, The Group has alternatively sought damages
alongwith interest, The Group has also sought liquidated damages and refund of the advance amount paid to JAL.

The Group has not accounted for the aforesaid claim as income in the books of accounts as at March 31, 2020.

. The Group's operations were impacted in the month of March 2020, due to temporary shutdown of all plants following nationwide lockdown by the Government of India in view

of COVID-19, a pandemic caused by the novel Coronavirus.

The Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverabiiity and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventories and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects
to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The Group will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its
business.

Operations have resumed in a phased manner taking into account directives from the Government during April 2020.
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55. The Group comprises of the following entities:

Name of the Group Company

A. Subsidiaries

CONOOEWN

Nall Nonbhwh =

. Bangaru Kamakshi Amman Agro Farms Private Limited
. Calcom Cement India Limited

. D.I. Properties Limited

. Daimia Minerals & Properties Limited

. Geetee Estates Limited

. Golden Hills Resorts Private Limited

. Hemshila Properties Limited

. Ishita Properties Limited

. Rajputana Properties Private Limited

. Jayevijay Agro Farms Private Limited

. Shri Rangam Properties Limited

. Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited {formerly Known as Sri Dhandauthapani Mines & Minerals Limited)
. Sri Madhusudana Mines & Properties Limited

. Sri Shanmugha Mines & Minerals Limited

. Sri Swaminatha Mines & Minerals Limited

. Sri Subramanya Mines & Minerals Limited

. 8ri Trivikrama Mines & Properties Limited

. Alsthom Industries Limited

. Chandrasekara Agro Farms Private Limited

. OCL Global Limited

. Dalmia DSP Limited (w.e.f. July 10, 2018}

. Hopco Industries Limited (w.e.f. December 21, 2018)

Step-down subsidiaries

. Cosmos Cements Limited (subsidiary of Dalmia Minerals & Properties Limited)

. Sutnga Mines Private Limited (subsidiary of Dalmia Minerals & Properties Limited)
. OCL China Limited (subsidiary of OCL Global Limited)

. Vinay Cements Limited (subsidiary of Calcom Cement India Limited)

RCL Cements Limited (subsidiary of Vinay Cements Limited)

. 8CL Cements Limited (subsidiary of Vinay Cements Limited)
- Dalmia OCL Limited (subsidiary of Dalmia Bharat Refractories Limited) (w.e.f. October 7, 2019)

. Joint ventures
- Khappa Coal Company Private Limited (JV of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited)
. Radhikapur (West) Coal Mining Private Limited (JV of Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited)

Country of
Incorporation

India
India
India
India
India
india
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
india
India
India
India
Mauritius
India
India

India
India
China
India
India
India
India

India
India

% of
ownership as
at March 31,

2020

100.00%
76.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.98%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
90.00%
97.21%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

36.73%
14.70%

% of ownership
as at March 31,
2018

100.00%
76.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.90%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.0¢%
99.99%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
90.00%

97.21%

160.00%
100.00%
100.00%

36.73%
14.70%
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56. Segment information

Operating segment

The Chief operational decision maker {CODM) monitors the operating results of its business sements separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating
segments have been identified on the nature of products and services and have been identified as per the quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS. However, the Group’s finance
costs and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

The Group has reviewed its segment information and decided to have below segments as per Ind AS 108, ‘Operating Segments’;
(a) Cement division which produces various grades of cement and its related products;
(b) Others include Refractory division, Investment division and Management Services.

No other operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under sach reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment have
been allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not attributable or aliocable to segments have been

disclosed as unallocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable.

Rs.

Particulars Cement Others Total
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

Revenue
External revenue (including other operating revenue) 9,047 8,859 642 628 9,689 9,487
Less: Inter segment revenue (8) @) (20) (25) (28) (33)
Total revenue 9,039 8,851 622 603 9,661 9,454
Results
Segment results 537 549 23 58 560 607
Add: Other unallocable income net of unailocable expenditure 150 211
Less: Finance costs (411) {661)
Profit before tax 29 . ..257,
Other disclosures
Segment assets 16,938 17,430 613 862 17,551 18,292
Unallocable assets 1,799 846
Total assets 19,350 19,138
Segment liabilities 2,363 2,361 114 84 2477 2,445
Unallocable liabilities 7,527 7,440
Total liabilities 10,004 9,885
Other disclosures:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,507 1,282 13 10 1,520 1,292
Capital expenditure 1,621 1,021 10 18 1,531 1,039

Information about geographical areas
Sale outside India is below the reportable threshold limit, thus geographical segment information is not given.

Information about major customers
There are no revenues from fransactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues during the current and previous year.




(%10°0) (0} %000 - [(%10°0) (0} |%00°0 0 palWi] 100 eweq
(%00°0) (0) 1%00°0 - {%0070) (0} (%00°0) _av paliwi saujsnpu| 0adoH
%800 |0 %000 - |%80°0 0 %200 Z psjiwI ajeAud ssuly ebuing
(%00°0) L) |%00°0 - {%000) (o) %400 L PajwI seiadold @ SBUIN BLUBDIALL US
{%00°0) [()] |%00°0 - (%00°0) [(0) [%¥0°0 € P8liwI S[eJaUI '@ SBUIN BUJBUILEMS LS
{%00°0) (o) %000 - {%00°0) (o) |%90°0 9 psjwIT sjessully @ saully eAueweIgNg 1S
%00°0 0 %0070 - %000 0 %8600 |6 P3jwI seJaul @ saully eybnwueys us
(%00°0) (0) 1%00°0 - (%00°0) (0 %200 12 palw sepladold ' SSUIN euepnsnypep IS
(%00°0) (0) %000 - [(%00°0) (0) %100 ! Pouwr ssuopelsy jeseyg ewjeq
%100 0 %000 - %1070 0 %410 loL pajwi sensedold webuey Lyg
(%00°0) (0) |%00°0 - (%00°0) (0) (%000) (o) PS)WI aleAld sepiadold eueindfey
(%00°0) (o) |%00'0 - (%0070) ()] %00 [ pajwI sjeAld suleS oiby Aeflineder
%ZLL'0 0 1%00'0 - %810 0 (%z0°0) (@) pajiwi] seipadold eyys|
(%00°0) (0) |%00°0 - (%00°0) (0) %L0°0 2 peuwI] saiadold Elyswan
(%10°0) (o) %00'0 - [{%100) (o) %100 [ paliWn 8jeaLd SHOSeY SIiIH uapioD
(%00°0) |(0) %0070 - (%00°0) ()] %400 1 pajwI sejejs3 a9jaas)
M\%o.o ) o %000 - %00 : 0 %ES'0 z5 pajiwI seiuadold g sesau elueq
%E0°0) [0} %000 - {%£0°0 (o) %Z0°0 z peywr seadold ‘1'q
?mm_‘.ov (o) m&oo.o - ...,._x,“N_..o,. (0) ”Q”mv.o z PaYWIT SJUBUIBD SOWSOD
(%20°0) (o) %000 - (%200 (o) %2070 4 pajiwr eleald swied oiby eleyeseipueyn
(%¥0°0) Me .M\ooo.o ; A ; _.§3.9v () %¥0°0 v PajIT S1eALd SUIelS 015y UBWWY Iusyewe)) niebueg
(%e8L1) ¥¢) %SL'Y 0 (%4281 (pe) (%92°1) (z21) payw] sjuswan Aeuip
@M_&.mv [(o1) A.xwum.vv (0) _A.w“mv.mv. (o1) .?\Mmm.ov (eg) eI SUBWBY 108
(%1€°2) (%) {%9¢°0) {0) (%2£2) (2 %¥0°0 2 pajwI sjusWan) 0y
{%82°0L) [{oz) (%98'11) (1) {%ezz0L) (61) (%80°0) (8) psHwI dSA elwieq
%ET L1 €e %6168 S %26l 8¢ %590 #9 PayWIT saLlsnpu] Wouyis|y
%6195 801 (%62°6) (1) |%TL 88 (] |%91L'G ¥0S pajiw elpuj Juswag wodjen
" ueipu|
sauelpisqng g
%8G8k €6 (%9v'12) (v) %8928 L6 %6L'€6 '891°6 pauwr] (Jeseyg) Juswa) eiwfeq
juaied ‘v
awoaul 120 sso] / Jjoud «x S]OSSE Jau
aAlIsuayalduwo |ejo3 junowy pajepijosuod junowy pajepijosuod junowy pajepijosucs unowy saueIpiIsqng
P9JEPIIOSUOD JO %, SY 30 % sy 0% sy 40 % Sy
{190} swoauy
(13.) swoouy oAIsuayasdwod sso] /jyoud ut aseys » S)19SSY 19N dnoug ay; ui £1pus ey jo aweN
aAlsuaysidwon |ejo} u) aseys 18430 uf sieys .

sy

Sjuswisiess [ejaueul pajeplosuod Jo uofjesedald sy) 1of SUOKINSUI [BIBUBD,, ‘£10Z 1OV SlUBdWOY 40 |]] 9|NPaYSS O} Juensind uojewLIOUl [BUCHIPPY LS

aslmIBIo paje)s Jandloym 3dedxa 2101) Sy Ul 9de 'Sy Ul PIje)s SJUNOWE |1y
0Z0Z ‘L€ U2Jey papuse Jeak aipy 10) SJUSWOIE}S |eIOURUY POIRPI|OSUOD 0} SOJON

pajw (1eseygq) Juswag enweq




“uojepijosuoo Jo Jno Buisiie sjuaLuisnipe juceulw|e Bulepisuod 210j8q PSUILLISISP USBq sey abeluagied .
“2injuaA julof ay) jo s}esse Jau ay) Ul dnoub ay) Jo eleys ay) 1B aiNJUBA ol Jo yoadsal uj usaib spunowy ,,

58l w 9 ] 621 _ 9ve's lejol
(9 ” - | (9) _ (Gr47)] Spuswsnipy 7 uojeuwi|3 :sso1
%001 161 %001 9 %001 S8l %001 §11'6 lejoy-qng
T = = - - - - - psjwi a)eAld »cma.Eoo [eoq eddeyy
%6EY |%66°078 %000 %000 %S 8 1%00°0 0 PaUWIT B1eALd BullI (203 (1s9) Indexiypey

SaINjuaA Julor uBIpU|

« (Poyrew A3nba Jod se Jusuyseauy) sasnyuan yuor -9

(%2g2) (1) (%08°0) (0) (%L2) D (%92°0) (s2) SeueIpIsqns Ul sjsaiajul buljjonuco-uoN
%oty 8 %69°€Z b %8LE L %95°0 S§ pajWI BUYD TO0
%8121 €2 %6¥ 76 9 %6€ 6 L %20°L 0l paywI (2ol 100
| ubraiog
awooul 120 ss0] / Jyoud sjosse jau

aAlsuayaldwo [ejo) Junowy pejepijosuod junowy pejepjjosuod junowy pejepijosuod junowy sape|pisqng

Pa3epIjosu0a 40 % SY 10 % sV 10 % sv 10 % sy

(19.0) swoauy (120} swoou)

S i _auou.c_ areus ohw_““w”w“_”_.” $s0] /3jyoad ul aueyg S]assy JaN dnousy ay3 ui Aus ayj Jo awen

sy 9SIAIBL)0 Paje)s Janalaym 1daoXs $0101D "SY Ui 9k 'Sy Ul Paje)s SJUNoWe iy
SHUBWAJE]S [eloukUl} PIJEPHOSUOY) O) SIJON
popwI (Jereyg) Juswe eiwleq




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore except wherever stated otherwise

58. Research and development (R&D) expenses

The details of revenue/capital expenditure incurred by R&D centre during the year are as follows:-

Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Revenue expenditure charged to statement of profit and loss
- Salary and other benefits 4 4
- Raw materials & stores 0 1
- Others 1 2
Total 5 7
Capital expenditure shown under fixed assets schedule - -
Grand Total 5 7
§9. The Groug has spent amount an corporate social responsibility expenses as below:
Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Gross amount required to be spent during the year 4 4
Amount spent during the year:
- Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than above 9 6
60. Material partly-owned subsidiaries
Finangial information of subsidiary company that has material non-controlling interests is provided below:
Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:
Nam Country of incorporation March 31, March 31,
© 2020 2019
Calcom Cement India Limited 76.00% 76.00%
Summarlsed C lidated stat t of profit and loss of Calcom Cement India Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:
Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Revenue 886 911
Profit for the year 60 175
Other comprehensive Income/(loss) (1) 0]
Total comprehensive income 59 175
Attributable to:
Non-controlling interest 13 41
Summarised Consolidated balance sheet of Calcom Cement India Limited as at March 31, 2020 and March 31,2019:
Rs.
. March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Current assets 302 375
Current liabilities 724 716
Net current assets {422) (341)
Non-current assets 930 976
Non-current liabilities 381 567
Net non-current assets 549 409
Nat assets 127 €8
Attributable to:
Non-controlling interest 22 9
Summarised consolidated cash flow informatlon of Calcom Cement India Limlted as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:
Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Operating 346 286
Investing (106) 17
Financing (245) (306)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5) {3)




Dalmia Cement (Bharat) Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

All nts stated in Rs. are in Rs. Crore pt wherever stated otherwise
61. Summarised financial information of individually immaterial Joint venture
The Group's interest in below mentioned joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The summarized financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venturer’s financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes:
Radhikapur (West) Coal Mining Private Limited
Rs.
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Profit for the year 2 2
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income 2 2
Group's share of profit for the year 0 0
62. The Group is eligible for incentives package provided by the State Government of Bihar in accordance with the approved resolution plan in case of subsidiary of the Group
namely Dalmia DSP Limited. The details are as follows: -
i) 80% reimbursement of state goods and service tax (SGST) for a periad of 7 years from the date of commencement of operations.
ii) Interest subvention scheme for an amount of Rs. 25 over three years.
iii} Exemption from payment of electricity duty for a period of 5 years in respect of electricity consumed by the subsidiary.
iv) Capital subsidy for setting up waste heat based captive power plant up to an amount of Rs. 17 and reimbursement of interast on royalty and electricity dues.
If the above incentive scheme is not granted, then Group shall not make any payments to statutory creditors, unsecured financial creditors, non-priority workmen and
employee dues and other operational creditors. As on reporting date, no incentive have been received and recorded by the Group.
63, Previous year figures have been recasted/restated wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.
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